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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2018

Principal activities
The company did not trade during the year.

Review of the business and future developments
The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 are shown in the profit and loss account on
page 8 and show a profit for the financial year of £798,000 (2017: £-).

The financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2018 is shown on the balance sheet on page 10. The
directors consider that the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2018 was satisfactory. The
directors do not consider there to be any likely future developments of significance.

Key performance indicators (KPls)
Given the straightforward nature of the business the Company's directors are of the opinion that analysis using
KPIs is not necessary for an understanding of the development, performance ar position of the business,

Principal risks and uncertainties

From the perspective of the Company the principal risks and uncertainties are integrated with the principal risks
of the group and are not managed separately. Accordingly, the principal risks and uncertainties of Arcenic Inc,
which include those of the Company are discussed in the section entitled "Risk factors” in the Arconic Inc. Group’s
2018 Annual report which does not form part of this report. Details of where the annual report can be found are
shown in note 14 to the financial statements or on the Arcenic Inc. website (www.arconic.com).

Brexit

Company management is monitoring the development of the Brexit negotiations to ensure that mitigating
actions can be undertaken in the relevant impacted areas as appropriate to the business.

Approved by the Board on 24 June 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

KL Dowdall
Director
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Directors’' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

The directors present their annual report and audited financiat statements for the year ended 31 December 2018,

Directors of the company

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signing of the financial statements were as
follows:

LM Fargas Mas
KL Dowdall

Future developments
The future developments in the business are set out in the Strategic Report on page 2.

Going concern
The directors, after making enquiries, have an expectation that the Company has adequate resources to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future.

Financial risk management policies

The directors have reviewed the financial risk management objectives and policies of the Company. The Company
does not as a regular policy enter into hedging instruments, as there is not believed to be any material exposure.
It also does not enter into any speculative financial instruments. The directors do not consider there to be any
material financtal risks.

Disclosure of indemnities

The directors confirm under section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 that:

- at the time this directors’ report is signed a qualifying third party indemnity provision (provided by the ultimate
parent company, Arconic Inc.) was in force for the benefit of all the directors of the Company;

» for the financial year ending 31 December 2018 a qualifying third party indemnity provision (provided by the
ultimate parent company, Arconic Inc.) was in force for the benefit of all the directors of the Company; and

« that there is no qualifying third party indemnity provision provided by the Company for one or more directors
of an associated company either on the date the directors’ report is signed or in the last financial year.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law). Under company law the directors
must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

+ state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 have been followed,
subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Directors’ Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasenable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Disclosure of information to the auditors

Fach director has taken steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditors are aware of that information. The
directors confirm that there is no relevant information that they know of and of which they know the auditors are
unaware.

Reappointment of auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP has indicated its willingness to be reappointed for another term and appropriate
arrangements have been put in place for them to be deemed reappointed as auditor in the absence of an AGM.

Approved by the Board on 24 June 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

KL Dowdall
Director
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Forgings
International Holdings 1 Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited’s financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of its profit for the year
then ended;

¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland”, and applicable law}; and

¢ have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have andited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Financial Statements {the “Annual
Report™, which comprise: the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018; the profit and loss account, the statement of
comprehensive income and the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the notes to the financial
statements, which include a description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We condueted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fuifilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating te going concern
1SAs (UK) require us to report to you when:

e the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

¢ the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

‘We have nothing to report in respect of the above matters.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. For example, the terms on which the United Kingdom may withdraw from the
European Union are not clear, and it is difficult to evaluate all of the potential implications on the company’s trade,
customers, suppliers and the wider economy.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material
misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK
Companies Act 2006 have been included.
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Forgings
International Holdings 1 Limited (continued)

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs (UK) require us also
to report certain opinions and matters as described below.
Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report and
Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2018 is consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK} will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.
Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance
with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept
or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it
may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing,.
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Iﬁdependent auditors’ report to the members of Forgings
International Holdings 1 Limited (continued)

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
»  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

{m Cluke

Ian Clarke (Senior Statutory Auditor}
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Cardiff

z% June 201
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017

Note £000 £000

Turnover - -
Operating profit/{loss) 5 - -
Profit/{loss) before tax - -
Taxation 8 798 -
Profit for the financial year 798 -

The above results were derived from continuing operations.

The company had no other comprehensive income for the year other than the results above.

The notes on pages 12 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
£000 £ 000
Profit for the financial year 798 -
Total comprehensive income for the year 798 -

The notes on pages 12 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

{Registration number: 04597895)
Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2018

2018 2017

Note £ 000 £ 000
Fixed assets
Investments 9 49,726 49726
Current assets
Debtors 10 1,513 715
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year 11 {97,517y (97,517)
Net current liabilities {96,004) (96,802)
Net liabilities (46,278) (47,076)
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 12 1,830 1,830
Share premium reserve 4,829 4,829
Profit and loss account {52,937) (53,735}
Total equity {46,278) {47,076}

The financial statements on pages 8 to 19 were approved and authorised by the Board of Directors on 24 june
2019 and sighed on its behalf by:

KL Dowdall

Director

The notes on pages 12 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

Profit and loss

Share capital  Share premium account Total

£ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000

At 1 January 2018 1,830 4,829 (53,735) (47,076}
Profit for the year - - 798 798
Total comprehensive income - - 798 798
At 31 December 2018 1,830 4,829 (52,937 (46,278)

Profit and loss account represents cumulative retained comprehensive income.

Share premium account represents consideration received in respect of the issuance of share capital in excess of
the nominal value of that share capital, less any costs directly incurred in connection with the issue.

Profit and loss

Share capital  Share premium account Total

£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000

At 1 January 2017 1,830 4,829 (53,735) (47,076}
At 31 December 2017 1,830 4,829 {53,735) (47.076)

The notes on pages 12 to 19 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

1 General information
The Company is a incorporated in England and Wales. The Company’s registered office is located in England.

The address of its registered office is:
Z26a Atlas Way
Sheffield

54 7QQ
Urnited Kingdom

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board on 24 June 2019.

2 Statement of compliance

The financial statements of Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited have been prepared in compliance with
United Kingdem Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” ("FRS 102"} and the Companies Act
2006.

3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The Company has
adopted FRS 102 in these financial statements and has chosen to adopt early the amendments introduced by the
FRC in its Triennial review 2017,

3.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial staterments are disclosed in note 4.

3.2 Going concern

The financial position of the Company is shown in the financial statements on pages 8 to 19. The Company is
dependent on the continuing support of its ultimate parent company, Arconic Inc.. Arconic Inc. has pledged to
continue to support the Company by providing sufficient funding to enable the Company to trade for at least
twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements. The directors are satisfied that Arconic Inc.
will honour its commitment of support. The Company therefore continues to adopt the going concern basis of
preparing its financial statements.
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

3.3 Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption, under FRS 102 paragraph 112(b), from preparing a
statement of cash flows, on the basis that it is a qualifying entity and its ultimate parent company, Arconic Inc,,
includes the Company's cash flows in its own consolidated financial statements.

This information is included in the consolidated financial statements of Arconic Inc. as at 31 December 2018
which can be obtained from Arconic Inc. Corporate Office, 201 Isabella Street, Pittsburgh, PA 15212-5828, USA.

3.4 Exemption from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Arconic Inc. It is included in the consolidated financial statements
of Arconic Inc. which are publicly available from either the address set out in note 14 to the financial statements
or the Arconic Inc. website (www.arconic.com). Therefore the Company is exempt by virtue of section 401 of the
Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements,

3.5 Related party transactions

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption, under FR5 102, from disclosing transactions with members
of the same group that are whoily cwned and key management personnel.

3.6 Foreign currency

(i} Functional and presentation currency
The Company's functional and presentation currency is the pound sterling.

{ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the spot exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing
rate. Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of
transaction and non-monetary items measured at fair value are measured using the exchange rate when fair value
was determined. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the profit and the loss account except when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying
cash flow hedges. Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the profit and loss account within administrative expenses. All other foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in the profit and loss account within cost of goods sold.

3.7 Investments

Investment in subsidiary company is held at cost less accumulated impairment {osses.
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

3.8 Financial instruments

The Company has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 in respect of financial instruments.

(i} Financial assets

Basic financial assets, including amounts owed by group undertakings, are initially recognised at transaction price,
unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the present
value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. At the end of each
reparting period financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for objective evidence of impairment, If
an asset is impaired the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss. If there is a decrease in the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current carrying amount
does not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not previously been recognised.
The impairment reversal is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets are derecognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or are
settled, or {b) substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset are transferred to another party
or (c) contral of the asset has been transferred to another party who has the practical ability to unilaterally sell the
asset to an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions.

(i} Financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including amounts owed to group undertakings, are initially recognised at transaction
price, unless the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the
present value of the future receipts discounted at a market rate of interest.

Amounts owed to group undertakings are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business. Amounts owed to group undertakings are classified as Creditors: amounts falling due
within one year if payment is due within one year or less. If not, they are presented as Creditors: amounts falling
due after more than one year. Amounts owed to group undertakings are recognised initially at transaction price
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

{iii) Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts presented in the financial statements when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

(iv) Derivatives .
Derivative financial instruments can be a financial asset or a financial liability and are not basic financial
instruments,

Derivatives, including forward foreign exchange contracts are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Changes in the fair value
of derivatives are recognised in profit or loss in finance costs or income as appropriate.

The Company does not currently apply hedge accounting for foreign exchange derivatives.

3.9 Finance income and costs

(i} Interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate method.

(i Finance costs

Finance costs are charged to the profit and loss account over the term of the debt using the effective interest
method so that the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carrying amount. Issue costs are initially
recognised as a reduction in the proceeds of the associated capital instrument.

3.10 Called up share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other
resources received or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred
and the time value of money is material, the initial measurement is on a present value basis.

3.11 Impairment of non-current financial assets

At each balance sheet date non-current financial assets not carried at fair value are assessed to determine
whether there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. If there is such an indication the recoverable
amount of the asset is compared to the carrying amount of the asset,

The recaverable amount of the asset is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Value in use
is defined as the present value of the future cash flows before interest and tax obtainable as a result of the asset's
continued use. These cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that represents the current market
risk-free rate and the risks inherent in the asset. If the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to be lower
than the carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised in the profit and loss account, unless the asset has been revalued when the amount is recognised in
other camprehensive income to the extent of any previously recognised revaluation. Thereafter any excess is
recognised in profit or loss.

If an impairment loss is subsequently reversed, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the revised carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior periods. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the profit and loss account.
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

3.12 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss
account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company operates and generates
income.

Where relief is claimed against losses sustained by other companies in the group, this relief is charged to the
Company by the donor company at the rate of £1 for every £1 of taxation not paid. Amounts payable for group
relief are included in the taxation charge of the Company.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of ali timing differences that have originated but not reversed by the
balance sheet date, except that:

« The recagnition of deferred tax assets is limited to the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits;

» Any deferred tax balances are reversed if and when all conditions for retaining associated tax allowances have
been met; and

» Where they relate to timing differences in respect of interests in subsidiaries, associates, branches and joint
ventures and the Company can control the reversal of the timing differences and such reversal is not considered
probable in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax balances are not recognised in respect of permanent differences except in respect of business
combinations. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Current or deferred taxation assets and liabilities are not discounted.

4 Critical accounting judgements and estimates

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will,
by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

Impairment of investments

The Company considers if there is a trigger for impairment and if so whether investments are impaired. If there is
an impairment review this requires consideration of the financial position and financial performance of the
subsidiary companies as listed in note 9 and the estimation of future revenues and future cash flows from the
company as well as the selection of appropriate discount rates in order to calculate the net present value of those
cash flows.

The directors consider that there are no significant judgements or key scurces of estimation uncertainty in the
preparation of these financial statements.
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

5 Operating result

The audit fees amounting to £1,500 {2017: nil} of the Company have been paid by Firth Rixson Limited with no
recharge to the Company. The remuneration of the Company's auditors for the provision of non-audit services to
the Company was Nil (2017: nil}.

6 Staff costs

There were no persons employed by the Company during the year (2017: none}.

7 Directors' remuneration

No directors received emoluments during the year for their services to the Company (2017: nil). The directors are
employed by other companies within the Arconic Inc. group and are remunerated by fellow group companies for
their services to the group as a whole. It is not practical to allocate their remuneration for their services as a
director between group companies.

8 Taxation

Tax charged/{credited) in the income statement

2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000

Current taxation
UK corporation tax (343) -
UK corporation tax adjustment to pricr periods {455) -
{798) -

The tax rate for the year is the same as the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK (2017 - the same as the
standard rate of corporation tax in the UK) of 19% (2017 - 19.25%).

The differences are reconciled below:

2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000
Profit/(loss) before tax - -
Corporation tax at standard rate - _
Tax decrease from transfer pricing adjustments (798) -
Total tax credit (798) -
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

The tax rate for the current year is lower than the prior year due to changes in the UK corporation tax rate, which
decreased from 20% to 19% from 1 April 2017. Changes to the UK corporation tax rates were substantively
enacted as part of the Finance Bill 2016 (on 6 September 2016). These include reductions to the main rate to
reduce the rate to 17% from 1 April 2020. Deferred taxes at the balance sheet date have been measured using
these enacted tax rates and reflected in these financial statements.

9 Investments

2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000
Investments in subsidiaries - Cost and net book value 49,726 49,726

Details of undertakings

Details of the investments (including principal place of business of unincorporated entities) in which the company
holds 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital are as follows:

Country of Direct/Indirect Proportion of voting rights
Undertaking incorporation shareholding and shares held
2018 2017
Subsidiary undertakings
Forgings International Holdings 2 Limited  United Kingdom Direct 100% 100%

The principal activity of Forgings International Holdings 2 Limited is dormant

The address of the registered office of Forgings International Holdings Limited 2 is 26a Atlas Way, Sheffield, 54
7QQ. UK.

10 Debtors
2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000
Amounts owed by group undertakings 879 715
Amounts owed by group undertakings - group relief 634 -
1,513 715

Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are
repayable on demand.
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Forgings International Holdings 1 Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2018

11 Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year

2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000
Due within one year
Amounts owed to group undertakings 97.517 97,517

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are
repayable on demand.
12 Called up share capital

Allotted, called up and fully paid shares
2018 2017
No. 000 £ 000 No. 000 £ 000

Ordinary shares of £1 each 1,830 1,830 1,830 1,830

13 Related party transactions

The Company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Arconic Inc. and is included in the consolidated financial
statements of Arconic Inc., which are publicly available. Consequently, in accordance with the exemption afforded
by Financial Reporting Standard No 102, there is no disclosure in these financial statements of transactions with
entities where 100% of the Company's voting rights are centrelled within the Arconic Inc. group.

14 Parent and ultimate parent undertaking

The company's immediate parent is Forgings International Holdings Limited, incorporated in United Kingdom.

The ultimate parent is Arconic Inc., incorporated in the United States of America, and forms the largest and
smallest group in which the Company's results are consolidated.

The most senior parent entity producing publicly available financial statements is Arconic Inc.. These financial

statements are available upon request from Arconic Inc. Corporate Office, 201 Isabella Street, Pittsburgh, PA
15212-5828, USA or the website {www.arconic.com).
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The 2018 Jeep* Wrangler (g courtesy FEL)
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PART |
{temn 1. Business.
Genergl

Arconic Inc. is a Delaware corporation with its principal office in New York, New York and the successor ta Arconic
Pennsylvania (as defined below) which was formed in 1888 and formerly known as Alcoa Ine. In this report, unless the context
otherwise requires. “Arconic” or the “Company™ means Arconic Inc., a Delaware corporation, and all subsidiaries consolidated
for the purposes of its financial siatements.

The Company's Interniet address is hitp://ww.arconic.com. Arconic makes available free of charge on or Lthrough its websitc
its annual repon ap Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Forn 8-K, and amendments to those reports
flled or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15{d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably practicable
afier the Company electronically files such material with, or furnishes it 10, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
The information on the Company’s [nternet site is not a part of. or incarporated by reference in, this annual report on Form 10-
k.. The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains these reports at hitp://www.sec.gov.

Forward-Looking Statements

This report cootains (and orel commurications made by Arconic may contain} statements that refate to future evenis and
expectatiens and, as such, constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995, Forward-looking statements include those containing such words as “anticipates.” “believes,” “could.”
“eslimates, .

Mo A LEENY LN ™o o

expects,” “forecasts,” “goal.” “guidance,” “intends,” “may,” “outlook,” “plans,” “*projects,” “seeks,” “sees,”
“should,” “targets,” “will,” “would,” or other words of similar meaning. All statements that reflect Arconic’s expectations,
assumptions or projections about the future, other than statements of historical fact, are forward-looking statements, incleding,
without limization, forecasts relating 1o the growth of the aerospace, automotive, commercizl transportation and other end
markets; statemenis and guidance regarding future financial results or operating performance; statements about Arconic’s
strategies. outlook, business and financial prospects; and statements regarding potential share gains. Forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject 10 risks. uncertainties, and changes in circumstances that
are difficult to predict. Alshough Arconic believes that the expeciations reflected in any forward-looking statements are based
on reasonable assurmplions, it can give no assurance that these expectations will be attained and it is possible that actual results
may differ materially from those indicated by these forward-looking statements due 1o a variety of risks and uncertainties.

For a discussion of some of the specific factors that may canse Arconic’s actual resulis to differ materially from those projected
in any forward-looking statements, see the following sections of this report: Part I, llem 1A, (Risk Factors), Part [1, Item 7.
(Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Coadition and Resuits of Operations), including the disclosures under
Segment Informatien and Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates, and Note U 10 the Consolidated Financial Statements in
Part 1L, Item 8. {Financial Statements and Supplementary Data). Market projections are subject to the risks discussed in this
report and other risks in the market. Arconic disclaims any intention or ebligation to update publicly any forward-loghing
statements, whether in response to new information, future evenis or otherwise, except as required by applicable law

Overview

Arconic (*Arconic” or the “Company™) is a global [eader in lightweight metals engineering and manufactusing. Arconic’s
innovative, multi-material products, which include aluminum, titanjum, and nickel, are used worldwide in acrospace,
automotive, cemmercial transportation, building and construction, industrial applications, defense, and packaging.

Arconie is a giobal company operating in 18 countries. Based upon the country where the point of sale occurred, the United
States end Europe generated 65% and 24%. respectively, of Arconic's sales in 20138. In addition, Arconic has operating
activities in Brazil, Canada, China, Japan, and Russia, among others. Governniental policies, laws and regulations. and other
economic factors, including inflation and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, affect the resulis of
operations in these countries.

Arconic’s operations consist of three worldwide reportable seaments: Engineered Products and Solutions, Global Ralled
Products and Transportation and Construction Solutions.
Background

Arconic Inc. Reincorporation

On December 31, 2017 (the “Effective Date™), Arconic Inc., a Pennsylvania corperation (*Arconic Pennsylvania™ or, prior to
the Reincorporation {as defined below), the “Company™), effecied the change of the Company s jurisdiction of incorporation
from Pennsylvania to Delaware (the “Reincorporation™) by merging (the “Reincorporation Merger™} with a direct wholly
owned Delaware subsidiary, Arconic (in this section, “Arconic Delaware” or, following the Reincorporation, the “Company™),
pursuant to an Agreement and Plan of Merger {the “Reincorporation Merger Agreement™), dated as of October 12, 2017, by and
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between Arconic Penasylvama and Arconic Delaware  Arconic Pennsylvania shareholders approved the Reincorporation
Merger 1o effect the Reincorporation at a Special Meeting of Shareholders held on November 30, 2017, As a result of the
Reincorporation, (i} Arconic Pennsylvania has ceased to exist, (ii} Arconic Delaware awtomatically inherited the reporting
obligations of Arconic Pennsylvania under the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act™), and (iH)
Arconic Delaware is deemed 1o be the successor issuer to Arconic Pennsylvania.

The commion stock, par value $1.00 per share, of Arconic Pennsylvania (the “Arconic Pennsylvania Common Stock™) was
tisted for rading on the New Yeork Stock Exchange and traded under the symbol “ARNC.” As of the Effective Date, this
symbol, without interruption, represents shares of common stock, par value $1.00 per share, of Arconic Delaware (the “Arconic
Delaware Commeon Siock™). There was no change in the Exchange Act File Number assigned by the SEC as aresult of the
Reincorporation.

As of the Effective Date, the rights of the Company’s stockholders began 1o be poverned by the General Corporation Law of
the State of Delaware, the Centificate of incorporation of Arconic Delaware {the “Delaware Certificate”) and the Bylaws of
Arconi¢ Delaware (the “Delaware Bylaws™).

Other than the change in corporate donucile, the Reincorporation did not result in any change in the business, physical lacation,
management, financial condition or number of authorized shares of the Company, nor did it result in any change in location of
its current employees, including management On the Effective Date, (i) the directors and officers of Arconic Pennsylvania
prior 10 the Reincorporation continued as the directors and officers of Arconic Delaware after the Reincorporation, tii) cach
outstanding share of Arconic Pennsy Ivania Common Stock was automatically converted into otie share of Arconic Delaware
Common Stock, (iii) each outstanding share of Serial Preferred Stock, par value $100 per share, of Arconic Pennsylvania {the
“Arconic Pennsylvania Preferred Stock™) was automatically converted into one share of Serial Preferred Stock, par value $100
per share, of Arconic Delanare {the “Arconic Delavware Preferred Stock™) and {iv) all of Arconic Pennsylvania’s emiployee
bene fit and compensation plans immediately prior 10 the Reincorperation were continued by Arcoaic Delaware, and each
outstanding equity award and notional share unit relating to shares of Arconic Pennsylvania Common Stock was converted into
an equity award or notional share unit, as applicable, relating to an equivalent number of shares of Arconic Delaware Common
Stock on the same terms and subject to the same conditions Beginaing at the effective time of the Reincorperation, each
certificate representing Arcenic Pennsybvania Common Stock or Arconic Pennsyivanin Preferred Stock was deemed for all
corporaie purposes 1o evidence ownership of Arcenic Delaware Common Stack or Arcenic Delaware Preferred Siack, as
applicable. The Company’s stochholders may. but are not required to, exchange their stack certtficales as a result of the
Reincorporation.

The foregoing descriptions of the Arconic Delaware Common Stock, the Arconic Delaware Preferred Stock, the Delaware
Certificate and the Defaware Bylaws are qualified in their emtirety by the Tult text of the Delaware Centificate and the Delaware
Bylaws, which are filed as Exiibits 3(a) and 3(b), respectively, to this report.

Neou Corporation Separation Transaction

On November [, 2016, Alcoa Inc completed the separation of its business inte two independent, publicly traded companies
(the “Separation™) - Alcoa Corporation and Arconic Ine (the new name for Alcoa Inc.) Following the Separation. Alcaa
Corporation holds the Alumina and Primary Metals segments, the rolling mill at the Warrick, Endiana operations a2nd the 25.1%
stahe in the Ma'aden Rolling Company in Saudi Acabia previously held by the Company. The Company retained the Global
Rolled Products (other than the rolling mill at the Warrick, Indiana operations and the 25.1% ownership stake in the Maaden
Rofling Company), Engineered Products and Solutions and Transpertation and Construciion Solutions segments.

The Separation was effected by a pro rata chstribution of 80.1% of the outstanding shares of Alcoa Corporation common stock
to the Company’s shareholders (the “Distribution”). The Company ‘s shareholders of record as of the clese of business on
October 20, 2016 (the “Recocd Date™) received one share of Alcoa Corporation common stock for every three shares of the
Company's common siock held as of the Record Date. The Company did not issue fractional shares of Alcoa Corporation
common stock in the Dhsinbution. Instead, each shareholder otherwise entitled 1o receive a fractional share of Alcea
Corperation common stock received cash in lieu of fractional shares

The Company distrbuted 146,159,428 shares of common stoch of Alcoa Corperauien in the Distribution and retained
36,311,767 shares, or approximately 19.9%y, of the common stock of Aleoa Corporation immediately following the
Distribution. As a result of the Distribution, Alcoa Corporation became an independent public company wading under the
symbol “AA" on the New York Stock Exchange, and the Company trades under the symbol “ARNC" on the New York Stack
Exchange

During 2017, the Company disposed of its rerained interest in Alcoa Corporation. In February 2017, the Company sold
23,353,000 shares of Alcoa Corporation stock at $38.03 per share, which resulied in cash proceeds of $383 miliion and a gain
of $35] million. In April and May 2017, the Company acquired a portion of its outstanding notes held by two investment banks
{the “Investment Banks™) in exchange for cash and the Company’s remaining 12,938,767 shares {valued at 335.91 per share) in
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Alcoa Corporation stock (the “Debt-for-Equity Exchange™) and recorded a gain of $167 million. The gains of $351 million and
5167 million associated with the disposition of the Alcoa Corporation shares were recorded in Other Income, Net in the
accompanying Statement of Consolidated Operations in Part 11, Item 8 (Financial Statements and Supplementary Data),

On October 31, 2016, in connection with the Separation and the Distribution, Arcaonic entered into several agreements with
Aleoa Corporation or its subsidiaries that govern the relationship of the parties following the Distribution, including the
following: Separation and Distribution Agreement, Transition Services Agreemeni, Tax Matters Agreement. Employee Matters
Agreement, certain Patent, Know-How, Trade Secret License and Trademark License Agreements, Toll Processing and Services
Agreement, Mastet Agreement for the Supply of Primary Aluminum, Nassena Lease and Operations Agreement, Fusina Lease
and Operations Agreement, and Stockholder and Registration Rights Agreement. The Toll Processing and Services Agreement
expired by its terms at the end of 2018

Recent Developments

On tanuary 22, 2019, the Company announced that its Board of Direciors (the Board) had deiermined to no longer pursue a
potential sale af Arconic as part of its strategy and portfolio review. Management and the Board have been conducting a
rigorous and comprehensive sirategy and partfelio review over the past year and as part of that process had considered a sale of
the Company, among other matiers. However, the Company did not receive a praposal for a full-Company transaction that
management and the Board belizved would be in the best interest of Arconic’s shareholders and other stakeholders.
Management and the Board remain confident in Arconic’s significant potential and are strongly focused on enhancing value for
shareholders, through continued operational iraprovements and through other potential initiatives which have been previously
identified in the strategy and portfolio review The Company has announced the following key initiatives as part of its ongoing
strategy and portfolio review,

»  Commenced plans to reduce operating costs by approximately $200 million on an annual run-rate basis. designed to
maximize the impact in 2019,

+  Announced the planned separation of its pertfolie inte Engineered Producis and Forgings and Global Rolled Producis,
with a spin-off of ane of the businesses;

*  Considering the potential sale of businesses that do not best fit into one of the two segmenls above;

+  Intends to execute its previously authorized S500 million share repurchase program in the first half of 2019;

*  The Board also authorized an additional $500 million of share repurchases, effective through the end of 2020; and
+  Expects to reduce its quarterly commaon stock dividend from $0.06 to $0.02 per share.

On February 6, 2019, the Company announced that the Board appointed John C. Plant, current Chairman of the Board, as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. effective February 6, 2019, to succeed Chip Blankenship, who ceased
to serve as Chief Executive Officer of the Company and resipned as a member of the Board, in each case as of that dale. n
addition, the Company announced that the Board appointed Elmer L.. Doty, current member of the Board. as President and
Chief Operating Officer, a newly created position, effective February 6, 2019. Me. Doty will remain a member of the Board.
The Company also announced that Arthur D, Collins, Jr, current member of the Board, has beer appointed interim Lead
Independent Director of the Company, effective February 6. 2019.

On February 19, 2019, the Company entered into an accelerated share repurchase (*ASR"™) agreement with JPMoergan Chase
Bank 1o repurchase $700 million of its common stock, pursuant to the share repurchase program previously autharized by the
Board. Under the ASR agreement, Arconic will receive initial delivery of approximately 32 million shares on February 21,
2019. The final number of shares to be repurchased will be based on the volume-weighted average price of Arconic's common
stock during the term of the transaction, less a discount. The ASR agreement is expected (o be completed during the firsi half of
2019,

The Company will evaluate its organizational structure in conjunction with the planned separation of its portfolio and changes
10 its reporiable segments are expected in the first half of 2019.
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Description of the Business

Informaticn describing Arconic’s businesses can be found on the indicated pages of this repart:

tem Page(s}
Discussion of Recent Business Developments:
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations:

Overview and Resulis of Operations 35
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements:

Nole D. Restructuring and Other Charges 70

Note G. Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits 73

Note H. Income Taxes 30

Note T. Acquisitions and Divestitures 96

Note L. Contingencies and Commitments 97

Segment Information:

Business Descriptions, Principal Products, Principal Markets, Methods of Distribution, Seasonality and
Dependence Upon Customers:

Engincered Products and Solutions 40

Global Rolled Products 41

Transportavion and Construction Solutions 42
Financial Information abowt Segments and Geographic Areas:

Note C. Segment and Geographic Area Information 66

Major Product Revcnucs

Pracucts that contributed 10%s or mare 1o consolidated revenues for the vears ended December 31. 2018 2017 and 2616, were-

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2018 2017 2016
innovative fTat-rolled products 40%a 39% 9%
Enpgines 21% 21°% 21%
Enginecred structures 13% 13% 14%
Fastening systems R 1% 122

Arconic has no customer that accounts for 10% or more of 115 consolidated revenues However, certain of the Company's
businesses are dependent upon a few significant customers. The Joss of any such significant customer could has e 2 matereal
adverse effect on such businesses.

Enginecrad Products and Selutions

Arconic's Engineered Products and Solutions segment {"EP&S™) develops and manufactures high performance products
mainly for the aerospace (commercial and defense), commercial transportation, and power generation end markets. Such
produets include fastening systems (titaniem, steel, and niche! superalloys), seamless rolled rings (nickel superalloys, sieel and
titaniumy). investment castings (nickel superalloys. titanium, and aluminumy), including airfoils and structural comporents,
forged airframe and jet engine components (rickel superatloys. titanium. aluminum). including bulkheads, disks and shafis,
extruded airframe companents {aluminum); and » arious other forged and extruded metallic components for the oil and gas.
industrial products, automotive, and land and sea defense end markets.

I Japuary 2018, EP&S anncunced a change in the organizational structure of the segment, from four business ynits to three
business units, with a focus on aligning its internal structure to core markets and customers and reducing casts. The three
business units are Arconic Engines; Arconic Fastening Systems: and Arcenic Engineered Structures.

Arconic Engines (AEN). AEN produces invesument cast airfoils. scamless rolled rings and closed-dic (including ssothermal)
forged 1urbine disks for acro engine and industrial gas mrbines, as well as other structural aero engine components. AEN also
provides additive manufacturing technologies, superalloy ingots, open-die forping, machining, performance coatings, and hot
isostatic pressing for high performance parts.

Arconic Fastening Systems (AF5). AFS produces aerospace fastening systems, as well as commercial ransportation
fasteners The business's high-tech, multi-material fastening systems are found nose 1o 1ail on aircrafi and aero engines The
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business’s products are ais0 cntical compenents of industrial gas turbines. automobiles, commercial transportation vehicles,
and construction and industrial equipment.

Arconic Engingered Structures {(AES}), ALS praduces titanium and aluminum ingots and mill products for aerospace
and defense applications and is vertically integrated 1o produce structural investment castings, forgings and extrusions,
for airframe, wing, aero-engine, and landing gear components. as well as lightweight drive shafis for the comniercial
transportation industries AES also provides multi-material asrframe subassemblies and solutions related to advanced
technologies and materials, such as 3D printing and titanium aluminides

For additional discussion of the EP&S segment's business, see “Results of Operations- —Segment Information™ in Part [], tern
7. (Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditlon and Resulis of Operations) and Note C to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Part IL. ltem 8. (Financial Statements and Supplementary Data).

In fuly 2018, Arconic announced a two-year Joint Development Agreement with Lockheed Martin to develop customized
lightweight material systems and advanced manufacturing processes, such as metal 30 printing. to advance current and next-
generation acrospace and defense solutions - including new structures and systems

In December 2018, as part of the Company's ongoing strategy and portfolio review, Arconic completed the sale of its Eger,
Hungary forgings business that manufactured high volume steel forgings for drivetrain components in the European heavy-duty
truck and automative market to Angstrom Automotive Group LLC



Engincered Products and Solutions Principal Facilities'

Country Facility Products
Australia Oakleigh Fasteners
Canada Georgetown, Ontarig® Acrospace Castings
Laval, Québes Acrospace Castings and Machining
China Suzhou’ Fasteners and Rings
France Dives-sur-Mer Aerospace and Industrial Gas Turbine Castings
Evron Aecrospace and Specialty Castings
Gennevilliers Aerospace and Industrial Gas Turbine Castings
Montbsison Fasteners
St. Cosme-en-Vairais' Fasteners
Toulouse Fasteners
Us-par-Vieny Fasteners
Germany Bestwig Aerospace Castings
Erwitte Aerospace Castings
Hannover Extrusions
Hildesheim-Bavenstedt Fasteners
Ketkhein Fasteners
Hungary Nemesvamos Fasteners
Sezéhesfehérvar Acrospace and Industrial Gas Turbine Castings and Forgings
Japan Normi Acrospace and Industrial Gas Turbine Castings
Mexico Ciudad Acufa’ Aeraspace Castings Fasteners and Rings
Moroeco Casablanca” Fasteners
Soutly Korea Kycungnam Extrusions
United Kingdom Darley Dale Forgings
Eeclesfield Ingot Castings
fxeter Aerospace and Industrial Gas Turbine Castings and Alloy
Glossop fngot Castings
lekles Ingot Castings

Leicester”

Low Moor
Meadowhall
Provincial Park
Redditeh®

River Don

Telford

Welwyn Garden City

0

Fasteners

Extrusions

Forgings

Forgings

Fasteners

Forgiags

Fasteners

Aerospace Formed Pans



Country

Facility

Products

United States

Chandler, AZ
Tucson, AZ’

Carson, CA”

City of Industry, CA*
Fontana, CA
Fullerton, CA*
Rancho Cucamonga, CA
Sylmar, CA
Torrance, CA
Branford, CT
Winsted, CT
Savannah, GA
Lafayerte, IN

La Porte, IN
Baltimore, M

W hitehall, M

Washingion, MO
Big Lake. MN
Wew Brighton, MN
Dover, N

Verdi, NV
Kingston, NY*
Massena, NY
Rochester, NY
Canton. O’

Cileveland. OH

Niles, OH
Motristown, TN
Austin, TXF
Houston, TX*
Spring, TX
Waco, TX*
Wichita Falls, TX
Hampton, VA
Martinsville, VA

Extrusicns

Fasteners

Fasteners

Fasteners

Rings

Fasteners

Rings

Fastencrs

Fasteners

Aerospace Coatings
Aecrospace Machining
Forgings

Extrusions
Aerospace and Industrial Gas Turbine Castings
Extrusions

Aerospace and industrial Gas Turbine Castings and Coatings,
Titanium Alloy and Specisity Products

Aerospace Formed Parts, Titanium Mill Products
Aerospace Machining

Acrospace Muachining

Aerospace and Industrial Gas Turbine Castings and Alloy
Rings

Fasteners

Extrusicons

Rings

Ferro-Titanium Alloys and Titanium Mill Products

Imvestment Casting kquipment, Aerospace Components.
Castings, Forpings and Oil & Gas Drilling Products

Titantum Mill Products

Aeraspace and Industrial Gas Turbine Ceramic Products
Additively Manufactured Parts

Extrusions

Deep Water Drilling Machining

Fasteners

Aerospace and Industrial Gas Turbine Castings
Acrospace and Industrial Gas Turbine Castings
‘Fitanium Mil Products

Principal facilities are listed. and do not include 14 locations that serve as sales and administrative offices, distribution

centers or warehouses.

2

Leased property or partially leased property.
Global Rofled Products

Arconic’s Global Rolled Products segment (“*GRP™) has a single group organization structure and produces a range of
aluminum sheet and plate products for the fotlowing markets:

Aerospace and Automotive - GRP provides a wide range of products, including many highly-differentiated sheet and plate
products, for the worldwide aerospace and regional automotive markets.

Brazing, Commercial Transporiation and Industrial - GRP provides specialty aluminum sheet and plate products for
automotive, commercial ransponiation and industrial applications including proprietary heat exchanger producis like mulsitayer
brazing sheet.



Packaging - GRP serves the packaging market in Russia, Asia and Latin America through regional facilities.

For additionat discussion of the Global Rolled Products segment’s business, ses “Results of Operations—Segment
Information™ in Part {1, Ttem 7. (Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations) and
Note C to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part 1], ftem 8. (Financial Statements and Supplementary Data).

In July 2018, the Company announced it had signed a new long-term contract with Boeing to supply aluminum sheet and plate
for all ntodels produced by Boeing Commercial Airplanes. The multiyear contract. which extends and adds to the Companies’
2014 contract, is the largest to date and captures growih in the build rate increases of the Boeing 737 program.

On October 31, 2018, the Company sold its Texarkana, Texas rolling milk and cast house to Ta Chen International, Inc. for 5302
miltion in cash, subject 1o post-closing adjustments, plus additional contingent consideration of up to $58 million. The
contingent consideration relates to the achievement of various milestones within 36 montls of the transaction closing date
associnted with operationalizing the rolling mill equipment. The Texarkana rolling mill facility had previously been idle since
late 2009. In early 2016, the Company restarted the Texarkana cast house to meet demand for aleminum slab. As part of the
agreement, the Company will continue fo produce aluminum slab at the facility for a period of 18 months through a lease back
of the cast house building and equipment, after which time, Ta Chen will perform toll processing of metal for the Company for
a period of six months. The Company will supply Ta Chien with cold-rolled aluminum coil during this 24-month period.

In February 2019, the Company announced an investment of approximately $100 miltion to expand its hot mill capability and
add downstream equipment capabilities to manufacture industrial and awtomotive aluminum products in its Tennessee
Operations facility near Knoxville, Fennessee. The project, which is expected to create 70 new jobs, is already underway and is
expecied to be complete by the fourth quarter of 2029.

Global Relled Products Principal Facilities

Country Location Products
Brazit Hapissuma Specialty Foil
China Kunshan Sheet and Plate

Qinhuangdao’ Sheet and Plate
Hunpary Székesfehérvir Sheet and Plale Siabs and Billels
Russia Samara Sheet and Plate Extrusions and Forgings

United Kingdom
Linited States

Binningham
Davenport, [A
Danville, IL?
Hutchinson, KS*
LLancaster, PA
Alcoa, TN
Texarkana, TX'-
San Antonio, TX?

Plate

Sheet and Plate
Sheet and Plate
Sheet and Plate
Shect and Plate
Sheet

Slabs
Micromill™

Leased property or partially leased property.
Propertics are satellite focations of the Davenport. lowa facility.

The atuminum slab that is cast at Texarkana is tumed into 2luminum sheets at Arconic’s expanded automotive facility
in Davenport, lowa and its solling mill in Lancaster, Pennsylvania. Sce discussion above concerning the sale of this
facility.

Micromill™ produciion facility produces sheet for automotive and industrial applications using Arconic innovative
production process.

Transportation and Construction Soluticns

Arconic’s Transportation and Construction Solutions sezment {"TCS"} produces products that ate used mostly in the
commercial transportation and nonresidential building and construction end markets. Such products include integrated
aluminum structural systems. architectural extrusions and forged aluminum commercial vehicle wheels.

The Transportation and Construction Solutions segment is comprised of two business units: Arconic Wheel and Transportation
Products; and Building and Construction Systems.

Arconic Wheel and Transportation Products {4WTP). AWTP provides forged aluminum wheels and related products for
heavy-duty trucks and the commercial transportation markets.



Building and Construction Systems (BCS). BCS provides building and construction architectural framing producis and
aluminum curtain wall and front entry systems.

For additional discussion of the Transportation and Construction Solutions segment's business, see “Results of Operations --
Segment Information™ in Part [1. ltem 7. (Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operatiens) and Note C to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part H, [tem 8. (Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data}.

In April 2018, the Company completed the sale of its Latin America Extrusions business to a subsidiary of Hydro Extruded
Solutions AS. The sale is part of Arconic’s continued drive to streamline its business portfolio, reduce complexity and further
focus on its higher-margin preducts and profitable growth.

On July 31, 2018, the Company announced that it had initiated a sale process of its BCS business, as part of the Company’s
ongoeing strategy and portfolio review that commenced in January 2018.

Transportation and Censtruction Solutions Principal Facilities'

Country Facility Products
Canada Lethbridge, Alberta Architectural Products
China Suzhou® Forgings
France Menxheim® Architectural Products
Hungary Székesfehérvar Forgings
Japan I5etsu City Forgings
Mexico Momerrey Forgings
United Kingdom Runcorn Architectural Products
United States Springdaie, AR Architectural Products
Visalia, CA Architectural Products
Eastman, GA Architectural Products
Barberton, OH Forgings
Cleveland, OH Forgings
Bloomsburg, PA Architectural Producis
Cranberry, PA Architectural Products

Principal facilities are listed, and do not include 8 locations that serve as sales and administrative affices. distribution
centers or warehouses in addition to the facilities listed above, TCS has 20 service centers. These centers perform
hight manufacturing. such as assembly and fabrication of certain products.

Leased property or partially leased property



Sources and Availability of Raw Materials

Important raw materials purchased in 2018 for each of the Company’s reportable segments are listed below.

Enginecred Froducts and Sofutions Giobal Rolled Products

Alloying materials Alloying materials

Cobalt Aluminum scrap

Elecrricity Coatings

Natural gas Electricity

Nicke! alloys Lube ail

Primary aluminum {ingot, billet, P1020, high purity) Natural gas

Stainless steel Packaging materinls

Steel Primary aluminum {ingot, slab, billet, P10ZD, high purity}
Titanium altoys Steam

Titanium sponge

Treasportation and Construction Sclutions
Aluminum coil

Aluminum scrap

Elccuricity

Natural gas

PainvCoating

Primary aluminum {biliet)

Resin

Generally, other materials are purchased from third-party suppliers under competitively priced supply contracts or bidding
arrangements. The Company believes that the raw materials necessary o s business are and will continue to be available.

Patents, Trade Sccrets and Trademarks

The Company believes that its demestic and intcrnational patent, trade secret and trademark assets provide it with a significant
competitive advantage. The Company's rights under its patents, as well as the products made and sold under them, are
important to the Company 25 a whole and. o varying degrees, important 1o each business scgment. The patents owned by
Arconic generally concem metal alloys, particular products, manufaciuring equipment or techniques. Arconic’s business as a
whole is not, however, materially dependent on any single patent, trade secret or trademark. As g result of product development
and technological advancement, the Company cominues to pursuc patent pretection in jurisdictions throughout the world. As of
the end of 2018, the Company's worldwide patent portiolio consists of approximately 1,863 granted patents and 824 pending
patent applications.

The Company also has a significant number of trade secrets, mosthy regarding manufacturing processes and material
compositions that give many of its businesses impartant advantages in their markets, The Company continues te strive 1o
improve those processes and generate new material compositions that provide additional benefis.

With respect to domestic and interninional registered trademarks, the Company has many that have significant recognitinn
within the markets that are serv ed. Examples include the name "Arconic™ and the Arconic symbol for aluminum, nichel, and
titanium products, Howmet® metal castings, Huck® fasteners, Kawneer’ building panels and Dura-Bright™ wheels with easy-
clean surface treatments. A significant trademark filing campaign for the name “Arconic™ was completed in 2016, in support of
the corporate launch of \rconic Inc. As of the end of 2018, the Company s worldwide tradematk portfotio consists of
approximately (,967 registered trademarhs and 463 pending trademark apphicaticns. The Company 's rights under its
trademarks are important to the Company as a whole and. to varying degrees, important to cach business segment

Competitive Conditions

Engineered Products and Solutions (EP&S)

EP&S’s business units - AFS, AEN and AES -are subject to substantial and intense campetition in the markets they serve.
Although Arconic believes its advanced technology, manufacturing processes and expericnce provide advantages 1o Arconic’s
customers, such as high quality and superior mechanical properties that meet the Compan 's customers’ most stringent
requirements, many of the products Arconie makes can be produced by competitors using similar types of manufacturing
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processes as well as alternative forms of manufaciuring. Despite intense competition. Arconic continues as a market leader in
mos! of its principal markets. Several factors, including Arconic's legacy of technical innovation, state-of<the-art capabilities,
engaged employees and long-standing customer relationships, enable the Company to maintain its competitive position.

Principal competitors in the EP&S sepment include Berkshire Hathaway Inc., through its acquisition of Precision Castparts
Corporation and subsidiaries, for titanjum and titaniem-based alloys, precision forgings, seamiess rolled rings, investment
castings and acrospace fasteners, VSMPO {Russia)} for titanium and titanium-based alloys and precision forgings; the High-
Performance Materials & Components segment of Allegheny Technologies, Inc. (AT1} for titanium and titanium-hased alloys,
precision forgings, and investment castings; Lisi Acrospace (France) for aerospace fasteners; and Aubert & Duval (part of
Eramet Group in France) for precision forgings.

Other competitors include:

*  Kaiser Aluminum - for extruded products

»  Universal Alloy Corp.. part of Montana Tech Components - for extruded products

»  Doncasters Group Lid. (UK) - for investment castings

»  Consolidated Precision Products Corp., pant of Warburg Pincus - for investment castings

*  Weber Metals, part of Orto Fuchs - for precision forzings

= Forgital - for seamless rings

+  Frisa (Mexico) - for seamless rings
Several of Arconic's largest customers have captive superalloy furnaces for producing airfoi! investment castings for their own
use. Many other companies around the world also produce superalloy investment castings, and some of these companies

currently compete with Arconic in the aerospace and other markets. while others are capable of competing with the Company
should they choose to do so.

International competition in the investment castings, fasteners, rings and forgings markets may also increase in the future as a
result of strategic atliances among engine original equipment manufacturers (OEMIs), aero-structure prime contractors, and
overseas companies, especially in developing markets, particularly where “offset™ or “locat content”™ requirements create
purchase obligations with respect to products manufactured in or directed to a particular country.

Global Ralied Products (GRP)

GRP is one of the leaders in many of the aluminum flat rolled products markets in which it participates, including acrospace,
automolive, commercial transponation, industrial markets (including brazing sheet) and packaging. However, much like other
Arconic businesses, GRP is subject to substantial and intense competition in all of its markets.

While GRP participates in markets where Arconic believes the Company has a significant competitive advantage due to
customer intimacy, advanced manufacturing capability, unique technology and or differentiated products, in certain cases, the
Company’s competitors are capable of making products simifar 10 Arconig’s. The Company continuously works 1o maintain
and enhance its competitive advantage through innovation:; new atloys such as aerospace ailoys, differentiated products such as
the Company’s 5-layer brazing products and break-through processes such as Arconic Micromill® technology.

Some of GRP's markels are worldwide and some are more regionally focused. Participation in these segments by GRP's
competitors varics. For exampie, Novelis is the fargest flat rolled products producer competing in autowmotive, but it does not
participate in the aerospace market. On the other hand, Constellivm participates in all major market segments inctuding
aerospace, brazing, industrial, commercial transpostation and packaging. Granges panicipates only in the brazing sheet market,
Other GRP competitors include Aleris, AMAG, Hydro, Kaiser, Kobe, Nanshan, and UACI. The competitive landscape is
changing - in this past year, Novelis announced the acquisition of aluminum rolled products producer Aleris and Braidy
Industries announced its intention to build a new aluminum mill near Ashland, Kentucky for automotive production.

Additionalty, there are a number of new competitors emerging, particularly in China and ather developing economies. Arconic
expects that this competitive pressure will continue and increase in the future as customers seek to globalize their supply bases
in order 1o reduce costs, The Company continually monitors and plans for these new emerging players.
Summary of Major Competitors for GRF:

«  Constellium (The Netherlands)

= Nowelis

«  Kaiser Aluminum

»  AMAG (Austria)

+  UACJ (Japan)



+  Aleris

+  Hydro (Narway)

»  Nanshan (China}
«  Granges (Sweden)
»  Kobe (fapan)

Transportation and Construction Solutions (TCS)

In the forged aluminum wheels business, AWTP competes in commereial transportation, under the product brand name Alcoa®
Wheels, for the major regions that it serves (Americas, Europe, Japan, China, and Australia). AW TP competes against steel
wheels, as well as aluminum. hs larger competitors are Accuride Corporation, Nippon Steel & Sumitomo Metal Cosporation,
Zhejiang Dicastal Hongxin Technology Co. Lid, Wheels India Limited and Speedtine {member of the Ronal Group), AWTP has
continued 1o see aluminum wheel suppliers (both forged and cast aluminum wheels) from China. Tarwan, India and South
Korea attempling to penetrate the commercial transportation markes.

BCS is a manufacturer of aluminum architectura] systems and products in North America and Europe. In North America, BCS
primarily competes in the nonresidential building segment. In Europe, it competes in both the residential and the nonresidential
building segments. BCS compeies with regional and loca) players in the architecinral systems and more global companies m
the products markets. BCS’s competitive advamage is the cornerstone ta its sirong brand, innovative products, customer
intimacy and technical services. Over the past decade, the regional competitors, primarily in North America, have narrowed the
product portfulio and 1echnical services advantages. However, BCS has maintained its competitive advantage through
innovative products like highly energy-efficient high-thermal products and differentiated services. BCS sales are derived
mainly from the retail, office, education and kealtheare building segments.

BCS is organized into twe business segments: architeciural systems and architectural products. The primary product categories
in architectural systems are storefront, framing and emtrances (SEF), curtain walls, and windosws. In the SEF and curtain wall
businesses. BCS competes with competitors like Apogee, YKK, Oldcastle, Schilco, Hydro SAPA and Reynaers in thewr
aluminum framing systems business. The architectural products business is more global and is primarily served by subsidiaries
of larger companies like Alpolic (Mitsubishi Corporation), Altcobond {Schweiter Technologies) and Novelis (Aditya Birla
Group). The primary praduct categories are aluminum composite material and coif coated sheet. The competitive landseape in
the architectural systems market has been relatively stable since the mid-2000s. with the major competitors in North Amenca
and Europe still operaling in their markets, despite some industry consolidation in North America during the late 20005

Summary of Major Competitors:
AWTE;
»  Accuride Corporation
*  Nippon Steel & Sumitoma Metal Corporation {lapan)
= Zhejiang Dicastal Hongxin Techrology Co. Ltd (Chuna)
»  Wheels India Limited {(India)
< Speedline (member of the Ronal Group in Switzerland)

¢ Apogéee. Oldcastle and YKK

»  Alpolic. Alucobond and Alucoil

*  Schilco (Germany), Hydro- SAPA {Norway), Reynaers (Belgium) and Corialis (Belgium)
*  Alucobond, Alucoil, Euramax and Novelis

Research and Development

Arconic, at its light metals research center. engages in research and development {R&D) programs that include process and
product development. and basic and applied research

Throughout 2018, the Company continued warking on new developments in all business segments and leveraging new
technologies. The Company has continued investing in additive manufacturing, with a focus on producing metal powder
materials tailored for a range of additive process technologies, and furthering its development of advanced 3D printing design
and manufacturing techniques-such as Arconic’s Ampliforge” process-1o improve production speeds, reduce eosts, and achieve
material properties not possible through other additive flowpaths. The Company’s powder production facility was completed at
the Arconic Technology Center (ATC) in 2016. This facility will continue its focus on material development in aluminum,
nickel and titanium alloys.



The Company is alse producing and qualifying additively manufactured aeraspace, automotive and defense components via
laser powder bed printing technology. It alse is developing more formable titanium plate based wrought products for customers.

Arconic’s Micromill® technelogy, which enables aluminum sheet to be produced in @ master of minutes rather than weeks and
with enhanced structural properties, continues o grow. Specifically. the Arconic Micromill® technology Jocated in San Antonio
continues to fransition to commercial production. In addition, the Company has invested in further developing Micromill™
technology, including instaltation of a pilot line at the ATC.

The Company costinues to develop differentiated pretreatment technology, for example, by continuing to improve on its A951
technalogy, which enables aluminum to be joined with steel {¢.4., in automotive applications). In addition, the Company
continues to advance its joining methods/fasteners (like RSR™) and highly formable and high strength automotive sheet
products for automotive original equipment manufacturer applicatiens in both cosmetic hang on parts and structural body-in-
white applications. A pilet coating line was installed at ATC in 2018

The Company continued its differentiation in the commercial transpontation market with Dura-Bright® EVO. UltraOne™ and
European UltraOne™ wheel products.

The Company alsa continues to develop and deploy proprietary processing technclogies in the manufacture of acrospace
components, as well as a continued commitment and commercialization of a portfolio of proprietary aerospace fasieners. One
such example is Ergo-Tech® blind fasteners which enable automated assembly operations.

Environmentaf Matters

Information refating to environmental matters is included in Note U to the Consolidated Financial Statements under the caption
“Environmental Matters”. Approved capital expenditures for new or expanded facilities for environmemal control are
$28 million for 2019 and estimated expenditures for such purposes are 38 nnllion for 2020.

Employees

Total worldwide employment at the end of 2018 was approximately 43,000 employees in 29 countries. About 18,600 of these
employees are represented by labor untions. The Company believes that relations with its emplayees and any applicable union
representatives generally are good

In the United States, approximately 7,960 employces are represented by various labor unions. The largest collective bargaining
agreement is the master collective bargaining agreement between Arconic and the United Steelworkers (USW}), The USW
master agreement covers approximalely 3,400 employees at four U.S. locations; the eurrent labor agreement expires on May
15,2019. There are 17 other collective bargaining agreements in the United States with varying expiration dates.

Cn a regional basis, collective bargaining agreements with varying expiration dates cover approximately 8,900 employees in
Europe and Russia, 8,100 employees in North America, 600 employees in South America, and 1,000 employees in Asia.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The names, ages, positions and ateas of responsibility of the executive officers of the Company as of February 21,2019 are
listed below.

Elmer L. Doty, 64, Director, President and Chief Operating Officer. Mr. Doty was appointed President and Chief Operating
Officer of Arconic effective February 6, 2019, and has served on the Arconic Board of Directors since May 2017. From March
2016 until February 2019, Mr. Doty was an Operating Executive at The Carlyle Group LP, multinational private equity,
alternative asset management and financinl services corporation, where he held a similar position from March 2012 to
December 2012. From December 2412 10 February 2016, Mr. Doty was President and Chief Executive Officer of Accudyne
Industries LLC, a provider of precision-engineered flow control systems and industrial compressors. Mr. Doty also was the
President and Chief Executive Officer of Vought Aircraft lndustries, Inc. from 2006 untif its acquisition in 2010 by Triumph
Group, a leader in manufacturing and overhauling aerospace structures, systems and components. Prior to Vought, Mr. Doty
was Executive Vice President and General Manager of the Land Systems Division of United Defense Industries. inc. {now
BAE Systems). Earlier in his career, Mr. Doty heid executive positions at General Electric Company and FMC Corporation.

Ken Giacebbe, 53, Exccutive Vice President and Chicl Financial Officer. Mr. Giacobbe was elected Executive Vice President
and Chief Financial Officer of Arconic effective November [, 2016. Mr. Giacobbe joined Arconic in 2004 as Vice President of
Finance for Global Extruded Products. part of Alcoa Forgings and Extrusions. He then served as Vice President of Finance for
the Comgany's Building and Construction Systems business from 2008 until 201t. In 2011, he assumed the role of Group
Controller for the Engineered Products and Solutiens segment. From January 2013 until October 2016, Mr. Giacobbe served as
Chief Finaneial Officer of the Engineered Products and Solutions segment. Before joining Arconic, Mr. Giacobbe held senior
finance roles at Avaya and Lucent Technologies.



Timethy D. Myers, 53, Executive Vice President and Group President, Global Rolled Products and Transportation and
Construction Solutions. Mr. Myers was appointed Executive Vice President and Group Presidert, Global Rolled Products and
Transportation and Construction Solutions in October 2017, Prior 10 being appointed to his current role, he was Executive Vice
President and Group President. Transportation and Construction Solutions from May 2016 1o October 2017. Prior to that
assignment. he was President of Alcoa Wheel and Transportation Products. from June 2009 to May 2016. Mr. Myers was Vice
President and General Manager, Commercial Vehicle Wheels for the Alcoa Wheel Products business from January 2006 to Jupe
2009 Mr. Myers joined Arconic in 1991 as an automotive apphcations engineer in the Commercial Rolied Products Division,
and held a series of engineering, marketing, sales and management positions with the Company since that time.

Paul Myron, 52, Vice President and Controller. Mr. Myron was elected Vice President and Controller of Arconic effective
November 1, 2016, Mr. Myron joined Arconic as a systems analyst in Pitisburgh and in 1992 relocated to the Company's
Davenpert, Fowa facility as a product accountant. He served in numerous financial management positions from 1995 untit 2000
when he was named Commercial Manager and Controller for the Atlantic division of the Alcoa World Alumina and Chemicals
business. In 2002, Mr. Myron was appointed Vice President of Finance, Alcoa Primary Meials and later became Vice President
of Finance, Alcea World Alumina and Chemicals. In 2005 Mr. Myron was named Director of Financial Planning and Analysis,
accountable for Arconie’s financial planning, analysis, and reporting worldwide. In February 2012, he became Director of
Finance Initiatives {or the Engincered Products and Solutions segment, overseeing specific financial initiatives and projects
within the group. From July 2012 umti] his most recent appointment, Mr. Myron served as Vice President, Finance and Business
Excellence for the Arconic Power and Propulsion business

John C. Plant, 65, Chairman and Chief Execuiive Officer Mr Plant was appointed Chief Executive Officer of Arconic
eHective February 6, 2019. He has served as Arconic’s Chairman since October 2017 and as 2 member of the Board since
February 2016. Mr. Plant previously served as Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of TRW
Automotive from 2011 10 28135, and as its President and Chief Executive Officer from 2003 to 2011. TRW Automotive was
acquired by ZF Friedrichshafen AG in May 2015. Mr Plant was a co-member of the Chief Executive Office of TRW Inc. from
2001 10 2003 and an Executive Vice President of TRW from the company's 1999 acquisition of Lucas Varity to 2003, Prior to
TRW, Mr. Plant was President of Lucas Varity Automotive and managing director of the Electrical and Electronics division
from 1991 through 1997.

Katherine H. Ramundo, 51, Executive Vice President, Chiefl Legal Officer and Secretary. Ms. Ramundo was elected to her
cuerent pasition effective November 1, 2016, Prior to joining Arconie, from January 2013 through Augast 2015, she was
Executive Vice President. General Counsel and Secretary of ANN INC., the parent campany of ANN TAYLOR and LOFT
brands, based in New York. Prior to ANN INC., she served as Vice President. Deputy General Counsel and Assistant Secretary
at Colgote-Palmolive, where she held various fegal roles from November 1997 to January 2013, She began her career as a
litigater in New York, praclicing at major law firms, including Cravath, Swainc & Moore and Sidley & Austin.

The Company’s executive officers are elected or appointed 10 serve until the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors
(held in conjunction with the anpual meeting of shareholders) except in the case of earlier death, reticement. resignation or
removal.

{tem 1A, Risk Factors.

Arconic’s business, financial condition and resulis of operations may be impacted by a number of factors. In addition to the
factors discussed elsewhere in this report, the foilowing rishs and uncertainties could materially harm its business, financial
condition or resulis of operations, including causing Arconie’s actual resulis to differ materially from those projected in any
forward-looking statements. The following list of significant risk factors is not all-inclusive or necessarily in arder of
importance. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to Arconic or that Arconic currently deems immaterial also
may materially adversely affect the Company in future periods

The markets for Arconic’s products are highly cyclical and are influenced by a number of facters, including global
economic conditions.

Arcenic is subject fo cyclical fluctuations in global ecanomic conditions and lightweight metals end-use markets.
Arcenic sells many products to industries that are cyclical, such as the aerospace, automnotive, and commercial
transportation and construction jndustries, and the demand for its products is sensitive to, and quickly impacted by,
demand for the finished goods manufactured by its customers in these industries, which may change as a result of
changes in regional or worldwide economies, currency exchange rates, energy prices or other factors beyond its control.

In particular, Arconic derives 2 significant portion of its revenue from products sold to the acrospace industry, which can be
highly cyclical and reflective of changes in the generat economy. The commercial aerospace industry is historically driven
bty the demand from commercial airlines for new aircraft. The U.S. and international commercial aviation industries may
face challenges arising from competitive pressures and fuel costs. Demand for commercial airceaft is influenced by airline
industry profitability, trends in airline passenger traffic, the state of U.S., regional and world economies, the ability of
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afrcrafi purchasers 10 obtain required financing and numerous other factors including the eflects of terrorism, health and
salety concemns, environmental constraints imposed upon aircraft operators, the retirement of older aircrafi, and
technalogicat improvements 1o new engines. The military acrospace cyele is highly dependent on U.S. z2nd foreign
government funding; however, it is also driven by the effects of terrorism, 2 changing global political environment, U.S.
foreign policy, the retirememt of elder aircrafl, and technological impravements to new engines.

Further, the demand for Arconic’s aulomotive and pround transportation products is driven by the number of vehicles
produced by automotive manufacturers and Arconic coment per vehicle. The automotive industry is sensitive to general
econcmic conditions, including ¢redit markets and interest rates, and consumer spending and preferences regarding
vehicle ownership and usage, vehicle size, configuration and features. Automotive sales and production ¢an also be
affected by other factors including the age of the vehicle fleet and related scrappage rates, tabor relations issues. fuel
prices, regulatory requirements, government initiatives, trade agreements and levels of competition.

While Arconic believes that the long-term prospects for its products are positive, the Company is unable 1o predict the
future course of industry variables. the strength of the U.S.. regional or global economies, or the effects of government
intervention. Negative economic conditions, such as 3 major economic downtum, @ prolonged recovery period, or
disruptions in the financial markets, could have a material adverse effect on Arconic’s business, financial condition or
results of aperzations.

Arconic faces significant competition, which may have an adverse effect on profitability.

As discussed in Part 1, iem 1. (Business-Competitive Conditions) of this repert. the markets for Arconic’s producis are highly
competitive. Arconic’s compelitors include a variety of both U.S. and non-U.S. companies in all major markets. New product
offerings, new technologies in the marketplace or new facilities may compete with or replace Arcenic products. The
willingness of customers to accept substitutes for the products sold by Arconic, the ability of large customers to exert leverage
in the marketplace (o affect the pricing for Arconic’s products, and technological advancements or other developments by or
affecting Arconic’s competitors or cusiomers could adversely affect Arconic’s business, financial condition or results of
operations.

In addition, Arconic may face increased competition due to industry conselidation. As companies attempt 1o strenpgthen or
Bold their market positions in an evolving industry, companies could be acquired or may be unable to continue operations.
Companies that are strategic alliance partners in some areas of Arconic’s business may acquire or form alliances with
Arconic’s competitors, thereby reducing their business with Arcenic. Industry consolidation may result in stronger
competitors who are berter able (o compete as sole-source vendors for customers. If there is consolidalion among Arconic's
customer base, those customers may be able to command increased leverage in negotiating prices and other terms of sale,
whicl could adversely affect Arconic's profitability, Moreowver, if, as a result of increased leverage, customer pressures
require Arconie 1o reduce jts pricing such that its gross margins are diminished, the Company could decide not 10 sell certain
products under such tess favorable terms, which would decrease Arconic’s revenue Cousolidation among the Company’s
customer base may also lead 1o reduced demand for Arconic’s solutions, replacement of Arconic products by the combined
entity with those of Arconic’s competitors and canceflations of orders, each of which could have a material adverse effect on
Arconie’s business, operating results and financial condition

Arconic may be unable to develop innovative new products or implement technology initiatives successfully.

Arconic’s competitive position and future performance depends, in part, on the Company's ability ta:
» identify and evolve with emerging technological and broader industry trends in Arconic’s target end-markets;
+ identify and successfully execule on a strategy to remain an essential and sustainable element of its customer's supply
chain;
«  fund, develop, manufacture and bring innovative new products and services to market quickly and cost-effectively;

*  monitor discuptive technologies and understand customers” and competitors’ abilities to deploy those disruptive
technologies: and

» achieve sufficient retum on investment for new products based on capital expenditures and research and development
spending.

Arconic is working on new developments for a number of strategic projects in all business segments, including additive
manufacturing, atloy development, engineered finishes and product design, high speed continuous casting and rolling
technology, and other advanced manufacturing technologies. For more information on Arconic’s research and development
programs. scc “Research and Development™ in Part [, Htem |, {Business-Research and Development) of this report.



While Arconic intends to continue committing substantial financial resources and effort to the development of innovative new
products and services, it may not be abie to successfully differentiate its products or services from those of its competitors or
maich the level of research and development spending of its competitors, including those developing technology to displace
Arconic’s current products. o addition, Arconic may not be able to adapt to evolving markets and technologies or achieve
and maintain technological advaniages. There can be no assurance that any of Arconic’s new products or ser ices,
development programs or technelogies will be commercially adepted or beneficial to Arconic.

Arconic could be adversely affected by changes in the business or financial condition or the toss of a significant
customer or customers.

A significant downturmn or deterioration in the business or financial condition or loss of a key customer or customers supplied
by Arconic could affect Arconic’s financial results in a particular period Arconic’s cusiosmers may experience delays in the
faunch of new products, labor strikes, diminished liquidity or credit unavailability, weak demand for their products, or cther
difficuliies in their businesses. Arconic’s customers may also change their business sirategies or modify their business
relationships with Arconic, including to reduce the amount of Arconic’s products they purchase or te swiich to aliernative
suppliers. If Arconic is unsuccessful in replacing business lost from such customers, profitability may be adversely affected

Arconle could encounter manufacturing difficultics or other issues that impact product performance, quality or
safety, which could affect Arconic’s reputation, business and financial statements.

The manufacture of many of Arcenic’s products is a highly exacting and complex process. Problems may arise during
manufactering for a variety of reasons, including equipment malfuncuion, failure to follow specific prolocols, specifications
and procedures, including those celated to guality or safety, problems with raw materials, supply chain intermuptions, natural
disasters, labor unrest and environmental factors, Such problems could have an adverse impact on the Company s ability to
fulfill orders or on product quatity or perfonnance. Product manufacturing or performance issues could result in recalls.
customer penalties, comract cancellation and product lability exposure. including if any of our products are non-conipliant
or are used in an unintended and or unapproved manner that results in injuries or other damages. Because of approval and
license requircments applicable to manufacturers and or their supptiers, altermnatives to mitigate manufacturing disruptions
may not be readily available to the Compam or its customers. Accordingly, manufaciuring problems, product defecis or
other risks associated with our preducts, including their use or application, could result in significant costs to and labiluy for
Arconic that could have a material adverse effect on its business, financial cotdition or results of operations, including the
pasmeni of potentially substantial monetary damages, fines or penalties, as well as negative publicity and damage o the
Company’s reputation, which could adversely impact product demand and customer relationships.

Arconic’s business depends, in part, on its ability to mecet increased program detoand successfully and to mitigate the
impact of program cancellations, reductions and delays.

Arconic is currently under contract to supply components For a number of new and existing commercial, general aviation,
military aircraft and aircraft engine programs and is the sete supplier of aluminum sheet for a number of aluntinum-intensine
aulomotive vehicle programs. Many of these programs are scheduled for production increases over the next several vears If
Arconic fails to meet production levels or encounters difficulty or unexpected costs in meeting such levels. it could have a
material adverse effect on the Company's business, financial condition or results of operations. Similarly, program
cancelfations, reductions or delays could also have a material adverse effect on Arconic’s business.

Arconic could be adversely affected by reduetions in defense spending.

Arconic’s products are used in a variety of mititary applications, including military airceafi and armored vehicles. Although
many of the programs in which Arconic participates extend several years. they are subject to annual funding through
congressional appropriations. Changes in military strategy and priorities, or reductions in defense spending. may affect
current and future funding of these programs and could reduce the demand for Arconic’s products, which could adversely
affect Arconic’s businass, financial condition or results of operations.

Arconic’s globat operations and status as a public company expose the Company io risks that could adversely
affect Arconic’s business, financial condition, results of eperations, cash flows or the market price of its
securities,

Arconic has operations or activities in numerous countries and regions outside the United States, including Europe, Brazil,
Canada, China, Japar, and Russia. As a result, the Company’s global operations are affected by economic, political and other
canditions in the foreign countries in which Arconic does business as well as U.5. laws regulating international trade,
including:
- econamic and commercial instability risks, including those caused by sovereign and private debt default. corruption,
and changes in local gavermment laws, regulations and policies, such as those related 1o tariffs, sanctions and trade
barriers, taxation, exchange controls, employment regulatiens and repatriation of earnings;
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«  peopolitical risks such as political instability. civil unrest, expropriation, nationalizalion of properties by a povernment,
imposition of sanctions, and renegotiation or nullification of existing agreements;

*  war Dr terrorist activities;

»  kidnapping of personnet:

*  majot public health issues such as an outbreak of a pandemic or epidemic (such as Sudden Acute Respiratory
Syndrome, Avian Influenza, H7N9 virus, or the Ebola virus), which could cause disruptions in Arconic’s operations or
workforce;

= difficulties enforcing intellectual properts and contractual rights in certain jurisdictions;

*  changes in trade and 1ax laws that may result in our customers being subjected to increased taxes, duties and tariffs
and reduce their witlingness 1o use our services in countrnies in which we are currently manufacturing their products;

«  rising labor costs;
*  iabor unrest, inctuding strikes;
» compliance with antitrust and competition regulations,

»  compliance with foreign labor laws, which generally provide for increased nolice, severance and consultation
requirernents compared to U.S. laws,

= aggressive. selective or lax enforcement of laws and regulations by national governmentat authorities;
+  compliance with the Foreign Cormupt Practices Act ("FCPA™) and other anti-bribery and corruption laws;

«  compliance with U.S. laws concemning trade, including the Iaternational TrafTic in Arms Regulations (“1TAR™), the
Export Administration Regulations ("EAR™}, and the sanctions, regulations and embargozs administered by the U.S.
Department of Treasury's Office of Foreign Asset Controls ("OFAC™),

+  imposition of currency controls;
«  adverse tax audit rulings: and

*  unexpected events, including fires or explosions at facilities, and natural disasters.

Although the effect of any of the foregaing factors is difficult 1o predict, any one or more of them could adversely alfect
Arconic’s business, financial condition, or results of operations While Arconic believes it has adopted appropriate risk
managemenl, compliance programs and insurance arrangements to address and reduce the risks associated with these factors,
such measures may provide inadequate prolection against costs or labilities that may arise from such events.

As a public company, Arconic is subject te, among other things, the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act and the
regulations of the New York Swock Exchange. Arconic’s failure to comply with applicable law could subject it to penalties
under federal securities laws, expose it 1o lawsuils and restrict its ability to access financing. Under the Sarbanes-Oxley Azt
Arconic must maintain effective disclosure contrels and procedures and intermat control over financial reporting. There can
be no assurance that Arconic’s internal control over financial reporting witl be elfective in the luture or that a material
weakness will not be discovered with respect to a prior period for which the Company had previously believed that imermal
controls were effective. Any failure to maintain effective disclosure controls and procedures or internal control over financial
reporting could result in adverse regulatory consequences and or a loss of investor confidence, which could limit the
Company's ahility to access the global capital markets and could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business,
financial condition or the maorket price of Arconic securities.

A material disruption of Arconic’s operations, particularly at one or more of the Company’s manufacturing facilities,
ceuld adversely affect Arconic’s business,

If Arconic’s operations, particularly one of the Company’s manufacturing facilities, were 1o be disrupted as a result of
significant equipment failures, natural disasters, power outages, fires, explosions, terrorism, theft, sabotage, adverse weather
conditions. public health crises, labor disputes or other reasons, the Company may be unable 10 effectively meet its
obligations to or demand from its customers. which could adversely affect Arcomie’s financial performance.

Interruptions in production could increase the Company’s costs and reduce its sales, Any interruption in production capability
could require the Company to make substantial capital expenditures or purchase alternative materiat at higher costs to fill
custotmer orders, which could negatively affect Arconic’s profitability and financial conditicn. Arconic maintains propeny
damage insurance that the Company believes 10 be adequate to provide for reconstruction of facilities and equipment, as well
as business interruption insurance to mitigate losses resulting from significant production interruption or shutdown caused by
an insured loss. However, any recovery upder Arconic’s insurance policies may not offset the lost profits or increased costs
that may be experienced during the disruption of operations, which could adversely affect Arconic’s business, results of
operations, financial condition and cash flow.



Arconic may face chiallenges 1o its intellectual property rights which could adversely affect the Company’s
reputntion, business and competitive position.

Arconic owas important inteliectual property, including patents, tradernarks, copyrights and trade secrets. The Company’s
intellectual property plays an important role in maintaining Arcenic’s competitive position in a number of the markets that
the Company serves. Arconic’s competitors may develop technologies that are similar or superior 10 Arconic’s proprietary
technologies or design around the patents Arconic owns or licenses. The pursuit of remedies for any misappropriation of
Arconic intellectual property is expensive and the ultimate remedies may be deemed insufficient. Further, as the Company
expands its pperations in jurisdictions where the enforcement of intellectual property rights is less robust, the risk of
misappropriation of Arconic intellectual property increuases, despite efforts the Company undertakes to protect it.
Developments or assertions by or against Arconic relating to inteliectual property rights, and any inability to protect or
enforce Arconic’s rights sufficiently, could adversely affect Arconic’s business and competitive position.

Arconic may be unable to realize the expected benefits from acquisitions, divestitures, joint ventures and strategic
alliances.

Arconic has made, and may continue to plan and exccute, acquisitions and divestitures and take other actions to grow its
business or streamline its postfolio. Although management believes that its stralegic actions are beneficial to Arconic, there is
no assurance that anticipated benefits will be realized. Acquisitions present significam challenges and risks, including the
effective integration of the business into the Company, unanticipated costs and liabilities, and the ability to realize anticipated
benefits. such as growth in market share, revenue or margins, at the levels or in the timeframe expected. The Company may
be unable 10 manage acquisitions successfully. Additionally, adverse faclors may prevent Arconic from realizing the benefits
of its growth projects, including unfavorable global economic canditions, curreney fluetuations, or unexpected delays in
target timelines.

With respect to ponfolio optimization actions such as divestitures, curtailments and closures, Arcenic may face barriers to
exit from unprofitzble businesses or operatians, including high exit costs or objections from customers, suppliers. unfons,
locat or national govermnments. or other stakeholders. 1n addition. Arconic may retain unforeseen liabilities for divested
entities if a buyer fails 1o honor all commitments Arconic’s business operations are capital intensive, and curtailment or
closure of operations or facilities may include significant charges, including employee separation costs, asset impairment
charges and other measures.

In addition, Asconic has participated in, and may continue to participate in, joint ventures, steategic alliances and other similar
arrangements frem time to time. Although the Conpany has, in connection with past and existing joint ventures, sought to
protect its interests, joint ventures and strategic alliances inherently involve special risks. Whether or not Arconic holds
majority interests or maintains operational control in such arrangemeats, its partners may:

*  have economic or business interesis or goals that are inconsistent with or opposed to those of the Comipany,

»  exercise veto rights to block actions that Arconic believes to be in its or (¢ joint venture's or stralegic alliance’s best
interests;

+ take action contrary to Arcoaie’s policies or objectives with respect to investments; or

= as aresult of financial or other difficultivs, be unable or unwilling to fulfill their obligaiions under the joint veature,
strategic alliance or other agreements, such as contributing capital to expansion or maintenance projects.

There can be no assurance that acquisitions, growth investments, divestitures, closures, joint ventures, strategic
alliances or similar arrangements will be undertaken or completed in their entirety as planned or that they will be
beneficial to Arconic, whether due to the above-described risks, unfavorable global economic conditions, increases
in construction costs, currency fluctuations, political risks, or other factors.

Arconic may be unable to realize future targets or goals established for its business segments, or complete projects,
at the fevels, projected costs or by the dates targeted.

From time {o time, Arconic may announce future targets or goals for its business, which are based on the Company 's
ihen current expeclations. estimates. forecasts and projections about the operating environment, economizs and
markets in which Arconic operates. Future targets and goals reflect the Company s beliefs and assumptions and its
perception of histotical trends, then current conditions and expected future developments, as well as other factors
management believes are appropriate in the circumstances, As such, targets and goals are inherently subject to
significant business, economic, competitive and other uncertainties and contingencies regarding future events,
including the risks discussed in this repert. The actual outcome may be materially different. There can be no
assurance (hat any targets or goals established by the Company will be accomplished at the levels or by the dates
targeted. if at all. Failure to achieve the targets or goals by the Company may have a material adverse effect on its
business, financial condition, results of operations or the market price of its securities.
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In addition, the implementation of Arconic’s business strategy periodically involves the entry into and the execution of complex
projects, which place significant demands on the Company’s management and personnel, and may depend on numerous factors
beyond the Company’s control. There can be no assurance that such projects will be completed within budgeted costs, on a
timely basis, or at alt, whether due to the risks described in this report, or ather factors. The failure to complete a material
project as planned, or a significant delay in a material project, whatever the cause, could have an adverse effect on Arconic’s
business. financial condition, or resulis of operations.

Arconic’s plans te restructure the Company, in¢luding separating into two companies and the possible sales of
busincsses, will invelve significant time and expense, which could disrupt or adversely affect Arcenic’s business,
may not achieve some or all of the anticipated benefits, are subject (o various risks and uncertainties and may not
be completed in accordance with the expected plans or anticipated timelines, or at all.

On February 8. 2019. Arconic announced plans to separate into Engineered Products & Forgings and Global Rolled
Products, with a spm-off of one of the businesses, and to consider the possible sales of certain businesses.

Arconic expects that the process of completing the proposed separation and possible sales of businesses will be time-
consuming and involve significant costs and expenses, which may be significantly higher than what it currently anticipates
and may not yield a benefit if the separation and/or sales arc not completed. Executing these transactions will also require
significant time and attention from Arconic's senior management and employees, which could disrupi the Company’s
angoing business and adversely affect financial resulis and results of operations. Arconic may also experience increased
difficulties in attracting. retaining and motivating employees or maintaining or initiating relationships with lead suppliers,
customers and other parties with which Arconic currently does business, or may do business in the future, during the
pendency of the separation and‘or possible sales of businesses and following thetr completion, which could have a material
and adverse effect on Arconic’s businesses, financial condition, results of operations and prospects, or the businesses,
financial condition, results of operations and prospects of the independent companies resulting from the separation.

Arconic may noi realize some or all of the anticipated strategic. financial, operational or other benefits from the separation
and or possible sales of businesses. For example, as independent compantes, the Engincered Products & Forgings and
Global Rolled Producis businesses will be smaller, less diversified companics with a narrower business focus and may be
more vulnerable to changing market conditions, such as changes in industry conditions, which could result in increased
volatility in their cask flows, working capital and financing requirements and could materiatly and adversely affect the
respective business, financial condition and resulis of operations. Moreover, following the separation, there can be no
assurance that either company will be able to abtain an investment grade rating from nationally recognized credit rating
agencies, which could. among other things, increase the non-investment grade rated company's cost of capital. Further,
there can be no assurance that the combined value of the common stock of the two companies will be equal to or greater
than what the value of Arconic’s common stock would have been had the proposed separation not occurred. In additian, if
Arconic pursues the possible sales of businesses, it may face barriers 10 exit or objections from various staheholders, and/or
may retain liabilities for divested entities. There can be no assurance that any such sales will be undertaken or completed or
that they will be beneficial to Arconic, whether due 10 the above-described risks, unfavorable global economic conditions,
currency fluctuations, political risks. or other factors.

Additionally, the separation is subject to approval by Arconic’s Board of Directors and market, regulatory and certain other
canditions, Unanticipated developmeats, including, among others, failure of the separation 1o qualify for the expecied tax
ireatment, the possibility that any third-party conseats required in connection with the separation will not be received.
material adverse changes in business or industry conditions, changes in global economic and financial market condiions
generally, and the ability to complete the possible sales of businesses, could delay or prevent the completion of the proposed
separation, or cause the proposed separation 10 occur on teans or conditions that are different or less favorable than
expected.

Information technology system failures, eyber attacks and security breaches may threaten the integrity of
Arconic’s intellectual property and other sensitive information, disrupt its business operations, and result in
reputational harm and other negative consequences that could have a material adverse effect on its financial
condition nnd results of operations.

Arconic relies on its information technology systems to manage and operate its business, process transactions. and
summarize its operating results. Arconic's information technology systems are subject to damage or interruption from
power outages, computer and telecommunications failures, computer viruses, and catastrophic events. such as fires, floods,
earthquakes. tornadoes, hurricanes, acts of war or terrorism, and usage errors by employees |f Arconic’s information
1echnology systems are damaged or cease to function properly, the Company may have to make a significant invesiment to
fix or replace them, and Arconic may suffer loss of critical data and interruptions or delays in its operations Any material
disruption in the Company’s informaiion technology systems, or delays or difficultics in implementing or integrating new



systems or enhancing current systems, could have an adverse effect on Arconic’s business, financial condition or results of
operations.

Arconic also faces global cybersecurity threats, which may range from uncoordinated individual attempts to sophisticated
and targeted measures, known as advanced persistent threats, directed at the Company. Cyber attacks and security breaches
may include, but are not limited to, attemplts to access information, computer viruses, deninl of service and other electronic
security breaches.

The Company believes that it faces a heightened threat of cyber attacks due 10 the industries it serves, the locations of its
operations and its technological innovations. The Company has experienced cybersecurity anacks in the past, including
breaches of its information technology systems in wiich information was taken, and may experience them in the future,
potentially with more frequency or sophistication. Based on information known to date, past attacks have not had a material
impact en Arcenic’s financial condition or results of operations. However, due 1o the evolving nature of ¢y bersecurity threats.
the scope and impact of any future incident cannot be predicted.

Arconic employs a number of measures 1o protect and defend against cyber attacks, including technical security controls, data
encryptian, firewalls, intrusion prevention systems, anti-virus software and frequent backups. Additionally, the Company
conducts segular periodic training of its employees regarding the protection of sensitive information which includes training
intended 1o prevent the success of “phishing” attacks. While the Company continually works to safeguard its systems and
mitigate polential risks, there is no assurance thar such actions will be sufficient to prevent cyber anacks or security breaches
that manipulate or improperly use its systems or networks, compromise confidential or atherwise pretected information,
destroy or corrupt data, or otherwise disrupt its operations. The occurrence of such events could negalively impact Arconic’s
reputation and its competitive position and could result in litigation with third parties, regulatory action, lass of business,
potential liability and increased remediation costs, any of which could have a material adverse effect on its financial conditon
and results of operations. In addition, such attacks er breaches could require significant management attention and resources,
and result i the diminution of the value of the Company's investment in research and development,

Arconic’s enterprise risk managementi program and disclosure controls and procedures address cybersecurity and include
elements intended o ensure that there is an analysis of potentia) disclosure obligations arising from cyber attacks and security
breaches. Arconic aiso maintains compliance programs to address the patential applicability of restrictions against trading
while in possession of material. nonpublic information generally and in connection with a cyber antack or security breach
However, a breakdown in existing controls and procedures around the Company s eybersecurity environment may prevent
Arconic from detecting. reporting or responding to cyber incidents in a timely manner and could have a materiat adverse
effect on the Company's financial condition or the market price of its scecurities.

A decline in Arconic’s financial performance or outlook conld negatively impact the Campany’s access to the global
capital markets, reduce the Company’s liquidity and increase its borrowing costs.

Arconic has significant capital requircrents and depends, in part, upon the issuance of debt to fund its operations and
contractual commitments and pursue strategic acquisitions. A decline in the Company s financial performance or outlook
due to internal or external factors could affect the Company's access to, and the availability or cost of, financing on
acceptable wrms and conditions. There can be no assurance that Arconic will have access 1o the global capital market on
terms the Company finds acceptable. Limitations on Areonic’s ability to access the global capital markets, a reduction in the
Company's liquidity or an increase in borrowing costs could materially and adversely affect Arconic’s ability 1o maintain or
grow its bysiness, which in turn may advessely affect its financial condition and results of operations.

A downgrade of Arconic’s credit ratings could lismit Arconic’s ability to obtain future financing, increase its
borrowing costs, increase the pricing of its credit facilities, adversely affect the market price of its securities, trigger
tetter of credit or other collateral postings, or otherwise impair its business, financial condition, and resulis of
operatiens.

Arconic’s credit ratings are important to the Company’s cost of capital, The major rating agencies routinely evaluate
Arconic’s credit profile and assign debt ratings to the Company. This evaluation is based on a number of factars. which
include financial strength, business and financial risk, as well as transparency with rating agencies and timeliness of financial
reporting. On May . 2017, S1andard and Poor’s Ratings Services (S& ) affirmed Arconic’s long-term debt al BBB-, an
investmemt grade rating, with a stable outlook, and its short-term debi at A-3. On February 7, 2019, S&P changed the outiook
from stable to negative credit watch. On October 8, 2018, Moody s Investor Service {Moody's) affirmed Arconic’s long-term
debt rating a1 Ba2, a2 non-investment grade, with a stable outlook, and its short-tenn debt rating at Speculative Grade
Liguidity-2. On September 27, 2018. Fitch affinned Arconic’s long-term debt rating at BB+. a non-investment grade, and
shon-term debt at B, Additionally, Fitch changed the outlook from stable 10 positive.

There can be no assurance that one or more of these or other rating agencivs will not take negative actions with respect to
Arconic’s ratings. Increased debt levels, macroeconomic conditions, a deterioration in the Company's debt protection metrics,
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a conlraction in the Company's liquidity. or other factors could potentially trigger such actions. A rating agency may lower,
suspend or withdraw entirely a rating or place it on negative outlook or watich if, in that rating agency's judgment,
circumstances so warrant.

A downgrade of Arconic’s credit ratings by ane or more rating agencies could adversely impact the markel price of Arconic’s
securities; adversely affect existing financing (for example, 2 downgrade by S&P or Moody's would subject Arconic ta higher
costs under Arconic's Five-Year Revolving Credii Agreement and certain of its other revolving credit facilities). limit access
to the capital (including commercial paper) or credit markels or otherwise adversely affect the avaiiability of other new
finzncing on favorable terms, if at alf; result in more restrictive covenants in agreements governing the terms of any future
indebledness that the Company incurs: increase the cost of borrowing or fees on undrawn credit facilities; result in vendors ot
counterparties seeking collateral or letters of credit from Arconic; or otherwise impair Arconic’s business. financial condition,
liquidity and results of operations.

Arconic's business and growth prospects may be negatively impacted by lmits in its capital expenditures.

Arconic requires substantial capital to invest in growth opportunities and to maintain and prolong the life and capacity of its
exisling facilities. Insufficient cash generation or capital project overruns may negatively impact Arcanic’s ability to fund as
planned its sustaining and return-seeking capital projects. Over the fong term, Arconic’s ability to take advantage of improved
market conditions or growth opportunities in ils businesses may be constrained by earfier capital expenditure restrictions,
which could adversely affect the long-term value of its business and the Company’s position in relation to its competitors.

An adverse decline in the liability discount rate, lower-than-expected investment return on pension assets and other
factors could affect Arconic's results of operations or amount of pension funding contributions in future periods.

Arconic’s results of operations may be negatively affected by the amount of expense Arconic recerds for its pension and
other postretirement benefit plans, reductions in the fair value of plan assets and other factors. Arconic calculates income or
expense for its plans using actuarial valuations in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of Americe (GAAP).

These valualions reflect assumptions about financial market and other economic conditions, which may change based on
changes in key economic indicators. The most significant year-end assumptions used by Arconic to estimate pension or other
postretirement benefit income or expense for the following year are the discount rate applied to plan liabilities and the
expected long-tenm rate of retum on plan asscts. In addition, Arconic is required to make an annual measuremeat of plan
assets and liabilities, which may resul in a significant charge 1o shareholders’ equity. For a discussion regarding how
Arconic’s financial slalements can be affected by pension and other postretirement benefits accounting policies, see “Critical
Accounting Policies and Estimates-Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits” in Part 1§, Ttem 7. (Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuls of Operations} and Note G to the Consolidated Financial Statements-Pension
and Other Postretitement Benefits in Part 11, hem 8. {Financial Statemems and Supplementary Data} Ahhough GAAP
expense and pension funding contributions are impacted by different regulations and requirements, the key economic factors
that affect GAAP expense would also likely affect the amount of cash or securities Arcanic would contribute to the pension
plans.

Potential pension contributions include both mandatory amounts required under federal low and discretionary contributions te
improve the plans’ funded status. The Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act {“MAP-21"), enacted in 2012,
provided eemporary relief for emplayers like Arconic who sponsor defined benefit pension plans related to funding
contributions under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 by allowing the use of a 25-year average discount
rate within an upper and lower range for purposes of determining minimum funding obligations 1n 2014, the Highway and
Transportation Funding Act {HATFA) was signed into law. HATFA extended the relief provided by MAP-21 and modified the
interest rates that had been set by MAP-21, [n 2013, the Bipartisan Budget Act of 2013 {(BBA 2013) was signed into law.
BBA 2015 extends the reliefl period provided by HAFTA. Arconic believes that the relief provided by BBA 2015 will
moderately reduce the cash flow sensitivity of the Company 's U.S. pension plans’ funded status to potential declines in
discount rales over the next several years. However, higher than expected pension contributions due to a decline in the plans’
funded status as a result of declines in the discount rate or lowee-than-expected investment returns on plan assets could have a
material nepative effect on the Company's cash flows, Adverse capital market conditions could result in reductions in the fair
value of plan assets and increase the Company’s liabilities related to such plans, which could adversely affect Arconic’s
liquidity and results of operations.

Unanticipated changes in Arconie’s tax provisions or exposure to additional tax liabilities could affect Arconic’s future
profitability.

Arcenic is subject to income taxes in both the United States and various non-U.S, jurisdictions. s domestic and international
tax liabilities are dependent upon the distribution of income among these different jurisdictions. Changes in applicable
domestic or foreign tax laws and regulations, or their interpretation and application, including the possibility of retroactive
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effect, could affect the Company's tax expense and profitability. Arconie’s tax expense includes estimates of additional tax
that may be incurred for 1ax exposures and reflects various estimates and assumplions. The assumptions include assessments
of future garnings of the Company that could impact the valvation of its deferred tax assets. The Company’s future results of
operations could be adversely affected by changes in the effective tax rate as a result of a change in the mix of earmings in
countries with differing statutory tax rates. changes in the overall profitability of the Company. changes in tax legislation and
rates, changes in generally accepted accounting principles, changes in the valuation of deferred tax assets and liabilities, the
results of 1ax audits and examinations of previously filed tax returns or related litigation and continuing assessments of 115 tax
exposures.

Corporale tax law changes continue to be analyzed in the United Siates and in many other jurisdictions. In particular, on
December 22, 2017. the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the “2017 Act™) was signed into law, significantly reforming the United
States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. During 2018, the Internal Revenue Service began a numiber of guidance
projects which serve to bath interpret and implement the 2017 Act. Those guidance projects, which include both Proposed
and Fina! Treasury Regulatioas, will continue into 2019. The Company continues to review the components of the 2807 Act.
as well as the ongoing imerpretive guidance, and evaluate its consequences. As such, the ullimate impact of the 2017 Act may
differ from reposted amounts due to, among other things, changes in interpretations and assumptions the Company has made
10 date; and actions the Company may take as 2 result of the 2017 Act and rclated guidance. These changes to the U.S.
corporate tax system could have a substantial impact, positive or negative, on Arconic’s future effective tax rate, cash iax
expenditures, and deferred tax assets and liabilities.

Arconic’s business could be adversely affected by increnses in the cost of aluminum.

Arconic detives a significant portion of its revenue from aluminuni-based products. The price of primary aluminum has
historically been subject to significant cychica! price fluctuations and the timing of changes in the market price of alumiaun is
largely unpredictable. Alhougls the Company’'s pricing of products is generally intended 1o pass the risk of metal price
fluctuations on to the Company 's customers or is otherwise hedged. there are siwations where Arconic {s unable to pass on the
entire cost of increases to its eustomers and there is a potential time lag on certain products belween increases in costs for
aluminum and the point when the Company can implement a corresponding increase in price to its custemers and or there are
other timing factors that may result in Arconic's exposure to certain price fluctuations which could have a material adverse
eftect on Arconic’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

Arconic is exposed to fluctuations in foreigh currency exchange rates and interest rates, as well as inflation, economic
factors, and currency controls in the countries in which it operates.

Evonomic factors, including inflation and fuctuations in foreign currency exchange mates and interest rates, compelilive
factors in the countries in which Arconic operates, and continued volatility or deterioration in the global economic and
financial environment could affect Arconic’s revenues, expenses and results of operations. Changes in the valuation of the
U.S. dollar against other currencics. including the Euro, British pound, Chinese yuan {remminbi} and Russian ruble, may
affect Arconic’s profitability as some important inputs are purchased in other currencies, while the Company's produets are
generally sold in U.S. dollars.

In addition, a portion of Arconie’s indebtedness, including certain borrowings under the Company’s Five-Year Credit Facility,
bears interest at rates equal to the London Interbank Offering Rate {LIBOR) plus an applicable margin based on the credit
ratings of Arconic's outstanding senfor unsecured long-term debt. Accordingly, the Company is subject 10 risk {rom changes
in interest rates on thic variable component of the rate. Further, LIBOR is the subject of recent national, international and other
regulatory guidance and proposals for reform. These reforms and other pressures may cause LIBOR to disappear entirely or
10 perform differently than in the past. The consequences of these developments cannot be entirely predicted, but could
include changes in the cost of Arconic's variable rate indebtedness.

Arconic also faces risks arising from the imposition of cash repatriation restrictions and exchange controls. Cash repalriation
restrictions and exchange contrels may limit the Company s ability to conven {oreign currencies into U S. dollars or 1o remit
dividends and other payments by Arconic’s foreign subsidiaries or businesses located in or conducted within a country
imposing restrictions or controls. While Arconic currently has no need. and does not intend. to repatriate or convert cash held
in countrigs that have signiftcant restrictions or conirels in place. should the Company need to do se 1o fund its operations, it
may be unable to repatriate or convert such cash, or be unable to do so without incurring substantial costs. Arconic currently
has substantial operations in countries that have cash repatriation restrictions or exchange controls in place, including China,
and, if the Company were to need to repatriate or convert such cash, these controls and restrictions may have an adverse
effect on Arconic’s operating results and financiat condition.

Arcanic may not realize expected benefits from its praductivity and cost-reduction initiatives.

Arconic has undertaken, and may continue to undertake, productivily and cost-reduction initiatives to improve performance
and conserve cash. including deployment of company-wide business process models, such as Arconic’s degrees of
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implememation process in which ideas are executed in a disciplined manner 1o generare savings, and operating cost
reductions, including, among others, those announced on February 8, 2019, in connection with the Company's onguing
strategic and portfolio review. There is no assurance that these initiatives will be successful or beneficial to Arconic or that
estimated cost savings from such activities will be realized. If Arconic fails to achieve net cost savings at anticipated levels.
its business, financial condition or results of operations could be adversely affected.

Arconic’s custoraers may reduce their demand for aluminum products in faver of alternative materials.

Certain applicatians of Arconic’s aluminum-based products compete with products made from other materials. such as steel,
titznium and composites, The willingness of customers to pursue materials other than aluminum depends upon the desire to
achieve specific atiibutes. For example, the commercial aerospace industry has vsed and continues to cvaluate the further use
of alternative materials to aluminum, such as titanium and compasites, in order to reduce the weight and increase the fuel
efficiency of aircraft. Additionally, the automotive industry, while motivated to reduce vehicle weight through the use of
aluininum, may revert to steel or other materials for certain applications Further, the decision to use alummum may be
impacted by aluminum prices. The willingness of customers 10 accept other materials in liev of aluminum could adversely
affect the demand for ceniain of Arconic’s products, and thus adversely affect Arconie’s business, financial condition or
results of operations.

Arcanic's profitability could be adversely affected by velatility in the availability or cost of raw materials.

Arconic’s results of operations may be affected by changes in the availability or cast of raw materials (including, but not
limited to. aluminum, cobalt, nickel. titanium sponge and vanadium), as well as freight costs associated with transportation
of raw materials. The availability and costs of certain raw materials necessary for the production of Arconic’s products may
be influenced by private or govesrniment entities including mergers and acquisitions, changes in world politics or regulatory
requirements, labor relations between the producers and their work forces, unstable governments in exporting nations, export
quotas, sanctions, new ot increased import duties, countervailing or anti-demping duties. marhet forces of supph and
demand. and inflation. In addition, from time 10 time, commaodity prices may fall rapidly When this happens, suppliers may
withdraw capacity from the market until prices improve, which may cause periodic supply interruptions Arconic may be
unable to offset fully the effects of mw material shortages or higher costs through customer price increases, productivily
improvements or cost reduction programs. Shortages or price fluctualions in raw materials could have 2 material adverse
effect on Arconic's operating results.

Union disputes and other employcc relations issues counld adversely affect Arconic’s business, financinl condition or
results of operations.

A significant portion of Arconic's employees are represented by laber unions in a number of countries under various
collective bargaining agreements with varying durations and expiration dates. For more information, see “Employees” in Part
1, Item 1. {Business) of this report. While Arconic previously has been successful in renegotiating its collective bargaining
agreements with various unions, Arconic may not be able to satisfactorily rencgotiate all collective bargaining agreements in
the United States and other countries when they expire. In addition, existing collective bargaining agreements may not
prevent a strike or work stoppage at Arconic’s facilities in the future. Arconic inay also be subject te general country strikes or
work stoppages unrelated to its business or collective barpaining agreements. Any such work stoppages (or potential work
stoppages} could have a material adverse effect on Arconic’s business, financial condition or resulis of operations.

A failure to uttract, retain or provide adequate succession plans for key personnel could adversely affect Arconic’s
operations and competitiveness,

Arconic’s existing operations and development projects require highly skilled executives and staff with relevant industry
and technical experience, The inabitity of the Company to attract and retain such people may adversely impact Arconic’s
ability to meet project demands adequately and fill roles in existing operations. Skills shortages in engineering,
manufacturing, technology, construction and maintenance contraciors and other labar market inadequacies may also impact
activities. These shortages may adversely impact the cost and schedule of development projects and the cost and efficiency
of existing operations.

{n addition, the continuity of key personnel and the preservation of institutional knowledge are vital 10 the success of the
Company's growth and business strategy. The loss of kev members of management and otier personnel could significantly
harm Arconic’s business, and any unplanned turnover, or failure to develop adequate succession plans for key positions,
could deplete the Company's institutional knowledge base, delay or impede the execution of the Company's business plans
and erode Arconic’s compeltitiveness,

Arconic may be exposed to significant legal proceedings, investigations or changes in U.S. federal, state or
foreign law, regulation or policy.

Arconic’s results of operations or liquidity in a panticular period could be affected by new or increasingly stringent faws,

[ )
w



regulatory requirements or interpretations, or outcomes of significant legal proceedings or investigations adverse 1o Arconic
The Company may experience a change in effective tax rates or become subject to unexpected or rising costs associated with
business operations or provision of health or welfare benefits to emplayees due to changes in laws, regulations or policies.
The Company may be a party lo litigation in a foreign jurisdiction where geopolitical risks might influence the ultimate
oulcome of such litigation. The Company is also subject lo a variety of legal and regulaiory compliance risks associated with
its business and products. These risks include. among other things, potential claims relating to product liability, product
testing, health and safety, environmental matters, required record keeping and record retention, intellectual property rights,
governinent contracts and taxes, as well as compliance with U.S. and foreign 1aw s and regutations goveming import and
export, anti-bribery, antitrust and competition, sales and trading practices, human rights and medern slavery, sourcing of raw
materials, third-party relationships, supply chain operations and the manufacture and sale of products. Arconic could be
subject o fines, penalties, damages (in centain cases, treble damages), or suspension or debarment fram gavermnem
contracts,

For example, in the event that an Arconic preduct fails to perform as expected, regardless of fault, or is used in an
unexpected manner, and such failure or use resvlts in, or is alleged to result in, bodily injury and/or property damage or other
losses, Arconic may be subject to product liability lawsuits and other claims or may be required or requested by ils customers
to participate in a recall or other corrective action involving such product. In addition, if an Arconic product is perceived to
be defective or unsafe, sales of the Company's products could be diminished. and the Company could be subject to further
liability claims. Even if Arconic successfully defends against these types of claims, the Company could stiHl be required to
spend a substantial amount of money in connection with Jegal praceedings or investigations with respeclt to such claims; the
Company’s managementi could be required to devore significant time, anention and operational resources responding to and
defending against these claims; and Arconic’s reputation could suffer, any of which could have a material adverse effect on
its financial condition and results of operations.

While Arconic belicves it has adopted appropriate risk management and compliance programs to address and reduce these
risks, including insurance arrangements with respect to these rishs, such measures may provide inadequate protection against
liabilities that may arise. The global and diverse nature of Arconic’s operations means that these risks will continue to exist,
and additional legal proceedings and contingencies may arise from time 10 time. In addition. various factors or developments
can lead the Company to change current estimates of liabilities or make such estimates for maters previously unsusceptible
to reasonable estimates, such as a significant judicial ruling or judgmen, a significant settlement, significant regulatory
developments or changes in applicable law. A future adverse ruling or settlement or unfavorable changes in laws, regulations
or policies, or other contingencies thal the Company cannet predict with certainty could have a muterial adverse effect on the
Company’s financial condition, results ol operations or cash flows in a particular period. For additional information
regarding the legal proceedings involving the Company, see the discussion in Part 1, [tem 3. (Legal Proceedings) of this
report and in Note U to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part l, [tem 8. (Financial Statememts and Supplementary
Data).

Arconic is subject to a broad range of health, safety and environmental laws and regubations in the jurisdictions
in which it operates and may be exposed te substantial costs and liabilities nssociated with such laws and
regulations.

Arconie’s operations worldwide are subject to numerous complex and increasingly stringent health, safety and eavironmental
lasvs and regulations. The costs of complying with such laws and cegulations. including participation in assessmenis and
cleanups of sites. as well as internal voluntary programs, are significant and will continue 10 be so for the foresceable future.
Environmental laws may impese cleanup liability on owners and occupiers of conlaminated propenty, including past or
divested properties, regardless of whether the owners and occupiers caused the contamination or whether the activity that
caused the comamination was lawful at the time it was conducted. Environmental matters for which Arconic may be Hable
may arise in the future at its present sites, where no problem is currentiy known, at previously owned sites, sites previously
operated by the Company, sites ewned by its predecessors or sites that it may acquire in the future, Compliance with health,
safety and envirommental laws and regulations. including remediation obligations, may prove Io be more challenging and
costly than the Company anticipates. For example, new data and information, including information about the ways in which
the Company’s products are used, may lead the Company, regulatory anthorities, government agencies or other entities or
organizations to publish guidelines or recommendations, or impose restrictions, related to the manufacturing or ase of the
Company’s products. This could lead to reduced sales or market acceptance of the Company's products. Arconic’s results of
aperations or liquidiry in a particular period could be affected by certain health, safety or environmental matters. including
remediation costs and damages related to certain sites as well as other health and safety risks relating to its operations and
products. Additionally. evolving regulatory standards and expectations can result in increased litigation and or increased
costs, all of which can have a material and adverse effect on the Company's financial condition. results of operations and cash
flows.




Arconic is subject to privacy and data security/protection laws in the jurisdictions to which it operates and may be
exposed to substantial costs and liabilities associated with such laws and regulations.

The regulatary environment surrounding informalion secunty and privacy is increasingly demanding. with frequent
imposition of new and changing requirenients. For example, the European Union’s General Daia Protection Regulation
{"GDPR"), which became effective in May 2018, imposed significant new requirements on how companies process and
transfer personal data, as well as significant fines for non-compliance. Compliance with changes in pnvacy and information
security laws and standards may result in significant expense due to increased investment in technology and the
development of new operationat processes, which could have a material adverse effect on Arconic’s financial condition and
results of operations. ln addition, the payment of potentially significant fines or penalties in the event of a breach of the
GDRP or other privacy and information security laws, as well as the negative publicity associated with such a breach, could
damage the Company s reputation and adversely impact product demand and customer refationships.

Arconic may be subject to securities litigation, which could cause the Company to incur substantial costs and divert
management’s attention and yesources.

Arconic currently is, and may in the future become, subject to claims and litigation alleging viclations of the securities laws.
Arconic is generally abliged, 10 the extent permilted by law, to indemnify its curvent and former directors and officers who are
named as defendants in these types of lawsuits. Regardless of the outcome, securities hitigation may require substantial
attention from maragement and could result in significan: legal expenses, seitlement costs or damage awards that could have a
material impact en the Company's financial position, results of operations and cash flows.

Failure to comply with demestic or internationnl employment and relused laws could result in penaltics or costs that
could have a material adverse ¢ffect on Arconic’s business resuits.

Arconic is subject 1o a variety of domestic and foreign employment laws. such as the Fair Labor Stzadards Act (which govemns
such matters as minimum wages, overtime and other working conditions), state and local wage laws, the Employ ee Retirement
Income Security Act {“ERISA™). and regulations related to safety, discrimination, organizing. whistle-blowing, classification of
cmployces, privacy and severanee payments, citizenship requirements, and healthcare insurance mandates. Allegations tha
Arconic has violated such laws or regulations could damage the Company s reputation and fead to fines from or settiements
with federal, state or foreign regulatory authorities or damages payable to employees, which could have a material adverse
impact on Arconic’s operalions and financial condition.

Arconic may be affected by global climate change or by legal, regulatory, or market responses te such change.

Increased concem over climate change has led to new and proposed legislative and regulatory initiatives. such as cap-and-
irade systems, additional limits on emissions of greenhouse gases or Corporate Average Fuel Economy (CAFE) standards in
the United Stales. New or revised laws and regulations in this area could directly and indirectly affect Arconic™s customers
and supplicrs {through an increase in the cost of production or their ability to produce satisfactory products) or business
(through an impact on Arconic’s inventory availability, cost of sales, operations or demand for Arconic products), which
could result in an adverse effect on our financial condition. results of operations and cash flows. Compliance with any new or
more stringent laws or regulations, or stricter interpretations of existing laws. could require additional expenditures by the
Company or its customers or suppliers. Also. Arconic relies on nalural gas, electricity, fuef oil and transport fuel to operate its
facilities. Any increased costs of these energy sources because of new laws could be passed along to the Company and its
customers and suppliers, which could also have a negative impact on Arconic’s profitability.

Anti-takeover provisions could prevent or defay a change in contrel of Arconic, including a takeover attempt by a
third party and limit the power of Arconic’s sharcholders.

Arconic’s Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws contain, and Delaware law contains. provisions that are intended to deter
coercive 1akeover practices and inadequate taheover bids by making such practices or bids unacceptably expensive to the
bidder and to encourage prospestive acquirers to negotiate with Arconie’s Board of Directors rather than to atiempt a hostile
takeover. For example, Arconic is subject 1o Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which imposes certain
restrictions on mergers and other business combinations between the Company and any holder of 15% or more of the
Company's outstanding common stock, which could make it more difficult for another party to acquire Arconic. Additionally,
the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation authorizes Arconic’s Board of Directors to issue preferred stock or adopt other
anti-takeover measures without shareholder approval, These provisions may apply even if an offer may be considered
beneficial by some shareholders and could delay or prevent an acquisition that Arconic’s Board of Directors determines is not
in the best interests of Arconic’s shareholders. These provisions may also limi the price that investors might be wiliing 1o pay
in the future for shares of Arconic common stock or prevent or discourage attempts to remove and teplace incumbent directors.
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Dividends on Arconic common stock could be reduced or eliminated in the event of material future
deterioration in business conditions or in other circumstances.

Arconic has historically paid dividends on its commaon stock; however, it has no abligation 10 do so. The existence, timing,
declamation, amount and payment of future dividends 1o Arconie’s shareholders falls within the discretion of Arconic’s Board
of Directors, and the Company ‘s dividend policy may change at any time without advance notice to Arconic’s shareholders.
For example, on February 8, 2019, in connection with the Company’s ongoing strategic and pontfolio review, Arconic
announced that it expected 1o reduce its grarterly common sieck dividend from S0.06 10 30.02 per share. The Arconic Board of
Birectors’ decisions regarding the pay ment of dividends will depend on many factors, such as Arconic’s financial condition,
earmings, capital requirements, debt service obligations, covenants associated with certain of the Company's debt service
obligations, industry practice, iegal requirements, regulaiory constraints and other factors that Arconic's Board of Directors
deems relevant. Arconic’s Board of Directors may determine to further reduce or eliminate Arconic’s contmon stock dividend
n the event of material future deteriorations in business conditions or in other ¢ircumstances.

Changes in the United Kingdom’s economic and other relatienships with the Eurepesn Union could adversely afTect
Arcounic.

[n March 2017, the United Kingdem formally triggered the process to withdraw from the European Union (also referred to as
"Brexit”) following the resulis of a national referendum that took place in June 2016, The wltimate effects of Brexiton
Arconic are difficult to predict, but because the Company currently operates and conducts business in the United Kingdom
and in Europe, Brexit could cause disruptions and create uncertainty to Arconic’s businesses, including affecting the business
of and or our relationships with Arconic’s customers and suppliers, as well as altering the relarionship among tariffs and
currencies, including the value of the British pound and the Euro relative to the U.S dollar. Such disruptions and uncertainties
could adversely affect Arconic’s financial condition, operating results and cash flows 1n addition, Brexit could result in legat
uncertainty and potentially divergent nationat laws and regulations as new legal relationships between the United Kingdom
and the European Union are established The ultimate effects of Brexit an Arcoric will akso depend on the terms of any
agrecments the United Kingdam and the Evropean Union niake to retain access to each other’s respective markets either
during a transitional period or more permanently.

Areonic may not achieve some or alt of the expected beneflits of the Scparation frem Alcoa Corporation, and
failure to realize such benefits in a timely manner may materially adversely affect Arcenic's business.

Arconic may be unable to achicve the full strategic and financial benefits expected 1o result from the Separation, or such
benefits may be delayed or not oceur at all. The Separation is expecied to provide the following benefits, among others: {i)
enabling the management of each company 10 pursue maore effectively its own distinct opecating priotities and strategies_ ta
focus on strengtheaing its core busingss and {ts umique needs, and 1o putsue distinct and tarpeted opportunities for fong-term
growth and profitability; (iiy permitting each company to allocate s financial resources to meet the unique needs of its awn
business, allowing each company to intensify its focus on ils distinct strategic priorities and to pursue more elffectively its
own distinct capital structures and capital allocation strategies, (it1) allowing each company to articulate more effectively a
clear investment thesis to atiract a long-term investor base suited to 115 business and providing investors with two distinet and
targered investment opportunities; (rv) crealing an independent equity currency traching each company's underlying
business, affording Arconic und Aleoa Corporation direct access to the capital markets and facilitating each company 's
ability to consummate future acquisitions or other restructuring transactians utilizing its common stock; (v) allowing each
cothpany more cansistent application of incentive structures and targets, due 10 the comnion nature of the underlying
businesses; and (vi} separating and simplifying the struciures required to manage two distinet and differing underlying
businesses.

Arconic may not achieve these and other anticipated benefits for a varien of reasons, inciuding, among others: (i} Arcome
may be more susceptible 1o market fluctuations and other adverse events than if Alcoa Corporation were still a part of the
Company because Arconic’s business is less diversified than it was prior 1o 1the completion of the Separation: and {ii) as a
smalier, independent company, Arconic may be unable to oblain certain goods, services and technologies at prices or on
terms as (avorable as those it obtained prior 1o completion of the Separation. If Arconic fails to achieve some or all of the
benefits expected 16 result from the Separation, or 1f such benefits are delayed, it could have a material adverse effect on
Arconic's competitive position, business, financial condition, reselts of operations and cash flows.

Aleoa Corporation may fail to perform under various transaction agreements that were executed as part of the
Separation.

In connecticn with the Separation, Arconic and Alcoa Corporation entered into a Separation and Distribution Agreement and
also entered into various other agreements, of which the following were still in effect during 2018: a Tax Matters Agreement,
an Employee Matters Agreement, intellectual property license agreements, 8 metal supply agreement, real estate and office
leases and a spare parts joan agreement. The Separation and Distribunon Agreement. the Tax Matters Agreemen and the
Employee Maiters Agreement, together with the documents and agreements by which the internal recrganization of the
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Company prior to the Separation was effected. determined (he allocation of assets and liabilities between the comparies
following the Separation for those respective areas and included any necessary indemnifications related to liabilities and
obligations, Arconic will rely on Alcoa Corporation to satisfy its performance and payment obligations under these
agreements. If Alcoa Corperation is unable or unwilling to satisfy its obligations under these agreements. including its
indemnification obligations, we could incur aperational difficulties and/or losses.

In connection with the Separation from Alcon Corporation, Alcoa Corporation has agreed to indemnify Arconic far
certain linbilities and Arconic has agreed to indemnify Alcoa Corporation for certzin liabilities. If Arconic is required
to pay under these indemnities to Alcoa Corporation, Arconic’s financial results could be negatively impacted. The
Alcoa Corporation indemnity may be insufficient to hold Arconic harmless from the full amount of liabilities for
which Alcoa Carporation will be allocated responsibility, and Alcon Corporation may be unable to satisfy its
indemnification obligations in the future.

Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement and certain other agreements with Alcoa Corporation, Alcoa
Corporation has agreed to indemnify Arconic for certain liabilities, and Arconic has agreed to indemnify Alcoa Corporation
for certain linbilities, in each case for uncapped amounts. [ndemnities that Arconic may be required to provide Alcoa
Corporation are not subject to any cap, may be significant and could negatively impact Arconic’s business. Third parties
could zlso seek to hold Arconic responsible for any of the liabilities that Alcoa Corporation has agreed to retain. Any amounlis
Arconic 15 required to pay pursuant to these indemnification obligations and other liabilities could require Arconic ta divert
cash that would otherwise have been used in furtherance of the Company s operating business. Further, the indemnity from
Alcoa Corporation may be insufficient to protect Arconic against the full amount of such liabilities, and Alcoa Corporation
may be unable to satisfy its indemnification obligations fully. Moreover, even if Arconic ultimately succeeds in recovering
from Alcoa Corporation any amounts for which Arconic is held liable, Arconic may be temporarily required to bear such
Josses. Each of these risks could negatively affect Arcenic's business, results of operations and financial condition.

The Separation could result in substantinl tax lizbility,

It was a condition to the Distribution that (i) the grivate letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service {the *IRS”) regarding
certain U.S. federal income tax matters relating to the Separation and the Distribution received by Arconic remain valid and
be satisfaciory to Arconic’s Board of Directors and (ii} Arconic receive an opinion of its cutside counsel, satisfactory to the
Board of Directors. regarding the qualification of the Distribution, together with cenain related transactions, as a transaction
that is generally tax-free, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, under Sections 355 and 368{a){ 1 X D) of the Internal Revenue
Code of {986, as amended (the “Code”). Both of these conditions were satisfied prior to the Distribution, However. the IRS
private letter reling and the opinion of counsel were based upon and relied on, among other things, various facts and
assumptions, as well as certain representations, statements and undertakings of Arcenic and Alcoa Corporation, including
those relating to the past and future conduct of Arconic and Alcoa Corporation. [l any of these representations, statements or
undertakings is, ar becomes, inaccurate or incomplete, or il Arconic or Alcoa Corporation breaches any of its representations
or covenants <ontained in any of the Separation- related agreements and documients or in any documents relating to the IRS
private letter ruling and or the opinion of counsel. the IRS private tetter ruling and or the epinien of counsel may be invalid
and the conclusions reached therein could be jeopardized.

Notwithstanding Arconic’s receipt of the IRS private letter ruling and the opinion of counsel, the [RS could determine that the
Distribution and or certain related transactions should be treated as taxable transactions for U.S. federal income tax purposes
if it determines that any of the representations, assumptions or undertahings upon which the [RS private letter ruling or the
opinion of counsel was based are false or have been violated. In addition, the IRS private leiter ruling does not address all of
the issues that are relevant to detenmining whether the Distribution, together with certain related transactions, qualifies as a
transaction that is generally 1ax-free for U.S. federal income 1ax purposes, and the opinion of counsel represents the judgment
of such counsel and is not binding on the IRS or any court and the IRS or a court may disagree with the conclusions in the
opinion of counsel. Accordingly, notwithstanding receipt by Arconic of the 1RS private letter ruling and the opinion of
counsel, there can be no assurance that the IRS will not assert that the Distribution and or certain related transactions do nat
qualify for tax-free treatment for U.S. federal income tax purposes or that a court would not sustain such a chailenge. In the
event the IRS were to prevail with such challenge. Arconic, Alcoa Corporation and Arconic shareholders cauld be subject to
significant U.S. federal income tax liability,

If the Distribution, together with certain related transactions, fails to qualify as a ransaction that is generally tax-free, for U .S.
federal income tax purposes, under Sections 355 and 368(a)t I XD) of the Cede, in general, for U.S, federal income tax
purposes, Arconic would recognize taxable gain as if it had sold the Alcoa Corporation conumon stock in a 1axable sale for its
faiv market value and Arconi¢ shareholders who received Alcoa Corporation shares in the distribution would be subject to tax
a5 if they had received 2 taxable distribution equal to the fair market vatue of such shares.

Under current U.S. federal income tax law, even if the Distribution, together with certain related transactions, otherwise
qualifies for tax-free treatment under Sections 353 and 368(a)(1 XD} of the Code, the Distribution may nevertheless be
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vendered taxable to Arconic and its shareholders as a result of certain post-Distribution transactions, including certain
acquisitions of shares or assets of Arconic or Alcoa Corporation. The possibility of rendering the Distribution taxable as a
esult of such transactions may limit Arconic’s ability to pursue certain equity issuances, strategic transactions or ether
transactions that would otherwise maximize the value of Arconic’s business. Under the Tax Matters Agreement that Arconic
entered into with Alcoa Corporation, Alcoa Corporation may be required to indemnify Arconic against any additional taxes
and related amounts resulting from (i) an acquisition of all or a portion of the equity securities or assets of Alcoa Corporation.
whether by mesger or otherwise (and regardless of whether Alcoa Corporation participated in or otherwise facilitated the
acquisition), (ii) issuing equity securities beyond certain thresholds, (iii} repurchasing shares of Alcoa Corparation stock other
than in certain open-markel transactions, (iv) ceasing actively to conduct cenain of its businesses, {v} other actions or failures
o act by Aleoa Corporation o (vi) any of Aleoa Corporation’s representations. covenants or undertakings contained in any of
the Separation-relaled agreements and documents or in any documents relating to the [RS private letter ruling and or the
opinion of counsel being incorrect or vialated. However, the indemnity from Alcoa Corporation may be insufficient 1o protect
Arconic against the full amount of such additional taxes or related liabilities, and Alcoa Corporation may be unable to satisfy
its indemnification obligations fully. Moreover, even if Arconic ultimately succeeds in recovering from Alcoa Corporation
any amounts for which Arconic is held liable, Arconic may be temporarily required 1o bear such losses. In addition, Arconic
and Arconic's subsidiaries may incur certain tax costs in connection with the Separation, incleding tax costs resulting from
separations i non-U.8. jurisdictions, which may be material. Each of these risks could negatively affect Arconic’s business,
results of operations and financial condition.

Itemn 1B. Uaresolved Staifl Comments.

None.




Item 2. Properties.

Arconic’s principal office is located at 350 Park Avenue, New York, New York 10022-4608. Arconic’s corporate center is
focated at 201 Isabella Street, Pitisburgh, Pennsylvania 15212-5858, The Arconic Technology Center for research and
development is located at 100 Technical Drive, New Kensingion, Pennsylvania 15069-0001.

Arconic Jeases some of its facilities; however, it is the opinion of management that the leases do not materizlly affect the
continued use of the properties or the properties” values.

Arconic betieves that ils facilities are suitabie and adequate for its operations. Although no titie examination of properties
awned by Arconic has been made for the purpose of this report, the Company knows of no material defects in title to any such
propertics. See Notes A and N to the Consolidaied Financial Statements in Part 11, Item 8. {Financial Statements and
Supplementary Daia) of this Form 10-K.

Arconic has active plants and holdings under the following segments and in the following geographic arcas:
ENGINEERED PRODUCTS AND SOLUTIONS

See the 1able and related tex1 in the Enginecred Products and Solutions Facilities section on page 6 of this report.
GLOBAL ROLLED FRODUCTS

See the 1able and related text in the Glabal Roiled Products Facilities section on page 8 of this report.
TRANSPORTATION AND CONSTRUCTION SOLUTIONS

See the table and related text in the Transportation and Censtruction Solutions section on page 9 of this report.



Iters 3. Lega! Proceedings.
In the ordinary course of its business. Arconic is involved in a number of lawsuits and claims, both actual and potential

Environmental Matters

Arconic is involved in proceedings under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, also
knawn as Superfund (CERCLA) or analogous state provisions regarding the usage, disposal, storage or treatment of hazardous
substances at a number of sites in the U.S. The Company has committed to participate, or is engaged in negotiations with
federn! or state authorities relative to its alleged liability for participation, in clean-up efforts at several such sites. The most
significant of these matters. the remediation of the Grasse River in Massena. NY. is discussed in the Environmental blatters
section of Note U to the Consolidated Financial Statements under the caption “Em ironmental Matters”,

Revnobond PE

As previously reported. on June 13, 2017, the Grenfell Tower in London, UK caught fire resulting in fatalities, injuries and
damage. A French subsidiary of Arconie, Arconic Architectural Products SAS (AAP 5AS), supplied a product, Reynobond PE.
10 its customer, a cladding system fabricator. which used the product as one componem of the overall cladding system on
Grenfell Tower. The fabricator supplied its portion of the cladding system to the fagade instalter. who then completed and
installed the system under the direction of the general contractor. Weither Arconic nor AAP SAS was involved in the design or
installation of the system used at the Grenfell Tower, nor did it have a role in any other aspect of the building’s refurbishment or
ariginal design. Regulatory investigations into the overall Grenfell Tower maiter are being conducied. including a criminal
investigation by the London Metro Police, a Public Inquiry by the British government and a consumer protection inquiry by a
French public authority, AAP SAS has sought and received core participant status in the Public Inquiry. The Company will no
longer sell the PE product for architectural use on buiidings.

Howard v drconic Ine er al As previously reported, a purported class action complaint related to the Grenfell Tower fire was
fited on August 11, 2017 in the United States District Count for the Western District of Peansylvania against Arconic Inc. and
Klaus Kleinfeld. A related purported class action complaint was filed in the United States District Court for the Western Dystrict
of Pennsylvania on August 23, 2047, under the caption Suflfivan v trvome Inc etal | against Arconic Inc., two former Arconice
executives, several current and former Arconic directors, and banks that acted as underwriters for Arconic’s September 18,
2014 preferred stock offering {the “Preferred Offering™). The plaintiff in Stffivas had previously filed a purported ¢lass action
against the same defendanis on July 18, 2017 in the Souther District of New York and, on August 25, 2017, voluntarity
disinissed that action without prejudice. On February 7, 2018, on motion from cerntain putative class members. the court
consofidated Howard and Sullivan, closed Sullivan. and appointed tead plaintiffs in the consolidated case. On April 9, 2018. the
lead plaintiffs in the consolidated purporied class action filed a consolidated amended comptaint. The consolidated amended
camplaint alleges that the registration statement for the Preferred Offering contained false and misleading statements and
omitied to state material information, including by allegedly failing to disclose material uncertaintics and trends resulting from
sales of Reynobond PL for unsafe uses and by allegedly expressitig a belief that appropriate risk management and compliance
programs had been adopted while concealing the risks posed by Reynabond PE sales. The consolidated amended complain
also alleges that between Navember 4. 2013 and June 23, 2017 Arconic and Kleinfeld made false and misleading statements
and failed to disclose material information about the Company s commitment 1o safety, business and financial prospects. and
the risks of the Revnobond PE product, including in Arconic’s Ferin 10-ks for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2013, 2014,
2615 and 2016, its Form 10-Qs and quarterly financial press releases from the fourth quarter of 2013 through the first quarter of
2017, its 2013, 2014, 2615 and 2016 Annual Reporis, and its 2616 Annual Hightights Report. The consolidated amended
complaint seeks, among other things, unspecified compensatory damages and an award of attorney and expert fees and
expenses. On June 8, 2018, all defendants moved 1o dismiss the consolidated amended complaint for failure 1o state a claim
Briefing on that motion is now closed and the parties await a ruling.

Rairl v . Hbaugh et ul As previously reported. on June 22, 2018, a derivative complaint was filed nominally on behalf of
Arconic by a purported Arconic shareholder against all current members of Arconic’s Beard of Directors, Klaus Kleinfeld and
Ken Giacobbe, naming Arconic as a nomina! defendant, in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware The
complaint raises similar allegations as the consolidated amended complaint in Hlovward. as well as atlegations that the
defendants improperly authorized the sale of Reynobond PE for unsafe uses, and asserts claims under Section 14(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Delaware state faw. On July 13, 2018. the parties filed a stipulation agreeing to stay this
case until the final resolution of the Howard case, the Grenfell Tower public inquiry in London, and the investigation by the
London Metropolitan Police Setvice and on June 23, 2018, the Court approved the stay.

While the Company believes that these cases are without merit and intends to chalienge them vigorously. there can be no
assurances regarding the ultimate resolution of these matters. Given the preliminary nature of these matters and the unceriainty
of litigation, the Company cannot reasonably estimate at this time the likelihoed of an enfavermble cutcome or the possible loss
or range of losses in the event of an unfavorable outcome. The Board of Directors has also received letiers, purportedly sent on
behalf of shareholders, reciting allegations similar to those made in the federal court fawsuits and demanding that the Board
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authorize the Company to initiate litigation against members of management, the Board and others. The Board of Directors has
appointed a Special Litigation Committee of the Board 1o review and make recommendations to the Board regarding the
appropriate course of action with respect to these sharcholder demand letters. The Special Litigation Committee and the Board
are contimuing to consider the appropriaie responses to the sharcholder demand letiers in view of developmenis in proceedings
concerning the Grenfell Tower fire.

Other Mattcrs

As previously reported, Arconic Inc. and its subsidiaries and former subsidiaries are defendants in lawsuits filed on behalf of
persons alleging injury as a result of occupational or other exposure to asbestos. Arconic, its subsidiaries and former
subsidiaries have numerous insurance policies over many years that provide coverage for asbestos refated claims. Arconic has
significant insurance coverage and believes that Arconic's reserves are adequate for its known asbesios exposure related
liabilities. The costs of defense and settfement have not been and are not expected Lo be material to the results of operations,
cash flows, and financial position of the Company.

Tax

Pursuant to the Tax Matters Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2016, entered into between the Company and Alcoa
Corporation in connection with the Separation, the Company shares responsibility with Alcoa Corporation for, and Alcoa
Corparation has agreed to partially indemnify the Company with respect 1o, the following matter.

As previously reported. in July 2013, following a Spanish corporate inceme tax audit covering the 2006 through 2009 tax
years, an assessment was received mainly disallowing ceriain interest deductions claimed by a Spanish consolidated tax group
owned by the Company. In August 201 3, the Company filed an appeal of this assessment in Spain’s Central Tax Administrative
Court, which was denicd in Janvary 2013, Arconic filed another appeal in Spain’s National Court in March 2015 which was
deniced in July 2018. The National Court’s decision requires the assessment for the 2006 through 2009 tax years to be reissued
1o take into account the outcome of the 2003 10 2605 audit which was closed in 2017. The Company estimates the revised
assessment ta be $174 million (€152 million), including interest,

The Company has petitioned to the Supreme Court of Spain to review the National Court’s decision. [T the petition is accepted,
the Supreme Court will review the assessment on its merits and render a final decision. In the event the Company is
unsuccessful in appealing the assessment to the Supreme Court of Spain, a portion of the assessment may be offset with
existing net operating losses and tax credits available to the Spanish consolidated tax group, which would be shared between
the Company and Alcoa Corporation as provided for in the Tax Matters Agreement. As a result of the National Court decision,
an income tax reserve, including interest, of $60 million (€52 million) was established in 2018. Concurrent with the
establisirment of the reserve, an indemnification receivable of $29 million {€235 million). representing Alcoa Corporation’s 49%¢
share of the Yiability, was also recorded in 2018,

Additionally. while the 1ax years 2010 through 2013 are closed 10 audit, it is possible that the Company may receive
assessments for tax y ears subsequent to 2013, Any potential assessment for an individual tax year is not expected to be material
to the Company s consolidated operations. At this time. the Company is unable te reasonably predict an ultimate oumtcome for
this matter.

Matters Previously Reported . Meoa Coi poration

We have included the matters discussed below in which the Company remains party 10 proceedings relating to Alcoa
Corporation in accordance with SEC regulations. The Separation and Distribution Agreement. dated October 31, 2016. entered
into between the Company and Alcoa Corporation i connsction with the Separation, provides for cross-indemnities berween
the Company and Alcoa Corporation for claims subject 1o indemnification. The Company does not expect any of such matters
to result in a net claim against it

St Croix Proceedings

Red Dust Docket Cases. (St Croiv} fk a tbednego Lauriel | etal v 8t Croix luming, LLC . et . As previously
reported, on January 14, 2010, Arconic was served with a multi-plaintiff action complaint involving several thousand individual
persons claiming to be residents of St. Croix who are alleged 10 have suffered personal injury or property damage from
Hurricane Georges or winds blowing material from the St. Croix Alumina, L.L.C. (“SCA™} facility on the island of 5t. Croix
(U.S. Virgin Islands) since the time of the hurricane. This complaint, Abednego, et al. v Alcoa, et al. was filed in the Superior
Court of the Virgin Islands. S1. Croix Division. Following an unsuccessful attempt by Arconic and SCA to remove the case to
federal court, the case has been Jodged in the Superior Court. The complaint names as defendants the same eatities that were
sued in & February 1999 action arising out of the impact of Hurricane Georges on the island and added as a defendant the
current owner of the alumina facility property.

Also as previously reported, on March 1, 2012, Arconic was served with a separate multi-plaintiff action complaint favelving
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approximately 200 individual persons alleging claims essentially identical to those set forth in the Abednego v Alcoa
complaint. This compiaint, Abraham, et al. v. Alcoa, et al., was filed on behaif of plaintiffs previousty dismissed in the federal
court proceeding involving the original litigation over Hurricane Georges impacts. The matter was originaliy filed in the
Superior Court of the Virgin Islands, St. Croix Division, on March 30, 2011.

Arconic and other defendants in the Abraham and Abednego cases filed or rencwed motians to dismiss each case in March
2012 and August 2012 following service of the Abraham complaint on Arconic and remand of the Abednego complaint to
Superior Court. respectively, By order dated August 10, 2013, the Superior Court dismissed plaintiffs’ compiaints without
prejudice 1o re-file the complaints individuaily, rather than as a multi-plainiiff filing. The order also preserves the defendants’
grounds for dismissal if new, individual complaints are filed, On July 7, 2017, the Court issued an order and associated
memaranda on plaintiff's multiple motions for extension of time 1o file the individual Complaints. Following the court’s July 7,
2017 order, a total of 429 complaints were filed and accepted by the court by the deadline of July 30, 2017 (and consolidated
into the Red Dusr Claims decket (Master Case No.: §X-15-CV-628)). These complaints include claims of about 1,260
individual plaintiffs. On December 11, 2017, the court issued a new scheduling order and [urther set a scheduling conference
far January 18, 2018. At that conference, the court set the next status conference for fate July 2018,

The July 2018 status conference was canceled. On November 5, 2018, notice ol an order of reassignment was entered,
transferring the claims to the newly created Complex Litigation Division of the Superior Court of the Virgin Isfands, Division
of §t. Ctoix. Following the transfer, the Court scheduled a status conference to discuss the most efficient manner in which to
proceed with discovery. The conference took place on January 24, 2019. The Count has not issued a discovery schedule On
January 28, 2019, the plaintiffs filed a motion asking for a determination that expen testimony will not be required on the 1ssue
of causation, which defendants opposed. The Court has rot ruled on that motion.

Other Contingencies

In addition 10 the marters discussed above. various other lawsuils, claims, and proceedings have been or may be instituted or
asserted against Arconic. including those pertaining to environmental, product liability. safety and health, employment, tax and
antitrust matters. While the amounts claimed in these other matters may be substantial, the allimate liability cannot currenily be
determined because of the considerable uncertaintics that exist, Therefore, it is possible that the Company's liquidity ot results
of operations in & period could be materially affected by one or more of these other matters. However, based on facls currently
available, management believes that the disposition of these other matters that are pending or asseried wilt not have o material
adverse effect, individually or in the agpregate, on the results of operations. financial position, or cash flows of the Compan)

Item 4. Mine Safety Disciosures.

Not applicable,

PART I

ltemn 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities,

The Company s common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Prior to the Separation of Alcoa Corporation from
the Company. the Company's commen stoch traded under the symbo! “AA." In coanection with the separation, o
November [. 2016. the Company changed its stock symbol and its common stock began trading under the symbol “ARNC

On Ocicher 3, 2016. the Company's common shareholders approved a 1-for-3 reverse stock split of the Company’s outstanding
and authorized shares of common stock (the “Reverse Stoch Split”™) As a result of the Reverse Stock Split, every three shares
of issued and outstanding common stock were combined into one issued and outstanding share of common stock, without any
change in the par value per share. The Reverse Stock Split reduced the number of shares of cammon stock outstanding from
approximately 1.3 billion shares to approximately 0 4 billion shares, and proportionately decreased the number of autharized
shares of common siock from 1.8 billion to 0.6 billion shares The Cornpany's common stock began trading on a2 Reverse Stock
Split-adjusted basis on Octaber 6, 2016.

On November 1. 2016. the Company completed the Separation of its business inio two independent. publicly traded companics
the Company and Alcoa Corporation The Separation was effected by means of a pro rala distribution by the Campany of
80.1%5 of the outstanding shares of Alcoa Corporation common stock to the Company’s sharcholders. The Company’s
shareholders of record as of the close of busmess on QOctober 20, 2016 (the “Record Date™) received ane share of Alcoa
Corporation common stock for every three shares of the Company s common stoch held as of the Record Date. The Company
retained 19,990 of the outstanding commeon stock of Alcoa Corporation immediately following the Separation. See disposition
of retained shares in Note V to the Consclidated Financial Statemenis in Part 1! ltemy 8 of this Form 10-K.

The number of holders of record of common stock was approximately 11,668 as of February 15, 2619,
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the most recent five-year performance of the Company”’s common stock with (1) the Standard &
Poor's {(S&P) 500% Index, {2) the S&P 500" Materials Iadex, a group of 23 companies categorized by Standard & Poor's as
active in the “materials™ market sector, (3) the S&P Aerospace & Defense Select Industry Index, a group of 33 companies
categorized by Standard & Poor’s as active in the “aerospace & defense” industry and (4) the &P 300 Indusirials Index, a
group of 69 companies categorized by Standard & Poor’s as active in the “indusirials” market sector. The graph assurnes, in
each case. an initial investment of $100 an December 3. 2013, and the reinvestment of dividends. Historical prices prior to the
separation of Alcoa Corporation from the Company on November |, 2016, have been adjusted to reflect the value of the
Separation transaction. The graph, table and related information shall not be deemed io be “filed™ with the SEC, nor shall such
information be incorporated by reference into future filings under the Securities Act of 1933 or Securities Exchange Act of
1934, each as amended, except 10 the extent that the Company specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing.

Please note that the Company intends to replace the S&P 500® Materials Index with the S&P Aerospace & Defense Select
Industry Index and the S&P 500@ Industrials Index in subsequent stoch performance graphs. We believe that the companies
and industries represented in the S&P Aerospace & Defense Select Indusiry [ndex and the S&P 500® Industrials Index better
reflect the markets in which the Company currently participates. All three indices are represented in the graph below.

Cumuilative Total Return

Based upon an initial investment of $100 at December 31, 2013 with dividends
reinvested

Index Value

0 T T T T T T
12 13 12 14 1215 1216 12/i7 12/18
Period Ending
Arconic Inc. - ¥ S&P300
S&P Materials —W— S&P Aerospace & Defense

—WN— S&P Industrials

CopyrightD 2019 Standard & Poor's, a division of S&P Global. All rights reserved.

As of December 31, 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
Arconic Ing. $ 100 3 14983 $& 9462 S5 8022 § [19.02 § 7447
S&P 500% Index 100 113.6% 115.26 129.05 157 22 150.33
S&P 500® Materials Index 100 106.9] 97.95 114,30 141,55 120,74
S&P Acrospace & Defense Select Industry .

Index 108 11143 117.49 139,70 [97 50 181.56

S&P 500% Industrials Index 160 10983 107.04 127.23 15399 133 55



ltem 6. Sclected Financial Data.

The separation of Alcoa Inc. into two standalone, publicly-traded companies, Arceni¢ Inc. (the new name for Alcoa Inc.) and
Alcoa Corporation, became effective on November 3, 2016 (the “Separation Transaction”). The financial results of Alcoa
Corporation for all periods prior to the Separation Transaction have been retrospectively reflected in the Statement of
Consolidated Operations as discontinued operations and, as such, have been excluded from continuing operations and segment
results for 2016 and all prior periods presented prior to the Separation Transaction. The cash Dows related to Alcoa Corporation

have not

been segregated and are included in the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows for 2016 and all prior periods

presented.

(dollars in miflions, except per-share amounts)

For the year ended December 31, 2018 2617 2016 2015 2014
Sales ) 14014 § 12,960 % 12,394 § 12,413 § 12,542
Amoums atiributable 10 Arconic:
Income (loss) from continuing operations’™ § 642 S (74) % {1,062y § (157 § (61)
Eigcomc (loss) from discontinued operations _ ___ 121 (165) 329
Net income (loss) S 642 § (14) § (941) 5 322} § 268

Earnings {loss} per share aitributable 1o

A3

Arconic common sharcholders:
Basic:
Incaome (loss) from continuing operations  § 133 § (0.28) $ (2.58) § (0.54) § {0.21)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations — — 0.27 (0.39) 0.85
Net tncome (loss) b 133 % (.28 5 (2313 & (0.93] § 0.64
Diluted:
Income (loss) from continuing operations  § 130 S (0.28) S (2.58) § (0.54) 3 (0.21)
Income (loss) from discontinued operniions — — g.27 (0.39) 0.84
Net income (loss) S 130 % {0.28) & {231) § (0.95) § 0.63
[(Ijlash dividends declared per comeon share g 0.24 034§ 036 S 036 % 0.36
Total assets 18,693 18,718 20,038 36477 37,298
Total debt 6,330 6,844 8,084 8,827 8445
Cash pravided front (used for} opcralfons”' 27 (39} 93 764 1,674
Capital expenditures
Capiral expenditures - continuing -
operations 768 596 827 789 773
Capital expenditures—discontinued e
operations - 298 391 44
Total capital expenditures s 68 3 596 § 1,125 8 1,180 S 1219

Calculated from the accompanying Statement of Consolidated Operations as Income (loss) from continuing operations
after income taxes less Net income from continuing operations attributable 1o noncontralling interests.

Calculated from the accompanying Statement of Consolidated Operations as income from discontinued operations
after income taxes less Net income from discontinued operations attributable 1o noncontrolling interasts.

Per share data has been retroactis ely restated to reflect the |-for-3 reverse stock split which became effective on
October 6, 2016 {see Note | to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Pant L, Item 8. {Financial Statements and
Supplementary Daia) of this Form 10-K}.

Cash provided from {(used for) operations has not been restated for discontinued operations presentation for 2016 and
all prior periods presented (see Basis of Presentation section of Note A to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
Part 11, Item 8. {Financial Statements and Supplementary Data) of this Form 10-K). Cash provided from {used far)
operations in 2014 has not been recast for the impact of the new accounting pronouncements that were adopted in the
first quarter of 2018 (see Recemly Adopted Accounting Guidance section of Note A to the Consolidated Financial
S1atements in Part {1, Item 8, (Financial Statements and Supplementary Data) of this Form 10-K),

The daia presented in the Selected Financial Data iable should be read in conjunction with the information provided in
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of Qperations in Part 1, Irem 7. and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes in Part i1, 1tem 8. (Financial Statements and Supplementary Data) of this Form

10-K.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
(dollars in millions, except per-share amounts. shipments in thousands of metric tons [kmt))

Overview

Our Business

Arconic (“Arconic” or the "Company™) is a global leader in lightweight metals engineering and manufacturing. Arconic’s
innovative, multi-material products. which include aluminum, titanium, and nickel, are used worldwide in aerospace.
autometive. commercial transponation, building and construction, industrial applications, defense, and packaging.

Arconic is a global company operating in 18 countries. Based upon the country where the point of sale occurred, the United
States and Europe penerated 65% and 24%0, respectively, of Arconic’s sales in 2018. In addition, Arconic has operating
activities in Brazil, Canada, China. Japan, and Russia, among others Governmental policies, laws and regulations. and other
economic factors. including inflation and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates, affect the results of
operations in these countries.

Management Review of 2018 and Outlook for the Future

In 2018, Arconic’s revenues increased 8% aver 2017 as a result of higher volumes across all segments including strong volume
growth in aerospace engines and defense, automotive, commercial transportation. industrial, and building and construction end
markets; higher aluminum pricing and favorable praduct mix primarily 1mpacting the Global Rolfed Products segment; and
favorable foreign cwrency movements: partially offset by a decline in volumes in the industrial gas tirbine end market; lower
sales of 590 from the divestiture of the Latin America extrusions business (divested in April 2018}, $54 from the divestiture of
the rofling mill in Fusina, laly (divested in March 2617), and $46 from the ramp down of Arconic's North American packaging
operations {completed in December 2018). and costs of $38 in 2018 refated 10 setlements of certain customer claims primarily
related to product introductions. In the segments, Segment operating profit decreased 6°e from 2077 as volume growth was
more than offset by performnance shortfalls in the disks operations. manufacturing inefficiencies in the Engineered Structures
business, unfavorable product mix, and higher aluminutm prices

Net income was 5642 in 2018 compared to a Net loss of 374 in 2047, There were several signtficant items that impacted the
fourth quarter of 2018 The Company recognized proceeds ol approximately $300 in cash and recorded a pain of S1E9 (S154
pre-tax} on the sale of the Texarkana rolling mill. The Company recorded a loss of $3% (343 pre-tax) on the sale of the Eger,
Hungary forgings business. The Company also recorded a charge of $72 (592 pre-tax) for pension plan settlement charges
associated with significant lump sum payments made 1o participants. Additionally. the Company recorded several discrete tax
items, including benefits related to the reversal of a foreign deferred tax liabilny of $74 as well as the releasc of valuation
allowances and revaluation of deferred taxes.

Management continned its focus on hiquidity and cash flows as well as insproving its operating performance through cost
reductions, sireamlined organizational structures, margin enhancement, and profitable revenue generation. Management has
continued its intensified focus on capital eMiciency This focus and the related resulis enabled Arconic to end 2018 with a solid
financial position.

The Following financial information reflects certain key measures of Arconic’s 2018 resulis

«  Sales of $14,014, up 8% from 2017, with growth from all sezmenis as key end markets remained heatthy, and Net
incame of $612, or $1.30 per dituted share,

+  Total segment operating profit of $1,581, a decrease of $97. or 6%, from 2017';

»  Cash provided from operations of 3217, cash used for financing activities of 3649, and cash provided from investing
activities of $363, reftecting improvements in woerking capital,

= Cashon hand at the end of the year of $2,277; and
= Total debt of 56,330, a decrease in 1otal debt of $514 fram 2017,

Y Eor the reconciliation of Total segmemt aperating prafit to Consolidated in ome before income taves and related
information. see¢ page 43

On January 22, 28{9, the Company announced that its Board of Directors (the Board) had determined 1o no longer pursue a
potential sale of Arconic as part of its strategy and portfolio review. Management and the Board have been conducting a
rigorous and cemprehensive strategy and portfolio review over the past year and as part of that process had considered a sale of
the Company, among other matters. However, the Company did nat receive a proposal for a full-Company transaction that
management and the Board believed would be in the best interest of Arconic’s shareholders and other stakeholders,
Management and the Board remain confident in Arconic’s significant potential and are strongly focused on enhancing value for
shareholders, through continued operational improvements and through other potential initiatives which have been previously
identified in the strategy and portfolio review. The Company has announced the following key initiatives s part of its ongoing
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strategy and portfolia review:

«  Commenced plans 1o reduce operating costs by approximately $200 on an annual run-rate basis, designed 1o maximize
the impact in 20109,

»  Announced the planrnced separation of its portfolio into Engineered Products and Forgings and Global Relled Products,
with a spin-off of one of the businesses:

»  Considering the poiential sale of businesses that do not best fit into one of the two segments above,

+  Intends to execute its previously authorized $500 share repurchase program in the first half of 2019,

»  The Board also authorized an additional $500 of share repurchases, effective through the end of 2020; and
«  Expects to reduce its quarterly common stock dividend from $0.06 10 $0.02 per share.

On February 6, 2019, the Company announced that the Board sppointed John C. Plant, current Chairman of the Board, as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, effective February 6. 2019, to succeed Chip Blankenship, who ceased
1o serve as Chief Exccutive Officer of the Company and resigned as a member of the Board. in each casc as of that date. In
addition, the Company announced that the Board appointed Elmer L. Doty, current member of the Board, as President and
Chief Operating Officer. a newly created position, effective February 6, 2019. Mr. Doty will rentain a member of the Board,
The Company also announced that Arthur D. Coflins. Jr., current member of the Board, has been appointed interim Lead
tndependent Director of the Company. effective February 6. 2019.

On February 19, 2019, the Company cntered into an accelerated share repurchase (“ASR") agreenient with FPhorgan Chase
Bank to repurchase 5700 of its common stock, pursuant 1o the share repurchase program previously authorized by the

Board. Under the ASR agreement, Arconic wili recetve initial delivery of approximately 32 million shares on February 21,
2019. The final number of shares to be repurchased will be based on the volume-weighted average price of Arconic’s common
stock during the term of the transaction, less a discount. The ASR agreement is expected to be completed during the first half of
2019.

The Company will evaluate its organizatiotial structure in conjunction with the plonned separation of its portfolio and changes
10 its reportable segments ace expected in the first halfof 2019.

1n 2019, management projects thal sales will be up approximately 2% 1o 4% o supported by increases in most of the Company s
key end markets, as robust growih and the Company’s pnique position in those markets is expected 10 continue These increases
will be partly affset by the expected decfine in aluminum prices in 2019 compared with 2018, Earnings per share is expected to
grow as management continues 1o focus on operational performance and driving further cost reductions The Company cxpects
lavorable impacts from volume, met cost savings. aerospace pricing, and lower aluminum pricing. which will be pressured by
the continuation of new product introductions in actospace as well as higher transportation costs and aluminum scrap spreads.
Cash flows are expected to heep pace for the full year in 2019 compared with 2018, resulting fronr improved aperating
performance and the focus on capital efficiency that is expected to drive lower capital expenditures Cash flows in the first
quarter of 2019 ace expecied 10 reflect the ty pical use of cash based on anticipated timing of working capital increases and
interest payments

2016 Separation Transaction. On November 1, 2016, the Company completed the separation of its business into two
standalone, publicly-traded companies, Arconic Inc. and Alcoa Corporation. Foliowing the Separation Transaction, Arcenic
camprises the Globa! Rolled Products {other than the roliing mill in Warrick, Indiana, and the 25.1%0 equity ownership stake in
the Ma’aden Rofling Company), the Engineered Products and Solutions, and the Fransporiation and Consiruction Solutions
segments. Alcoa Corporation comprises the Alumina and Primary Metals segments, the rolling rull in Warrick, Indiana, and the
25.1°4 equity ownership stake in the Ma’aden Rolling Company in Saudi Arabia.

The Separation Transaction was effecied by the distribution of 80.1% of the oulstanding shares of Alcoa Corporation common
stock to the Company 's sharehatders (the “Distribution™). The Company”s shareholders of record as of the close of business on
QOctober 20, 2016 (the “Record Date”) recejved one share of Alcoa Corporation commen stoch for every three shares of the
Company’s common stock held as of the Record Date. The Company distributed 146,139,428 shares of common stock of Alcea
Corperation in the Distribution and retained 36,311,767 shares, or approximately 19.9%s {scc disposition of relained shares
under Results of Operations below). of the common stock of Alcoa Corporation immediately follow ing the Distribution. As a
result of the Distribution, Alcoa Corporation is now an independent public company trading under the symbel "AA” on the
New York Stock Exchange, and the Company trades under the symboi “ARNC” on the New York Stock Exchange

On October 31, 2016, Arconic entered into several agreements with Alcoa Corporation that govern the relationship of the
parties following the completion of the Separation Transaction. These agreements include the following' Separation and
Distribution Agreement, Transition Services Agreement, Tax Matters Agreement, Employee Matters Agreement. Alcoa
Corporation to Arconic Inc. Patent, Know-How, and Trade Secret License Agreement. Arconic nc. to Alcoa Corporation
Patent, Know-How, and Trade Secret License Agreement, Afcoa Corporation 10 Arconic inc. Trademark License Agreement,
Toll Processing and Services Agreement, Master Agreement for the Supply of Primany Aluminum, Massena Lease and
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Operations Agreement, Fusina Lease and Operations Agrecment, and Stockholder and Registration Rights Agreement. The Toll
Processing and Services Agreement expired by its terms at the end of 2018

Results of Operations
Earnings Summary

Sales. Sates for 2018 were $14,014 compared with $12.960 in 2017, an increase of $1,054, or 8%. The increase was the resuli
of strong volume growth across all segiments, primarily in the aerospace engines and defense, automotive, commercial
transporiation, industrial, and building and construction end markets; higher aluminum prices and favorable product mix
primarily in the Global Rolled Products segment; and favorable foreign currency movemenis; partially offset by a decline in
volumes in the industrial gas turbine end market; lower sales of $190 from the divestitures of the Latin America extrusions
business {divested in April 2018}, the rolling mill in Fusina, Italy (divested in March 2017), and the ramp down of Arconic's
North American packaging operations (completed in December 2018), and costs of $38 in 2018 related 1o setlements of certain
customer claims primarily related to product introductions.

Sales for 2017 were 812,960 compared with $12,394 in 2016, an increase of 5566, or 3%a. The increase was the result of strong
volume prowth in all segments and higher aluminum pricing, partially offset by the planned ramp down and Toll Processing
Agreement relating to the Company’s North America packaging business in Tennessee in the Globat Rolled Preducts segment,
as well as unfavorable product pricing in both the Engineered Products and Solutions and Global Rolled Producis segments.
Pursuant to the Toll Processing Agreement that Arconic entered into with Alcoa Corporation on October 3|, 2016 in connection
with the Separation Transaction, Arconic provides can body stock 1o Alcoa Corporation using aluminum supplied by Alcoa
Carporation, resulting in the absence of metal sales in 2017 compared to 2016.

Cost of Goods Sold (COGS). COGS as a percentage of Sales was 81.3% 10 2018 compared with 78.9%% in 2017. The increase
was the result of higher aluminum prices; unfavorable aerospace product mix; higher transportalion costs: manufacturing
inefficiencics in the Engineered Structures business; performance shortfalls in the dishs operations; costs related to senfements
of certain customer claims noted above; and the impact of 2 $23 charge related to a physical inventory adjustment at one plant
in the Engineered Products and Sofutions segment that was recorded in the second quarter of 2018. While a portion of this
charge for the physical inventory adjustment related to prior years, the majority related to the first half of 2018, The out-of-
period amounts were not material 1o any interiny or annual periods.

COGS as a percentage of Sales was 78.9% in 2017 compared with 78.2% in 2016, The increase was primarily atributable to
cost increases, including net higher aluminum prices of $84 and ramp-up cosls related to new commercial acrospace engines,
and a lower margin product mix, partially offset by net cost savings.

Selting, General Administrative, and Other Expenses (SG&A). SG& A expenses were 5604, or 4.3%c of Sales, in 2018
compared with 3715, or 5.5%5 of Sales, in 2017. The decrease in SG&A was the result of proxy, advisory and governance-
related costs of $58, costs related to the separation of Alcoa Inc of $18, and costs associated with the Company's Delaware
reincorporation ef 83 in 2017, none of which recurred in 2018, Addittonally, lower expenses driven by lower annual incentive
compensation accruals and overhead cost reductions were somewhat offset by an inerease in legal and other advisory costs
related 10 Grenfell Tower of $4 as well as strategy and portfolio review costs of 87 in 2018,

SG& A expenses were 8713, or 5.5% of Sales, in 2017 compared with $924, or 7.5% of Sales, in 2016. The decrease in SG&A
was the result of expenses related to the Separation Transaction of $193 in 2016 compared to 518 in 2017, as well as ongoing
overhead cost reduction efforts, partially offset by proxy, advisory and govemance-related costs of $38, external legal and other
advisary costs related 1o Grenfell Tower of $14, and costs associated with the Company's Delaware reincorporation of 83 in
2017.

Research and Development Expenses (R&D). R&D expenses were 5103 in 2018 compared with $109 in 2017 and $130 in
2016. The decrease in both periods was the result of lower spending.

Provision for Depreciation and Amortization (D&A). The provision for D&A was 8576 in 2018 compared with $351 in
2017 and $535 in 2016. The increase in both periods was primarily due to capial projects placed into service.

Impairment of Goodwill. In 2017, the Company recognized an impairment of goodwill of 719 refated to the annual
impairment review of the Arconic Forgings and Extrusions business (see Goodwill under Critical Accounting Policies and
Estimates below).

Restructuring and Other Charges. Restructuring and other charges were $9 in 2018 compared with $163 in 2017. The
decrease of $136 was primarily due to the gain on the sale of the Texarkana rolling mill of $154, lower layoiT costs, and a
postretirement curtailment benefit of 328, partially offset by pension plan settlement charges of 596 associated with significant
lump sum payments made lo participants, a loss on the sale of the Eger, Hungary forgings business of $43. and pension
curtailment charges of $23. In 2017, the Company recorded a loss on the sale of the Fusina, kaly rolling mill of 560 and a
charge for the impairment of assets associated with the sale of the Latin America extrusions business of $41. See Note T 10 the
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to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Pant 11, liem 8. (Financial Statements and Seppiementary Data} of this Form 10-K.

Restructuring and other charges were 5165 in 2017 compared with $155 in 2016. The increase of $10 was primarily due 1o a
ioss of 560 on the sale of the Fusina, laly rolling mil! and a charge of $41 for the impairment of assets assoctated with the sale
of the Latin America extrusions business (divested in 2018} in 2017, partially offset by $37 for costs related to the exit of
certzin lepacy Firth Rixson operations in the UK. and $37 for exit costs related to the decision in 2016 o permanently shut
down a can sheet facility. See Note T to the to the Consolidated Financial Stateruents in Pact 11, ltem 8. (Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data) of this Form 10-K.

interest Expense. Interest expense was 5378 in 2618 conipared with $496 in 2017, The decrease of 5118, or 24°¢, was the
resuit of higher costs incurred in 2017 related to the early redemption of the Company's outstanding debt than were incurred
during 2018, as well as lower debt outstanding.

Interest expense was 8496 in 2017 compared with $499 tn 201 6. The decrease of $3, or 1%, was primarily due to lower interest
expense resulting from lower outstanding debt. mostly offset by $73 primarily in higher premiums paid in 2017 related to the
early redemplion of $1,250 in debt. In the second quarter of 2017, Arconic redeemed all of the Company’s 6.50° Bonds due
2018 and 6.75% Noles due 2018, and a portion of the Company's 5.729 Noles due 2019 in advance of the respective maturity
dates.

Other Expense (Income), Net. Other expense, net was $79 in 201 8 compared with Other income, net of 5486 in 2017. The
decrease in other income, net of 5563 was the result of gains recorded during 2017 related 1o the sale of a portion of Arcenic’s
invesiment in Alcoa Corporation commen stock of $331, the Debt-for-Equity Exchange {in April and May 2017, the Compan)
acquired a portion of its outstanding notes held by two invesinient banks (the “Investment Banks™) in exchange for cash and the
Compaty’s remaining 12,958,767 shares (valued ai $35.91 per share) in Alcoa Corporation stock and recorded a gain of $167),
income of $81 associated with an adjusiment to the contingent earn-out liabiliny related to the Firth Rixson acquisition (see
Note T to the Canselidated Financial Statements in Pant 1, ltem 8. (Financial Statements and Supplementary Data) of this Ferm
10-K), and income of $25 due 1o the reversal of a Hability associated with a separation-related guarantee, none of which
recurred in 2018, and unfavorable foreign curency movements, somewhal offset by lower non-service related net periodic
benefit cost and the benefit of $29 from establishing a tax indemnification receivable reflecting Alcoa Corporation’s 49°6 share
afl a Spanish tax reserve (sce Note U to the Consolidated Financial Statemeats in Part 11, ltem 8, (Financial Statements and
Supplementary Daia) of this Form 10-K).

Other income, net was 5486 in 2017 compared with Other expense, net of $41 in 2016. The increase in other income, net

ol §527 was primarily due (o the gain on the sale of a portion of Arcoaic’s investaent in Alcoa Corporation common stock of
§351 tin February 2¢17, the Company sold 23,353,000 shares of Alcoa Corporation stock at $38.03 per share, which resulted in
cash proceeds of $888 and a gain of $351) and the gain of 3167 on the Debt-for-Equity Exchange, income of $25 associated
with a higher reversal of a contingent eam-out liability related 1o the Firth Rixson acquisition {see Note T to the Consclidated
Financial Statements in Part I1, Item 8. (Financial Statemenis and Supplementary Data} of this Form 10-K), and income of §25
due to the reversal of a liability associated with a separation-related guarantee. The Company was required 1o provide a
guarantee for a0 Alcoa Carporation electricity contract in the event of an Alcoa Corporation payment defauit. [n the fourth
quarter of 20§17, Alcoa Corporation announced that it had terminated the efectricity coniract at its Rockdule Operations and, as a
result, Arconic reversed its associoted guaraniee liability.

Income Taxes. Arconic’s effective tax rate was 26.0% in 2018 compared with the (.S, federal statutory rate of 21%.. The
effective 1ax rate differs from the U.S. federal statutory rate primiarily as a result of a $60 charge to establish a tax resene in
Spain, & $59 net charge resulting from the Company's finalized analysis of the LS. Tax Cuts and Jobs Acts of 2017 {"the 2017
Act™), a §13 charge for U.S. state 1axes, foreign income 1axed in higher rate jurisdictions, and foreign losses with no tax benefit,
partially offset by a $74 benefit related to the reversal of a foreign recapiure obligation, a 838 benefit to reverse a foreiga tax
reserve that is effectively scitled, and a $10 benefit for the release of U.S. valuation allowances.

Arconic’s effective tax rate was 115.7%% in 2017 compared with thhe U.S. federal statutory rate of 35%., The effective 12« rate
difTers from the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily as a result of a $719 impairment of goodwill, a S41 impairment of assets in
the Latin America extrusions business, and a S60 charge related 1o the sale of a rolling mil} in Ttaly that are nondeductible for
income tax purposes, a $272 tax charge as a provisional impact of the 2017 Aet, and a $23 tax charge for an increase in an
uncertgin tax position in Germany. partially offset by a $73 tax benefit related to the sale and Debt-for-Equity Exchange of the
Alcoa Corporation stock, a 569 1ax benefit for the release of U.S. state valuation allowances net of the federal tax benefit, a $27
favorable tax impact associated with a non-taxable earn-out liability adjustment in connection with the Firth Rixson acquisition,
and by foreign income taxed in Yower rate jurisdictions.

Arconic's effective tax rate was 356.5% in 2016 compared with the U.S. federal statutary rate of 35°0. The effective tax rate
differs from the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily due to a $1,267 discrete income t1ax charge for valuation allowances related
1o the Separation Transaction (see Note H to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Pant I, liem §. (Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data) of this Form [0-K), a $95 tax charge associated with the redemption of company-owned life insurance
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policies whose tax basis was less than the redemption amount resulting in a taxable gain, a $31 net charge for the
remeasurernant of certain deferred tax assets and liabilities due to tax rale and sax law changes, and a $34 uafavorable tax
tmpact relaled to certain separation costs which are nondeductible for income tax purposes, somewhat offset by a $39 discrete
income tax benefit for the release of valuation allowances in Canada and Russia, a 338 tax benefit related to currency impacts
of a distribution of previcusly taxed income, and a $26 favorable tax impact associated with non-taxable settiement proceeds
and eam-out {iability adjustments in connection with the Firth Rixson acquisition.

Management aniicipates that the effective tax rate in 2019 will be belween 26.5%s and 28.5%. However. business portfolio
actions, changes in the current economic environment, tax legislation or rate changes, currency fluctuations, ability to realize
deferred tax assets, movements in stock price impacting tax benefits or deficiencies on stock-based payment awards, and the
resulis of operations in certain taxing jurisdictions may cause this estimated rate to fluctuate.

Income (Loss) From Continuing Operations After Income Taxes. Income fiom continuing operations after income taxes
was $642 for 2018, or $1.30 per diluted share, compared to a loss from continuing opcrations afier income taxes of $74 for
2017, or 50,28 per share. The increase in results of $716 was due in part to the following items that occurred in 2017 but did
not recur in 2018: 3 charge for goodwill impairment of 719 (3719 pre-tax); gains refated to the sale of a portien of Arconic’s
investment in Alcoa Corporation common stock and the Debt-for-Equity Exchange of $405 (§518 pre-tax); and favorable
adjustments of $97 (5106 pre-iax) to contingent earn-out and guarantee liabilitics as noted below. Additional favorable impacis
in 2018 included: volume growth across al! segments; lower SG& A expenses due 10 proxy and separation costs incurred in
2017 and not recurring in 2018, as well as lower incentive compensation accruals; lower Restructuring and other charges driven
primarily by the gain on sale of the Texarkana rolling mill. offset by pension setilement charges and tie loss on sale of the Eger,
Hungary forgings business; lower Interest expense due 10 lower debt levets; lower pension expenses; and lower income taxes.
These favorable impacts were partially offset by unfavorable aerospace product mix, higher aluminum prices, manufacturing
inefficiencies in the Engincered Structures business, performance shortfalls in the disks operations, settlements of certain
customer claims, and an unfavorable physical inventory adjustment ai one plant.

Loss from continuing operations after income taxes was $74 for 2017, or $0.28 per diluted share, compared with $1.062

for 2018, or $2.58 per share. The inerease in results of $988 was primartity attributable to charges for tax valuation allowances
and cosis related to the Separation Transaction in 2016; a gain of $238 ($351 pre-tax) on the sale of a portion of Arconic’s
invesiment in Alcoa Corporation common stock and a gain of $167 ($167 pre-tax} on the Debt-for-Equity Exchange in 2017;
income of 523 (825 pre-1ax) associated with a higher reversal of a coatingent earn-out liability refated Lo the Finh Rixson
acquisition and income of $16 ($25 pre-tax) due 1o the reversal of a liability associated with a separation-related guaranlee; net
cost savings: and higher sales volumes across all segments; partially offset by a charge for goodwill impairment of $719 (§719
pre-tax): a charge selated to the 2017 Act of $272: 847 (373 pre-tax) of higher premiums paid for the early redemption of debt
in 2017; higher LIFO inventory expense associated with higher aluminum prices; charges for asset impairments of the Fusina,
laly rolling mill of $60 (860 pre-tax) and Latin America extrusions business of $11 {341 pre-tax) based on the sale of these
businesses. unfavorable product pncing, primarily in acrospace: and lower-margin product mix.

Segment Information

Arconic’s operations consist of three worldwide reportable segments Engineered Products and Solutions, Global Rolled
Products and Transpontation and Construction Solutions (see below) In the first quarter of 201 8, the Compaay changed is
primary measure of segment performance from Adjusied earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, and amortization
{*Adjusted EBITDA™) to Segment operating profit, which more closchy aligns segment performance with Operating income as
presented in the Statement of Consolidaled Operations. Segment performance under Arconic’s management reporting systen; is
evaluated based on a number of factors; however, the primary measure of performance 15 Segment operating profit. Arconic’s
definition of Segment operating profit is Operating income excluding Special items. Special items include Restructuring and
other charges and Impairment of goodwill. Segment operating profit also includes certain items that, under the previous
segment performance measure, were recorded (n Corpotate, such as the impact of LIFO inventory accounting, metal price lag,
intersegment profit ehminations, and derivative activities. Segment aperating profit may not be comparable to similarty titled
measures of other companies. Differences between segment totals and consolidated Arconic are in Corporate. Prior period
financial information has been recast to conform to current year presentation,

Segment operating profit for all reportable segments totaled $1,581 in 2018, S1.678 1n 2017, and 51,622 in 2016. The following
information provides Sales and Segment operatung profit for each reportable segment, as well as certain shipment data for
Global Rolled Products, for each of the three vears in the period ended December 31, 2018. See Note T to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Part IL. ltem 8. (Financial Statements and Supplementary Data) of this Form 10-K.



Engincered Products and Selutions

2018 2017 2016
Third-party sales 5 6316 S 5943 % 5,728
Segment operating profit 3 891 3 961 8 935

The Engineered Products and Solutions segment produces products that are used primarily in the acrospace (commercial and
defense), industrial, commercial transportation. and power generation end marhets. Such praducts include fastening sysiems
(tilanium, sleel. and nicke! supetaltoys); seamless rotled rings (mostly nickel superalloys); investment castings (nickel
supernlioys, titanium, and sluminum), including airfoils and forged jet engine components (e.g., jet engine disks), and extruded,
machined and formed aircraft parts (titanium and aluminum), all of which are sold dircctly to customers and through
distributors. Mare than 7595 of the third-party sales in this segment are from the aerospace end market. A small part of this
sepment also produces varicus forged, extruded. and machined meial products (titanium. aluminum and stzel) for the oil and
gas, automative. and land and sea defense end markets. Seasonaf decreases in sales are generally expericnced in the third
quarter of the year duc to the European summer slowdown across ali end markets. Geaerally. the sales and costs and expenses
of this segment are transacted in the local currency of the respective operations, which are mostly the {1.8. dollar, British pound
and the euro.

On December 31, 2018, as part of the Campany’'s ongoing strategy and portfolio review, Arconic completed the sabe of its Eger,
Hungary forgings business that manufactured high volume sieel forgings for drivetrain components in the European heavy ~duty
truck and automotive market. This business generated third-party sales of $32, $38, and 529 in 2018, 2017, and 2016,
respectively, and had (890 employces at the time ofthe divestiture. See Restructuring and other charges under Results of
Operations above.

In April 2016, Arconic completed the sale of the Remmiele Medical business (that was part of the RTi Imternational Metals Inc
{RT1} acquisition} thae manufactured precision-mactiined metal products for customers in the minimally invasive surgical
device and implantable device markets. Remmele Medical generated third-party sales of $23 from January 1, 2016 through the
divestiture date, and, at the time of the divestiture, had approximately 330 employees

Third-party sales for the Enginecred Products and Solnions segment increased 8373, or 6%, in 2018 compared with 2017,
primarily attributable to higher volumes in the acrospace engines and defense end markets and favorable foreign currency
movements, partially offset by a decline in volumes in the indusirial gas turbine wmarket and lower aeraspace pricing principally
in the fasteners business.

Third-party sales for this segment increased $215, or 4%, in 2017 compared with 2016. primarily attributable to volume growth
in both aerospace engines and airframes, partially offset by lower product pricing, primarily in the aerospace end market, and
the absence of sales of $23 related to the Remmele Medical business, which was sold in April 2016.

Segment operating profit for the Engineered Products and Sclutions segment decreased $73, or 8%, in 2018 compared with
2017, primarily attributable to performance shortfalls in the disks operasions, manufacturing inefficiencies in the Engineered
Structures business, including the now resolved forging press outage at the Cleveland facihity that impacied the fourth quarter
of 2018 with higher costs of $10; unfavorable aerospace engine mix and new product intreductions; a physical inventory
adjustment of $23; and lower aerospace pricing principally in the fasteners business. partly offset by the strength in aerospace
eagine and defense volumes,

Segment operating profit for this segment increased §9, or 1%, in 2017 compared with 2016, primarily on higher volumes and
net cost savings, parsially offset by product pricing pressures. ramp up costs associated with increasing production volumes of
new aerospace engine parts, and a lower margin product mix.

In 2019, demand in the commercial aerospace end market is expected to remain strong, driven by the ramp-up of new
asrospace engine platforms. Demand in the defense end market is expected to grow due 1o the coptinuiag samp-up of certain
aerospace programs, while declines in the industrial gas wrbine market are expected to continue, albeit at lower Ievels than in
2018. Net cost savings and favorable pricing are expected.
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Globa! Rolled Products™

2018 2017 2016
Third-party sales 5 5604 % 5000 § 4.865
Intersegmeni sales 160 148 1i8
Tozal sales 5 5,764 % 5,148 8 4,983
Segment operating profit S 186 § 424 8§ 421
Third-party aluminum shipments (kmt) 1,249 1,497 1.339

" Excludes the Warrick, EN rolling operations and the equity interest in the rolling mill at the joint venture in Saudi

Arabia, both of which were previously part of the Global Rolled Products segment but became pant of Alcoa
Corporation effective November 1, 2016.

The Global Rolted Products segment produces aluminum sheet and plate for a variety of end markets. Sheet and plate is sold
directly to customers and through distributors related to the aerospace, automotive, commercial transponiation, packaging.
building and construction, and industrial products {mainly used in the production of machinery and equipment and consumer
durables) end markets. A small portion of this segment also produces aseptic foil for the packaging end market. While the
customer base for flat-rolled products is large, a significant amount of sales of sheet and plate is to a relatively smail number of
customers. Generally, the sales and cosis and expenses of this segment are transacted in the local curmency of the respective
operations, which are mostly the U.S. dollar, Chinese yuan. the euro, the Russian ruble, the Brazilian real, and the British
pound.

On April 6, 2018, the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of Foreign Asset Control ("OFAC™) announced new sanctions against
Russian “oligarchs” and extended those sanctions 10 companies that are majoriiy-owned or substantively controlled by thase
cligarchs. These sanctions block U.S. persons - both individuals and companies - from engaging in trunsactions with listed
cligarchs and their companies. These sanctions originally extended to UC Rusal PLC (“Rusal™}y, which supplies primary
aluminum to Arconic in Europe, the United States. and to the Company's Samara plant in Russia. The Company operated under
a seties of temporary licenses issued by OFAC until January 27, 2019 when OFAC removed Rusal from the list of sanctioned
partjes. The Company complies with and expects to continue to comply with all other aspecis of these sanctions and we do not
anticipate any interruption in Samara’s ability to operate normally.

In March 2017, Arconic completed the sale of its Fusina. haly rolling mill. The rolling mill generated third-panty sales of $54
and 5165 for 2017 and 2016, respectively, At the time of the divestiture, the rolling mill had approximately 312 employ ces.
See Restructuring and other charges under Results of Operations above.

On November 1, 2016, Arconic entered into a Toli Processing Agreement with Alcoa Corporation for the teling of metal for
the Warrick, IN rolling mill which became a pant of Alcoa Corporation upon the completion of the Separation Transaction. As
part of this arrangement. Arconic provided a tolt processing service to Alcoa Corporation to produce can sheet products at its
facility in Tennessee through the end date of the contract, December 31, 2018 Alcoa Corporation supplied alt required raw
materials to Arconic and Arconic processed the raw materials imo finished can sheet coils ready for shipment to the end
customer. Tolling revenue for 2618, 2017, and the two months ended December 3. 2016 was S144, 3190 and $37. respectively.

Third-party sales for the Global Rolled Products segment increased $604, or 12%, in 2018 compared with 2017, primarity
attributable to higher aluminum prices; higher volumes in the automotive, commercial transportation, and industrial end
markets: and favorable product mix; partially offset by the absence of sales of $54 from the rolling mill in Fusina, Iialy
{divested in March 2017) and the planned ramp down of Arconic's North American packaging operations (completed in
December 2018).

Third-party sales for this segment increased $133, or 3%, in 2017 compared with 2016, primarily attributable to volume growth
in the automotive end market and higher aluminum pricing. pamially offset by the impact of $362 associated with the ramp-
down and Toll Processing Agreement with Alcoa Corporation at the Company s North America packaging business in
Tennessee, the absence of sales of 8111 from the rolling mil] in Fusina, Italy. aerospace customer inventory destocking and
reduced build rates, and pricing pressures in the global packaging market

Segment operating profit for the Global Relled Products segment decreased S38, or 9. in 2018 compared with 2017, primarily
driven by unfavorable aerospace wide-body production mix, kigher aluminum prices, and higher transpontation costs and scrap
spreads, partially offset by higher autamotive, commercial transportation and industrial volumes. The higher aluminum prices
negatively impacied segment operating profit margin by 530, or 100 basis points, in 2018 compared with 2017.

Segment operating profit for this segment increased 83, or %o, in 2017 compared with 2016, primarily driven by net cost
savings and increased automotive volumes, partially offset by lower aerospace volume from customer destocking and reduced
build rates, continued pricing pressure on global packaging products and higher aluminum prices. The higher aluminum prices
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negatively impacted sepment operating profit margin by $37, or 150 basis points. in 2017 compared with 2616.

In 2019, demand in the North America commercial fransportation, brazing, and industrial end markets is expected to grow as a
tesult of the International Trade Consmission initiated comman alloy trade case Demand in the automotive end marhet is
expected to continue 1o grow due to the growing demand for innovative praducts and aluminum-intensive vehicles. Demand
from the commercial airframe end market is expected to be flat as the ramp-up of new programs is ofiset by lower build rates
for aleminum intensive wide-body programs Net productivity improvenients are anticipated to continue.

Transportation and Construction Solutions

2018 2017 2016
Third-party sales s 2,126 § 2011 S 1,802
Segment operating profit 5 W S8 290 S 246

The Transporation and Construction Solutions segment produces products that are used mostly in the commercial
transportation and nonresidential building and construction end markets. Such products include integrated aluminum structural
systems, architectural extrusions, and forged aluminum commercial vehicle wheels. which are sold both directly 10 cusiomers
and through distributors A small part of this segment also produces alumninum products for the industrial products end markes
Generally, the sales and costs and expenses of this segment are transacted in the tocal currency of the respective operations,
which are primarily the U.S. dollar, the euro, and the Brazilian real

On July 31. 2018, the Company announced that it had initiated a sale process of its Building and Construction Systems (BCS}
business, as part of the Company's ongoing strategy and portfolio review that commenced in January 2018. BCS generated
third-party sales of approximaiely $1,140, $1,070, and $1,010 for 2018, 2017. and 2016, respectively. The sale process
continues to progress The Company's decision regarding whether to sell the business will nat be finalized unti! final binding
offers are evaluated, Until the Company makes that final decision, the BCS business will remain ¢lassified as held and in-use in
the Consolidated Financial Suatements

On April 2, 2018, Arconic completed the sale of its Latin America extrusions business as part of its continued drive to

sireamline its business portfolio, reduce complexity and further focus ob jts bigher-margin products and profitable growih. This

business generated sales of 523, 5115, and $103 in 2018, 2017, and 2016 respectively. and had 612 employees at the time of the

divestiture. See Restructuring and Othet Charges under Results of Operations zhove. ‘

Third-party sales for the Transponation and Construcion Salutions sepment increased S113, or 6%, in 2018 compared with
2017, primarily driven by higher volumes in the commercial transportation and building and construction end markets.
favorable foreign currency movements and higher zluminum prices, partially offsel by the absence of sales of 890 resubting
from the divestiture of the Latin America extrusions business in April 2018,

Fhird-pany sales for this segment increased $209. or 129, in 2017 compared with 2016, primarily driven by increased volumes
in the commercial transportation and building and constructien ¢nd marhets, higher aluminum pricing. and favorable foreign
cutrency movements, partially offset by lower product pricing. ‘

Segment operating profit for the Transportation and Construction Solutions segment increased $14, or 5%, in 2048 compared
with 2017, principally driven by higher volumes in the commercial transportation and building and construction end markets
and net cost savings, which more than offset higher aluminum prices. The higher aluminum prices negatively impacted segment
operaling margin by $57, or 270 basis points, in 2018 compared with 2017.

Segment operating profit for this segment increased $44, or 1830, in 20t7 compared with 2016. principally driven by net cost
savings and higher volumes. partially offset by lower product pricing in the heavy-duty truck market, unfavorable product mix,
and higher alumimum prices. The higher aluminum prices negatively impacted segment operating margin by 38, or 90 basis
points, in 2017 compared with 2016,

In 2019, we expect continued growth in the North American and European commercial transportation and building and
construction markets and continued demand for innovative products. Net productivity improvements are aaticipated to
continue,



Reconciliation of Total segment operating profit to Consolidated income from continuing operations before income
taxes

2018 2017 2016

Total segment operating profit L3 1581 8 1,678 S 1,622
Unallocated amounts:

Impairment of goodwill — (7193 —_

Restructuring and other charges (9) (165} (155)

Corporate expeise {247} 314y (313
Consolidated operating income g 1325 % 480 S 954
Interest expense {378} (496} (499)
Other (expense) income, nel {79} 486 4n
Consolidated income from continuing operations before income taxes S 868 S 470 £ 414

See Restruciuring and Other Charges, Impairment of Goodwili, Interest Expense, and Other Expense {Income), Net discussions
above under Results of Operations for reference.

Corporate expense decreased in 2018 compared with 2017 primarily due to proxy, advisory and governance-related costs of
$58 and costs related to the separation af Alcoa Inc. of 8§18 in 2017, neither of which recurred in 2018. Also, lower expenses
driven by lower annual incentive compensation accruals and overhead cost reductions were partially offset by costs incurred in
lhe second quarter of 2018 related to the settlements of certain customer claims primarily related to product introductions of
$38, an increase in legal and other advisery costs related 1o Grenfeil Tower of $4, and strategy and portfolio review costs of $7
in2018.

Corparate expense decreased in 2017 compared with 20t6 primarily atiributable to costs incurred in 2676 related to the
Separation Transaction. partially offsel by proxy. advisory and povernance-related costs and lepal and other advisory costs
related to Grenfell Tower incurred in 2017.

Environmental Matters

See the Environmental Matters section of Note U to the Cansclidated Financial Statements in Part I, liem 8 of this Form 10-K.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Arconic maintaing a disciplined approach to cash management and strengthening of its balance sheet. Management comtinued
10 focus on acttons 10 improve Arconic’s cost structure and liquidity, providing the Company with the ability to cperate
effectively. Such actions included procurement efficiencies and overhead rationalization to reduce costs, working capitat
initiatives, and mainaining a sustainable level of cepitaf expenditures.

Casli provided from operations and financing activities is expected to be adequate to cover Arconic’s eperational and business
needs over the next 12 months. For an analysis of leng-term liquidity. see Contractual Obligations and Ofi-Balance Sheet
Arrangements below.

At December 31, 2018, cash and cash equivalents of Arconic were §2,277, of which 5541 was held by Arconic's non-U.S,
subsidiaries. 1F the cash held by non-U.$S, subsidiaries were to be repatriated to the U.S.. the company does not expect there to
be additional material income tax consequences.

The Staternent of Consolidated Cash Flows has not been restated for discontinued operations. therefare the discussion befow
concerning Operating Aclivities, Financing Activities, and Investing Activities for the year ended December 31, 2016 includes
the results of both Arconic and Alcoa Corporation up through the completion of the Separation Transaction on November I,
2016,

Operating Activilics

Cash provided from operations in 2018 was $217 compared with cash used for operations of $39 in 2017. The increase of $236
was primarily due to lower working capital of $209 and a favorable change in noncurrent liabilities of $169 due primarily o
reversals in 2017 related to the Firth Rixson earn-out liability of $81 and separation-related guarantee Habikity of $13, partially
offset by lower operating results. The components of the change in working capital included favorable changes of $277 in
accoums payable, 8127 intaxes, including income taxes, and $118 in inventories, partially offser by unfavorable changes of
$227 in receivables, 74 in accrued expenses, and $12 in prepaid expenses and other current assets.

Cash used for operations in 2017 was 339 compared with Cash provided from operations $95 in 2016, The decrease of S134
was primarily due to lower operating results and higher pension contributions of $20, partially offset by a favorabte change in
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noncarrent assets of $111 due to the prepayment of $200 made in April 2016 related 1o a gas supply ogreement for the Australia
zlumina refineries (Alcoa Corporation), a favorable change in noacurrent liabilities of 533, and fower cash used for working
capital of $17. The components of the change in working capital included favorabie changes of $10} in receivables: $87 in
prepaid expenses and other current assets: and $278 in accrued expenses, mostly offset by unfavorable changes in working
capital, including $163 in inventories; $170 in accounts payable. trade, and $116 in taxes, including income taxes.

Finartcing Activities
Cash used for financing activities was $649 in 2018 compared with $1,015 in 2017 and $757 in 2046,

The use of cash in 2018 was principally the result of $1,103 in repayments on borrowings under certain revolving credit
facilities (see below) and repayments on debt, primarily related to the early redemption of the remaining outstanding 5.72%
Notes due in 2019 {see Note P to the Consolidated Financial Siatements in Part 1, Item 8. {Financial Statements and
Supplementary Daia) of this Form 10-K ) and $119 in dividends to shareholders. These items were parntially offset by $600 in
additions to debt, primarily from borrowings under certain revolving credit facilities.

The use of cash in 2017 was priacipally the result of $1,634 in repayments on borrowings under certaln revolving credit
Facilities {see below) and repayments on debt, primarily related to the carly redemption of the Company’s 6.50% Bonds due
2018, 6,73% Notes due 2018, and a portien of the 5.72% Notes due 2019 (see Note P 10 the Consolidated Financial Sfatemenss
in Part [1, Item 8. (Financia) Statemenis and Supplementary Data) of this Form 16-K), $162 in dividends to sharcholders: and
352 in premiums paid on carly redemption of debt. These items were partially offset by $816 in additions 1o debt. primarily
from borrowings under certain revolving credit facilities. and 550 of proceeds from the exercise of stock options.

The use of cash in 2018 was principally the result of $2,734 in payments on debt, mostly related to the repayment of
borrowings under certain revolving credit facilitates (sec below) and the repayment in December 2016 of $750 of outstanding
principal of 5§.53% Notes due February 2017; 5228 in dividends to shareholders, and $175 in net cash paid to nanconrolling
interests {Alcoa Corporation). These items were mostly offset by $1.962 in additions to debt. virtunlly all of which was the
resilt of borrowing under centain revolving credit facilities. and $421 i net cash transferred froat Alcoa Corporation at the
completion of the Separation Transaction.

In July 2015, through the acquisition of RT1. Arconic assumed the obligation to repay two tranches of convertible debr; one
tranche was due and settfed in cash on December 1, 2015 {principal amount of $115) and the other tranche is due on

October 15, 2019 (principat amount of §403). unless earlier converted or purchased by Arconic at the halder's option under
specific conditions. Upon conversion of the 2019 convertible notes. holders will receive. at Arconic’s election, cash, shares of
common stack (approximately 14,453,000 shares using the December 31, 2018 conversion rate of 35.91235 shares per 51,000
{not in mitlions) bond or per-share conversion price of $27.8433), or a combination ol cash and shares, On the maturity date,
each holder of omestanding notes will be entitled to receive $1,000 {not in millions) in cash for each 51,000 {(not in miltions)
bond, together with accrued and unpaid interest

In Seprember 2014, Arconic completed two public secuntues offerings under its shelf regisiration statement for (i) $1.250 of

25 miilion depositary shares, cach representing a 1 10th interest 10 a share of Arconic’s 5.375% Class B Mandatery Convertible
Preferred Stock. Series §, par value $1 per share, liquidation preference $3040 per share, and (ii) $1,250 of 5.125% Noles due
2024, The net proceeds of the offerings were used to finance the cash ponion of the acquisition of Firth Rixson. On October 2,
2017, all outstanding 24,975,978 depositary shares were converted at a rate of 1 56996 into 39,211,286 commaon shares, 24,022
deposilary shares were previously tendered for eatly conversion into 31,420 shares of Arconic commeon stock. No gain or loss
was recognized associated with this noncash equity transaction

Arconic maintains a Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement (the "Credit Agreement”™) with a syndicate of lenders and issuers
named therein that expires on June 29, 2023 and provides for a senior unsecured revolving credit facility of $3,000. In addition
1o the Credit Agreement, Arconic has a number of other credit agreements that provide a combined borrowing capacity of S715
as of December 31, 2018. See Note P to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part B, Hem 8. {Financia! Statements and
Supplementary Data) of this Form 10-K,

Arconic’s costs of borrowing and ability to access the capital markets are affected not only by market conditions but alsa by the
short- and long-term debt ratings assigned to Arcame by the major credit rating agencies.

On May 1, 2017, Standard and Poor’s Ratings Senvices (S&P) affinmed Arconic’s long-term debt at BBB-, an invesunent grade
rating, with a stable outloak, and its short-termn debe at A-3, On Febeuary 7, 2019, S&P changed the outlook from ssabie to
negative credit watch. On November 1, 2016, Moady's Investor Service {Moody’s) downgraded Arconic’s long-term debt
rating from Bal, a non-invesiment prade, (o BaZ and its short-termi debt rating {rom Speculative Grade Liquidity-{ (o
Speculative Grade Liquidity-2. Additionally, Maody's changed the putlook from negative to stable (ratings and outlook were
affirmed on November 2, 2017 and Ociober 8, 2018}, On Aprif 21, 2616, Fitch affirmed Arconic’s long-term debt rating a1 BB
+, a non-investment grade, and shori-term debt at B. Additionally, Fitch changed the outlook from positive to evelving. On July
7, 2016, Fitch changed the outlook from evoiving to stable {ratings and outlook were affirmed on July 3. 201 7). On September
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27, 2018, Fitch changed the outlook from stable to positive {ratings and outtook were affirmed en September 27. 2018).
Investing Activities
Cash provided from tnvesting activitics was 5365 in 2018 compared with 51,320 in 2017 and 8591 in 2016.

The source of cash in 2018 inciuded cash receipts from sold receivables of $1,016 and proceeds from the sale of the Texarkana,
Texas rolling miH and cast house of $302, partially offset by capital expenditures of $768, including the horizontal heat Irem
furnace at the Davenpon, lowa plant and an expansion of a wheels plant in Szekesfehervar. Hungary.

The source of cash in 2017 included proceeds of $888 from the sale of a portion of Arconic’s investment in Alcoa Corporation
commen stock, cash receipts from sold receivables of $792, and the receipt of proceeds from the sale of the Yadhin
Hydraelectric Praject of 3243, somewhat offset by cash used for capital expendttures of $396, including the aerospace
expansion (very thick plate stretcher and horizontal heat treal furnace) at the Davenport, fowa plant and a titanium aluminide
furmace at the Niles, Ohio facility, and the injection of $10 inte the Fusina rolling business prior 10 iis sale.

The source of cash in 2016 was mainly due to $778 of cosh receipts from sold receivables, $692 in proceeds from the sale of
assets and businesses, including $437 from the redemption of company-owned life insurance policies, $120 in proceeds related
to the sale of the Intalco smelter wharf property (Alcoa Corporation), and $ 102 in proceeds {$99 net of transaction costs) from
the sale of the Remmele Medical business. which was part of Arconic’s acquisition of RTT in July 2015; and $280 in sales of
investments, composed primarily of 3145 for an equity interest in a natural gas pipeline in Australia {Alcoa Corporation) and
S130 for securities held by Arcanic’s captive insurance company. These sources of cash were partially offset by 81,123 in
capital expenditures (5298 Alcoa Corporation), 29°0 of which related to growth projects, including the aerospace expansion
(very thick ptate stretchier) at the Davenport, fowa plant and a titanium aluminide furnace at the Niles, Ohio facility

Noncash Financing and Investing Activities

On October 2, 2017, all outstanding 24,975,978 depositary shares {each deposHary share representing a 1 }0th imerest in a
share of the mandalory conventible prefemred stock) were converted at a rate of £.56996 into 39,211,286 common shares;
24,022 depositary shares were previously tendered for easly conversion into 31,420 shares of Arconic common stock. No gain
or loss was recognized associated with this equity transaction. See Note | to the Conselidated Financial Statements in Part I,
hiem 8. (Financial Statements and Supplementary Data) of this Form i0-h.

In the second quarter of 2017, the Company completed a Debi-for-Equity Exchange with the Iavestment Banks for the
remaining portion of Arcanic's retained interest in Alcoa Corporation commeon stock for a portion of the Company s
outstanding notes held by the Investment Banks for $465 including scerued and unpaid interest. See Note P te the Consolidated
Financiat Statements in Part {1, [tem 8, (Financial Statements and Supplementary Data) of this Form 10-K.

On October 5, 2016, Arconic completed a [-for-3 reverse stock sphit of its ousianding and authorized shares of comman stock,
pursuant 1o the authorization provided at a special mecting of Arconic common sharcholders (the “Reverse Stock Split™). The
Reverse Stock Split reduced the number of shares of common stock outstanding from approximately 1.3 billion shares o
approximately 0.4 billion shares. The par value of the common stock remained at $1,00 per share. Accordingly. Common stoch
and Additional capital in the Company’s Statement of Changes in Consolidated Equity at December 31, 2016 reflect a decrease
and increase of $877. respectively.

In August 2016, Arconic retired its outstanding treasury stock consisting of approximately 76 million shares. As a resull,
Common stock and Additional capital were decreased by $76 and 52,563, respectively, in the Company’s Statement of Changes
in Consolidated Equity at December 31, 2016. to refiect the retirement of the treasury shares.



Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Cantractual Obligations. Arconie is required 10 make fulure payments under vanous contracts. including long-term purchase
obligations, financing arrangements, and lease agreements. Arconic also has commitments to fund its pension plans, provide
payments for other postretirement benefit plans, and fund capital projecis. As of December 31, 2018, a summany of Arconic’s
outstanding contractual obligations is as follows (these contractual obligations are grouped in the same manner as they are
classified in the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows in order w0 provide a better understanding of the nature of the
obligations and to provide a basis for comparison 1o historical information)

Total 019 2020-2021 2022-2023  Thereafter
Operating activities
Energy -related purchase obligatons 5 72 3 37§ 28 8 78 -
Raw material purchase obligations 829 652 155 19 3
Other purchase obligaticns 102 81 13 o 2
Operating leases 379 94 128 n 87
intgrest refated to total debt 2,316 351 592 370 1013
Estimated minimum required pension funding 1,860 255 840 765 -
Other postretirement benefit payments 730 90 170 170 300
Layel¥f and other restructuring payments 25 19 4 l ]
Deferred revenue arrangements i3 12 G
Uncenain tax positions 187 - : 187
Financing activities
Total debt 6.330 421 2,243 623 3,043
Dividends to sharcholders -
Investing activities:
Capiial projects 665 332 133 -
Totals § 13523 8§ 2544 § 4312 § 203 38 4,630

Obligations for Operating Activities

Energy-related purchase obligations consist primarily of electricity and natoral gas contracts swith expiration dates ranging from
one year lo five years. Raw matertal purchase obligations consist mostly of aluminum. ttanium sponge, and vanious other
metals with expiration dates ranging from less than one year to six vears. Many of these purchase obligations contain variable
pricing comyponents, and, as a result, actual cash payments may differ from the estimates provided in the preceding table.
Operating leases represent multi-year obligations for certain land and buildings, plant equipment, vehicles, and compulter
equipment.

Interest related 1o total debt is bused on interest rates in effect as of December 31, 2018 and is calculated on debt with
maturities that extend 1o 2042,

Estimated minimum required pension funding and postretirement benefit payments are based on actuarial estimates using
current assumptions for discount rates, long-term rate of return on plan assets, rate of compensation increases, and health care
cos! trend rates, among others. It is Arconic’s policy to fuad amounts for pension plans sufficient to meet the minimum
requirements set forth in applicable country benefits laws and tax laws. Periodically, Arconic contributes additional amounts as
deemed appropriate, In 2018, the Company funded $298. of which $72 was contributed to its 1.5, plans in excess of the
minismum required under the Employee Retirement income Security Act {ERISA}. The estimates reported i the preceding
1able include amounts sufficient to meet the minimum required, along with a 534 contribution in 2019 related to an agreement
with the Pension Beneftt Guaranty Corporation (PBGC) (see Note G to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Part I, frem
8. (Financial Statemesnts and Supplementary Data) of this Form 10-K). Arconic has detennined that it is not practicable to
present pension funding and other postretivement benefit payments beyond 2023 and 2028, respectively.

Layoff and other restructuring paviments to be paid within one year primarily relate to severance costs, special layvott benefit
payments, and lease termination costs. while payments expected 10 be paid over the next several years relate 1o lease
termination costs.

Deferred revenue arrangemenis require Arconic to deliver product 1o a customer over the specified contract period through
2020 for a sheet and plate contract. While these obligations are not expected to result in cash payments, they represent
confractual obligations for which the Company would be obligated if the specified product deliveries could not be made,
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Uncertain 1ax positions taken or expected 1o be taken on 20 income 1ax return may result in additional payments 10 tax
authorilies. The amount in the preceding table includes interest and penaities accrued related to such positions as of
December 31, 2018. The total amount of unceriain tax pasttions is included in the “Thereafier” column as the Company is not
able to reasonably estimate the timing of potential future paymenis. [fa tax authority agrees with the tax position tzken or
expected 1o be taken or the apphicable statute of limitations expires, then additional payments will not be necessary.

Obligations for Financing Activities

Arconic has historically paid quanterly dividends on its preferred and common stock. Including dividends on preferred stock,
Arconic paid 3119 in dividends to sharcholders duning 2018. Because all dividends are subject to approval by Arconic’s Board
of Directlors, amounts are not included in the preceding table unless such authonzation has occurred. As of December 31, 2018,
there were 483,270,717 shares of outstanding common stock and 546,024 shares of cutstanding Class A preferred stack. In
2018, the annual preferred stock dividend was 83 75 per share and the annual common stock dividend was $0.24 per share.

Obligations for Investing Activities

Capital projects in the preceding table only include amounts approved by management as of December 31, 2018. Funding
levels may vary in future years based on anticipated construction schedules of the projects. It is expected that significant
expansion projects will be funded through various sources, including cash provided from operations. Totaf capila) expenditures
are anticipated to be approximately $700 in 2019

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2018, Arconic has outstanding bank guarantees related to tax matters, outstanding debt, workers’
compensation, environmential obligalions, energy contracts, and customs duties, among others. The total amount committed
under these guarantees, which expire a1 various dates between 2019 and 2026 was $37 at December 31, 2018,

Pursuant 1o the Separation and Distribution Agreement between Arconie and Alcoa Corporation. Arcanic was required 1o
provide certain guarantees for Alcoa C orporation, which had a combined fair value of $6 and 38 at December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively, and were included in Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits on the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheet. Arconic was required to provide payment guaraniees for Alcoa Corporation issued on behal{ of a third party
related to project financing for Alcoa Corporation’s aluminum complex in Saudi Ambia. During the third quarter of 2018,
Arconic was released from thus guarantee Furthermore, Arconic was required (o provide guarantees rclated to two long-term
supply agreements for energy for Alcoa Corporation facitities in the event of an Alcoa Corporation payment default. In Ociober
2017, Alcoa Corporation announced that it had terminated one of the two agreemients, the electricity contract with Luminant
Generation Company LLC that was tied 1o its Reckdale Operations, effective as of October 1, 2017, As a result of the
termination of the Rockdale electricity contract, Arconic recorded mcome of 325 in the fourth quarter of 2007 associated with
reversing the fair value of the clectricity contract guarantee. For the remaining long-term supply agreement, Arconic is required
to provide a guarantee up to an estimated present value amount of approximately 31,087 and $1,297 a! Decesnber 31, 20§8 and
December 31, 2017, respectively, in the event of an Alcoa Corporation payment defanlt. This guarantee expires in 2047. For
this guaraniec, subject 1o its provisions. Arconic is secondarily liable in the event of a payment defauli by Alcoa Corporation.
Arconic currently views the risk of an Alcoa Corporation payment defaull on its obligations under the contract to be remote.

In December 2616, Arconic entered into a one-year claims purchase agreement with a bank covering claims up to 5245 related
to the Saudi Arabian joint venture and two long-term energy supply agreements. The majority of the premium was paid by
Alcoa Corparation. The agreement maturad in December 2017 and was not renewed in 2018 due to the decline in exposure 10
guarantee claims including a substantiai reduction in the puarantees related to the Saudi Arabian joint venture and also the
elimination of the guarantee related to the Rockdale energy contract. In December 2018, Arconic entesed into a one-year
insurance policy with a limit of $80 relating to the remaining long-term energy supply agreement. The premium is expected te
be paid by Alcoa Corporaticn. The decision to enter into a claims purchase agreement or insurance policy will be madc on an
annua! basis going forward.

Arconic has outstanding letters of credit primarily related to workers’ cempensation, environmental obligations, and leasing
obligations. The total amount committed under these letters of credit. which automalically renew or expire at various dates,
mostly in 2019, was 5136 at December 31, 2018.

Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement, Arconic was required 1o retain lenters of credit of $54 that had
previously been provided related to both Arconic and Alcoa Corporation workers’ compensation claims which occurred prior to
November 1, 2016, Alcoa Corporation workers” compensation claims and letter of credit fees paid by Arconic are being
proportionally billed to and are being fully reimbursed by Alcoa Corporation.

Arconic has outstanding surety bonds primarily related to tax matters. contract performance. workers’ compensation,
envirenmental-related matters, and customns duties, The total amount committed under these surety bends, which expire at
various dates, primarily in 20819, was $50 at December 31, 2018,
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Pursuant to the Separatton and Distribution Agreement, Arconic was required 10 provide surety bonds related to Alcoa
Corporation workers’ compensation claims which occurred prior to November |, 2016 and, as a result, Arconic has $25 in
outstanding surety bonds relating 1o these liabitities. Aicoa Corparation workers' compensation claims and surety bond fees
paid by Arconic are being proportionally billed to and are being fully reimbursed by Alcoa Corporation.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management 1o make certain judgments, estimates, and assumptions regarding uncenainties
that affect the amounts reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements and disclosed in the accompanying MNotes. Areas that
require significant judgments, estimates, and assumptions include accounting for environmental and litigation matters; the
testing of goodwill, ather intangible assets, and properties. plants, and equipment for impainnent: estimating fair value of
businesses acquired or divested; pension plans and other postretirement benelits obligations; stock-based compensation, and
income taxes.

Management uses historical experience and all available information 10 make these judgments, estimates, and assumptions, and
actual results may differ from those used to prepare the Company *s Consolidated Finaneial Statements at any given time.
Despite these inherent limitations, management believes that Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Resulis of Operations and the Consolidated Financial Siatemenis and accompanying Notes provide a meaningful and fair
perspective of the Company.

A summan of the Company's significant accounting policies is included in Note A 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management believes that the application of these policies on a consistent basis enables the Company to provide the users of
the Consolidated Financial Statements with useful and reliable information about the Company’'s operating resulis and financiat
condition.

Environmental Matters. Expenditures for current operations are expensed or capitalized, as appropriate. Expenditures relating
to existing conditions caused by past operations, which will not contribute to future revenues. are expensed. Liabihiues are
recorded when remedialion costs are probable and can be reasonably estimated. The liability may include costs such as site
investigations, consultant fees, feasibility studies, outside contractors, and moniloring cxpenses. Estimates are generally not
discounted or reduced by potential claims for recovery. Claims for recovery are recognized when probable and as agreements
are reached with third parties. The ¢stimates also include cosls related to other potentially responsible parties to the exient thay
Arconic has reason o believe such parties will not fully pay their proportiopate share The liability is continuously reviewed
and adjusted ta reflect current remediation progress, prospective estimates of required activity, and other factors that may be
relevant, including changes in techinology or regulations.

Litigation Matiers. For asseried claims and assessments, liabilities are recarded when an unfavorable ouicome of a matter is
deemed 10 be probable and the loss is reasonably estimable, Management detertuines the likelihood of an unfavorable cutcome
based on many factars such as the nature of the matter, available defenses and case strategy, progress of the matter, views and
opinions of legal counsel and other advisors, applicability and success of appeals processes, and the outeame of similar
historical matters, among others. Once an unfavorable outcome is deemed probable, management weighs the prabability of
estimaled losses, and the most reasonable loss estimate is recarded. I an unfavorable outcome of o master is deemed to be
reasonably possible, then the mateer is disclosed and no liability is recorded. With respect to unasserted claims or assessments,
managenient must first deiermine that the probability that an assertion wilt be made is likely, then, a determination as 10 the
likelihood of an unfavarable ouicome and the ability to reasonably estimate the potential loss is made. Legal maters are
reviewed on a continuous basis to determine if there has been a change in management’s judgment regarding the fikelihood of
an unfavorable outcome or the estimate of a potentiai loss.

Gaadwill. Goadwill is not asiostized; instead, it is reviewed for impairment arnually (in the fourth quarter) or imore frequently
if indicators of impairment exist or if a decision is made ta sell or realign a business. A significant amount of judgment is
involved in determining if an indicator of impairment has occurred, Sueh indicators may include delerioration in generat
tconamic conditions, negative developmenis in equity and credit markets, adverse changes in the markets in which an entin
operates, increases in input costs that have a negative effect on earnings and cash flows, or a trend of negative or declining cash
flows over muitiple periods, among others. The fair value that could be realized in an actual transaction may differ from that
used to evaluate the impairment of goodwill.

Geodwill is allocated among and evaluated for impaiment at the reporting unit feved, which is defined as an operating scgmeat
or one level below an operating segment. Arconic had six reporting units for 2018, of which three were included in the
Engincered Products and Solutions segment (Arconic Fastening Systems, Arconic Engines, Arconic Engineered Structures),
two were inciuded in the Transportation and Construction Solutions segment (Arconic Wheel and Transportation Products and
Building and Construction Systems}, and the remaining reporting unit was the Global Rolled Products segment.

In reviewing goodwill for impairment, an entity has the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the
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exisience of evenlts or circumstances leads to a determination that it is more tikely than not (greater than 50°6) that the
estimated fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If an entity elects to perform a qualitative assessment
and determines that an impairment is more likely than not, the entity is then required to perform the quantitaiive impairment
1est (described belaw), otherwise no further analysis is required. An entity also may elect not to perform the qualitative
assessment and, instead, proceed directly to the quantitative impairment test. The ultimate outcome of the goodwill impairment
review for a reporting unit should be the same whether an entity chooses to perform the qualitative assessment or proceeds
directly to the quantitative impairment test

Arconic determines annually, based on facts and circumstances, which of its reporting units will be subject to the qualitative
assessment. For those reporting units wherc a qualitative assessment is either not performed or for which the conclusion is that
an impairment is more likely than not, a quantitative impairment test will be performed. Arconic’s policy is that a quantitative
impairment test be performed for each reporting unit at least once during every three-year period.

During the 2018 anoual review of goodwill, management proceeded directly to the quantitative impainnent test for all six of #ts
reporting units. The estimated fair values for each of the six reporting units exceeded their respective carrving values by more
than 25%q, thus, there was no goodwill impairment. Under the quantitative impairment test, the evaluation of impairment
involves comparing the current fair value of each reporting unit Lo its carrying value, including goodwill. Arconic uses a
discounted cash flow model (DCF) to estimate the current fair value of its reporting units when testing for impairment, as
management believes forecasted cash flows are the best indicator of such fair vafue. A number of significani assumptions and
estimates are involved in the apphcation of the DCF model 10 forecast operating cash flows, including sales growth {volumes
and pricing), production costs, capital spending. and discount rate. Most of these assumptions vary significantly among the
reponting units. Cash flow forecasts are generally based on approved business unit operating plans for the early years and
histarical relationships i fater y ears. The WACC rate for the individual reporting units is estimated with the assistance of
valuation experts. Arconic would recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the
reperting unit’s fair value without exceeding the total amount of goodwill allocated 1o that reporting unit.

Goodwill impairment tests in 2017 and 2016 indicated that goodwill was not impaired for any of the Company’s reporting
units, except for the Arconic Forgings and Extrustons (AFE) business whose estimated fair value was lower than its carny ing
value, As such, Arconic recorded an impairment for the full amount of goodwill in the AFE reporting unit of $719. The
decrease in the AFE fair value was primarily due to unfavorable performance that was impacting operating margins and a
higher discount rate due 1o an increase in the rish-free rate of return, while the carrying value increased compared 1o prior year.

Propertics, Plants, and Equipment and Other Intangible Assets. Properties, plants, and equipment and Other intangible
assets are ceviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the camy ing amount of such
assets (asset group) may not be recoverable, Recoverability of assets is determined by comparing the estimated undiscounted
net cash flows of the operations related to the assets (asset group) to their carrying amount. An impairment loss would be
recognized when the carrying amount of the assets (asset group) exceeds the estimated undiscounted net cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss 1o be recorded is calculated as the excess of the carrying value of the assets (asset group) over
their fair value, with fair value determined using the best information available, which generally is 0 DCF model. The
determination of what constitutes an asset group, the associnted estimated undiscounted net cash flows, and the estimated
useful lives of assets also require significant judgments.

[ the second quarter of 2018, the Company updated its three-vear strategic plan and determined that there was a decline in the
forecasted financial performance for the disks operations, an asset group within the AEN business unit, As such, the Company
evaluated the recoverability of the long-lived assets by comparing their carrying value of approximately $515 10 the estimaied
undiscounted net cash flows of the dishs operations, resulting in an estimated fair value in excess of their carrying value of
approximately 13%; thus, there was no impaimment. if the disks operations do not achieve the revised forecasted financial
performance or if there are changes in any significant assumptions, a materizl non-cash impairment of long-lived assets may
occur in future periods. These significant assumptions include sales growth, cost of raw materials, ramp up of additional
production capacity, and working capital. A |%o decrease in the forecasted net cash flows would reduce the undiscounted cash
flows by approximalely $6. There were no indicators of impairment identified for the disks operations during the ihird or fourth
quarters of 2018 and, as such. the Company did not ev aluate the recoverability of its long-lived assets.

Discontinued Operations and Assets Hekd for Sale. The fair values of all businesses to be divested are estimated using
accepted valuation techiniques such as a DCF model, valuations performed by third parties, earnings multiples, or indicative
bids, when available. A namber of significant estimates and assumptions are invalved in the application of these techniques,
including the forecasting of markets and market share. sales volumes and prices, costs and expenses, and multiple other factors
Management considers historical experience #nd all available information ai the time the estimates are made; however, the fair
value that is ultimately realized upon the divestiture of a business may differ from the estimated fair value reflected in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Penston and Other Postreticement Bencfits. Liabilities and expenses for pension and other postretirement benefits are
determined using actuarial methodologies and incorporate significant assuraptions, including the inlerest rate used to discount
the future estimated liability, the expected lang-term rate of retumn on plan asscts, and several assumptions relating to the
employee workforce (salary increases, health care cost wend rates, retirement age, and mortality).

The interest raie used to discount future estimated liabilities is determined using a Company-specific yield curve mode{ {above-
median) developed with the assistance ol an external actuary The cash flows of the plans’ projected benefit obligations are
discounted using a single equivalent rate derived from yields on high quality corporate bonds. which represent a broad
diversification of issuers in various sectars, including finanee and banking, industrials, transportation, and utiiities, among
others. The yield curve model parallels the plans’ projected cash flows, which have an average duration of 10 years. The
underlying cash flows of the bonds included in the model exceed the cash flows needed to satisfy the Company's plans’
obligations multiple times. In 2018, 2617, and 2016, 1he discount rate used o determine benefit obligations for U.S. pension
and other postretirement benefit plans was 4.33%4. 3.73%, and 4.20%, respectively The impact on the liabilities of a change in
the discount rate of 174 of 1% would be approximately §170 and either a charge or credit of approximately $2 (o after-tax
eamings in the following year.

In conjunction with the annual measurement of the funded status of Arconic’s pension and other postretirement benefit plans at
December 31, 20135, management eiected to change the manner in which the interest cost component of net periadic benefit
cost will be determined in 2016 and beyond. Previously. the interest cost component was determined by multiplying the single
equivalent rate described above and the aggregate discounted cash flows of the plans’ projected benefit obligations. Under the
new methodology, the interest cost component will be determined by aggregating the product of the discounted cash flows of
the plans’ projected benefit obligations for each year and an individual spot rate (referred 10 as the “spot rate™ approach). This
change resulted in a lower interest cost component of net periodic benefit cost under the new methodolegy compared to the
previous methodolagy in 2018, 2017, and 2016 of $24, $34, and $84, respectively, for pension plans and $4, $6. and $14,
respectively, for other postretirement henefit plans. Management believes this new methodology. which represents a change in
an accounting estimate, is a better measure of the interest cost as each year's cash flows are specifically linhed to the interest
raies of bond payments in the same respective year.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is generally appled 10 a five-year market-refated value of plan assets {2
fair value at the plan measusement date is used for certain nan-U.S. plans). The process used by management to develop this
assumption is one that relies on a combination of historical asset return information and forward-looking returns by asset class
As it relates 1o histarical asset return information, management focuses on various ustorical moving averages when developing
this assumption. While consideration is given to receni performance and hisiericaf returns, the assumption represents a fong-
term, prospeclive retum. Management also incorporates expected future retums on current and planned asset allocations using
information from various external investment managers and consultants, as well 25 managenient’s own judgment.

For 2018, 2017, and 2016, management used 7.00%, 7.75%, and 7.75%q, respectively, as its expected fong-term rate of return,
which was based on the prevailing and planned strategic asset aliocations. as well as estimates of future returns by asset

class. These rates fell within the respective range of the 20-year moving average of actual performance and the expected future
return developed by asset class. For 2019, management amicipates that 7.00%s will be the expected long-term rate of return.
The decrease of 75 basis points in the 2018 expected long-termm rate of return was due 1o a decrease in the expected retum by
asset class and the 20-year moving average. A change in the assumption for the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets
of 1/4 of %6 would impact after-tax earnings by approximaicly 310 for 2019

In 2018. a net loss of $114 (after-tax) was recorded in other comprehensive loss, primartly due to the impaci of the adoption of
new accounting guidance that permits a reclassification to Accumulated defictt for stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax
Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017, as welf as the plan asset performarce that was less than expecied, which were partially offsel by the
increase in the discount rate of 60 basis points and the amortization of actuaral losses. In 2017, a net loss of $220 (after-tax)
was recorded in other comprehensive loss, primarily due to the decrease in the discount rale of 45 basis points and plan asset
performance less than expected, which were pantially offset by the amorntization of actuarial losses. In 2016, a net benefit of
51,601 (afier-tax and nancontrolling interest) was recorded in other comprehensive boss, primarily due to the transfer of $2,080
10 Alcoa Corporation which was partially offset by a niet charge of 5479, The charge was due to the unfavorable performance of
the plan assets and a 9 basis point decrease in the discount rate, which were pantially offset by the amonization of actuarial
losses.

Stock-Based Compensation. Arconic recognizes compensation expense for employee equity grants using the non-substantive
vesting period approach, in which the expense is recognized ratably over the requisile service periad based on the grant date
fair value. Forfeitures are accounted for as they gecur The fair value of new stock options is estimated on the date of gram
using & lattice-pricing model. The fair value of performance awards containing a market condition is valued using s Monte
Carlo valuation modet. Determining the fair value at the grant daie requires judgment, including estimates for the average risk-
free interest rate, dividend yield, volatility, and exercise behavior. These assumptions may differ significantly between grant
dates because of changes in the acwual results of these inputs that accur over time,
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Compensation expense recorded in 2018, 2017, and 2016 was $50 (339 after-tax), $34 (836 after-tax), and 576 (351 after-tax).
respectively.

Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes is determined using the asset and liability approach of accounting for income
taves. Under this approach. the provision for income taves represents income taxes paid or payable (or received or receivable)
lor the current year plus the change in deferred taxes during the year. Deferred taxes represent the future tax consequences
expected 1o occur when the reported amounts of assets and habilities are recovered or paid, and result from differences between
the financial and 1ax bases of Arconic's assets and liahilities and are adjusted for changes in tax rates and tax laws when
enacted.

The 2017 Act created a new requirement that certain income eamed by foreign subsidiaries, Global Intangibte Low Taxed
Income (GILTI). must be included in the gross income of the U.S. shareholder. The 2017 Act also established the Base Erosion
and Anti-Abuse Tax (BEAT). Uniil regulations are finalized, judgement will be required to apply preliminary guidance,
inciuding proposed regulations. to Arconic’s facts and circumstances.

Valuation atlowances are recorded to reduce deferred 1ax assets when it is more likely than not that a tax benefit will not be
realized. In evaluating the need for a valuation allowance, management considers all potential sources of taxable income,
including income available in carryback periods, future reversals of taxable temporary differences, projections of taxable
income. and income from tax planning strategies. as well as all available positrve and negative evidence, Positive evidence
inciudes factors such as a history of profitable operations. projections of future profitability sithin the carryforward pertod,
mcluding from tax planning strategies, and Arconic’s experience with similar operations. Existing favorable consracts and the
ability to sell products into established markets are additional positive evidence. Negative evidence includes items such as
cumulative losses, projections of future losses, or carryforward periods that are not long enough 1o allow for the utilization of a
deferred tax asset based on existing projections of income. Deferred tax assets for which ne valuation aowance is recorded
may nox be realized upon changes in facts and circwnstances. resulting in a future charge to establish a valuation allowance
Existing valualion aflowances are re-examined under the same standards of positive and negative evidence. 1 it is determined
that it is more likely than not that a deferred tax asset will be realized, the appropriate amount of the valuation allowance, if
any, is reteased. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are also re-measured 10 reflect changes in underlyving tax rates due to law
changes and the granting and tapsc of tax holidays.

In 2018, Arconic made a final accounting policy election to apply a tax law ordering approach when considering the need for a
valuation allowance on net operating losses expected 1o offset GILTI inconie inclusions. Under this approach. reductions in
cash tax savings are not considered as part of the valuation allowance assessment  Instead, future GILTI inclusions are
considered a source of taxable income that supporis the sealizability of deferred tax assets.

Tax benefits related to uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax ceturn are recorded when such beaefits
meet a more likely than not threshold. Otherwise, these tax benefits are recorded when a tax position has been effectively
settled, which means that the slatute of limitations has expired or the appropriate taxing authority has completed their
examination even thiough the slatute of limitations remains open. Interest and penalties refated to uncenain tax positions are
recognized as pari of the provision for income taxes and are accrued beginning in the period that such interest and penaltics
would be applicable under relevant rax law until such time that the related 1ax benefits are recognized.

Recently Adopted Accounting Guidance. See the Recently Adopted Accounting Guidance section of Note A to the
Consolidated Financial Statements in Pan [1, lem 8. (Financial Statements and Supplementary Data) of this Form 10-K.

Recently Issued Accounting Guidaace, See the Recently Issued Accounting Guidance section of Note A to the Consolidated
Financial Statements in Part 11, Item 8. (Financial Statements and Supplementary Data} of this Form 1{-K.
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Not matenai.



ttem 8. Financix! Statements and Supplementary Data,
Management's Reports to Arconic Sharcholders
Management’s Report on Financial Statements and Practices

The accompanying Consolidated Financial Statenents of Arconic Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Company™) were prepared by
management, which is responsiblc for their integrity and objectivity. The statements were prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and include amounis thai arve based on management’s
best judpments and estimates. The other financial information included in the annuai report is consistent with that in the
financial statements.

Management also recognizes its responsibility for conducting the Company’s affairs according to the highest standards of
personal and corporate conduct This responsibility is characterized aad refiected in key policy statements issued front time 1o
time regarding. among other things, conduct of its business activities within the laws of the host countries in which the
Company operates and patentially conflicting outside business interests of its employees. The Company maintains a systematic
program 10 assess compliance with these policies.

Management’s Report on Internal Control over Fipancial Reporting
3 P

Management is responsible for establishing and maimtaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company.
In order to evaluate the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, as required by Section 484 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act, management has conducted an assessment. imcluding testing, using the critena in Internal Conurol - Itegrated
Framework (2013), issued by the Commitice of Spensoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQj. The
Company's system of internal contrel over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
retiability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for exterial purposes i accordance with generally
accepied accounting principles The Company’s internal contral over firancial reporting includes those palicies and procedures
that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the tansacttons and
dispositions of the assets of the Company, (i1} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements i accordance with accounting peinciples penerally accepted in the United States of
America, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and direclors of the Company, and {iii) provide reasonable assosance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Conpany’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intemal control over financiaf reporting may not prevent or deteet misstatements Also,
projections of any evaluation of efTectiveness (o future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

23 £ P P Y

Based on the assessment, management has concluded that the Company maintained cflective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria in Internced Control  Integrated Framework (2013} issued by the COSO

The effectiveness of the Company's internal contral over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018 has beca audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm. as stated in their report. which is included
herein.

=
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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“Ken Giacobbe
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Sharcholders and Board of Directors of Arconic Inc.
Opinions on the Financial Stwtements and Iiternal Control over Finaucial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Arconic Inc. and its subsidiaries (the "Company™) as of
December 31. 2018 and 2017, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive (loss) income, changes in
equity, and cash fiows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018, including the related notes
{collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). We also have audiled the Company's intemal contro] over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2018, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Imtegrated Framework (2013)
issued by the Committee of Sponscring Creanizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stalements referred to above present fairly. in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the results of its operaiions and its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2018 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
linancial reporting as of December 31, 2018. based an criteria established in fvernal Conirol - Integrated Framev ork (2013)
issued by the COSO.

Busis for Opinions

The Company's management is respansible for these cansolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal controf over fimancial reporting, included
in the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express
opinians on the Company’s cansolidated financial statements and en the Company's internal control over finaneial reporting
based on our audits. We are a public aceounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (U'nited
States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities
laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
sudits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial siatements are free of material misstatement,
whether due 10 error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects.

QOur audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statemeats, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond (o those rishs
Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidernce regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, os well as exaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal
contral ever financial reporting included obtaining 2n understanding of intemnal control over financial reporting, assessing the
rish that a maleriol weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. Qur audits also included performing such oiher procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis [or our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for extemnal purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control ever financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the ransactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (i) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 10
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company, and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition. use. or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a matecial effect on the financial statements.

Becauvse of 1ts inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also.
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of comipliance with the policies or procedures may deterioraie.

) ecnlleaneCorgors L

ittsburgh, Pennsylvania
February 21, 2019

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 1930,



Arcestic and subsidiaries

Statement of Consolidated Operations
(in millions, except per-share amounts})

For the year ended December 31,
Sales (B and C)
Cast of goods sold (exclusive of expenses below)
Selling. general administrative, and other expenses
Research and development expenses
Provision for depreciation and amortization
Impairment of goodwill (A and O}
Restructuring and other charges (D}
Qperating income
Interest expense (E)
Other expense (income), net (F)
Income from continwing operations before income 1axes
Provision for income taxes (H)
Income {loss} from continuing operations afier income taxes
Income from discontinued operations after income taxes (V)
Net income {loss)

Less: Net income from discontinued operations ateributable to
noncontraliing interests (V)

Net incame {loss) Attributable to Arconic
Amounts Attributable toe Arconic Common Sharcholders (J):
Net income (loss)
Earnings {foss) per share—basic:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Nel eamnings {loss) per share-basic
Earnings (loss) per share—dibwted
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Net earnings {loss) per share-diluted

2018 017 2016
3 14004 § 12,960 S 12,394
11,397 10,221 9,696
604 715 924
103 109 130
576 551 535
. 719
9 165 153
1325 480 954
378 496 499
79 (486) 41
268 470 419
226 544 1,476
612 (749 (1,063
««««« - 184
642 (74) (878)
- - 63
3 642 § (7 s (@41
s 651 S (179 8 (1.010)
s 133 % (028) § {2 58)
— 027
s 133§ (0.28) § 231}
$ 130§ (028) (2 58)
- 027
B 130§ i0.28] § (231)

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements



Arconic and subsidiaries

Statement of Consolidated Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(in millions)

Arconic

Noncentroling

Interests

Total

For the year ended

December 31, 2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016
Net income {loss) $ 642 § (7TH S MDD S — § — § 63 8§ 642 § (74 § (373)
Other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax (K):
Change in unrecognized net
actuarial foss and prior service - .
cost/benefit rélated o pension 253 {220) (479) — 3 255 (220} (482)
and other postretirement benefits
Foreign currency transhation . - | .
adjustments (146} 252 268 2 182 (146) 254 450
Net_c_hange in unrealized gains 1 . — —
on available-far-sale securities 1y (34 137 I (1349 137
WNet change in unrecognized 4
pains/losses on cash flow hedges 23 26 (617 5 23 26 (612)
Totdl Other comprehensive income :
(loss), net of tax 83 (76) (621) 2 184 85 (74) {507)
Comprehensive income (loss) § 727 % (150) S(1632) § - 8 2 05 247 8 727 5 (148) 51(1.385)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consohdated financial statements.



December 31,
Assets
Current assets.
Cash and cash cquivalents

Arconic and subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheet
(in millions)

Receivables from customers. less allowances of $4 in 2018 and $8in 2017 (L)

Other receivables (L)
Inventories (M)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets
Properties, plants. and equipment. net {N)
Gooduwill (A and Q)
Deferred income taxes (H)
Intangibles, net (O)
Other noncurrent assets
Total assots
Liabilities
Current liabilities’
Accounts payable, trade
Accrucd compensation and retircment costs
l'axes, wmcluding income taxes
Accrued interest pay able
Quher current liabilities
Short-term debt (P and R)
Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less amount due within one year (P and R)

Accrued pension benefits (G)
\ccrued other postretirement benefits (G)

Otiher nancurrent liabilities and deferced credits (Q}

Total liabilities

Contingenctes and commitments (U)
Equity
Arconic shareholders® equity:

Preferred stock (I

Common stock {I)

Additional capitat

Accumulated deficit (A)

Accumutated other comprehensise loss (A and

Total Arconic shareliolders’ cquity
~oncontrolling interests
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

)

2018 2017
2277 2.150
1,047 1.038

451 339
2492 2,480
314 374
6.381 6.378
5.704 5,594
4.500 4.335
573 743
919 987
416 481

S 13693 18,713

2.9 1,839
370 399
118 75
113 124
356 349
434 3g

3520 2,524

5.896 6.806

2.230 2,564
723 841
739 759

13.108 13.794

55 55
483 481

8319 8.266
(358) (1.248)

(2,926} (2.644)

5.573 1910

12 4

5,583 3524

S 13693 18.7(8

The accompany ing notes are an integral part of the conselsdated financial statements.
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Arconic and subsidiaries

Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows

(in millions)

For the year ended December 31, 2018 2017 2016
Operating activities
Net income {Joss) ) 642 § (74) § (878)
Adjustments 1o reconcile net income (loss}) to cash provided from (used
Depreciation and amortization 576 351 1,132
Deferred income taxes 31 434 1,125
Equity income. net of dividends —- — 42
Impairment of goodwill ¢A and O) -- 719 -
Restructuring and other charges 2 165 257
Net loss {gain) from investing activities - assct sales 10 {513) (156}
Net periodic pension benefit cost (G) 130 217 304
Stock-based compensation 50 67 86
Other 75 112 63
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding effects of acquisitions,
divestitures. and foreien currency transkation adiustments:
{Increase) in receivables {4) (1,142} (915} (1,016)
{Increase) in inventories {74y {192) {29}
{Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets {1} 11 (76}
Increase in accounts payzble, trade 339 62 232
{Decrease) in accrued expenses (190) {i16) (394}
Increase (decrease) in taxes, including tcome taxes 104 (23) 93
Pension contributions {298} (310} {290}
{Increasc) in noncurrent assets 20 ) (152)
{Deccreasc) in noncurrent liabilities (24) {193) {248}
Cosh provided from (used for) eperations 217 {39 95
Financing Activities
Nelt chimge in short-term borrowings (origina! maturities of three months &) ) (3}
or icss
Additiens to debt {original maturities greater than threc months) (P) 60O 816 1,962
Payments on debt (original maturities greater than three months ) (P) {1.103) {1,634) (2,734}
Premiums paid on early redemption of debt (A and ) (7N (52) (3}
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options 16 50 4
Dividends paid to shareholders tily) (162) (228}
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (14 (226)
Contributions from noncontrolling interests ~- — 3t
Net cash transferred from Alcoa Corporation at separation — — 421
Other {an (a7 {1
Cash used for financing activities (649) {1.G15) {737)
Investing Activities
Capital expenditures {768} {596) {1,25)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (8) - {
Proceeds from the sale of assets and businesses (8) 309 (9) 692
Sales of invesiments (S and V) 9 820 280
Cash receipts from sold receivables (A and L) 1016 792 778
Other (V) {1} 243 {4
Cash pravided from investing activities 505 1,320 591
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and {4) g {8)
restricted cash
~et change in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (A) 129 275 (79)
Casli. cash egquivalents and restricted cash at beginning of vear {A) 2.153 1.878 1.937
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of vear (A) s 2282 8§ 2.i53 S 1.878

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements,
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Arconic and subsidiaries

Statement of Changes in Consolidated Equity

{in millions, except per-share amounts)

Arconic Shareholtters

Mandatory
convertible

Retained

Accumulated

Other

Preferred preferred Common Additional earnings Treasury Comprehensive Nonconteolting Total

stuck stock stock capital  {(deficit)  stock Loss interests cqulty
Balance at December 31, 2015 §55 53 S1.390 310019 5883 52825 $(5431) $2.085 Si4.13¢1
Net (Josstmcome - - - - 1941+ - - 63 (818}
Other comprehensive (foss
incame (K3} - - - - - {891} 184 (507
Cash dividends declared
Prefermed-Class A & 33 75 per
shane - 12 - - - (2)
Profered-Class B & S26.8750 puor
shan: - - - - 167) - - - 67)
Common & S0.36 per share - - - (1 - - - (159)
Stock-based compensat n ) - - 86 . - - - 86
Common stock sssued  compensation
plans (1) - - - (205 - 186 - - {19}
Regirement of Treasury stock (I 16 (2,563} 26 .
Ruverse stock spht (1) (8" 877 -
Disiribouon of Aleng Comuoration 862 3554 2,13 1.27hH
Distributions - - - - - - (226} 1226}
Conirhutions - - B - - - - 51 5t
Other - - - - - 2 2
Balance ot December 31, 2016 5§55 $3 5 438 S 83 S0y S - $(2.568) S 26 535041
Nt lass - - - - (4} - - - (74
Other comprehensyye i0ss (K) - - {76 2 {74)
Cush dividends declarcd
Preferred 4 Tass 4 ¢ 83 73 per
share - - - - ('_;‘ _ . . '.1)
Preferved-—Class B & 820 1563
per share - - (51} - - - {5
Comsnan ™ $0 24 per share - - (1 - - - {HI2)
Stock-based compensatan (1) - - - a7 - - - - 67
Commun steck ssued  compensation
plans (1) - 2] - - - 21
Conversion of mendatory converuble
preferred stock (1) - (1) 39 {36y - - - - -
Issuance of common stk () - - 4 - - - - - 4
Distribuuians - - - - - - (14 (14
Other - - . . & - - - 15
Balance at Decesnber 31, 2017 555 s - & 441§ 83266 S5.1.248) S - S(2.644) S M S 4924
Adoepunn of accounting standard {A) - - - - 367 - (367 - -
Netincome - - - - 612 - - - 2
Other comprehensive income (K} - - - - - - 85 - 83
Cash dividends deciared:
Prefemred—Class A @ $3.75 per
share - - - - (2} - - - (23]
Commaon o $0.24 per share - - - - (117 - - - {7
S1ack- hased compensation ¢T) - - - 50 - - - - 50
Commaon stock issued: compensanon
pluns (1) - - 2 3 - - - - 5
Other - - - - - - (2) 2)
Ralance at Decembec 31, 2018 335 S - $ 481 F 8319 5 {35%) 5 - 5(2.026) 5 12 8 5585

The accompanying notes are

[
o

an mntegral purt of the consolidated financial statements.




Arcontic and subsidiaries
Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
(dollars in millions, except per-share amounts)

A. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation. The Consolidated Financial Stalements of Arconic Inc. and subsidianies (“Arconic™ or the “Company™)
are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepled in the United States of America (GAAP) and require
management to make certain judgments, estimates, and assumptions. These may affect the reported amounts of assets and
ltabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. They also may affect the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates upon
subsequent resofution of idemified malters. Certain amounts in previously issued financial siatements were reclassified to
conform to the current period presentation (see below and Note C)

On January 1, 2018, Arconic adopted new guidance issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) related to the
following: presentation of net periodic pension cost and net periodic postretirement benefit cost that required a reclassification
of costs within the Statement of Consolidated Operations; presentation of certain cash receipts and cash paymenis within the
Statement of Consclidated Cash Flows that required a reclassification of amounts between operating and either financing or
investing activities; the classification of restricted cash within the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows; and the
reclassification from Accumulated other comprehensive loss to Accumulated deficit in the Consolidated Balance Sheet of
strznded tax effects resuhing from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act enacted on December 22, 2017. See Recently Adopted
Accounting Guidance below for further details.

Also on Jenuary 1, 208, the Company changed its primary measure of segment performance from Adjusted sarnings before
interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (“Adjusted EBITDA™) to Segmeni operating profit, which more closely aligns
segment performance with Operating income as presented in the Statement of Consolidated Operations. See Note C {or further
details.

The separation of Alcoa Inc. into hwo standalone. publicly-traded companies, Arconic Inc. {the new rame for Alcoa Inc.) and
Alcoa Corporation. became effective on November 1, 2016 (the “Separation Transaction™). The financial results of Alcoa
Corporation for 2016 have been retrospectively reflected in the Statement of Consolidaled Operations as discontinued
operations and, as such, have been excluded from continuing operations and segment results for 2016. The cash flows and
comprehensive income related to Alcoa Corporation have not been segregated and are included in the Statement of
Consolidated Cash Flows and Statement of Consclidated Comprehensive Income (Loss). respectively, for 2016. See Note V for
additional information relased to the Separation Transaction and disconlinued operations.

Principles of Censolidntion. The Consclidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Arconic and companies i which
Arconie has o controlling interest. Intercompany transactions have been eliminated. Investments in affiliates in which Arconic
cannok exercise significant influence are accounted for on the cost method.

Management also evaluates whether an Arconic entity or interest is a variable interest entity and whether Arconic is the primary
beneficinry. Consolidation is required if both of these criteria are met. Arconic does not have any variable interest entities
requiring consolidation.

Cash Equivalents. Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less.

Inventory Valuation. Inventaries are carried at the lower of cost and net realizable value, with cost for approximately half of
U.S. inventories delerminad under the last-in, first-out (LIFO} method. The cost of other inventories is determined under a
combination of the first-in, first-out (FIFO) and average-cost methods.

Properties, Plants, and Equipment. Properties, plants, and equipment are recorded at cost. Depreciation is recorded
principally on the straight-line method at rares based on the estimated useful lives of the assets. The following table details the
weighted-average usefu! lives of structures and machinery and equipment by reporting segment {numbers in years}:

Struciures Machinery and equipment
Engineered Products and Solutions 29 17
Global Rolled Products 31 21
Transporiation and Construction Solutions 27 18

Gains or losses from the sate of asset groups are generally recorded in Restructuring and other charges while the sale of
individual assets are recorded in Other expense {(income), net {see policy below for assets classified as held for sale and
discontinued operations). Repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. Interest related to the construction of
qualifying assets is capitalized as part of the construction casts.
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Properties, plants. and equipment are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of such assets (asset group) may not be recaverable. Recoverability of assets is determined by comparing the
estimated undiscounted nei cash flows of the operations related 1o the assets (asset group) to their catrying amount. An
impairment lass would be recognized when the carrying amount of the assets (asset group) exceeds the estimated undiscounted
net cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss to be recorded is calculated as the excess of the camrying value of the assets
{asset group) over their fair value, with fair value determined using the best information available, which generally is a
discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The determination of what constitutes an asset group, the associated estimated
undiscounted net cash fows, aad the estimated useful lives of the assets also require significant judgments, See Nate N {or
further information.

Goodwill. Geodwill is not amortized; instead, it is reviewed for impairment annually (in the fourth quarter} or mere frequently
if indicators of impairment exist or if a decision is made 10 sell or realign a business A significant amount of judgment is
involved in determininy if an indicrtor of impairment has occurred. Such indicators may include deterioration in peneral
economic cenditions, negative developments in equity and credit markets. adverse changes in the markets in which an entity
operates, increases in input costs that have a negative effect on eamings and cash flows, or a rend of negative or declining cash
flows over multiple periods, among others. The fair value that could be realized in an actual transaction may differ from that
used to evaluate the impairment of goodwill.

Goodwill is allocated among and evaluated for impairment at the reporting unit level, which is defined as an operating segment
or one level below an operating segment. Arconic had eight reporting units for 2017 and 2016, of which four were included in
the Engineered Products and Soluticns segment (Arconic Fastening Systemns and Rings. Arconic Power and Propulsion,
Arconic Forgings and Extrusions, and Arconic Titanium and Engineered Products), three were included in the Transportation
and Construction Solutions segment {Arconic Wheel and Transportation Products, Building and Construction Sy stems, and
Latin America Extrusions), and the remaming reporting unit was the Global Railed Products segment.

In January 20t 8, management changed the organizational structure of the businesses in the Engineered Products and Solutions
scgment from four business units to three business units with 2 focus on aligning its internal structure to core marhets and
customers and reducing cost. As a result, management assessed and concluded that each of the three new busiress units
{Arconic Fastening Sy stems (AFS), Arconic Engines (AEN), and Arconic Engineered Structures {AES)) represent reporting
units for goodwill impairment evaluation purposes. Gaodwill was reallocated 10 the three new reperting units and both the
historical and new Engineered Products and Solutions reporting units were evaluated for impairment during the first quarter of
2018. The estimated fair value of each reporting unit substantially exceeded its carrying value: thus, there was no goodwill
impairment. In April 2018, Arconic completed the sale of its Latin America extrusions business and. sherefore. it 15 no longer a
reporting unit for the Company. More than 90% of Arconic’s to1al goodwitl at December 31. 2018 was allocated to the three
Enginecred Products and Solutions reporting units: AEN (82,065), AFS {$1,607), and AES ($507).

In reviewing goodwill for impaimment, an entity has the option to first assess qualitative factors to determine whether the
existence of events or circumstances leads to a determination that it is niore hikely than not (greater than 50°0) that the
estimated fair valuc of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If an entity clects to perform a qualitative assessment
and determines that an impairment is more likely than not. the entity is then required to perform the quantitative impafirment
test (described below), otherwise no further analysis is required. An entity also may elect not 1o perform the qualitative
assessiment and, instead, proceed directly to the quantitative impairment test The ultimate outcome of the goodwill impairment
review for a reporting unit should be the same whether an entity chooses to perform the qualilative assessment ar proceeds
directly to the quantitative impairment test.

Arconic determings annually, based or facts and circumstances, which of its reporting units will be subject to the qualitative
assessment. For those reporting units where a qualitative assessment 15 either not performed or for which the conclusion is that
an impairment is more likely than not, a quantitative impairment tesi will be performed. Arconic’s policy is that a quantitative
impairment test be performed for each reporting unit at least once during gvery three-year period.

Under the qualitative assessment, various events and circumstances (or factors) that would affect the estimated fir value of 2
reporting unit are identified (similar to impairment indicators above). These factors are then classified by the type of impact
they would have on the estimated fair value using positive, neutral, and adverse categonies based on current business
conditions. Additionally, an assessment of the level of impact that a particular factor wouid have on the estimated fair value is
determined using high, medium, and low weighting Furthemmore, management considers the results of the most recent
quantitative impairnent test completed for a reporting wnit and compares the weighted average cost of capital (WACC)
benween the current and prior years for each reporting unit.

During the 2018 anaual review of goodwill. management proceeded directly 1o the quantitative impairment test for all six of its
reporting units. The estimated lair values for each of the six reporting units exceeded their respective carrying values by more
than 23%, thus, there was no geodwill impairment. Under the quantitative impairment test, the evaluation of impairment
involves comparing the current fair value of each reparting unit to its carrying value, including goodwill. Arconic uses a
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discounted cash flow model (DCF) to estimate the current fair value of its reporting units when testing for impainment, as
management believes forecasted cash flows are the best indicator of such fair value. A number of significant assumptions and
estimates are involved in the application of the DCF model to forecast operating cash flows, including sales grawth (volumes
and pricing), production cosls, capital spending, and discoum rate. Most of these assumptions vary significantly among the
reporting units. Cash flaw forecasts are generally based on approved business unit operating plans for the early years and
historical relationships in later years. The WACC rate for the individual reporting units is estimated with the assistance of
valuation experts. Arconic would recognize an impairment charge for the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the
reporting unit’s fair value without exceeding the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit.

In connection with the interim impoirment evatuation of long-lived assets for the disks operations {an asset group within the
AEN business unit) in the second quarter of 2018, which resulted from a decline in forecasted financial performance for the
business in connection with its updated three-year strategic plan, the Company atso performed an interim impairment
evaluation of goodwill for the AEN reporting unit. The estimated fair value of the reporting unit was substantially in excess of
the carrying value: thus, there was no impairment of goodwill.

Goodwill impairment tests in 2017 and 2016 indicated that gopodwill was not impaired for any of the Company’s reporting
units, except for the Arconic Forgings and Extrusions {AFE) business whose estimated fair value was lower than its carrying
value, As such, Arconic recorded an impairment for the full amount of goodwill in the AFE reporting unit of $719. The
decrease in the AFE fair value was primarily due to unfavorable performance that was impacting operating margins and 2
higher discount rate due to an increase in the risk-free rate of return, while the carrying value increased compared 1o prior year.

Other Intangible Assets. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amontized while imangible assets with finite
useful tives are amortized generally on a straight-linc basis over the periods benefited. The fellowing table details the weiglited-
average useful lives of software and other intangible assets by reporting segment (numbers in years):

Software Other intangible assets
Engineered Products and Solutions 3 33
Global Rolled Products 5 9
Transportation and Construction Solutions 5 16

Revenue Recognition. The Company's contracts with customers are comprised of acknowledged purchase orders incorporating
the Company’s standard terms and conditions, or for {arger customers. may also generally include terms under negotiated
multi-year agreemnents. These contracts with cusiomers typically consist of the manulacture of products which represent single
performance obligations that are satisfied vpon transfer of control of the product to the custonier. The Company produces
fastening systems; seamless rolled rings; investment castings, including airfoils and forged jet engine components; extruded,
machined and formed aircraf parts; aluminum sheet and plate, integrated aluminum structural systems; architectural
extrusions; and forged alumioum commercial vehicle wheels. Transfer of control is assessed based or alternative use of the
products we produce and our enforceable right to payment for performance to date under the contract terms. Transfer of control
and revenue recognilion generally occur upon shipment or defivery of the product. which is when title, ownership and risk of
loss pass {o the customer and is based on the applicable shipping terms. The shipping terms vary across all businesses and
depend on the product, the country of origin, and the type of transportation (truck, train, or vessel). An invoice for payment is
issued at time of shipment. The Compamny 's objective is to have net 30-day terms, Our business units set commercial terms on
wirich Arconic sells products to its customers, These terms are influenced by industry custom, market conditions, product line
(specialty versus commodity products), and other considerations.

In certain circumstances, Arconic receives advanced payments from its customers for product to be delivered in future periods.
These advanced payments are recorded as deferred revenue uatil the product is delivered and title and risk of loss have passed
to the customer in accordance with the terms of the contract. Deferred revenue is included in Other current habilities and Other
noncurrent liabilities and deferred eredits on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Envirenmental Matters. Expenditures for current operations are expensed or capitalized, as appropriate. Expenditures relating
to existing conditions caused by past operations, which will not contribute to future revenues, are expensed. Liabilities are
recorded when remediation costs are probable and can be reasonably estimated The liability may include costs such as site
investigations, consuliant fees, feasibility studies, outside contractors, and monitoring expenses. Estimales are generzlly not
discounted or reduced by potential claims for recovery. Claims for recovery are recognized when probable and as agreements
are reached with third parties. The estimates also include costs related to other potentially responsible parties to the extent that
Arconic has reason to believe such parties will not fully pay their proportionate share. The ltability is continuously reviewed
and adjusted to reflect current remediation progress, prospective estimates of required activity. and other factors that may be
relevant, including changes in technology or regulations.

Litigation Matters. For asserted claims and assessments, liabilities are recorded when an unfavorable outcome of a matter is
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deemed to be probable and the Ioss is reasonably estimable. Management determines the liketihood of an unfavorable cutcome
based on many factors such as the nature of the matter, available defenses and case strategy, progress of the matter, views and
opinions of legal counsel and other advisors, applicability and success of appeals processes, and the autcome of similar
historical matters, among others. Once an unfavorable outcome is deemed probable, management weighs the probability of
estimated [osses, and the most reasonabie loss estimate is recorded. [ an unfavorable outcome of a matter is deemed to be
reasonably possibie, thea the matter is disclosed and no liability is recorded. With respect to unassened claims or assessments,
management must first determine that the probability that an assertion will be made is likely, then, a determination as to the
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome and the ability to reasonably estimate the potential loss is made. Legal matters are
reviewed ont a continuous basis 1o determine if there has been a change in management’s judgment regarding the hikelihood of
an unfavorable outcome or the estimate of a potential loss.

Income Taxes. The provision for income taxes is determined using the asset and liability approach of accounting for income
taxes. Under this approach. the provision far income laxes represents income taxes paid or payable (or received or receivablej
for the current year plus the change in deferred taxes during the y ear. Deferred taxes eepresent the future 1ax consequences
expecied to gccur when the reported amounts of assets and liabilities are recovered or paid, and result from differences between
the financial and tax bases of Arconic’s assets and liabilitics and are adjusted for changes in tax rates and tax laws when
enacted.

Valuation allowances are recorded to reduce deferred tax assets when it is more likely than not that a tax benefit will not be
realized. In evaluating the need for a valuation atlowance, management considers all potential sources of taxable income.
including income available in carryback periods, future reversals of taxable temporary differences, projections of tavable
income, and income from tax planning strategies, as well as all available positive and negative evidence Positive evidence
includes factors such as a history of profitable operations, projections of future profitability within the carryforward period,
including from tax planning stralegies. and Arconic's experience with similar operations. Existing favorable contracts and the
ability to sell products into established markets are additional positive evidence. Negative evidence includes items such as
cumulative losses, projeciions of future losses. or carryforward periods that are not long encugh to allow for the wilization of a
deferred tax asset based on existing projections of income. Deferred lax assets for which no valuation allowance is recorded
may not be realized upon changes in facts and circumstances, resulting in a futdre charge to establish a valuation allowance.
Existing valuation allowances are re-examined under the same standards of positive and negative evidence. If it is determined
that it is more likely than not that a deferred 1ax asset will be realized, the appropriate amount of the valuation allowance, if
any, is released. Deferred tax assels and Nabilities are also re-measured to reflect changes in underlying tax rates due to law
changes and the granting and lapse of tax holidays.

In 2018, Arconic made a final accounting policy election to apply a tax kaw ordering approach when considering the need for a
valuation allowance on net operating losses expected to offset Global Intangible Low Taxed Income (GILTI) income
inciusions, Under this approach, reductions in cash tax savings are not considered as part of the valuation allowance
assessient. Instead, future GILTI inclusions are considered a source of taxable income that suppont the realizability of
deferred tax assets.

Tax benefits related to uncertain fax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return are recarded when such benefits
meet a more likely than not threshold. Otherwise, these lax benefits are recorded when a tax position has been effectively
settled, which means that the statute of limitations has expired or the appropriate taxing authority has campleted their
exantination even though the statule of limitations remains open. Interest and penaltics related to uncertain tax positions are
recognized as part of the provision for income taxes and are accrued beginning in the period that such interest and penalties
would be applicable under relevant tax law until such time that the related tax benelits are recognized.

Stock-Based Compensation. Arconic recognizes compensation expense for employ ee equity grants using the nos-substantive
vesting period approach, ir which the expense is recognized ratably over the requisite service period based on the grani date
fair value. Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur. The fair vatue of new stock options is estimated on the date of grant
using a lattice-pricing model. The fair value of performance awards containing a market condition is valued using a Mome
Carlo valuation model. Delenmining the fair value at the grant date requires judgment, including estimates for the average risk-
free interest rate. dividend yield, volatility. and exercise behavior. These assumptions may differ significantly between grant
dates because of changes in the actual results of these inputs that oceur aver time.

Foreign Currency. The local currency is the functional currency for Arconic’s significant operations outside the United States,
except for certain operations in Canada and Russia, where the U.S. dollar is used as the functional currency. The determination
of the functional currency for Arconic’s operations is made based on the appropriate economic and management indicators.

Acquisitions. Arconic’s business acquisitions are accounted {or using the acquisition method. The purchase price is alfocated to
the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values. Any excess purchase price aver the fair valoe of
the net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill, For all acquisitions, operating results are included in the Statement of
Consolidated Operations from the date of the acquisition.




Discontinued Operations and Assets Held for Sale. For those businesses where management has committed to a plan to
divest, each business is valued al the lower of its carrying amount or estimated fair value less cost to sell. If the carrying
amount of the business exceeds its estimated fair value, an impairment loss is recognized. Fair value is estimated using
accepted valuation techniques such as a DCF modet, valuations performed by third parties, eamings multiples, or indicative
bids, when available. A number of significant estimates and assumptions are involved in the application of these techniques,
including the forecasting of markets and market share, sales volumes and prices, costs and expenses, and multiple other factors
Management considers historical experience and all available information at the time the estimates are made; however. the fair
value that is ultimately realized upon the divestiture of a business may differ from the estimated fair value reflected in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Depreciation and amortization expense is not recorded on assets of a business to be
divested once they are classified as held for sale. Businesses 1o be divested are generally classified in the Consolidated
Financial Statements as either discontinued operations or held for sale,

Far businesses classified as discontinued operatians, the balance sheet amounts and results of operations are reclassified from
their historical presentation 1o assets and liabilities of discontinued operations on the Consalidated Balance Sheet and 1o
discontinued operations on the Statement of Consolidated Operations, respectively, for all periods presented. The pains or
losses associated with these divested businesses are recorded in discontinued operations on the Statement of Consolidated
Operations. The Statemem of Consolidated Cash Flows is not required to be reclassified for discontinued operations for any
period. Segment information does not include the assels or operating results of businesses classified as discontinued operations
for all periods presented. These businesses are expected to be disposed of within one year.

For businesses classified as held for sale that do not qualify for discontinued operations treatment, the balance sheet and cash
flow amounts are reciassified from their historical presenlation 1o assets and liabilities of operations held for saie for all periods
presented. The results of operations continue 1o be reported in continuing operations. The gains or losses associated with these
divesied businesses are recorded in Restructuring and other charges on the Statement of Consolidated Operations. The segment
information includes {he assets and operating results of businesses classified as held for sale for all periods presented.

Recently Adopted Accounting Guidance. In May 2014, the FASB issued changes to the recognition of revenue from contracis
with customers. These changes created a comprehensive framework for all entities in all industries 10 apply in the
determination of when to recognize revenue and, therefore, supersede virtually all existing revenue recagnition requirements
and guidance. This framework is expected to result in less complex guidance in application while providing a consistent and
comparable methodology for revenue recognition. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenuce
to depict the transfer of promised goods or services 1o customers it an amount tha reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects 10 be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. To achieve this principle, an entity should apply the following
steps: (1) identify the contract(s} with a customer, (ii) identify the performance obligations in the contract{s), (iii} determine the
transaction price, {iv} allocate the transaction price 1o the performance obligations in the contract{s}, and (v) recognize revenue
when. or as, the entity satisfics a performance obligation. These changes became effective for Arconic on January |, 2018.
Arconic adopted this new guidance using the modified retrospective transition approach applied to those contracts that were o}
cormpleted as of January 1, 2018. There was no cumulative effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained eamings in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet in 2018, as the adoption did not resuit in a change 10 our timing of revenue recognition, which
continues 10 be at a point in time. See the Revenue Recognition policy above.

In January 2016, the FASB issued changes lo equity investments. These changes require equity investments (except those
accounled for under the equity method of accounting or those that result in consolidation of the investee) io be measured at fair
value with civanges in fair value recognized in net income. However, an entity may choose 10 measure equity investments that
do not have readily determinable fair values using the measurement alternative of cost minus impatrment, if any. plus or minus
changes resulling from observable price changes in orderly transactions for the identical or similar investment of the same
issuer. Also, the impairment assessment of equity investments without readily determinable fair values has been simplified by
requiring a qualitative assessment to identify impairment. Also, the new guidance required changes in fair value of equity
securities 1o be recognized immediately as a component of net income instead of being reported in accumulated other
comprehensive loss until the gain (loss) is realized. These changes became effective for Arconic on January 1, 2018 and have
been applied on a prospective basis. Arconic elected the measurement alternative for its equity investments that do not have
readily determinable fair values. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Consclidated Financial
Stwtements.

In August 2016, she FASB issued changes to the classification of certain cash receipts and cash payments within the statement
of cash flows. The guidance identifies eight specific cash flow items and the sections where they must be presented within the
statemens of cash flows. These changes became effective for Arconic on January 1, 2018 and have been be applied
retrospectively. As a result of the adoption, Arconic reclassified cash received related to beneficiat interest in previously
transferred trade accounts receivable from operating activities to investing activities in the Statement of Consolidated Cash
Flows. This new accounting standard does not reflect a change in cur underlying business or activities. The reclassification of
cash received related 1o beneficial interest in previously transferred trade accounts receivable was §792 and 3778 for 2017 and
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2016, respectively. In addition. Arconic reclassified $52 and $3 of cash paid for debt prepayments including extinguishment
costs from operaling activities to Anancing activities for 2017 and 2016, respectively.

In November 2016, the FASB issucd changes 1o the ctassification of cash and cash equivalents within the statement of cash
flow. Restricted cash and cash equivalents will be included within the cash and cask equivalents line on the cash flow statement
and a reconciliation must be prepared 1o the statement of financial position. Transfers between restricted cash and cash
cquivalents and cash and cash equivalents will no longer be presented as cash flow activities in the Statement of Consolidated
Cash Flows and for material balances of restricted cash and cash equivalents, Arconic will disclose information regarding the
nature of the restrictions. These changes became effective for Arconic on January 1, 2618 and have been applied
rerrospectively. Management has determined that the adoption of this guidance did not have a material impac! on the Statement
of Consolidated Cash Flows. Resiricted cash was S6, $4.and 15 in 2018, 2017, aind 2016. respecrively.

In March 2017, the FASB issued changes to the presentation of net periodic pensian cost and net periedic pasiretirement
benefit cost. The new guidance requires regisirants to present the service cost component of net periodic benefit cost in the
same incorte statement hine item or items as other employee compensation costs arising from services rendered during the
period. Also, only the service cost component wilf be eligible for asset capitalization. Registrants will present the other
campanents of net periodic benefit cost separately from the service cost component; and, the line ilem or items used in the
income statement to present the other components of net periodic benefit cost must be disclosed. These changes became
effective for Arconic on Janvary 1, 2018 and were adopted retrospectively for the presentation of the service cost component
and the other companents of net periodic benefit cost in the Statement of Consolidated Operations, and prospectively for the
asset capitalization of the service cost compenent of net periodic benefit cost. The Company recorded the service related nct
periodic benefit cost within Cost of gonds sotd, Selling, general administrative, and other expenses and Research and
development expenses and recorded the non-service related net periodic benefit cost (except for the curtailment cost which was
recorded in Restructuring and other charges) scparately from service cost in Other expense (income), net within the Statement
of Consolidated Operations. The impact of the retrospective adoption of this guidance was an increase to cansolidated
Operating income of $154 and $135, while there was no impact to consclidated Net income, for 2017 and 2016. respectively

In May 2017, the FASB issued clarification 1o guidance on the modification accounting criteria for share-based payment
awards. The new guidance requires regisirants to apply modification accounting unless three specific riteria are met, The three
criteria are 1) the fair value of the award is the sanie belore and afier the modification, 2) the vesting conditions are the samte
before and after the modification and 3) e classification as a debt or equity award is the same before and after the
modification. These changes became effective for Arconic on January |, 2018 and were applied prospectively to new awards
modified afier adoption. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In February 2018, the FASB issued guidance that allows an optional reclassification from Accumulated other comprehensive
loss to Accumulated deficit for stranded tax efTects resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act enacted on December 22,2037
Stranded tax effects were created when defesred taxes. originally established in Other comprehensive income at 35%, were
revalued o 21% as a component of income tax expense from continving operations. The Company elected to early adopt this
provision in the fourth quarter of 2018 and reclassified 367 of beneficial stranded tax effects in Accumulated other
comprehensive loss to Accumulated deficit in its Consolidated Balance Sheet and Statement of Changes in Consolidated
Equity.

In August 2018, the FASB issued guidance which requires cloud computing arrangement implenentation costs to be accounted
for in accordance with the software stage model, regardless of whether or not the clovd computing arrangerment contains a
livense. Arconic adopled this guidance in the third quarter of 2018, The sdoption of this guidance did not have a material
impact on the Consolidated Financial Stmements.

Also, in August 2018, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) issued guidance lo eliminate or modify certain
disclosure requirements that have become redundam, overlapping, outdated or superseded in light of other SEC rules, GAAP or
changes in the information envirenment. This guidance became effective on Novernber 5, 2018 and will be applied 1o filings
thereafier. The adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Consclidated Financial Statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Guidance. [n February 2016, the FASB issued changes to the accounting and presentation of
leases. These changes require lessees 10 recognize a right of use asset and lease liability on the balance sheet for all leases with
terms longer than 12 months. For leases with a term of 12 months or less, a lessee is permitted to make an aceounting policy
election by class of underlying asset not to recognize a right of use asset and lease liability. Also, when measuring assets and
liabilities arising from a lease, optional payments should be included only if the kessee is reasonably certain o exercise an
option to extend the lease, exercise a purchase option, of not exercise an option to terminate the lease. As originally released,
the standards update required application at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented ot the time of adoption.
However, in July 2018, the FASB provided entities the option to instead apply the provisions of the new leases guidance at the
effective date, without adjusting the comparative periods presented. The Company expects to apply the provisions of the new
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leases guidance at the effective date, without adjusting the comparative periods presented. These changes became effective for
Arconic on January 1, 2019.

Arconic’s current operating lease portfolio is primarily comprised of land and buildings, plant equipment, vehictes, and
computer equipment. A cross-functional implementation team has determined the scope of arrangements that will be subject to
this standard and continues to assess the impacl to the Company's systems, processes and intemal controls. Arconic has
contracted with a third-party vendor io implement a software solulion. Concurrently. Arconic has been compiling and vploading
lease data into the software solution 1o account for leases under the new standard. Management continues to evaluate the
impact of these changes on the Consolidated Balance Sheet, which will require right of use assets and lease liabilities be
recorded for eperating leases. Arconic anticipates the impact of adoption on January i, 2019 will resuit in a right of use agset
and total fease liability related to operating leases in the range of $300 10 $340, while the accounting for capital leases will
remain unchanged. The adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the Statement of Consolidated Operations or
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flaws,

In June 2016, the FASB added a new impairment model (known as the current expected credit loss (CECL) model) that is
based on expected losses rather than incurred losses. Under the new guidance, an entity recognizes as ant allowance its estimate
of expected credit losses. The CECL model applies to most debt instruments, trade receivables, lease receivables. financial
guaranlec contracts, and other loan commitments. The CECL medel does not have a minimum threshold for recognition of
impairment losses and entities will need to measure expected credit losses on assets that have a low risk of loss. These changes
become effective for Arconic on January i, 2020. Management is curremily evaluating the potential impact of these changes on
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In August 2017, the FASB issued guidance that will make more financial and nonfinancial hedging strategies eligible for hedge
accounting. It also amends the presentation and disclosure requirentents and changes how companies assess effectiveness. It is
intended to more closely align hedge accounting with companies’ cish management strategies, simplify the application of hedge
accounting, and increase transparency as io the scope and results of hedging programs. These changes became effective for
Arconic on January [, 2019. For cash flow and net investment hedges existing at the date of adoption. Arconic will apply a
cumulative-effect adjustment related 1o eliminating the separate measurement of ineffectiveness 10 Accumuliated other
comprehensive loss with a correspanding adjustment to the opening balance of Accumulated deficit as of the beginning of the
fiscal year in which the amendment is adopted. The amended presentation and disclosure guidance is required only
prospectively, Arconic has engaged a third-party consultant to assist with a review of the Campany’s risk management and
hedging strategies. with any changes to be implemented in conjunction with the adoption of the new guidance. Under the new
guidance, Management expects to utilize cash flow hedge accounting of its variable priced purchases and sales. Management
determined that the adoption of this guidance will not have a material impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In August 2018, the FASB issued guidance that impacts disclosures (or defined benefit pension plans and other postrelirement
benefit ptans. These changes become effective for Arconic's annual report for the year ending December 31, 2020, with early
adoption permitted. Management has determined that the adoption of this guidance will not have a material impact oo the
Consolidated Financial S1atements.
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B. Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The following table disaggregates revenue by major end market served. Differences between segment totals and consolidated
Arconic are in Corporate. In 2018, Corporate included $38 of costs related to setlements of certain customer claims primarity
refated to product introductions.

Enginecred Transportation
Producis and  Glabal Rolled  and Construction Total

For the year ended December 31, Solutions Products Solutions Segment
2018
Aerospace 5 4947 § 891 § - 8 3,838
Transportation 440 2,443 969 3,852
Buiiding and construction -- 217 1,150 £.367
Industrial and Other 929 2,053 7 2,989

Total end-markel revenue 5 6316 § 5604 S 2126 S 14,046
2017
Aerospace S 4,572 8§ 883 5 — 8 5,455
Transportation 383 1,981 803 3,169
Buitding and construction — 204 1.113 1,317
Industrial and Other 03% 1,932 93 3013

Total end-market revenue M 5943 S 5,000 § 2,011 § 12,954
2016
Aerospace 5 4358 § 042 8 - 5 5,380
Transportiation 347 1,377 708 2,632
Building and construction — 200 1,060 1,260
Industrial and Other 1,023 2,146 34 3,203

Total end-market revenue S 5728 § 4865 S 1.802 § 12,395

C. Segment and Geographic Area Information

Arconic is a global feader in fightweight aietals engineering and manufacturing. Arconic’s innovative, multi-material products,
which include aluminum, titanium, and nicke!, are used worldwide in aerospace, automotive, commtercial transportation,
building and construction, industrial applications, defense, and packaging. Acconic’s segments are organized by product en a
worldwide basis. In the first quaster of 2018, the Company changed its primary measure of segment performance from
Adjusted earnings before interest, tax, depreciation, and amortization (*Adjusted EBITDA™) to Segment operating profit.
which more closely aligns segment performance with Operating income as presented in the Statement of Consolidated
Operations, Segment performance under Arconic’s management reporting system is evajuated based on a number of faciors:
however. the primary measure of performance is Segment operating profit. Arconic’s definition of Segment aperating profit is
Operating incame excluding Special items. Speciat itams include Restructuring and other charges and Impairment of goodwill.
Segment operating profit also includes certain items that. under the previous segment performance measure, were recorded in
Corporate, such as the impact of LIFO inventory accounting. metal price lag, intersegment profit eliminations, and derivative
activities. Segment operting profit may not be comparsble to similarly titled measures of other companies. Differences
between segment totals and consolidated Arconie are in Corporate. Prior period financial information has been recast to
conform 1o current year presentation.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those described in the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
{see Note A}). Transactions amonyg segments are established based on negotiation among the parties. Differences between
segment toials and Arconic’s consolidated totals for line items not reconciled are in Corporate.

Arcenic’s operations consist of three worldwide reportable segments as follows:

Enginecred Products and Solutions. This segment produces products that are used primarily in the aerospace (commercial
and defense), industrial. commercial transportation, and power generation end markets Such products include fastening
systems (litanjum. steel, and nickel superalloys); seamless rolled rings (mostly nickel superalloys): investment castings {nickel
superalloys, titanium. and aluminum), including airfoils and forged jet engine components (e.g.. jet engine disks): and extruded,
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machined and formed aircraft parts {titanium and aluminum}, alt of which are sold directly to customers and through
disiributors. More than 75% of the third-party sales in this segment are from the aerospace end market. A small part of this
segment alsc produces various forged, extruded, and machined metal products (titaniunt, aluminum and steel) for the oil and
gas, aulomotive, and land and sea defense end markets. Seasonal decreases in sakes are generally experienced in the third
quarter of the year due to the European summer slowdown across all end markets.

Global Rolled Products. This segment produces aluminum sheet and plate for a variety of end markets. Sheet and plate i3 sold
directly to customners and through distributors refated to the aerospace, automotive, commercial transportation, packaging.
building and construction, and industrial producis (mainly used in the production of machinery and equipment and consumer
durables) end markets. A small pontion of this segment also produces aseptic foil for the packaging end market. While the
customer base for flat-rolled preducts is large, a significant amount of sales of sheet and plate is to a relatively small number of
cuslomers.

Transportation and Construction Solutions. This segment produces products that are used mostly in the commercial
transportation and nonresidential building and construction end markets, Such products include integrated aluminum siructural
systeras, architectural extrusions, and forged aluminum commercial vehicle wheels, which are sold both directly to customers
and through distributors. A small part of this segment also produces aluminum products for the industrial products end market.
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The operating results and assets of Arconic’s reportable segments were as follows:

Engineered
Products Global Transportation
and Rolled and Construction
Solutions Products Solutions Total
2018
Sales:
Third-party sales S 6,316 5604 S 2,126 § 14,046
Intersegment sales — 160 160
Total sales 5 6,316 5,764 5 2,126 S 14,206
Profit and lass:
Segment operating profit s 891 86 S KIEE Y 1,581
Restructuring and other charges 71 (i56) 1 (84}
Provision for depreciation and amortization 282 212 58 544
2017
Sales:
Third-party sales s 5,943 3000 5 2ot S8 12,934
Intersegment sales — 148 -— 148
‘Total sales s 3,943 5148 § 2011 S 13,102
Profit and loss:
Segment operating profit 5 964 424 5 290 8 1,678
Restructuring and other charges 34 72 32 154
Provision for depreciation and amortization 268 205 50 323
2016
Sales:
Third-pany sales 5 5,728 4865 § 1,802 5 12,395
Intersegment sales — L18 118
Total sales ) 5,728 4983 § 1,802 % 12,513
Profit and loss:
Segment operating profit ) 935 421§ 296§ 1,622
Restructuring and other charges 78 40 L] 132
Provisiun for depreciation and amortization 255 20t 48 304
2018
Assels.
Capital expenditures 5 349 255 8§ 1 s 715
Goodwill 4,179 245 76 +.500
Total assets 10,346 3,934 1,089 15.369
2017
Assets:
Capital expenditures S 308 178 578 543
Goodwill 4,203 252 78 4.535
Total assets 10,325 3,955 1,041 13321
The following tables reconcile certain segment information to consolidated totals:
For the year ended December 31, 2018 207 2016
Sales:
Total segment sales 5 4,206 S 15,102 § 12,513
Elimination of intersegment sales (160} (148} (118}
Corporate (32) 6 (1)
Consolidated sales S 14019 § 12,960 5§ 12,394
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For the year ended December 31,
Total segment operating profit
Unallocated amounts:
Impairment of goodwill
Restructuring and other charges
Corporate expense
Consolidated operating income
Interest expense
Other (expense) income, net
Consolidated income before income taxes

December 31,
Assets:
Total segment assets
Unallocated amounis;
Cash and cash equivalents
Deferred income taxes
Corporate fixed assets, net
Fair value of derivative contracts
Other
Consolidated assets

Sales by major product grouping werc as foltows:

For the year ended December 31,
Sales:
Innovative flat-relled products
Engines
Enginecred structures
Fastening sy stems
Architectural aluminum systems
Aluminum wheels
Other

Geographic information for sales was as follows (based upon the couniry where the point of sale occurred):

For the year ended December 31,
Sales:
United States
France
Hungary
United Kingdom
China
Russia
Germany
Canada
Brazil
Japan
Other

2018 2017 2016

S 1,581 5 1,678 1,622

— 9 -

(9) (165) (155)

(247) (314) (513)

3 1335 § 480 954

(378) (456} {499)

(79) 486 (1)

S 868 S 470 114
2018 2017

s 15,369 15,321

2,277 2,150

573 743

305 310

37 91

132 103

S 18.693 18.718
2018 2017 2016

s 5588 S 4,992 4,364

2,940 2,708 2,560

1,839 1,743 1,683

1,531 1,484 §A46%

1.140 1,065 1610

969 805 689

7 163 125

5 14.014 S 12,960 12.394
2018 2017 2016

s 9137 S 8,167 7.823

936 965 930

823 739 619

737 721 711

632 615 582

553 500 433

302 309 284

285 261 262

214 285 250

170 141 145

225 257 335

3 14014 S 12,960 12,394




Geographic information for fong-lived assets was as follows (based upon the physical location of the assets):

December 31, 2818 2017
Long-lived assets:
United States ) 4,148 8§ 4,005
China 326 347
Hungary 257 227
Russia 233 276
United Kingdom 253 259
France 163 159
Germany 84 88
Canada 61 63
Brazil 54 62
Other 105 108
g 5704 8 5,594

D. Restructuring and Other Charges

Restrueturing and other charges for each vear in the three-vear period ended December 31, 2618 were comprised of the
following:

2018 2017 2016

Asset impairments $ 13§ 58 8§ 80
L.avoff costs 20 64 68
Pension and Other postretirement benefits - net settlement and cudailment gy . 3
charges

Net {gain) loss on divestitores of assets and businesses (1) {109) 57 3
Other 13 3 27
Reversals of previously recorded layoff costs (19) iy {258)
Restructuring and other charges 3 9 3 165 3§ 135

LayofTcosts were recorded based on approved detailed action plans submitted by the operating locations that specified
positions to be climinated, benefits to be paid under existing severance plans. union contracts or statutory requirements, and the
expected timetable for completion of the plans.

2018 Actions. In 2018, Arconic recorded Restructuring and other charges of $9 (39 after-tax), which included  net gain on the
sale of saveral assets and businesses of $109 (381 after-tax), primarily made up of a gain on the asset sale of Texarkana of $154
(5119 after-1ax} and loss on the sale of the Eger, Hungary forgings business of $43 (339 after-tax) (see note T), charges of $96
{875 after-tax) for pension settlement and $23 ($18 afier-tax) for pensicn curiailment; a postretirenient cortailment benefit of
528 (822 afier-tax) {see note G); and a charge of $20 (517 after-1ax) for layoff costs. including the separation of approvimately
125 employees (89 in the Engineered Products and Solutions segment and 36 in Corporate); a charge of $12 (9 after-tax) for
contract termination costs and asset impairments associaled with the shutdown of a facility in Acann, Mexico: a charge of 86
(S4 after-tax} for contract termination costs related to the New York office; a cliarge of $8 (54 afier-tax) for other miscellanecus
items including accelerated depreciation and asset impairments; and a benefit of 519 (315 after-tax) for the reversal of a
number of layoff reserves related to prior periods.

As of December 31, 2018, approximately 110 of the 125 employees were separated. The remaining separations for 201%
restructuring programs are expected 10 be completed by the end of 2019. In 2018, cash payments of $9 were made against
layoff reserves related to the 2018 restructuring programs.

2017 Actions. [n 2017, Arconic recorded Restructuring and other charges of $163 {§143 after-tax), which were comprised of
the following components: $69 (847 after-tax) for layoff costs related to cost reduction initiatives including the separation of
approximately 880 employees (400 in the Engineered Products and Solutions segment, 245 in the Global Rofled Producis
segment, 135 in the Transportation and Construction Solutions segment, and 190 in Corporate). a charge of $60 {S60 afier-tax)
related to the sale of the Fusina, l1aly rolling mill; a charge of 341 (341 after-tax) for the impairment of assets associated with
the sale of the Latin America extrusions business (see Notwe Tk a net benefit of 36 (34 afier-tax) for the reversal of forfeited
executive stock compensation of $13, partially offset by a charge of $7 far the related severance; a net charge of 512 (57 after-
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tax) for other miscellaneous iterns; and a favorable benefit of $11 (S8 after-tax) for the reversal of a number of small layofT
reserves related ta prior periods.

As of December 31, 2018, approximately 570 of the 660 employees (previously 760) were separated. The tatal number of
employees associated with 2017 restructuring programs was updated to reflect employees, who were initially identified for
separation, accepting other positions within Arconic and natural attrition. The remaining separations for 2017 restructuring
programs are expected to be completed by the end 0£2019. 1n 2018 and 2017. cash payments of $34 and 328, respectively,
were made against layoff reserves related to 2017 restructuring programs.

2016 Actions. In 2016, Arconic recorded Restructuring and other charges of $155 (§114 after-tax), which were camprised of
the following components: $57 (546 aftertax) for costs relfated to the exit of certain legacy Firth Rixson operations in the UK.;
$37 (524 after-tax) for exit costs related to the decision to permanently shut down a can sheet facility; $20 (S14 after-tax) for
costs relaled to the closures of five facilities. primarily in the Transportation and Construciion Solutions segment and
Engineered Products and Solutions segmeat, including the separation of approximately 280 employees, §53 (335 after-tax) for
other Iayoff costs, including the separation of approximately 1,315 emplovees (1,045 in the Engineered Praducts and Solutions
segment, 210 in Corparate, 30 in the Global Rolled Products segment, and 30 in the Transponiation and Construction Solutions
segment); $11 (S8 after-tax) for other miscellaneous items. including §3 (52 aRer-tax) for the sale of Remmele Medical, an RT1
subsidiary; $2 (S! after-1ax) for a pension settlement; and 8§23 (§12 afier-tax) for the reversal of a number of small layoff
reserves related 1o prior periods.

ln 2016, management made the decision to exit certain legacy Firth Rixson facilities in the U.K. Cesls related to these actions
included asset impairments and accelerated depreciation of S51; other exit costs of 34; and $2 for the separation of 60
emplovees.

Also in 2016, management approved the shutdown and demolition of the ¢an sheet facility in Tennessce upon completion of the
Toll Processing and Services Agreement with Alcoa Corporation. Costs related 10 this action included 521 in asset impairments.
$9 in other exit costs: and 57 for 1he separation of 143 employees. The other exit costs of 39 represent 84 in asset retirement
obligations and $3 in environmental remediation, both of which were triggered by the decision to permanently shut down and
demolish the can sheet facility in Tennessee, and $2 in other exit costs.

As of December 31, 2618, the separations associated with the 2016 restructuring programs were essentially complete. In 2018,
2017, and 2016, cash payments of S4, $26, and S186, respectively, were made against layoff reserves related (0 2016
restrucluring programs,

Activity and reserve balances for restructuring charges were as follows:

Layalf Other
costs exit costs Total

Reserve balances at December 31, 2015 Y B4 8§ 9 3 93
2016

Cash payments (73 (13) (86)
Restructuring charges 70 27 97
Other'" (31) {14) {45)
Reserve balances at December 31, 2016 $ 50 % 9 S 59
2017

Cash payments 8 (59 8 (6) § (65)
Restructuring charges 64 1 65
Other'™ | (2) (1)
Reserve balances at December 31, 2017 ) 56 % 2 % 58
2018

Cash payments % “n s {2) § (49)
Restructuring charges B I3 124
Other™ (£10) 2 (108)

Reserve balances at December 31, 2018 s 10 S 15 § 25

In 2016. Other for layofF costs included reversals of previously recorded restructuring charges of $23, effects of

foreign currency translation and other of $4, and a reclassification of 82 in pension costs, as the impact was reflected
in Arconic’s separate liability for Accrued pension benefits. Other for other exit cosss included reclassifications of 38
in asset retirement and $2 in environmental obligations, as the impacts were reflected in Arconic’s separate labilities
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for assel retirement oblications and environmental remediation, and a reclassification of §4 in legal obligations. as the
impact was included in Arconic’s separate liability for Jegal costs,
= n 2017, Other for layolf costs included a reclassification of a stock awards reversal af §13, offset by reversals of

previously recorded restructuring charges of 811 and foreign currency translation of §1.
W In 2018, Other for fayofl costs included reclassifications of $119 in pension costs and a $28 credit in posiretiresment
benefits, as the impacts were reflected in Arconic’s separate liabilities for Accrued pension benefits and Accrued

postretirement benefits, and reversals of previously recorded restructuring charges of $19.

The remaining reserves are expected to be paid in cash during 2019, with the exception af approximately 85 10 87, which is
expecied to be paid over the next several years for lease termination costs,

E. Interest Cost Components

For the year ended December 31, 2018 2017 2016

Amount charged (o expenss 3 3718 38 496 S 499

Amount capitalized 23 22 32
§ 461 8 518 § 531

ll

F. Other Expense (Income), Net

For the year ended December 31, 2018 2017 2016
Non-service related net periodic benefit cost 5 2 s i54 3 133
fnterest income {23} (193 (16)
Foreign curtency losses (gains), net 26 (5) [€))
Net loss {gain) from asset sales 10 (513} i
Other, net {46) {403) (85)
3 79 % {486) § 41

In 2018, Non-service related net periodic benefit cost included lower nel actuarial losses as a result of pension actions taken
during 2018 (see Note G) and Other, net inciuded a benefit from establishing a tax indemnification receivable of 829 refecting
Alcoa Corporation’s 49%6 share of a Spanish 1ax reserve (see Note U). In 2017, Net loss {gain) [ron asset sales included a gain
on the safe of a portion of Arconic’s investment in Alcoa Corporation comnton stock of $351 (see Nate Vi and a gain of §167
on the Debt-for-Equity Exchange {see Note V). kn 2017, Other, net included an adjustiment of $81 to the contingent eam-out
liability related to the 2014 acquisition of Firth Rixson (see Note T) and an adjustment of $25 associated with a separation-
related guarantee liability (see Note U). In 2016, Non-service related net periodic benefit cost included a reduction of the
recognition of actuarial losses and a methodology change in the calcuiation of interest cost, which were partially offset by the
reduction in the expected return on plan assets. In 2016, Other, net included an adjusiment of $36 to the contingent eam-out
liability and a post-closing adjustment of $20, both related to the acquisition of Fisth Rixson.



G. Pension and Other Postretirement Renefits

Arconic maniains pension plans covering most U.8. employees and centain employees in foreign locations. Pension benefits
generally depend on [ength of service, job grade, and remuneration. Subsiantially all benefits are paid through pension trusis
that are sufficiently funded 1o ensure that alt plans can pay benefits to retirees as they become due. Most salaried and non-
bargaining hourly U.S. employees hired after March 1, 2006 participate in a defined contribution plan instead of a defined
benefit plan.

Arcenic also maintains bealth care and life insurance posiretirement benefit plans covering eligible U.S. retired employ ees and
ceriain retirees from foreign locations. Generally, (he medical plans are unfunded and pay a percentage of medical expenses,
reduced by deductibles and other coverage. Life benefits are generally provided by insurance contracts. Arconic retains the
right, subject to existing agreementis, to change or eliminate these benefits. All salaried and centain non-bargaining hourly U.S.
employees hired afier January 1, 2002 and certain bargaining hourly U.5. empioyees hired after July 1, 2810 are not eligible for
postretirement health care benefits, All salaried and certain hourly U.S. employees that retire on or afier Aprit I, 2008 are not
eligible for postretiremeat life insurance benefits.

Effective January 1, 2015, Arconic no longer offers postretirement health care benefits to Medicare-eligible, primarily non-
bargaining, U.S. retirees through Company-sponsored plans. Qualifying retirees (hired prior to January 1, 2002), both current
and future, may access these benefits in the marketplace by purchasing coverage directly from insurance carriers.

In the first quarter of 2018, the Company announced that, effective April 1, 2018, benefit accruals for future service and
compensation under all of the Company's qualified and non-qualified defined benefit pension plans for U.S. salaried and non-
bargaining hourly employees ceased. As a result of this change, in the first quarier of 2018. the Company recorded a decrease to
the Accrued pension benefits liability of $136 related to the reduction of future benefits, $141 offset in Accumulated other
comprehensive loss, and cuntaitment charges of 83 in Restruciuring and other charges.

On April 13, 2018, the Uniled Auto Workers ratified a new five-year labor agreement, covering approximately 1,300 U.S,
employees of Arconic. which expires on March 31, 2023, A provision within the agreement includes a retirement benefit
increase for fiture retirees that participate in a defined benefit pension plan, which impacts approximately 308 of those
employees. In addition, effective January 1, 2019, benefit accruals for future service will cease. As result of these changes, a
curtaiiment charge of $9 was recorded in Restructuring and other charges in the second quarter of 2018,

In the third quarter of 2018, the Company announced that effective December 3, 2018, i1 will end all pre-Medicare medical,
presceription drug and vision coverage for current and finture salaried and non-bargained hourly employees and cetirees of the
Company and its subsidiaries. As a result of this change, in the third quarter of 2018, the Company recorded a decrease 1o the
Accrued other postretirement benefits liability of 332 related to the reduction of future benefits, S4 offset in Accumulaied other
comprehensive loss, and a curtailment beaefit of $28 in Restructuring and other charges.

In the fourth quarter, the company communicaied to plan participants that effective in the first quarier of 2019, benefit accruals
for future service and compensation for employees in the United Kingdam defined benefil pension plans will cease. The plan
curtailment resulted in a 813 decrease in the Accrued pension benefits liability which was offset in Accumulated other
comprehensive loss. Additionally, on October 29, 2018, the United Kingdom High Court ruled that defined bencfit pensian
plans offering Guaranteed Minimum Pensions must review benefits acerued between May 1990 to April 1997 to ensure pender
pay equality. The review resulted in an increase to the Accrued pension benefits liability of 59 and a corresponding curailment
charge that was recorded in Restructuring and other charges.

In the third and fourth quarters of 2018, settlement accounting applied to centain U.S. pension plans due to lump sum payments
1o participants, resulting in settlement charges of $96 that were recorded in Restructuring and other charges.



The funded status of all of Arconic’s pension and other pustretirernent benefit plans are measured as of December 31 each

calendar year.

Cbligations and Funded Status

December 31,
Change in benefit obligation
Benefit obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Amendments
Actuarial (gains) losses
Settlements
Curtailments
Benefits paid
Medicare Pant D subsidy receipts
Foreign currency translation impact
Bencfit obligation at end of year'”
Change in plan assets'!
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of vear
Actual return o plan assets
Emiployer contributions
Benefits paid
Administrative expenses
Sertlements
Foreign currency transiation impact
Fair value of plan assets at end of year'"!
Net funded statis

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance
Sheet consist of:

Noncurrent assels
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilitics
Net amount recognized

Amaunts recogrized in Accumulated Gther
Comprehensive Loss consist of:

Net actuarial loss
Prior service cost (benefit)
Net amount recognized, before tax effect

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations
recognized in Other Comprebensive Loss onsist of:

Net actuarial (gain) loss

Amortization of accumulated net acwarial loss
Prior service cost (benefit)

Amortizatian of prior service (cost) benefit
Net amount recogmzed, before ax effect

. Other
Pension benefits postretirement beqefits
2018 2017 2018 2017
b3 7,359 3 7026 % 927 5 980
46 90 7 7
219 234 28 30
18 1 (23)
(372) an (51) 1
(146) -~ — -
(154) - — —
(422) {425} (86} (98)
- - 6 7
G2) 122 — -
3 6,476 5 7359 5 306 § 927
) 4,862 § 4.666 § — 8
(144 212 -~ -—
298 310
{397) (404) -
{33) 133)
(178 - -
74) ni
3 4,334 3 4,862 § — 8 -
s {3,142} § (2,497 § {8D6) 3 (037)
) 111 s 89 35 - -
2 22 (8)) {36}
(2,230) {2.564) (723) (841}
S (2,142) & (2,497) § (806) § {927)
s 2,957 % 3,240 § g7 § 6
3 10 (27} (37)
5 2,960 % 3250 § 60 3 109
$ (17 3 481 8 {32) § ]
(264 (220) (1) 51
i9 —_— (25) -
(26) (5) 33 8
S (290) $ 256 3 4% s 4

At December 31, 2018. ihe benelit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status for U.S, pension plans were
$5.282, 53,123, and $(2.159). respectively, At December 31, 2017, the benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets. and
funded status for L.S pension plans were 56,048, $3.544, and 5(2,474) respectively.
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Pension Plan Benefit Obligations

Pension benefits

2018 2017

The projected benefit obligation and accumulated benefit obligation for alt defined benefit
pension plans was as follows:

Prajected benefit obligation $ 6476 S 7,359

Accumelated benefit obligation 6,444 7.169
The aggregate projected benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets for pension plans
with prajected benefit obligations in excess of plan assets was as follows-

Projected benefit obligation 5435 6,600

Fair value of plan assets 3,182 4,016
The aggregate accumulated benefit oblization and fair value of plan assets for pension plans
with sccumulated benefit obligations in excess of plan assets was as follows:

Accumulated benefit obligation 5.415 6,422

Fair value of plan assets 3,179 3,998
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Pension benefits'" Other postretirement benefits'™

For the year ended December 31, 2018 2017 20i6 2818 2017 2016
Service cost 3 46 S 90 38 155 8§ 7% 7 8 13
Interest cost 219 234 45t 28 30 &3
Expected return on plan assets (300) {332} (677} - — -
Recognized net actuarial loss 168 220 380 7 5 24
Amortization of prior service cost {benefit) 3 5 13 {N (8) (24)
Senlements'” 96 — 19 — - -
Curtailments'' 23 — — (28} - -
Special termination benefits'® — — 2 — -

Net periodic benefit cost'® 3 249§ 217 8 323 § 75 34 S 76
Discontinued operations — - 122 - - 41

Net amount recognized in Statement of s 249 S 207 & 201 § 7 % 34 35

Consolidated Operations

Note:

in

12)

13

(3

%)

61

the footnotes below include components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost related o Alcoa Corporation through the
completion of the Separation Transaction in 2016

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, net periodic benefit cost for U.S. pension plans was $239, 5206, and §261, respectively

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, net periodic benefit cost for other postretirement benefits reflects a reduction of $10, 511, and
$22, respectively, related 1o the recognition of the federal subsidy awarded under Medicare Part D.

In 2018 and 2016, settlements were due to workforce reductions (see Note D) and the payment of lump sum benefits
and or purchases of annuity contracls

In 2018, curtailments were due to a reduction of future benefits. resulting in the recognition of favorable and
unfavorabie plan amendments

In 2016, special termination benefits were due to workforce reductions (see Note D).

Amounts attributed to joint venure partners are not included. Service cost was included within Cost of goods sold,
Selling. general administrative, and other expenses, and Research and development expenses; curtailments and

setilements were included in Restructuring and other charges; and all other cost components were recorded in Other
expense {income), net in the Statement of Consolidated Operations



Amounts Expected to be Recognized in Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Other postretirement

Pension benefits benchits
December 31, 2019 2019
Net actuarial loss recognition 3 139 s 3
Prior service cost (benefit) recognition 2 4)

Assumpticas

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations for U.S. pension and other postretirement benefit plans
were as follows {assumptions for non-U.$. plans did not differ materially):

December 31, 2018 2047
Discount rate 4.35% 375%
Rate of compensation tacrease 330 3350
Cash bulnnce plan interest erediting rate 3.00 300

The discount rate is determined using a Company-specific y ield curve model {(above-miedian) developed with the assistance of
an external actuary. The cash flows of the plans’ projected benefit obligations are discounted using a single equivalent e
derived from yields on high quality corporate bonds, which represent a broad diversification of issuers in various sectors,
including finance and banking, industrials, transportation, and wiilities, among others. The yield curve model parallels the
plans’ projected cash flows, which have on average duranion of 10 years, The underly ing cash fiows of the bonds included in
the model exceed the cash Nlows necded to satisfy the Company s plans” abligations multiple times.

The rate of compensation increase is based upen actual experience. For 2019, the rate of compensation increase will be 3.5%,
which approximales the five-year average.

Weighted average assumptions used 1o determine net pericdic benefit cost for U.S. pension and other postretirement benefit
plans were os follows (asswnptions for non-U.S. plans did not differ materially):

2018 2017 2016
Discount rate to calculate service cost'” 3.75% 4.20% 4,29%
Discount rate 1o calculate interest cost!” 3136 3160 345
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.00 7.75 7.75
Rate of compensation increase 350 3.50 350
Cash balance plan interest crediting rate 3.00 3.00 30

: In ail periods presented, the respective discount rates were used 10 determine net periodic benefit cost formost LS.

pension ptans for the full annual period However, the discount rates for a fimited number of plans were updated
during 2018, 2017, and 2016 to reflect the remeasurament of these plans due to new urion labor agreements,
setlements, andfor curtailmenis The updated discount rates used were not significantly different from the discount
rates presented

In conjunction with the annual measurement of the funded status of Arconic’s pension and other postretiremant benefit plans at
December 31, 2015. management elected 10 change the manner in which the interest cost camponent of net peripdic benefis
costs is detenmined in 2016 and beyond. Previously, the interest component was determined by multiplying the singte
equivalent raie and the aggrepate discounted cash flows of the plans” projected benefir obligations. Under the new
methodology, the interest cost component is defermined by aggregating the product of the discownted cash flows of the plans’
prajected benefit obhigations for each vear and an individual spot rate (referred to as the “spot rate” approach), This change
resulted o a foswer fnterest cost component of net pertadic benelit cast under the new methodalogy contpared to the previcus
methodology in 2018, 2017, and 2016 of $24, 534, and 884, respectively. for pension plans and S4, 86, and $14. respectively.
for other postretirernent benefit plans Management believes this new methodology, which represents a change in an accounting
estimate, is a better measure of the inierest cost as each year's cash flows are specifically linked 10 the interest rates of bond
pay ments in the same respective year.

The expected long-tern tate of return on plan assets is generally applicd (o a five-year market-refated vafue of plan assets (a
fair value a1 the plan measurement date is used for certain non-U.S. plans). The process used by management to develop this
assumption is one that relies on a combination of histarical asset retumn information and forward-looking retumns by asset class
As it relates to historical asset retum information, mapagement focuses on various histarical moving averages when developing
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this assumption. While consideration is given to recem performance and historical returns, the assumption represents a long-
term, prospective return. Management also incorporates expected future retums on current and planned asset allocations using
information from various external investment managers and consultants, a5 well as management’s owa judgment.

For 2018, 2017, and 2016, the expected long-term rate of return used by management was based on the prevailing and planned
strategic asset allocations, as well as estimates of future retums by asset class. These rates fell within the respective range of the
20-year moving average of actual performance and the expected future return developed by asset class. in 2018, management
reduced the expected long-term rate of return by 75 basis points due to a decrease in the expected return by asset class and the
20-year moving average. For 2019, management anticipates that 7.08%e will be the expected long-term rate of return

Assumed health care cost trend rates for U.S. other postretirement benefit plans were as follows {assumptions for non-L' S,
plans did not differ materiatly):

2018 2017 2016
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 5.50% 5.50% 5350%
Rate to which the cost trend rate gradually declines 4.50 4.50 450
Year that the rate reaches the rate at which it is assumed to remain 2022 2024 2020

The assumed health care cost trend rate is used to measure the expected cost of gross eligible charges covered by Arconic’s
other postretiremient benefit plans. For 2019, a 5.5% trend rate will be used, reflecting management’s best estimate of the
change in future health care costs covered by the plans. The plans” actual annual health care cost trend experience over the past
three years has ranged from (3.3)% lo (0.5)" 0. Management does not believe this three-year range is indicative of expecied
increases for future health care costs over the long-term.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have an effect on the amounts reported for the health care plan. A one-percentage point
change in these assumed rates would have the following effects

1% inercase §% decrease

Effect on other postretirement benelit obligations $ 22 3 (12}
1

Effect on total of service and interest cost components {1}

Pian Assets

Arconic’s pension plans’ investment palicy and weighted average asset allocations it December 31. 2018 and 2017, by asset
class, were as follows:

Man assets

al
December 31,
Assel class Policy range 2018 2017
Equities 20-55% 219% 28%
Fixed income 25-35% J48 47
Other investments 15-35% 23 23
Total 160°g 100%,

The principal objectives underiying the investment of the pension plans’ assets are to ensure that Arconic can properly fund
benefit obligations as they become due under a broad range of potential econoaiic and financial scenarios, maximize the long-
term investment retum with an acceptable level of risk based on such obligations, and broadly diversify investments across and
within various asset classes to protect asset values against adverse mavements. Specific objectives for long-term investment
strategy include reducing the volatility of pension assets relative to pension liabilities and achicving diversification across the
balance of the asset portfolio. The use of derivative instruments is permitied where appropriate and necessary for achieving
overall investment policy objectives. The investment strategy has used long duration cash bonds and derivative instruments w0
offset a portion of the interest rale sensitivity of U.S. pension liabilities. Exposure 10 broad equity risk has been decreased and
diversified through investments in discretionary and systematic macro hedge funds. long/short equin hedge funds, high vield
bonds, emerging market debt and global and emerging market equities. Investments are further diversified by strategy. assel
class, geography, and sector to enhance returns and mitigate downside risk. A large number of external investment managers
are used to gain broad exposure 1o the financial markets and to mitigate manager-concentration risk.

Investment practices comply with the requirements of the Employee Retirement Incame Security Act of 1974 {ERISA) and
uther applicable faws and regulations.
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The following section describes the valuation methodologies used by the trustees to measure the fair value of pension plan
assels, including an indication of the level in the fair value hierarchy in which each rype of asset is generally classified (see
Note R for the definition of fair value and a description of the fair value hierarchy).

Equities. These securities consist of: (i) direct investments in the stock of publicly traded U.S. and non-tJ.S. companies, and
equity derivatives, that are vafued based on the closing price reported in an active market on which the individual securities are
traded (generally classified in Level 1); (ii) the plans” share of commingled funds that are invested in the stock of publicly
traded companies and are valued at the net asset value of shares held at December 3§ (included in Level 1); and (iif) direct
investments in long/short equity hedge funds and private equity {limited partnerships and venture capita! partnerships) that are
valued at net asset value.

Fixed incame, These securities consist of: {i} U.S. government debe that are generally valued using quoted prices (included in
Level 1): (i} cash and cash equivalents invested in publicly-traded funds and are valued based on the closing price reported in
an active market on which the individual seeurities arc (raded (gencrally classificd in Level 1); (ilij publicly traded U.S. and
non-U.S. fixed interest obligations {principally corporate bonds and debentures) and are vaiued through consultation and
evalugtion with brekers in the institutional market using quoted prices and other observable market data (included in Level 2);
{iv) fixed income derivatives that are generally valued using industry standard models with market-based observable inputs
{included in Level 2); and (v) cash and cash equivalents invested in institutional funds and are valued at net asset value,

Gther investments. These invesuments include, among others: (i) exchanpe traded funds, such as gold. and real estate
tnvestment trusts and are valued based on the closing price reported in an active market on which the investments are traded
{included in Level ) and (3i) direct investments of discretionary and systematic macro hedge funds and private real estate
tincludes limited partnerships) and arc valued at net asset value.

The fair value methods described above may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values,
Additicually, while Arconic belicves the valuation meihods used by the placs® (rustees are appropriate and conisistent with other
market participants, the us¢ of different meihodologies or assumptions to determine the ir value of certain financial
instrugnents could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.



The following table presents the fair value of pension plan assets ctassified under the appropriate level of the fair value

hierarchy or net asset cost:

December 31, 2018

Equities:
Equity securities
Long/short equity hedge funds
Private equity

Fixed income:
Intermediate and long duration government/credit
Other

Other investimenis:
Real estate
Discretionary and svstematic macro hedge funds
Other

Net plan assets'’

December 31, 2017

Equities
Equity securitics
Long/short equity hedge funds
Private equity

Fixed income:
Intermediate and long duration govermment/credit
Other

Other investments’
Real estate
Discretionary and systematic macro hedge funds
Other

Net plan assets™’

Level 1 Level 2 Net asset value Total
$ jlg S - 8 §78 8 896
— — 232 232
— — 147 147
3 31§ S — 5 957 S 1,275
$ 00 § 934 8§ 710 S 1,904
9 9 152 170
$ 209 § 943 § 922 § 1074
) 81 S — 5 [64 S 245
— - 471 471
56 - 212 268
) 137 § — 5 847 S 984
§ 664 S 943 S 2726 8§ 4.333
Level | Level 2 Net Asset Value Total
s 379§ - § 593 8 972
— — 230 230
155 155
S 379 § — § 978 § 1,357
$ 0l 8 981 S 779 8§ 1,961
164 8 145 37
S 365 § 989 S 924 § 2,278
$ 85 S — % 172§ 257
— : 583 583
77 7 275 359
$ 162 § 7 8 1,030 § 1,199
s 920635 996 $ 2932 § 4.834

As of December 31, 2018, the total fair value of pension plans’ assets excludes a net receivable of $1, which

represents securities purchased and sold but not yer setiled plus interest and dividends earned on various invesiments.

As of December 31, 2017, the total fair value of pension plans’ assets excludes a net receivable of $28. which
represents assets due from Alcoa Corporation as a result of plan separations and securities sold not yet settled plus
interest and dividends earned on various invesiments

™



Funding and Cash Flows

It is Arconic’s policy to fund amounits for pension plans sufficient to meet the mininum requirements set forth in applicable

country benefits Jaws and tax laws. Periodically, Arconic contributes additional amounts as deemed appropriate. 1n 2018 and
2017, cash contributions to Arconic’s pension plans were $298 and 5310, respectively. The §298 includes 572 contributed to
the Company s LS. plans that was in excess of the minimum required under ERISA.

The ntinimusn required contribution to pension plans in 2019 is estimated to be $255 {of which 5230 is for U.S. plans) and
includes $34 related to an agreement reached with the Pension Benefit Guaranty Carporation (PBGC), as discussed in the
following paragraph.

Puring the third quarter of 2016, the PBGC approved management’s plan to separate the Alcoa Ine. pension plans between
Arcanic Inc. and Aleoa Corporation. The plan stipulates that Arconic will make cash contributions over a period of 30 months
{from November 1. 2016) ta its o largest pension plans. Pay ments are expected to be made in three increments of no less than
$50 each {5150 1otal) over this 30-month period. The Company made payments of 550 in March 2018 and $30 in April 26t7. In
the third quarter of 2018, the 2018 U.S. pension plan valuations were completed and additionat pension contributions of §16
that were made in the first quacter of 2018 were able to be used to pantially satisfy the third $50 requirement. The remaining
534 payment is expected to be made in 2019, Through the end of 2018, 5116 of pension contributions have been made toward
the 5§50 requirement.

Benefit payments expected to be paid to pension and other postretirement benefit plans’ participants and expected Medicare
Part D subsidy receipts are as follows utilizing the current assumptions cutlined above:

Gross Other past- Net Other post-
Pension retirement Medicare Part D retirement

For the year caded December 31, benefits paid benefits subsidy receipts benefits
2019 5 460 % 90 S 5 5 83
2020 460 85 5 80
2021 455 85 5 8¢
2022 455 83 5 80
2023 450 : 3] 5 80
Thereafler 2170 300 25 275

5 4,450 3 730 § 50 § 630

Defined Coatrilbution Plans

Arconic sponisors savings and investment plans i various countries, printarily in the United States. Acconic’s contributions and
expenses related 10 these plans were $123 0 2018, $89in 2017, and $71 in 2016. 1n the United States, employces may
comtribuie a portion of their compensation to the plans, and Arconic matches a portion of these contributions in equivalent form
of the investments elected by the employee.

H. Income Taxes

The companents of income from contiting operations before income taxes were as follows:

For the vear ended December 31, 2018 2087 2016

United States 3 518 3 500§ 84

Foreign 350 (30) 330
3 868 § 470§ 414
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The provision for income taxes consisted of the following:

For the year ended December 31, 2018 2017 2016
Current:
Federal'"' s 45§ — 5 -
Foreign 138 928 133
State and local 4 (2) 1
187 26 134
Deferred.
Federal 146 489 1,208
Foreign (94) 37 136
State and local (i3 (78) 2)
39 418 1.342
Total $ 226 8§ 544 § 1,476

Includes U.S taxes related 1o foreign income

Arconic has unamontized tax-deductible goodwill of $26 resulting from intercompany stock sales and reorganizations. Arconic
recognizes the tax benefits (a4 a 25% rate} associated with this tax-deductible goodwlt when it is amortized for local income
1ax purposes rather than in the period in which the transaction is consummated.

A reconciliation of the U'.5. federal statutory rate to Arconic’s effective tax rate was as follows (the effective tax rate for all
periods was a provision on income):

For the year ended December 31, 2018 017 2016

U S. federal statutory rate 21.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Taxes on foreign operations 4.0 (8.8) {115
U.S. State and local taxes 1.5 0.7 {0.4)
Federal benefit of sinte tax {0.3) 3.7 0.4
E?Sr;nniztﬁv}ldtﬁercnces on restructuring and other charges and asset (16.9) (167.4) (107.8)
Non-deductible acquisition cosis - 0.3 84
Statutory tax rate and law changes™ 6.5 525 (15 7)
Tax holidays (1.6) (3.0) (0.8)
Changes in valuation allowances 0.9 137.9 426.8
Impaimment of goadwil) — 53.5 —
Company-owned life insurance/split-doilar aet premiums — — 230
Changes in uncertain tax positions 12.8 10.1 21
Prior year tax adjustments (2.6) {0.9) (1.1
Cther 0.7 2.1 (1.3}
Effective tax rate 26.0% 15.7% 356.5%0

Additional losses were reporied in Spain's 2017 tax return related to the Separation Transaction which are offset by an
increased valuation allowance.

in 2018, the Company finalized its accounting for the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 {"the 2017 Act"} and recorded an
additional $59 charge. In December 2017, an estimated 8272 tax charge was recorded with respect (o the enactment of
the 2017 Act. In December 2016. Spain and the United States enacted rax law changes which resulted in the
remeasurement of certain deferred tax liabifities recorded by Arconic.

On December 22, 2017, the 2017 Act was signed into law, making significant changes to the Internal Revenue Code. Changes
include, but are not limited to, a corporate tax rate decrease from 35% to 21% cffective for tax years beginning after December
31, 2017. the transition of U.S. international taxation from a worldwide tax system to a territorial system, and a one-time
transition tax on the non-previously taxed post-1986 foreign eamnings and profits of certain U5 -owned foreign corporations as
of December 31,2007, Alse on December 22, 2017, Staff Accounting Butletin No. 118 ("SAB (18"}, Income Tax Accounting
Implications of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act, was issued by the SEC to address the application of U.S, GAAP for financial
reporting. SAB 118 permitted the use of provisicnal amounts based on reasonable estimates in the financial statements. S4B
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118 also provided that the tax impact may be considered incomplete in situations when a registrant does not have the necessary
infornation available. prepared, or analyzed (including compulations) in reasonable detail to complete the accounting for
certain income tax effecis of the 2017 Act.

The Company calculated a reasonable estimate of the impact of the 2017 Acts 1ax rate reduction and one-time transition tax in
its 2017 year end income tax provision in accordance with its understanding of the 2017 Act and guidance available and. as a
result, recorded & $272 1ax charge in the fourth quarter of 2017, the period in which the legislation was enacted.

In 2018, the Company included a $59 1ax charge in income from continuing operations as a result of finalizing its accounting
for the 2017 Tax Act in accordance with SAB 118. This charge primarily related to 2 S$16 charge for the one-time transition tax
and a 543 charge to update deferred tax balances.

The companents of net deferred 1ax assets and liabilities were as follows

2018 2007
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
tax tax tax tax

December 31, assets liabilities assets liabilitics
Depreciation 5 38 8 694 § 31 3 693
Employee bepefits 836 27 G36 23
Loss provisions 94 _— i34 14
Deferred income expense 22 1.102 19 1,144
Tax loss carryforwards 3,159 — 3,305 -
Tax credit carryforwards 579 - 638 -
Other 94 20 24 33
) 4,822 % 1,843 § 3087 S5 1.907
Valumion allowance (2,486} -— {2,584) o
S 2336 3 1,843 S 2,503 § 1,907

The fotlowing 1able details the expiration periods of the deferred tax assets presented above:

Expires Expires

within within No
Becember 31, 2018 10 years 1120 years  expiration’” Other* Total
Tax loss carryforwards $ W00 S 461 S 2398 $ - 8 3,159
Tax credit carryforwards 497 70 12 579
Other —_ —_— 64 {,020 1,084
Valuation allowance (752) {287) (1,390} (57 2.486)

5 45 5 244 8 1,084 3§ 963 § 2.336

Deferred tax assets whih no expiration may still have annual limitations on utilization.

Other represents deferred tax assets whose expiration is dependent upon the reversal of the underlying temporary
difference A substantial amount of Other relates to employee benelits that will became deductible for 1ax purposes
over an extended period of time as contributions are made to employee benefit plans and pay ments are made lo
retirees.

The tolal deferred tax asset {net of valuation allowance) is supported by projections of future taxable income exclusive of
reversing temporary differences (24%) and taxable temporary differences that reverse within the carry forward period {76°0)

Valuation allowances are recorded 1o reduce deferred l1ax assets when it is more Iikely than not (greater than 50%a) that & tox
benefit will not be realized In evaluating the need for a valuation allowance. management considers all potential sources of
laxable income, including income available in carryback periods, future reversals of taxable temporary differences, projections
of taxable income, and income from tax planning strategies, as well as all available positive and negative evidence. Positive
evidence includes faciors such as a history of profitable operations, psojections of future profitability within the carryforward
period, including from tax planning strategies, and Arconic's experience with similar operations. Existing favorable contracts
and the abihty to sell products into established markets are additional pasitive evidence. Negative evidence includes items such
as cumulative losses, projections of future losses, or carry forward periods that are not long enough 10 allow for the utilization
of a deferred tax asset based on existing projections of income. Deferred 1ax assets for which no valuation allowance is
recorded may not be realized vpon changes in facts and circumstances, resulting in 2 Ruture charge to establish a valuation
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allowance. Existing vafuation allowances are re-examined under the same standards of postiive and negative evidence, If it is
determined that it is more likely than not that a deferred tax asset will be realized, the appropriate amount of the valuation
allowance, if any, is released. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are also re-measured to reflect changes in underlying tax rates
due to law chanpes and the granting and lzpse of tax holidays.

In 2018, Arconic made a final accounling policy election to apply a tax law ordering approach when considering the need for a
valuation allowance on net operating losses expected 1o offset GILTI income inclusions. Under this approach, reductions in
cash tax savings are not considered as part of the valuation allowance assessment. Instead. future GILTI inclusions are
considered a source of 1axable income that support the realizability of deferred tax assets.

Arconic's foreign tax credits in the United States have a 10-year carryfonward period with expirations ranging from 2019 1o
2027 (as of December 31, 2018). Valuation allowances were inilially established in prior years on a portion of the foreign tax
credit camyforwards, primarily due to insufficient foreign source income to allow for full utilization of the credits within the
expiration period. Afier consideration of 2ll available evidence including potential tax planning strategies, incremental
valvation allowances of $46, $9 and $302 were recognized in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Foreign tax credits of $8, 337,
and $128 expired at the end of 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively, resulting in a corresponding decrease 1o the vatuation
allowance. At December 31, 2018, the cumulative amount of the valuation allowance was $417. The need for this valuation
allowance will be reassessed on a continuous basis in future periods and, as a result, the allowance may increase or decrease
based on changes in facts and circumstances.

Arconic released $10 and $98 of certain U.S. state valuation allowances in 2018 and 2017, respectively. Afier weighing all
available positive and negative evidence, management deiermined that the underlying net deferred tax assets were more likely
than not realizable based on projected laxable income estimates tahing into account expected post-separalion apportionment
data. Valuation allowances of $675 remain against other net state deferred tax assets expected 1o expire before utilization. The
need for valuation allowances against net state deferred tax assets will be reassessed on a continuous basis in future periods
and. as a result, the allowance may increase or decrease based on changes in facts and circumstances.

in 2018, Arconic reduced a valuation atlowance by $92 as a result of increasing a tax reserve for uarccognized tax benefits in
Spain. The valuation allowance reduction was partially offset by a 520 charge with respect to losses no longer supported by
reversing temporary differences. Arconie also recorded an additional valvation alowance of 361 and $675 in 2018 and 2017,
respectively, which ofTsets a deferred tax asset recorded for additiona! losses reported on the Spanish tax return related 10 the
Separation Transaction that are not more likely than not to be realized.

In 2016, Arconic recognized a $1,267 discrete income tax charge for valuation allowances retated 10 the Separation
Transaction, including $923 with respect to Alcoa Carporation’s net deferred tax assets in the United States, 3302 with respect
to Arconic's foreign tax credits in the United States, and $42 with respect to certain deferved tax assets in Luxembourg, partially
offset by $2 related o the net impact of other smaller items. After weighing all positive and negative evidence, as described
above, management detenmined that the net delerred tax assets of Alcoa Corporation were not more likely than not to be
realized due to tack of historical and projected domestic source taxable income As such, a valuation allowance was recorded
immediately prior to separation.

in 2016, Arconic also recorded additional s aluation allowances in Australia of $93 related to the Separation Transaction, in
Spain of $163 refated 1o a tax law change and in Luxembourg of $280 related o the Separation Transaction as well as a (ax law
change. These valuation allow ances fully offset current year changes in deferred tax asset balances of each respective
jurisdiction, resulting in no net impact to tax expense. The need for a valuation aliowance will be reassessed on a continuous
basis in future periods by each jurisdiction and. as a result. the allowances may increase or decrease based on changes in facts
and circumstances.

Arconic also recognized discrete income tax benefits in 2016 related to the release of valuation allowances on certain net
deferred tax assets in Russia and Canada of $19 and $20, respectively Afier weighing all available evidence, management
determined that it was more likely than not that the nei income 1ax benefits assaciated with the underlying deferred tax assets
would be realizable based on historic cumulative income and projected taxable mcome.



The following table details the changes in the valuation allowance:

December 31, 2018 2917 2016
Balance at beginning of year 8 2584 % 1940 § 1,291
increase to aljowance 136 £31 772
Release of aliowance (159) (246) (209)
Acquisitions and divestitures —— n (nH
Tax apportionment, tax rate and tax lasw changes {14} (24} 186
Foreign carrency translation (66) 84 (434
Balance at end of year S 248 § 2584 § 1,940

As a result of the 2087 Act, the non-previously taxed post-1986 foreign earnings and profits (calculated based on U.S. tax
principles) of cenain U.S.-owned foreign corporations has been subject to U.S. tax snder the one-time transition tax provisions.
The 2017 Act also created a new requirement that certain income eatned by foreign subsidiaries, GILTI, must be inciuded in the
gross income of the U S, shareholder. The 2017 Act also established the Base Erosion and Anti~-Abuse Tax (BEAT). In the first
quarier of 2018, Arconic made a final accounting policy election to treat taxes due from future inclusions in U.S. taxable
income related 1o GILTI as a current period expense when incurred. Arconic has estunated a GILTT inclusion for 2018 and
recorded tax expense accordingly. Arconic does not anticipate being subject to BEAT for 2013,

Foreign U.S. GAAP earnings that have not otherwise been subject 10 LLS. tax, will generally be exempt from future U.S. tax
under the 2017 Act when distributed. Such distributions, as well as distributions of previously taxed foreign eamings, could
potentially be subject to U.S. state tax in certain states, and foreign withholding taxes. Foreign currency gains/losses related to
the translation of previously taxed eamings from funclional ewstency to U.S dollars could also be subject to U.S. tax when
distributed. At this time, Arconic has no plans to distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. If such eamings were to be
distributed, Arconic would cxpect the potential U.S. state tax and withhelding tax impacts 1o be immaserial and the potential
deferred tax liability associated with future foreign currency gains to be impracticable 10 determine.

Arconic and its subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and various states and foreign jurisdictions.
With a few minar exceptions, Arconic is na langer subject to income tax examinations by tax authorities for yvears prior to
2006. Al U.S_ tax years prior to 2018 have been audited by the Internal Revenue Service. Various state and foreign jurisdiction
tax authorities are in the process of examining A rconic’s income tax returns for varicus tax years through 2017,

A reconcitiation of the beginning and eading amount of unrecognized tax benefits (excluding interest and penalties) was as
follows:

December 31, 2018 20017 2016
Balance at beginning of year 5 73 S 28 S I8
Additions for tax positions of the current year — 23 12
Additions for tax positions of prior years 143 27

Reductions {or tax positiens of prior years {42) — --
Settlements with tax autherities — - )
Expiration of the statute of fimitations (6j (5) (i)
Foreign currency translation (2) — —
Balance at end of vear 3 166 3 73 % 28

For all periods presented, a portior of the balance pertains to state tax liabilities, which are presented before any offset for
federal 1ax benefits. The effect of wnrecognized tax benefits, if recorded. that would impact the annual effective tax rate for
2018, 2017, and 2016 would be approximately §%c. 15%0. and &% o. respectively, of pre-tax book incame. Arconic does not
anticipate that changes in its unrecognized tax benefits will have a material impact on the Statement of Consolidated
Operations during 2019

Tt is Arconic™s policy to recognize interest and penalties related to income taxes as a component of the Provision for income
1axes on the accompanying Statemens of Consolidated Operations Arconic recognized interest of $22 and 81 for 2018 and
2017, respectively, but did not recognize any interest or penalties in 2016. Due ta the expiration of the statute of limitations.
settlements with tax authorities. and refunded overpayments, Arconic recognized interest income of 31 and 82 in 2018 and
2017, respectively. but did not recognize any nterest income in 2016 As of December 31, 2018, and 2017, the amount accrued
for the payment of interest and penalties was $21 and $2. respectively.
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I. Preferred and Common Stock

Preferred Steck. Arconic has two classes of preferred stock Class A Preferred Stock and Class B Serial Preferred Stock
Class A Preferred Stock has 660,000 shares authorized at a par value of $100 per share with an annual §3.75 cumulative
dividend preference per share. There were 546,024 shares of Class A Preferred Stock outstanding at December 31, 2018 and
2017. Class B Serial Preferred Stock has 10,000,000 shares authorized at a par value of S| per share. There were no shares of
Class B Serial Preferred Stock outstanding a1 December 31, 2018 and 2017 (sce below).

In September 2014, Arconic completed a public offering under its shelf registration statement for 51,250 of 23 million
depositary shares, each of which represenis a [ [Oth interest in a share of Arconic’s 3.373% Class B Mandatory Convertible
Preferred Stock, Series 1, par value $1 per share, liquidation preference $500 per share (the “Mandatory Convertible Preferred
Stock™). The 25 million depositary shares are equivalent to 2.5 million shares of Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock. Each
depositary share cnlitled the holder, through the depositary, o a proportional fractional interest in the rights and preferences of
a share of Mandasory Convertible Preferred Stock, including conversion. dividend, liquidation, and voting rights, subject to
terms of the deposit agreement. Arconic received $1.213 in net proceeds from the public offering reflecting an underwniting
discount. The net proceeds were used, together with the net proceeds of issued debt, to finance the cash portion of the
acquisition of Firth Rixsun. The underwriting discount was recorded as a decrease to Additional capital. The Mandatory
Converiible Preferred Stock constituted a series of Arconic's Class B Serial Preferred Stock, which ranks senior to Arconic’s
common stock and junior to Arconic’s Class A Preferred Stock and existing and future indebtedness, Holders of the Mandatory
Convertible Preferred Stock generally had ne voting rigits.

Dividends on the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stock were cumulanve in nature and paid at the rate of 326.8750 per annum
per share in 2016 and 20135, which commenced January 1, 2015 (paid on December 30, 2014).

On October 2, 2017, all ouistanding 24,975,978 depositary shares {each depositary share representing a 1'10th interest in a
share of the niandatory convertible preferred stock) were converted at a rate of 1.56996 into 39.211,286 comnion shares;
24,022 depositary shares were previously tendered for early conversion inlo 31,420 shares of Arconic common stock. No gain
or loss was recognized associated with this equity transaction Dividends on the Mandatory Convertible Preferred Stoch were
paid at the rate of $20.1563 per share in 2017.

Common Stock. Pursuant 10 the authorization provided at a special meeting of Arconic commaon shareholders held on

October 5, 2016, shareholders approved a 1-for-3 reverse stock split of Arconic’s outstanding and authorized shares of commeon
siock (the “Reverse Stock Split™). As a result of the Reverse Stock Split, eveny three shares of issued and cutstanding common
stock were combined into one issued and owtstanding share of common stock The Reverse Stock Split reduced the number of
shares of common stock outstanding from approximatety 1.3 bilkton shares to approximately 0.4 billion shares. The par value of
the common steck remained at §1 per share. Accordingly, Common stock and Additional capital in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31, 2016 reflected a decrease and ingrease of 3877, respectively. The number of
authorized shares of common steck was also decreased from 1.8 billion shares to 0 6 billion shares. The Contpany's common
stock began trading on a reverse stock split-adjusted basis on the NYSE on October 6, 2016.

[n August 2016, Arconic retired its outstanding treasury stack consisting of approximately 25 million shares {76 million shares
pre-Reverse Stock Split). As a result, Common stock and Additional capital in the accompanying 2016 Consolidated Balance
Sheet were decrensed by $76 and 52,563, respectively, 1o reflect the retirement of the treasury shares. As of December 31,
2018, and 2017, there was no outstanding treasury stock.

In July 2013, through the acgquisition of RT1 Intemational Metals Inc. (RT]), Arconic assumed the obiigatioa to repay two
tranches of convertible debt: one tranche was due and settled in cash on December I, 2015 {principal amount of §115) and the
other tranche is due on October 15, 2019 (principal amount of $403). unless earlier converted or purchased by Arconic at the
holder’s option under specific conditions. Upon conversion of the 2019 convertible notes, holders will receive, at Arconic’s
election, cash, shares of common stock (approximately 14.453.000 shares using the December 31. 2018 conversion rate of
35.91325 shares per §1,000 {not in millions) bond or per-share conversion price of $27.8455), or a combination of cash and
shares. On the maturity date, each holder of outstanding notes will be entitled to receive $1,000 (not in millions) in cash for
each $1,000 (not (n millions) bond, together with acerued and unpaid interest.

At December 31, 2018, 483.270.717 shares were issued and outstanding. Dividends patd in 2018 and 2017 were $0.24 per
annum or $0.06 per quarter and $0.36 per annum or $0.09 per quarter in 2016.

As of December 31, 2018, 47 million shares of common stock were reserved for isswance under Arconic’s stock-based
compensation plans. As of December 31, 2018, 41 million shares remain available for issuance. Arconic issues new shares 10
satisfy the exercise of stock options and the conversion of stock awards

See Note W for further information en common stock repurchases.
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Share Activity (number of shares)

Common steck

Treasury Outstanding
Balance st end of 2015 81,051,103 1,310,160,141
[ssued for stock-based compensation plans (5,219,66G) 5,302,128
Treasury stock retirement (75.831,443) —
Reverse Siock Split —— (876,942,489}
Balance at end of 2016 — 438,519.780
Conversion of convertible notes — 39,242,706
Issued for stock-based compensation plans - 3,654,051
Balance at end of 2017 — 481,416.537
Issued for stock-based compensation plans — 1,854,180
Balance at end of 2018 — 483,270,717

Stock-Based Compensation

Arconic has a stock-based compensation plan under which stoch eptions and restricied stock unit awards are granted in Jantary
each year to eligible employ ees. Stock options are granted at the closing markel price of Arconic’s comimon stock on the dale of
grant and typically vest over a three-year service period (1 3 each year) with a ten~year contractual termi. In 2018, there were
stock options granied that vest over a four-vear clifT service period. Restricted stock unil awards typically vest over a three-ycar
service period from the date of grant As part of Arconic’s stock-based compensation plan design, individuals who are
retiremeni-cligible have a six-month requisite service period in the year of grant Certain of these awards also include
performance and market conditions. For the majority of performance stock awards 1ssued in 2018, 2017, and 2016. the final
number of shares earned will be based on Arconic’s achievement of sales and profitability targets aver the respective three-year
performance periods. For awards issued in 2018 and 2017, the award will be eamed at the end of the three-year performance
period. For awards issued in 2016, one-third of the award will be earned each year based on the performance against the pre-
established 1argets for that year. The performance stock awards earned over the three-yeor pericd vest ot the end of the third
year. Additionally, the 2018 and 20617 awards will be scaled by a 1otal shareholder return {“TSR™) multiplier, which depends
upon relative three-year performance against the TSRS of a group of peer companies.

In 2018, 2017 and 2016, Arcenic recognized stock-based compensation expense of §30 {§39 after-1ax), 554 (536 after-tax), and
$76 ¢551 after-tax), respectively. The expense related to restricted stock unit awards 1 2018, 2017 and 2016 was approximately
85%0, B5% and B0%a, respectively. No stock-based compensation expense was capitalized in any of those years. 2017 stock-
based compensation expense was reduced by 513 for certain executive pre-vest cancellations which were recorded in
Resteucturing and other charges within the Statement of Consclidated Operations. At December 31, 2018, there was $52 {pre-
tax) of unrecognized compensation expense related Lo non-vested stock ophien granis and non-vested restricted stock unit
award grants. This expense is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.8 years.

Stoch-based compensation expense is based on the grant date fair value of the applicable equity grant. Fer resiricted siock unit
awards, tie fair value was equivalent (o the closing market price of Arconic’s common steck on the date of grant. The grant
date fair value ef the 2018 and 2017 performance awards coniaining a market condition was 520.25 and $21.99, respectively,
and was valued using a Meate Carlo model. A Mante Carlo simulation uses assumptions of stock price behavior to estimate the
probability of satisfying market conditions and the resulung fair value of the award. The risk-free interest rate {(2.7%¢in 2018
and 1.3%¢ in 2017) was based on a yield curve of interest rates at the time of the grant based on the remaining performance
period. Because of limited historical information due 1o the Separation Transaction, volatility (32.0% in 2018 and 38.0% in
2017) was estimated using imptied volatility and the representative price return approach, which uses price returns of
comparable companies, was used to develop a correlation assumption. For stock optioas. the fair value was estimated on the
date of grant using a lattice-pricing mode!, which generated a result of $9.79 ($10.99 for four-year cliff options). $6.26, and
$4.78 per option in 2018, 2047, and 2016. respectively. The lattice-pricing model uses a number of assumptions to estimate the
fair value of & stock option, including a risk-free interest rate, dividend yield, volatility, exercise behavior, and contractual life.
The following paragraph desctibes in detail the assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock options granted in 2018
{the assumptions used to estimate the fair value of stock options granted in 2017 and 2016 were not matecially different, except
as noted below).

The risk-free interest rate (2.5%6} was based on a yield curve of interest mates at the time of the grant based on the contractual
life of the option. The dividend yield (0.9°0) was based on a one-y ear average. Volatility (34.0% for 2018, 58.1% for 2017, and
44,595 in 2016} was based on comparable companies in 2018 and 2017 {except 2016 historical volatilities were used) and
imgplied volatilities over the term of the option. Arconic utilized historical option forfeilure data to estimate annual pre- and
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post-vesting forfeitures (6%0). Exercise behavior (61°¢) was based on a weighted average exercise ratio {exercise patterns for
grants issued over the number of vears in the contractual option term) of an option’s intrinsic value resulting from historical
employee exercise behavior. Based upon the other assumptions used in the determination of the fair value. the life of an option
(6.0 years (7.3 years for four-year cliff opticns)) was an outpul of the [attice-pricing model The activity for stoch options and
stoch awards during 2018 was as follows (options and awards m millions)

Stock options Stock awards

Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of  average FMV

options exercise price awards per award
Outstanding, January 1, 2018 1 s 23.94 7 5 21,49
Granted 1 29.97 2 26.48
Exercised {1 18 95 — —
Converted - — (1) 3275
Expired or forfeited {1 26 95 (1) 21.10
Performance share adjusument -— — - 13.47
Outstanding, December 31,2018 10 8 24.95 7 8 21.13

As of December 31, 2018, the number of stock options owstanding had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 4 8
years and a total intrinsic value of §3. Additionally, 7.8 milion of the stock options cutstanding were Nuly vested and
exercisable and had a weighled average remaining contractual life of 3.7 y cars, a weighted average exercise price of $25.49,
and a total intrinsic value of 32 as of December 31, 2018. In 2018, 2017, and 2016. the cash received from stock option
exercises was 316, $30. and $4 and the 1otal tax benefit realized from these exercises was $2, 84, and 30, respectively. The toral
imrinsic value of stoch oplions exercised during 2018, 2017 and 2016 was $7, S13. and $1. respectively

J. Earnings Per Share

Basic carnings per share (EPS) amounts are computed by dividing eamings (loss), after the deduction of preferred stock
dividends declared, by the averagze number of common shares outstanding. Diluted EPS amounts assume the issuance of
common stock for all potentiaily dilutive share equivalents outstanding.

The information used to compute basic and diluted EPS attribulable 10 Arconic common sharcholders was as follows (shares in
willions):

For the year ¢nded December 31, 2018 2017 2014
Net income (loss) from continuing operations attributable to Arconic $ 642 8 (74) S {1,062)
Less: preferred stock dividends declared (B3] (33) (69)
;?‘;t::;‘g l(‘;g::) from continuing operations available to Arconic common 640 (127 (1131
Incame from discontinued operations after income taxes and ] - 121
nopcoatrolling interests
Net income {loss) available to Arconic commeon shareholders —basic 540 (127) (1,010)
Add: interest expense relaled to convertible notes 11 —
Net income (loss) available to Arconic common shareholders - diluted ) 651 § (127 § (1,010
Average shares outstanding - basic 483 451 438
Effect of dilutive securities:

Stock options i -

Stock and performance awards 5 — —

Convertible nates 14 — -
Average shares outstanding - diluted 503 451 438

" Calculated from the Siatement of Consolidated Operations as Income from discontinued operations after income taxes

less Net income from discontinued operations attributable to noncontrolling interests.
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The following shares were excluded from the calculation of average shares outsianding - diluted as their effect was anti-

dijutive (shares in millions).

2018 2017 2016
Mandatory conventible preferred stock na 3% 39
Conventible notes — 4 14
Stock options'™ 9 11 13
Stock awards ? 2

t

respectively.

The average exercise price of options per share was $26.79, §33.32, and $26.93 for 2018, 2017, and 2014,

In 2017, had Arconic generated sufficient pet income, 30 million, 14 million, 5 million, and | million potential shares of

common stock related to the mandatory convertible preferred stock, convertible notes. stock awards, and stock options.

respectively, would have been inciuded in diluted average shares outstanding. The mandatory convertible prefetred stock

converted on October 2, 2017 (see Note ).

I 2016, had Arcanic generated sufficient net income, 28 million. 10 million, 4 million. and | million potential shares of

commoan stock related to the mandatory convertible preferred stock, convertible notes. stock awards. and stock options.

respectively, would have been included in diluted average shares oulstanding.
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K. Accumulated Qiher Comprehensive Loss

The following 1able details the activity of the four components that comprise Accumulated other comprehensive loss for both

Arconic’s shareholders and noncontroiling interests:

Arconit MNoncontrolling Interests
2018 2017 2016 2016
Pension and other postretirement benefits (G)
Balance at beginning of period S (21308 (2SS (3.61H § — 5 — 3§ (36)
Adoption of accounting standard {A) (369) — - - - -
Other comprehensive income (loss):
eco ;
‘Is}nr;rv_besgtl_'zted net actuarial loss and prior service 10 (466) (1,112) . _ 9}
Tax {expense) benelt {19} 102 330 — — 3
Totl Ciber compreersive inome (s s ee o - — @
AmqniZniio‘Tlofnel actuarial loss and prior 262 233 389 _ _ 4
service cost
Tax expense’”! (38) (78) {136) — — 13}
Tasmomheiifondcegioed T 00 e 3~ =3
Total Other compreheasive income (toss) 255 {220} {479) — —— (3)
Transfer to Alcoa Corporation — —— 2,080 — — 59
Balance at end of period S (2345 (223003 (2010} — 3 — 5 —
Forcign currency transiation
Balance a1 beginning of period s (4378 (689)% (2.412) — 3§ {(2)$ (780}
Other comprehensive {loss) income'™ (146) 252 268 — 2 182
Transfer to Alcoa Corporation — — 1,455 — — 596
Balance a1 end of period 8 (583) 8 (437} § (689) =3 -~ 8 2)
Available-far-sale securities -
Balance at beginning of period s (2) % 132 § {5} — 3 — 8
Other comprehensive (loss) income' (1) (134) 137 — — —
Balance at end of period $ (3} 8 ()8 132 - 8 — 8 —
Cash flow hedges
Balance at beginning of period 3 1558 (s 597 - 3 - § t3)
Adoption of accounting standard (A} 2 -— -— - - -
Other comprehensive (foss) income:
Net change from periodic revalvations (15) 37 (843) — - 36
Tax benefit (expense) 3 {9 252 - — {10}
ESFE?':? rte}lcﬁ;:.f:lfl':g;;};:?‘;:t S e (12) 28 (591) - — 26
Net amouni reclassified to earnings
Aluminum contracts'™ (8} (3] ] - - -
Energy contracts™ - — (49) - (34}
Interesi rate contracis”’ {2) — 9 - - 5
Nickel contracts™ (4) {H) 1 — -
Sub-iotal {14) 3) 38 = — (29)
Tax benefit'™ 3 1 12 — — 8
Totat amount reclassified from
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net {11} (2) (26) — — (21)
of tax'®
Total Other comprehensive (loss} income {23) 26 (617) — — 5
Transfer vo Alcoa Corporation — — 19 - — {2)
Balance at end of period s 48 5 5 {1} — § — § —
Total balance at end of period £ (20936)% (264018 (2;(22 — 8§ — § (2}
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These amounts were included in the computation of net periodic benefit cost for pension and cther postretirement
benefits {see Note G).

These amounts were included in Provision for income taxes on the accompany ing Statement of Consolidated
Operations.

In ail periods presented, there were no tax impacts related to rale changes and ne amounts were reclassified to
eamnings.

)]

o Realized gains and losses were included in Other expense (income), net, net on the accompanying Statement of

Consolidated Operations,

o These amounts were included in Sales on the accompanying Statement of Consolidated Qperations.

® These amounits were included in Cost of goods sold on the accompanying Statement of Consolidaied Operations.

™ These amounts were included in Interest expense on the accompanying Statement of Consolidated Operations,

- A positive amount indicates a corresponding charge to earnings and a negative amount indicates a cotresponding

benefit to earnines. These amounts were reflected on the accompanying Statement of Consolidated QOperations in the
fine items indicated in footnotes 1 througl 7.

L. Receivables
Sale of Receivables Program

Arconic has an ammangement with three financial institntions to sell certain customer receivables without recourse on a
revolving basis. The sale of such receivables is completed using a bankruptey remote special purpose entity, whick is a
consolidated subsidiary of Arconic, This arrangement provides up to a maximum funding of 5400 for receivables sold. Arconic
maintains a bencficial interest, or a right 10 collect cash, on the sold receivables that have not been funded (deferred purchase
program). On March 30, 2012, Arconic initially sold $304 of customer receivables in exchange for $50 in cash and $254 of
deferred purchase program under the armrungement. Arconic has received additional net cash funding of $300 (82,938 in draws
and $2,658 in repayments) since the program’s inception, including net cash draws totaling SO (8600 in draws and $600 in
repayments) in 2018 and net cash draws 1otaling 30 (3600 in draws and 5608 in repayments) in 2017,

As of December 31, 2018, and 2017, the deferred purchase program receivable was $234 and $187, respectivety, which was
included in Other receivables on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet. The deferred purchase progeam receivable is
reduced as collections of the underlying receivables occur: however, as this is a revolving program, the sale ol new receivables
wifl result in an increase in the deferred purchase program receivable. The gross amount of receivables sold and total cash
collected under this program since its inception was 331,784 and $41,200 respectively Arconic services the customer
receivables for the financial institutions at market rates; therelore, no servicing assel or liability was recorded.

In 2018 and 2017, the gross cash outflows and inflows associated with the deferred purchase program receivable were $6.373
and $6,328 respectively, and $5,471 and $5.367, respectively

Cash receipts from customer payments on sold receivables (which are cash receipts on the underlying trade receivables that
have been previously sold in this program) as well as cash receipts and cash disbursemenis from draws and repayments under
the program are presented as cash receipis from sold receivables within investing activitics in the Statement of Cansolidated
Cash Flows. See Note A for additional infermation on new accounting guidance that impacts the Company.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The following table details the changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts related to customer receivables and other
receivables:

Customer receivables Qther receivables
2018 2017 2016 2018 2017 2016
Balance at beginning of year b g S5 3 8 8 5 34 % 32 8§ 34
Provision for doubtfui accounts 2 1 7 7 9 6
Write off of uncollectible accounts {2) {5) 3) {2) () (1)
Recoveries of prior write-offs — - ) (3) 3) !
Other (4) 1 2 (3) 3} (8)
Balance at end of year s 4 5 8 § 13 § i 8 34 8 32
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M. Inventories

December 31, 2018 2017

Finished goods 5 668 § 669
Wark-in-process 1.371 1.349
Purchased raw materials 366 381
Operating supplies 87 81
Total inventories &) 2492 § 2480

Al December 31, 2018 and 2817, the pontion of inventories valued on a LIFO basis was $1,292 and 51,208, respectively, If
valued on an average-cost basis, total inventories would have been $330 and $481 higher at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. During 2018 and 2017 reductions in LIFO inventory quantities caused partial liquidations of the lower cost LIFO
inventory base. These liquidations resulted in the recognition of immaterial income amounts in 2018, 2017, and 2016.

In the second quarter of 2018, a charge of $23 was recorded in Cost of poods sold and [nventories to reflect a physical
inventory adjustment at one plant in the Engineered Prodbcts and Solutions segment While a portion of this charge relates to
prior years, the majority relates to 2018, The out-of-peried amounts were not material 10 any interim or annual periods.

N. Properties, Plants, and Equipment, Net

December 31, 2018 2817
Land and fend rights s 136 % i40
Siructures:
Engineered Products and Solutions 796 784
Global Rolled Products 1,068 1,090
Transportation and Construction Solutions 248 268
Other 252 253
2,364 2,595
Machinery and equipment:
Engineered Products and Solutions 3437 3,054
Global Rolled Products 4,629 4,641
Transportation and Construciion Solutions 748 777
Other 420 358
9,234 8,830
11,734 11,365
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 6,769 6,392
4,965 4,973
Cansteuction work-in-progress 739 611
3 5,704 % 5.594

During the second quarter of 201 8. the Company updated its three-year strategic plan and determined that there was a decline
in the forecosted financial performance for the disks operations, an asset group within the Arconic Engines business unit. As
such, the Company evaluated the recoverability of the long-lived asse1s by comparing their carrying value of approximately
$515 10 the estimated undiscounted net cash flows of the disks operations, resulting in an estimated fair value in excess of their
carrying value of approximately 13%,; thus, there was no impairmenl. If the disks operations do not achieve the revised
forecasted financial performance or if there are changes in any significant assumiptions, a material non-cash impairment of
tong-lived assets may occur in future periods. These significant assumptions include sales growth, cost of raw materials, ramp
up of additional production capacity, and working capital A [%o decrease in the forecasted net cash flows would reduce the
undiscousnted cash flows by approximately 6. There were no indicators of impairment identified for the disks operations
during the third or fourth quarters of 20138 and, as such, the Company did not evaluate the recoverability of its long-lived assets
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O. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The follewing 1able detaits the changes in the carrving amount of goodwili:

Balances at Decernber 31, 2016
Goodwill
Accumulated impairment losses
Goodwill, net
Impainment {A}
Translation and other
Balances at December 31, 2017
Goodwill
Accumulated impairment losses
Goodwill, net
Divestitures (T)
Translation and other
Balances at December 31, 2018
Goodwill
Accumulated impairment losses
Goodwill, net

Engineered Transpertation
Products Global anmd
and Rolled Construction
Solutions Products Solutians Total
Ly 4,832 5§ 241 8§ i28 S 5.201
— — {33) (53)
4,832 241 75 5,148
(719) —- — (719)
92 Il 3 106
4924 232 131 3.307
{719 —- (53) (772)
4,205 252 78 4.535
n — ()
(25) (7 (2) (34)
4,398 245 129 5272
(719) ‘e {53) (772}
b 4,179 S 245 8 76 5 4.500

In 2017, Arconic recognized an impairment of goodwill in the amount of §719 related to the annual impairment review of the
Arconic Forgings and Extrusions business. See Goodwill policy in Note A.

Other intangible assets were as follows:

December 31,2018

Computer sofiware

Patents and licenses

Other imangibles

Total amortizable intangible assets
Indefinite-lived trade names and trademarks
Total other intangible assets

December 31, 2017

Computer software

Patents and licensas

Other intangibles

Total amortizable intangible assets
indefinite-lived trade names and trademarks
Total other intangible assets

Gross
carryving Accumulated  Intangibies,
amaunt amortization net
3 768 S (657 § 111
116 (107) 3
912 (E4%) 773
1,800 913) BR7
32 — 32
$ 1,832 § (913) § 919
Gross
carrying Accn rr!uln.lcd Intangibles,
amount amortization net
g 789 § (674) § 115
f10 (i67) 3
953 (118) 837
1,852 (897} 935
32 — 32
5 i,884 § (887) § 987

Computer software consists primarily of software custs assoctated with 2n enterprise business solution within Arconic to drive

common systems among all businesses.

Amortization expense related to the intangible assets in the tables above for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and
2016 was S81, §71, and S63. respectively. and is expected to be in the range of approximately 563 to $78 annually from 2819 to

2023,




P. Debt
Long-Term Debt.

December 31, 2018 2017
5,72% Notes, due 2019 b3 — 8 300
1.63% Convenible Notes, due 2019 403 403
6.150% Notes, due 20620 1,000 1,000
5.30% Notes, due 2021 1.250 1.250
5 87% Notes, due 2022 627 627
5 125% Notes, due 2024 1,250 1,250
5.90% Notes, due 2027 625 625
6 75% Bonds, due 2028 300 300
5.95% Notes due 2037 625 625
lowa Finance Authority Loan. due 2042 {4.75%0) 250 250
Other'"! {29) (23)
6,301 6,807
Less: amount due within one year 405 |
5 589 § 6,806

Includes various financing arrangements related 1o subsidiaries, unamortized debt discounts related 10 outsianding
notes and bonds histed in the table above, an equity option refated to the convertible notes due in 2019, and
unamortized debt 1ssuance costs

The principal amount of long-term debt maturing in each of the next five years is $405 in 2019, $1,000 in 2020, 1,250 in
2021, 5627 in 2022, and 50 in 2023.

Public Debt — During the first guarter of 2018, the Company compieted the early redemption of its remaining outstanding
5.7220 Notes due in 2019, with aggregate principal amount of $500, for $518 in cash including accrued and unpaid interest. As
a result, the Company recorded a charge of $19 in Interest expense in the accompanying Statement of Consotidated Operations
for 2018 primarily for the premimm paid on the carly redemption of these notes in excess of their carrying value.

During the second quanter of 2017, the Company announced three separate cash tender offers by the [nvestiment Banks for the
purchase of the Company s 6.50%s Bonds duc 2018 (the "6 50%c Bonds"). 6.75% Notes due 2018 (the *0.75% Notes™). and
5.72% Notes due 2019 {the *5,72% Notes™}, up to a maximum purchase amount of $1,000 aggregate principal samount of notes.
subject to certain conditions. The [nvestment Banks purchased notes totaling $805 aggregate principal amouny, including $130
agpregate principal amount of 6.50% Bonds, $403 aggregate principal amount of 6.75% Notes, and $250 aggregate principal
amount of 5.72%s Notes.

Also. during the second quarter of 2017. the Company agreed to acquire the notes from the Investment Banks for $409 in cash
plus its remaining investment in Alcoa Corporation common stack (12,958,767 shares valued at $35.91 per share) for wtal
consideration of 5874 including acerued and unpaid interest The Company recorded a charge of $58 (327 in cash) primarily for
the premium for the eacly redemption of the notes, a benefit of $8 for the proceeds of a related interest rate swap agreement,
and a charge of 52 for legal fees associated with the transaction in Interest expense. and recorded a gain of 3167 in Other
income, net in the accompanying Statement of Consolidated Operations for the Debt-for-Equity Exchange.

Finally, during the secand quarter of 2017, the Company compleied the early redemption aof its remaining outstanding 6.50%
Bonds, with aggregate principal amount of $100, and its remaining outstanding 6.73%e Notes, with aggregate principal amount
of 8345, for $479 in cash including accrued and unpaid interest As a result of the early redeniption of the 6.50% Bonds and
6.75% Notes, the Company recerded a charge of $24 in Interest expense in the accompanying Statement of Consolidated
Opetations for the premium paid for the early redemption of these noles in excess of their camying value.

The Company has the option to redeem certain of its Notes and Bonds in whele or pan, at any time at a redemption price equal
1o the greater of principal amount or the sum of the preseni values of the remaining scheduled payments, discounted using a
defined 1reasury rate plus a spread, plus in either case accrued and unpaid interest 1o the redemption date.

Credit Facilities. On July 25, 2614, Arconic entered into a Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement with a syndicate of lenders
and issuers named therein, which provides for a senior unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Credit Facility™). By an
Extension Request and Amendment Letter dated as of June 5, 2015, the matunty date of the Credit Facility was extended to
July 25, 2020. On September 16, 2016, Arconic entered into Amendment Ne. | to the Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement
to permit the Separation Transaction and to amend centain terms of the Credit Agreement. inchuding the replacement of the
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existing financial covenant with a leverage ratio and reduction of total commiiments avatlable from $4,000 10 §3,00¢. On lune
29, 2018. Arconic entered into Amendment No. 2 {"Amendment No. 27) to amend and restate the Five-Year Revolving Credit
Agreement. The Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement, as so amended and restated, is herein referred to as the “Cradit
Agreement.”

The Credit Agreement provides a $3.000 Credit Facility, the proceeds of which are to be used to provide working capilal or for
other general corporate purposes of Arcanic. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Credit Agreement, Arconic may from
time to fime request increases in lender commitments under the Credit Facility, not o exceed $500 in aggregate principal
amount, and may also request the issuance of letters of credit. subject 1o a letter of credit sublimit of $1,000 of the Credit
Facility. Pursuant ta the Credit Agreement, Arconic shall not permii the ratio of Consolidated Net Debt (o Consolidated
EBITDA (each as defined in the Credit Agreement) as of the end of each fiscal quarter for the period of the four fiscal quartess
mosi recently ended, to be greater than 4.50 to 1.00, which maximum level will step down successively to 4.00 to 1.00 on
December 31, 2018, and to 3.50 1o 1.00 on December 31, 2019 and thereafter.

The Credit Agreement includes additional covenants, including. among others, (a) limisations on Arconic’s ability 10 incur liens
securing indebtednass for borrowed money, (b} Himitations on Arconic’s abibity 1o consummate 3 merger, consolidation or sale
of all or substantially all of its assets, and {c} limitations on Arconic's ability to change the nature of its business. As of
December 31, 2018, Arconie was in compliance with all such covenants.

The Credit Facility matures on June 29, 2023, unless extended or earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of the
Credit Agreement. Arconic may make two one-year extension requests during the term of the Credit Facility, subject to the
tender consent requirements set forth in the Credit Agreement. Under the provisions of the Credit Agreement, Arconic will pay
a fee of 0.25% per annum (based on Arconic’s current long-term debt ratings) of the total commitment 1o maintain the Credit
Facility.

The Credit Facility is unsecured and amounts payable under it will rank pari passu with all other unsecured. unsubordinated
indebtedness of Arconic. Borrowings under the Credit Facility may be denominated in U.S. dollars or euros. Loans will bear
interest at a base rate or a rate equal 1o LIBOR. plus, in cach case, an applicable margin based on the credit ratings of Arconic’s
outstanding senior unsecured long-term debt. The applicable margin on basc rate Joans and LIBOR loans will be 0.50% and
1.50% per annum, respectively, based on Arconic's current long-term debt ratings. L.oans may be prepaid without premivm or
penalty. subject to customary breakage costs.

The obligation of Arconic 1o pay amounts outstanding under the Credit Facility may he accelerated upon the oceurrence of an
“Event of Default” ag defined in the Credit Agreement. Such Events of Default include, among others, (a) non-payment of
obligations: (b) breacls of any representation or warranty in any material respeet; (¢) non-performance of covenants and
obligations; {&) with respect to other indebtedness in a principal amount in excess of $100 million, a default thereunder that
causes such indebtedness to become due prior to its stated maturity or a default in the payment at maturity of any principal of
such indebledness: (e} the bankrupicy or insolvency of Arconic; and {f) a change in control of Arconic,

There were no amaunts oulstanding at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and no amounts were borrowed during 2018, 2017, or
2016 under the Credit Facility

In addition 1o the Credit Agreement above, Arconic has a number of other credit agreements that provide a combined
borrowing capacity of $713 as of December 31, 2018, of which 3465 is due to expire 11 2019 and $250 is due to expire in 2020
The purpose of any borrowings under these credit arrangements is to provide for werking capital requirements and for ather
geaeral corporate purposes. The covenants contained in all these arrangements are the same as the Credit Agreement. In 2018,
2017, and 2016. Arconic borrowed snd repaid $600. $810, and $1.950, respectively, under the respective credit arrangements.
The weighted-average intercst rate and weighted-average days outstanding of the respective borrowings during 2018, 2017, and
2016 were 3.3%, 2.6%, and 1.9%0, respectively, and 46 days, 46 days, and 49 days, respectively.

Short-Term Debt. At December 31, 2018 and 2017, short-term debt was $29 and $38. respectively. These amoums inciuded
§29 and 333 at December 31. 2018 and 2017, respectively. related 1o accounts payable settlement arrangements with certain
vendors and third-party intermediaries. These arrangemens provide that, at the vendor's request. the third-party intermediary
advances the amount of the scheduled payment to the vendor. less an appropnate discount, before the scheduled payment date
and Arconic makes payment to the third-party intermediary on the date stipufated in accordunce with the commercial terms
negotiated with its vendors, Arconic records impuled interest related 1o these arrangements in Interest expense on the
accompanying Statement of Consolidated Operations.

Commercial Paper, Arconic had no outstanding commercial paper at December 3§, 2018 and 2017, 1a 2018 and 2017, the
average outstanding commercial paper was $4% and $67, respectively. Commercial paper matures at various times within one
year and had an annual weighted average interest rate of 2.5%, 1.6%, and 1.1%a during 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively
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Q. Other Noncurrent Liabilities and Deferred Credits

December 31, 2018 2017
Environmental remediation (U) L) 185 § 253
Income taxes {H}) 146 162
Accrued compensation and retirement costs 195 218
Sale-leaseback financing obligation 119 -
Otler 94 126
;) 736 S 759

The sale-leaseback financing obligation represents the cash received from the sale of the Texarhana Texas cast house. The
transaction has been accounted for as a deferred gain due to continuing ivolvement. See Note T

R. Other Financial Instrumeats

Fair Value. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 2 liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value Merarchy distinguishes between (i) market
participant assumptions developed based on market data obiained fram independent sources (observable inputs) and (ii) an
enlity’s own assumptions about market participant assumptions developed based on the best information available in the
circumstances {unobservable inputs), The fair value hierarchy consists of three broad levels, which gives the highest priority
unadjusted quoted prices in active marhets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowesl priority 10 unobservable
inputs (Level 3}, Fhe three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

+  Level | - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricted assets or Habilities

+  Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asser or Liability, either
directly or indirectiy, including quoted prices for simitar assets or Habilities in active markets. quoted prices for
identical or similar assets or hiabilities in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability (e.g., interess rates), and inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by
abservable marker data by correlation or other means.

»  Level 3 - Inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobsenvable.

The carrying values of Cash and cash equivalents, Restricted cash, Derivatives. Noncurrent recervables and Short-term debt
included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet approximate ther fair values The Company holds exchange-traded fixed income
securities which are considered available-for-sale securities that are carried at fair value which is based on quated market prices
which are classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of Long-term debt, less amount due within one year
was based on quoted market prices for public debt and on interest rates that are currently available to Arconic for issuance of
debt with similar terms and maturities for non-public debt The fair value amounis for all Leng-tern debt were classified in
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy

2018 2617

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
December 34, value vilue value vajue
Long-term debt, less amount due within one year 5,896 5873 6,806 7.443
8. Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest and income taxes was as follows:

2018 2017 2016

Interest, net of amount capitalized $ 391 5 508 § 524
Incote taxes, net of amount refunded Y 745 1g 324

As it relates to cash paid for acquisitions, during 2016, Arconic made a $10 cash payment for a working capital adjustment
from a prior period acquisition.

During 2016, Arconic sold various securities held by its captive insurance company for $130. and an equity interest in a natural
aas pipeline of $145 (Alcoa Corporation), both of which were included in Sales of investments on the accompanying Statement
of Consolidated Cosh Flows



In 2016, Arconic received $457 in proceeds from the redemption of certain company-owned life insurance policies. sold its
Intalco smelter wharf property (Alcoa Corporation) for $120, and sold the Remmele Medical business {see Note T} for 5102,
These amounts were included in Proceeds from the sale of assets and businesses on the accompanying Statement of
Consolidated Cash Flows.

Noncash Financing and Investing Activities. On October 2, 2017, alt outstanding 24.975,978 depositary shares (sach
depositary share representing a 1/10th interest in a share of the mandatory convertible preferred stock) were converted at a rate
of 1.56996 into 39,211,286 common shares; 24,022 depositary shares were previously 1endered for early conversion into
31,420 shares of Arconic common stock. No gain or loss was recognized associated with this equity transaclion (see Note 1).

In the second quarnier of 2017, the Company completed & Debt-for-Equity Exchange with the Investment Banks for the
remaining portion of Arconic’s retained interest in Alcoa Corparation common stock for a portion of the Company’s
outstanding notes held by the Investment Banks for $465 including accrued and unpaid interest {see Note P).

On October 5, 2016, Arconic completed a L-for-3 Reverse Stock Split (see Note [). The Reverse Stock Split reduced the
number of shares of common stock outstanding from approximately 1.3 billion shares to approximately 0.4 billion shares. The
par value of the comumon stock remained at $1.00 per share. Accordingly, Commion stock and Additional capital in the
Company's Statement of Changes in Consolidated Equity at December 31, 2016 reflect a decrease and increase of $877,
respectively.

In August 2016, Arconie retired jts outstanding treasury stock consisting of approximately 76 million shares {see Note L). As a
result, Commean stock and Additional capital were decreased by $76 and $2,563, respectively, in the Company’s Statement of
Changes in Consolidated Equity at December 31, 2016, to reflect the retirement of the treasury shares.

T. Acquisitions and Divestitures

2618 Divestitures, On April 2, 2018, Arconic completed the sale of its Latin America extrusions business 16 o subsidiary of
Hydro Extruded Solutions AS for 82, following the settlement of post-closing and other adjustments in December 2018. Asa
result of entering into the agreement to sell the Latin America extrustons business in December 2017, a charge of 841 was
recognized in the fourth quarter of 2017 in Restructuring and other charges in the Statement of Conselidated Operations related
1o the non-cash impairment of the net book value of the business and an additional charge of 82 related to a post-closing
adjustment was recognized in the fourth quarter of 2018. The operating results and assets and liabilities ol the business were
inciuded in the Transperiation and Conslruction Solutions segment. This busincss generated sales of 325, $115, and $183 in
2018, 2017, and 2046 respectively. and had 612 employees at the time of the divestiture.

On July 31, 2018, the Company announced that it had iritiated a sale process of its Building and Construction Systems (BCS)
business, as part of the Company’s ongoing strategy and portfolio review that commenced in January 2018. BCS is part of the
Transportation and Construction Soiutions segment and generated third-party sales of approximately §1,140, 1,670, and
51,010 for 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively. The sale process continues 1o progress The Company's decision regarding
whether to sell the business will not be finalized until final binding offers are evaluated at a fater stage in the sale process. Until
the Company makes that final decision, the BCS business will remain classified as held and in-usc in the Consolidated
Financial Statements,

On Ociober 31, 2018, the Company sold its Texarkana, Texas rotling mill and cast house, which had a combined net book value
of $63, 1o Ta Chen International. Inc. for $302 in cash. subject to post-closing adiustments, plus additional contingent
consideration of up 10 $50. The contingent consideration relates to the achievement of various milestones within 36 months of
the transaction closing date associated with operationalizing the roting mili equipment The operating results and assets and
liabilities of the business were included in the Global Rolled Products segment The Texarkana rolling mill facitiny had
previously been idle since late 2009. In early 2016, the Company restarted the Texarkana cast house to meet demand for
alumtinum slab. As part of the agreement, the Company will continue to produce aluminum slab at the facility for a period of 18
months through a lease back of tite cast house building and equipment, after which time, Ta Chen will perform to]l processing
of metal for the Company for a period of six months. The Company will supply Ta Chen with cold-roiled aluminum coil during
this 24-month period.

The sale of the rolling mill and cast house has been accounted for separately. The gain on the sale of the rolling milt of $134,
including the fair value of contingent consideration of $5, was recorded in Restructuring and other charges in the Statement of
Consolidated Operations in the fourth quarter of 2018. The Company will reevaluate its estimate of the amount of contingent
consideration to which it will be entitled ar the end of each reporting periad and recognize any changes therero in the Statement
of Consolidated Operations. The Company has continuing involvement related to the lease back of the cast house. and.
therefore has deferred the gain associated with the cast house in 2018. As a resuit, the Company continues to treat the casg
house building and equipment that it sold to Ta Chen as owned and therefore refiected these assets in its Consolidated Balance
Sheet and has been depreciating them over their remaining useful life. Additionally, the Company recorded the cash proceeds
associated with the sale of the cast house assets as a noncurrent Liability in its Consolidated Balance Sheet which included a
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deferred gain of $935. The Company will adopt the new lease accounting standard in the first quarter of 2019, under which the
Company's continuing involvement no longer requires deferral of the cast house gain. As such, the deferred gain on the sale of
the cast house will be treated as a cumulative effect of an accounting change within retained earnings on January 1, 2019.

On December 3§, 2018, as part of 1he Company's angoing strategy and portfolio review, Arconic completed the sale of its Eger.
Hungary forgings business to Angstrom Autorotive Group LLC for 52, which resulted in a loss of 343 recorded in
Restructuring and other charges in the Statement of Consolidated Operations. The operating results and assets and Labilities of
the business were included in the Engineered Products and Solutions segment. This business generated sales of $32, $38, and
$29in 2018, 2017, and 2016 respectively, and had 180 employees at the time of the divestiture.

2017 Pivestitures. In March 2017, Arconic completed the sale of its Fusina, Italy rolling mill to Slim Aluminium. While
owned by Arconic, the operating results and assets and liabilities of the Fusina. Italy rolling milf were included in the Global
Rolled Producis segment. As part of the transaction. Arconic injected $10 of cash into the business and provided a third-party
guarantee with a fair vafue of 35 related to Slim Aluminium’s environmental remediation. The Company recorded a loss on the
sale of $60, which was recorded in Restructuring and other charges on the Statement of Consolidated Operations for 2017. The
robtling mitl generated sales of approximately S54 and $165 for 2017 and 2016, respectively. At the time of the divestiture, the
rolling mill had approximately 312 employees.

2016 Divestitures. In April 2016, Arconic compleled the sale of the Remmele Medical business to LISI MEDICAL for $102 in
cash (599 net of transaction costs), which was inciuded in Proceeds from the sale of assets and businesses on the accompanying
Swatement of Consolidated Cash Flows. This business, which was part of the RTI acquisition in 2015, manufactured precision-
machined metal producis for customers in the minimatly invasive surgical device and implantable device markets. Since this
trapsaction occurred within a year of the conipletion of the RT{ acquisition, no gain was recorded on this transaction as the
excess of the proceeds over the carrving value of the net assets ol this business was reflected as a purchase price adjustmen
{decrease to goodwill ol $447 to the final allocation of the purchase price related 10 Arconic’s acquisition of RTi. While owned
by Arconic, the operating results and assets and liabilities of this business were included in the Engineered Products and
Solutions segment. This business generated sales of approximately 320 from January I, 2016 through the divestiture date,
April 29, 2016, and, at the time of the divestiture. had approximately 330 employees.

2014 Acquisitions. In November 2014, Arconic acquired Firth Rixson. The purchase price included an eam-out agreement that
required Arconic to make eam-out payments op fo an aggregate maximum amount of $136 through December 31. 2020 upon
cenain conditions. This eam-out was contingent on the Firth Rixson forging business in Savannah, Georgia achieving cerain
identified financial wargets through December 31, 2020. During the fourth quarter of 2016, management determined that
payrient of the maximum amount was not probable based on the forecasted financial perfurmance of this location. Therefore,
the fair value of this liability was reduced by $56 with a corresponding credit to Other income, net on the accompanying
Statement of Consolidated Operations. During the fourth quarter of 2017, manazement determined that payment of the
remaining amount of the contingent liability was not probable based on the forecasied financial performance of this location
Therefore, the fair value of this liability was reduced by 581 10 zero ar December 31, 2017 with a corresponding credit to Other
income, net on the accompanying Statement of Consolidated Operations. The fair value of this hiability remains at zero at
December 31, 2018 based on the forecasted financial performance of this location,

U. Contingencies and Commitments

Contingencies

Environmental Matters. Arconic participates in environmental assessments and cleanups at more than 100 locations These
include owned or operating facilities and adjeining properties, previously owned or operating facilities and adjoining
properties, and waste sites, including Superfund (Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act
{CERCLA)) sites.

A liability is recorded for environmental remediation when a cleanup program becomes probable and the costs can be
reasonably estimated. As assessments and cleanups proceed, the liability is adjusted based on progress made in determining the
exteni of remedial actions and reiated costs. The liability can change substantially due to factors such as the nature and extent
of contamination, changes in remedial requirements, and technolegical changes, among others.

Arconic’s remediation reserve balance was $266 at December 31, 2018 and $294 at December 31, 2017 (of which 881 and $41,
respectively, was classified as a current liability), and reflects the most probable costs to remediate identified environmental
corditions for which costs can be reasonably estimated. In 2018, the Company has seen higher expendrtures with the start of
construction related to the Grasse River project. Arconic expects that trend to coatinue for 2019 as reflecied by the increase in
the portion of the reserve that is considered a current liability. Payments related to remediation expenses spplied against the
reserve were $32 in 2018 and $26 in 2017 and includes expenditures currently mandated., as well as those not required by any
regulatory authority or third pany,

97



Included in annual operating expenses are the recurring costs of managing hazardous substances and environmemal programs.
These costs are estimated 1o be approximately 1% or less of cost af goods soid.

The following discussion provides details regarding the current status of the most significant remediation reserves related 0 a
current Arconic site.

Massena West, NY—Arconic has an ongoing remediation project related to the Grasse River. which is adjacent (o Arconic’s
Massena plant site. Many years ago. it was deiermined that sediments and fish in the river contain varying levels of
polvchlorinated biphenyls (PCBs). The project, which was selected by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) in a
Record of Decision issued in Apri 2013, is aimed at capping PCB contaminated sediments with concentration in excess of one
part per million in the main channel of the river and dredging PCB contaminated sediments in the near-shore areas where total
PCBs exceed oue part per million. At December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the reserve balance associated with this
malter was S198 and 5215, respectively. Arconic is in the planning and design phase of the project, which is expected to be
completed early in 2019, Following EPA’s appraval of the final design, the actual remediation fieldwork is expected to
commence and take approximately four vears. The majority of the expenditures related to the project are expected to be
incurred between 2019 and 2022,

Tax. Pursuant to the Tax Mariers Agreement entered into benween Arconic and Alcoa Corporation in connection with the
separation transaction with Alcoa Corparation. Arconic shares responsibility with Alcoa Corporation. and Alcoa Cerporation
has agreed to partinlly indemnify Arconic for 49% of the ultimate liability, with respect to the following matter.

As previously reported, in July 2013, following a Spanish corporate income tax audit covering the 2006 through 2009 tax
years, an assessiment was received mainly disallowing ceniain interest deductions claimed by a Spanish consolidated tax group
owned by the Comipany. In Avgust 2013, the Company filed an appeal of this assessment in Spain’s Central Tax Administrative
Court, which was denied in January 2013, Arconic fited another appeal in Spain’s National Court in March 2015 which was
denied in july 2018. The National Couri's decision requires the assessment for the 2006 through 2009 ax yvears ta be reissued
10 take into account the ouicome of the 2003 to 2005 audit which was closed in 2017. The Company estimates the revised
assessment 1o be $174 (€152}, including inleres),

The Company has petitioned to the Supreme Court of Spain to review the National Court’s dectsion, If the petition is accepred,
the Supreme Court will review the assessment on its merits and render a final decision. in the event the Company is
unsuceessful in appealing the assessment to the Supreme Court of Spain, a portion of the assessment may be offset with
existing net operating losses and tax credits available to the Spanish consolidated tax group, which would be shared between
the Company and Alcoa Corporation as provided for in the Tax Matters Agreement. As a result of the National Court decision,
an income tax reserve, including interest, of $60 (€32) was established in 2018. Concurrest with the establishment of the
reserve, an indemnification receivable of $29 (£23), representing Alcoa Corpoeration’s 49°4 share of the lability, was also
recorded in 2018

Additionally, while (he tax years 2010 through 2013 are closed to audit, it is possible that the Company may receive
assessments for tax years subsequent to 2013, Any potential assessrnent for an individual tax year is not expected 10 be material
to the Company's consolidated operations

Reynobond PE. As previcusly reported, on June 13, 2017, the Grenfel! Tower in London, UK caught fire resulting in fatalities,
injuries and dansage A French subsidiary of Arconic, Arconic Architectural Products SAS (AAP SAS), supplied 2 product.
Reynobond PE, to its customer, a cladding system fabricator, which used the product as one component of the overall cladding
system on Grenfell Tower The fabricator supplied its portion of the cladding system ta the fagade installer. who then completed
and installed the system under the direction of the general contractor. Neither Arconic nor AAP SAS was involved in the design
or installation of the system used at the Grenfell Tower, nor did it have a role in any other aspect of the building’s refurbishment
or original design. Regulatory investigations into the overall Grenfell Tower matter are being conducted, including a criminal
investigalion by the London Metra Police, o Public Inquiry by the British government ond a copsumer protection inquiry by a
French public authority AAP SAS has soughi and received core participanl status in the Public Inquiry. The Company will no
longer sell the PE product for architectural use on buildings

Houward v treonic Inc ef af As previously reported, a purported class action complaint related to the Grenfetl Tower fire was
filed on August 11, 2017 in the United States District Court for the Western District of Pennsy Ivania against Arconic lnc. and
Klaus Kleinfeld. A related purported class action complaint was filed in the United States Distriet Court for the Western District
of Pennsylvania on August 23, 2017, under the caption Suflivan v Arconic nc el al . against Arconic Ine., two former Arconic
executives, several current and former Arconic directors, and banks that acted as underwriiers for Arconic’s September 18,
2014 preferred stock offering (the “Preferred Offering”). The plaintift in Suflivan had previously filed a purported class action
against the same defendants on July 18, 2017 in the Southern District of New York and, on August 25, 2017, voluntarily
dismissed that action without prejudice. On February 7, 2018, on motion from certain putative class members, the court
consolidated Howurd and Sulfivan, closed Suflivan, and appointed lead plaintiffs in the consolidated case. On April 9, 2018, the
tead plaintiffs in the consolidated purported class action filed a consolidated amended complaint. The consolidated amended
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complaint alleges that the registration statement for the Preferred Offering contained false and misleading statements and
omitted to state malerial information, including by allegedly failing o disclose material unceriainties and trends resulting from
sales of Reynobond PE for unsafe uses and by allegedly expressing a belicf that appropriate risk management and compliance
programs had been adopted while concealing the risks posed by Reynebond PE sales. The consolidated amended complaint
also alleges that berween November 4, 2013 and June 23, 2017 Arconic and Kleinfeld made false and misleading statements
and failed 10 disclose materinl information about the Company’s commitment to safety. business and financial prospects, and
the risks of the Reynobond PE product, including in Arconic’s Form 10-Ks for the fiscal years ended Decentber 31, 2013, 2014,
2015 and 2016, its Form 10-Qs and quarterly financial press releases from the fourth quarter of 2013 through the first quarter of
2017, s 3013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 Annual Reports, and its 2016 Annual Highlights Report. The consolidated amended
complaint seeks, among other things, unspecified compensatory damages and an award of attorney and expert fees and
expenses. On June 8, 2018, all defendants moved to dismiss the consolidated amended complaint for fatlure 1o state a claim.
Bricfing on that motion is now closed and the parties await a ruling.

Raul v 1lbaugh et af As previously reported, on June 22, 2018, a derivative complaint was filed nominally on behalf of
Arconic by a purparied Arconic shareholder against all carrent members of Arconic’s Board of Directors, Klaus Kleinfeld and
Ken Giacobbe, naming Arconic as a noniinal defendant, in the United States District Court for the District of Delaware. The
complaini raises similar allegations as the consolidated amended complaint in Moward, as well as allegations that the
defendants improperly authorized the sale of Reynobond PE for unsafe uses, and asserts claims under Section §4({a} of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Delaware state law. On July 13, 2018, the parties filed a stipulation agreeing to stay this
case until the final resolution of the //ow ard case, the Grenfell Tower public inquiry in London, and the investigation by the
I.ondon Metropolitan Police Service and on June 23, 2018, the Court approved the stay.

While the Company believes that these cases are without merit and intends to chalienge them vigorously, there can be no
assurances regarding the oltimate resclution of these matters Given the preliminary nawre of these matters and the uncertainty
of litigation, the Company cannot reasonably estimate at this time the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome or the possible loss
or range of losses in the event of an unfavorable outcome The Board of Directors has also received letiers. purportedly sent on
behalf of shareholders, reciting allegations similar 1o those made in the federal court lawsuits and demanding that the Board
authorize the Company o initiate litigation against members of managemant, the Board and others. The Board of Directors has
zppointed a Special Litigation Commitiee of the Board 1o review and make recommendations to the Board regarding the
eppropriate course of action with respect to these shareholder demand letters. The Special Litigation Committee and the Board
are continuing to consider the apprapriale responses {o the shareholder demand letters in view of developments in proceedings
concerning the Grenfell Tower fire.

Other. In addition to the matters discussed above, various other lawsuits, claims, and proceedings have been or may be
instituted or asserted against Arconic, including those pertaining te environmental, product liability, safety and health,
employment, tax and antitrust matters. While the amounts claimed it these other matters may be substantial, the ultimate
liability cannot currently be determined because of the considerable uncertainties that exist. Thecefore, it 15 possible that the
Company’s liquidity or results of operations in a period could be materially affected by onc or more of these other matters
However, based on facts currently available, management believes that the disposition of these other matters that are pending or
asserted will not have a material adverse effect, individually or in the aggregate. on the results of operations, financial position
or cash flows of the Company,

Commitments

Purchase Obligations. Arconic has entered into purchase commitments for raw malerials, energy and ather poods and
services. which total $770 in 2019, S169 in 2020. $27 in 2021, 524 1n 2022, 58 in 2023, and 55 thereafler

Operating Leases. Certain land and buildings, plant equipment, vehicles, and computer equipment are under aperating lease
agreements. Total expense for all leases was S144 in 2018, 5113 in 2017, and $110 in 2016. Under long-term operating leases,
minimum annual rentals are $94 in 2019, §74 in 2020, $54 in 2021, 840 in 2022, 330 in 2023, and 387 thereafier.

Guarantees. At December 31, 2018, Arconic had outstanding bank guarantees related to tax matters. outstanding debs.
workers' compensation, environmental obligations, energy contracts, and customs duties, among others The total amount
committed under these guarantees, which expire at various dates between 2019 and 2026 was $37 at Decerber 31, 2018

Pursuant lo the Separation and Distribution Agreement between Arconic and Alcoa Corporation, Arconic was required to
provide centain guarantees for Alcoa Corporation, which had a combined fair value of $6 and 58 a1 December 31, 2018 and
2017, respectively. and were included in Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits on the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheet. Arconic was required to provide pavment guarantees for Alcoa Corporation issued on behalf of a third party
related to project financing for Alcoa Corporation’s aluminum complex in Saudi Arabia During the third quaner of 2018,
Arconic was released from this guarantee, Furthermore, Arconic was required to provide guarantees related to two long-term
supply agreements for encrgy for Alcoa Corporation facilities in the event of an Alcoa Corporation payment default in October
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2017, Alcoa Corporation announced that it had terminated one of the two agreements, the electricity contract with Luminant
Generation Company LLC that was ted to its Rockdale Operations, effective as of October 1, 2317, As a result of the
termination of the Rockdale electricity contract, Arconic recorded income of $25 in the fourth quanter of 2017 associated with
reversing the fair value of the electricity contract guarantee. For the remaining long-term supply agreement, Arconic is required
to provide a guaraniee up to an estimated present value amount of approximately $1,087 and §1,297 at December 31, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, respectively, in the event of an Alcoa Corporation payment default This guarantee expires in 2047, For
this guaraniee, subject to its provisions. Arconic is secondarily Iiable in the event of a payment default by Alcoa Corperation.
Arconic currently views the risk of an Alcoa Corporatian payment default on its abligations under the contract to be rernaote.

In December 206, Arconic entered into a one-year claims purchase agreement with a bank covering claims up to $245 related
to the Saudi Arabian joint venture and two long-term energy supply agresments. The niajority of the premium was paid by
Alcoa Corporation. The agreement matured in December 2017 and was not renewed in 2018 due to the decline in exposure (o
guarantee claims including a substantial reduction in the guaramees related to the Saudi Arabian joint venture and also the
elimination of the guarantee reiated 1o the Rockdale energy contract in December 2013, Arcunic entered into a one-year
insurance policy with a limit of 380 relating to the remaiting long-term energy supply agreement. The premiuvm is expected to
be paid by Alcoa Corporation. The decision 1o enter into a claims purchase agreement or insurance policy will be made on an
annual basis going forwvard.

Letters of Credit. Arconic has outstanding letters of credit, primarily related to workers™ compensaltion, environmental
obligations and leasing obligations The total amount commitied under these letters of credit. which aulomatically renew or
expire at various dates. mostly in 2019. was 5136 at December 31, 20418,

Pursuant 10 the Separation and Distribution Agreement, Arconic was required to retain letters of credit of 354 that had
previously been provided related to both Arconic and Alcoa Corporation workers’ compensation claims which occurred prior to
Navember 1, 2016 Alcoa Corparation warkers” compensation clatms and letter of credit fees paid by Arconic are being
proportionally billed to and arc being fully reimbursed by Alcoa Corporation.

Surety Bonds. Arconic has outstanding surety bonds pomanily related to tax manters, contract performance, workers’
compensation, environmental-related matters, and customs duties. The total amount committed under these surety bonds, which
expire at various dates, primarily in 2019, was $50 at December 31, 2018.

Pursuant to the Separation and Distribution Agreement, Arconic was required to provide surety bonds retaled to Alcoa
Corporation workers’ compensation claims which occurrad prior to November 1, 2016 and, as a result, Arconic has $25 in
outstanding surely bonds relating to these liabilities Alcoa Corperation workers” compensation claims and surety bond fees
paid by Arconic are being proportionately billed to and are being fully reimbursed by Alcoa Corporation.

V. Separation Transaction and Discontinued Operations

On November §, 2016, Arconic complated the Separation Transaction. Alcoa Inc., which was re-named Arconic Inc., continues
o own the Global Rolled Products {(except for the Warrich. IN rolling operations and the equity interest in the rolling mill at the
joint venture in Saudi Arabia), Engineered Products and Solutions, and Transportation and Construction Solutions segmenits.
Aleoa Corporation includes the Alumina and Primary Melals segments and the aforamentioned Warrick, IN rolling operations
and equity interest in the rolling mill at the joint venture in Saudi Arabia, both of which were formally part of the Global Rolled
Products segment.

Arconic completed the Separation Transaclion by distnbution on November |, 2016 of 80.1°¢ of the ouistanding common stock
of Alcoa Corporation 1o the Company s shareholders of record {the “Distribution™} as of the close of business on Ociober 20,
2016 {the “Record Date™). Arconic retained 19.9%, of the Alcoa Cosporation common stock (36.311,767 shares). In the
Distribution, each Company shareholder reccived one share of Aleoa Corporation common stock tor every three shares of
Arconic commen stock held as of the close of business on the Record Date. Shareholders received cash in lieu of fractional
shares of Alcoa Corperation common stock. The Company had recorded the retained interest as 2 cost method investment in
Investment in common stock of Alcoa Corporation in the December 2016 Consolidated Balance Sheet. The fair value of
Arconic’s retained interest in Aleoa Corporation was $1,020 at December 31, 2016 and was based on the closing stock price of
Alcoa Corporation as of December 31, 2016 multiplied by the number of shares of Alcoa Corporation common stock owned by
the Company at that date.

In February 2017, Arconic sold 23,353,000 of its shares of Alcoa Corporatien comman stock at $38.03 per share, which
resulted in cash proceeds of 5888 which were recorded in Sales of investments within [nvesting Activitics in the accompanying
Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows, and a gain of $351 which was recorded in Other expense (incame), net in the
accompanying Statement of Conselidated Operations. In April and May 2017, the Company acquired a portion of its
outstanding notes held by two investment banks (the “Investment Banks™) in exchange for cash and the Company’s remaining
12,958,767 Alcoa Corporalion shares (valued at $35.91 per share) (the “Debi-for-Equity Exchange™) (See Note P). A gain of
5167 on the Debt-for-Equity Exchange was recorded in Other expense (income), net in the accompanying Statement of
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Consolidated Operations. As of May 4, 2017. the Company no longer maintained a retained interest in Alcoa Corporation
commeon stock.

On October 31, 2016, Arcenic entered into several agreements with Alcoa Corporation that govemn the relationship of the
rarties following the completion of the Separation Transaction. These agreements inciude the follawing: Separation and
Distribution Agreement, Transition Services Agreement, Tax Matters Agreement, Employee Matters Agreement, Alcoa
Corporation 1o Arconic Inc. Patent. Know-How, and Trade Secret License Agreement. Arconic Inc. to Alcoa Corporation
Patent, Know-How. and Trade Secret License Agreement, Alcoa Corporation to Arconic Inc. Trademark License Agreement.
Toll Processing and Services Agreement {the “Toll Processing Agreement” ), Master Agreement for the Supply of Primary
Aluminum, Massena Lease and Operations Agreement, Fusina Lease and Operations Agreement, and Stackholder and
Registration Rights Agreement.

Effective November 1, 2016, Arconic entered into a Toll Processing Agreement with Alcoa Corporation for the tolling of metal
for the Warrick, IN relling mill which became a part of Alcoa Corporation upon completion of the Separation Transaction. As
part of this arrangement. Arconic provided a toll processing service to Alcoa Corporation to produce can sheet products at its
facility in Tennessee through the end date of the contract, December 31, 2018. Alcoa Corporation supplied alf reguired raw
materials to Arconic and Arconic processed the raw materials into finished can sheet coils ready for shipment to the end
customer. Tolling revenues for 2018, 2017, and the two-month period ended December 31, 2016 and accounts receivable at
December 31. 2018, December 31, 2817, and December 31, 2016 were not material to the consolidated resulis of operations
and financial position for the years ended December 31, 2018, DPecember 21, 2017, and December 31, 2016.

As pant of the Separation Transaclion, Arconic was required o provide maximum potential future payment guarantees for Alcoa
Corporation issued on behalf of a third party, guarantees related (o two long-lerm Alcoa Corporation energy supply agreements,
guarantees related te certain Alcoa Corporation environmentat liabilities and encrgy supply contracts, letters of credit and
surcty bonds related o Alcoca Corporation workers” compensation claims which occurred prior to November 1, 2016, and letiers
of credit for certain Alcoa Corporation equipment leases and energy coniracts (see Note U).

As part of the Sepantion Transaction, Arconic had recarded a receivable in the Decerber 2016 Consolidated Balance Sheet for
the net after-tax proceeds from Alcoa Corporation’s sale of the Yadkin Hydroelectric Project. The transaction closed and the
Company received proceeds of $238 in the first quarter of 2017 and the remaining 83 in the second quarter of 2017, The §243
proceeds were included in Other within Investing Activities in the Statement of Consolidated Cash Flows.

The results of operations of Aicoa Corporation were presented as discontinued operations in the Statement of Consolidated
Operations as sutumarized below (the amounts presented in the table below have not been recast to reflect the adoption of new
guidance issued by the FASB related to the presentation of net periodic pension cost and net periodic postretirement benefit
cost as detailed in Noie A):

Ten months
ended October 31,

2016
Sales E3 6,752
Cost of goods sold (exclusive of expenses below) 3.655
Sefling. general administrative, and other expenses 164
Research and development 28
Pravision for depreciation, depletion and amortization 593
Restructuring and other charges 162
Interest expense 28
Other (income) expenses, net (73}
Income from discontinued operntions before income taxes 257
Provision for income taxes 73
Incame from discontinued operations afier income taxes 184
Less: Net income from discontinued operations attributable to nonconirolling interests 63
Net income from discontinued operations § 121

During 2017 and 2016, Arconic recognized 518 (S12 afler-tax) and 5193 (8158 after-tax), respectively, in Selling, general
administrative. and other expenses on the accompanying Statement of Consclidated Operaticns for casts related to the
Separation Transaction. 1n addition, Arconic also incurred capital expenditures and debt issuance costs of $110 during 2016
related to the Separation Transaction. None of the aforementioned costs and expenses related to the Separation Transaction
were reclassified into discontinued operations.
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On November |, 2016, management evaluated the net assels of Alcoa Corporation for potential impairment and determined that
no impairment charge was required.

The cash flows related to Aleoa Corporation have not been segregated and arc included in the Statement of Consolidated Cash
Flows for 2016, The following tabie presents depreciation, depietion and amortization, restructuring and other charges, and
purchases of property, plant and equipment of the discontinued operations related to Alcoa Corporation:

For the year ended December 31, 2016
Depreciation, depletion and amortization s 593
Restructuring and other charges 5 102
Capital expenditures s 208

W, Subscquent Events

Management evaluated all activity of Arconic and concluded that no subsequent events have occurred that would require
recognition in the Consolidated Financial Statements or disclosure in the Notes 10 the Consolidated Financial Statements,
except as noted below:

On January 22. 2019, the Company anncunced that its Board of Directars (the Board) had determined to no longer pursue a
polential sale of Arconic as part of its strategy and portfolio review

On February 6, 26(9, the Company arnounced that the Board appointed John C. Piant, current Chairman of the Board, as
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, effective February 6, 2019, io succeed Chip Blankenship, who ceased
to serve as Chief Executive Officer of the Company and resigned as a member of the Board, in each case as of that date. In
addition, the Company announced that the Board appeinied Elmer L. Doiy, current mentber of the Board. as President and
Chief Operating Officer, a newly created position. effective February 6. 2019 Alr Doty will remain a member of the Board.
The Company also announced that Arthur D. Collins, Jr., current member of the Board, has been appeinted inlerim Lead
Independent Birector of the Company, effective February 6, 2019,

On February 8, 2019, the Company announced the following key initiatives as part of its ongoing strategy and portfolio review.
plans 1o reduce operating costs, designed 1o maximize the impact in 2019, the planned separation of its porifolio into
Engineered Praducts and Forgings (EP&F) and Global Rolled Praducts (GRP). with a spin-off of one of the businesses; the
potential sale of businesses that do not best fit into EP&F or GRP; execute its previously authorized 3500 share repurchase
program in the first haif of 2019: the Board authorized an additional $500 of share repurchases. effective through the ¢nd of
2020; and plans to reduce its quarterly common stock dividend from $0.06 to $0.02 per share.

On Febroary 19, 2019, the Company entered into an accelerated share repurchase (“ASR™ agreement with JPMorgan Chase
Bank to repurchase $700 of its common stock, pursuant to the share repurchiase program previously authorized by the

Board. Under the ASR agreement, Arconic will receive initial deliveny of approximately 32 million shares on Februany 2,
2019. The final number of shares to be repurchased will be based on the volume-weighted average price of Arconic’s cammen
stock during the term of the transaction. less a discount. The ASR agreement is expected to be completed during the first half of
2019.

The Company will evaluate its organizatienal structure in conjunction with the planned scparation of its portfolio and changes
1o its reporiable segnients are expected in the {irst half of 2019,
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Supplemental Finaneial Information (unaudited)

Quarterly Data
(in millions, except per-share amounts)

First Sccond Third Fourth' Year
2018
Sales ) 3443 8 3573 8 3,524 § 3472 8 14,014
Net income 5 143 § 120 8 16l § 218 § 642
Eamings per share attributable to Arconic common
shareholders' -
Net income per sharc—basic 5 030 § 023 § 033 § 045 § 1.33
Diluted
Net income per share—diluted 3 0.29 § 024 § 032 § 044 § 1.30
2017
Sales b 3,192 % 33261 8§ 3236 § 3,271 § 12,960
Net income (loss) s 322 % 212 5 119 s {(7127) § (74)
Earmings (loss) per share attributable to Arconic
common shareliolders' .
Net income (loss) per share— basic s 069 § 044 § 0.23 8% (ES1)S (0.28)
Diluted

Net inconne (loss) per share—basic $ 0.65 § 0.43 § 0.22 § (1.5} 5 {0.28)

Per share amounts are calculated independently for each period presented, therefore, the sum of the quanierly per share
amounis may not equal the per share amounts for the year.

In the fourth quarter of 2018, Arconic recorded a gain of $119 (3154 pre-tax) on the sale of the Texarkana rolling mill,
offset by pension plan settlement charges of $72 (392 pre-tax) associated with sigaificant lump sum payments made to
participants and a loss of $39 (343 pre-tax) on the sale of the Eger, Hungary forgings business. Additionally. Arconic
recorded discrete tax items primarily comprised of a benefit refated to cerain prior year foreign invesiment losses no
longer recapturable. In the fousth quarter of 201 7. Arconic recorded an impairment of goodwill related to the forgings
and extrusions business of $719 ($719 pre-tax); a provisional charge of $272 associated with the revaluation of U.S.
net deferred tax assets due to a decrease in the U.S. corporate tax rate from 35% 10 21 %, as well as a one-time
transition lax on the non-previously taxed earnings and profits of certain U.8.-owaed foreign corporations as of
December 31, 2017, a favorable adjustment to the Firth Rixson carn-out liability of $81 ($81 pre-tax); and a favorable
adjustment to a separation-related guaraniee hability of $16 (325 pre-tax).

Hem 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclesure.

None.

1tem 9A. Controls and Procedures.
{a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Arconic’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as of the end of the period
covered by this report, and they have concluded that these controls and procedures are effective,

(b} Management's Annual Report ca Intemnal Contrel over Financial Reporting

Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting is included in Part {1, kiem 8 of this Form 10-K beginning
on page 31.

(¢) Attestarion Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm
The efTectiveness of Arcanic’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2018 has been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report, which is included in
Part 11. ltem R of this Form 10-K on page 53.



(d} Changes in Internai Control over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in intemnal comrol over financial reporting during the founth quaner of 2018, that have materialiy
affected, or are reasonably likely w0 materially affect, the Company s internal control over financial reporting
[tem 9B. Other Information.

None.
PART III

Item 10, Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.

The information required by ltzm 40| of Regulation S-K regarding directors is comtained under the caption “item 1 Election of
Directors” of the Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference. The information required by ltem 401 of Regulation S-K
regarding executive officers is set {forth in Part I, Item 1 of this report under “Executive Officers of the Registrant.”

The information required by ltem 4G5 of Regulation $-K is contained under the caption “Section 16{a} Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance™ of the Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference.

The Company's Code of Ethics for the CEQ. CFO and Other Financial Professionals is publicly available on the Company’s

Intemet website at hup://www.arconic.com under the section “Investors—Corporate Governance.” The remaining information

required by ltem 406 of Reguiation S-K is contained under the capiions “Corporale Governance” and “Corporate Governance
-Business Conduet Policies and Code of Ethics™ of the Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference

The infornmation required by ltems 407(c i3} (d)4) and (d¥3) of Regulation 8-K is included under the captions “ltem |
Election of Dvrectors~—Nominating Board Candidates—Procedures and Director Qualifications™ and *Corporate Governance -
Committees of the Board—aAudit Committee™ of the Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference

Item L1. Executive Campensation.

The information required by ltem 402 of Reguiation S-K is contained under the captions “Dircctor Compensation™, “Executive !
Compensation”™ and “Corporate Governance—Recovery of [ncentive Compensation™ of the Proxy Statement Such information
is incomporated by reference.

The information required by items 407(e){4) and {e)}(5) of Regulation S-K is contained under the captions “Corporate
Governance-~ Compensation Commitiee Interlocks and Insider Participation™ and “liem 3 Advisory Approval of Executive
Compensation—Campensation Committee Report”™ of the Prexy Statemant. Such information {other than the Compensaticn
Committee Report, which shall not be deenied ta be “filed™} is incorporated by reference

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Relnted Stockholder Matters.

The information required by ltem 201(d) of Repulation S-K relating to securities autherized for issuance under equity
compensation plans is contained under the caption “Equity Compensation Plan Information™ of the Proxy Statement and is
incorparated by reference

The information required by lem 403 of Regulation 5-K is contained under the captions “Arconic Stoch Ownershipt - Stoch
Ownership of Cenain Beneficial Owners™ and *- Stoch Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers” of the Proxy
Statement and is incorporated by reference.

item 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, snd Director Independence.

The information required by ltem 404 of Regulation S-K is contained under the captions "Executive Compensation” {excleding
the informatien under the caption “Compensation Committee Report™) and “Corporale Governance-— Related Persen
Transactions™ of the Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference.

The information required by ltem 407(a) of Regulation S-K regarding director independence is contained under the captions
“hem ! Election of Directors” and “Corporate Governance” of the Prosy Statement and is incorporated by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by fem 9(e} of Schedule 14A is contained under the captions “ltem 2 Ratification of Appointment of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Fyrm—Report of the Avudit Committee” and ™~ - Audit and Non-Audit Fees” of the
Proxy Statement and in Attachment A {Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures for Audit and Non-Audit Services) thereto and is
incorporated by reference.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.
(a) The consolidated financial statements and exhibits listed below are filed as part of this report.

(1) The Company 's consolidated financial statements, the notes thereto and the report of the Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm are on pages 53 through 102 of this report.

{2) Financial statement schedules have been omitled because they are not applicable, not required, or the required
information s included in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

{3) Exhibits
Exhibit Description*
Number
2(a) Share Purchase Agreement, dated as of June 25, 2014, by and ameng Alcoa Inc., Alcoa H Limited, FR

Acquisition Corporation {US), Inc., FR Acquisitions Corporation (Europe) Limited, FR Acquisition Finance
Subco {Luxembourg), S.2.r.1. and Oak Hill Capital Partners iI1. L.P. and Oak Hill Capital Management
Partners I11, L.P., collectively in their capacity as the Seller Representative, incorporated by reference to
gslglabit 2.1 1o the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K {Commission file number 1-3610) dated June 27,

Ab) Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2016, by and between Arconic Inc. and
Alcoa Corporntion, incorporated by reference to exhibit 2.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-k
{Commission file number 1-3610) dated November 4, 2016.

e} Tax Matters Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2016, by and between Atconic Inc, and Alcoa Corporation,
incorporated by reference to exhibit 2 3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission file
number §-3610}) dated November 4, 2016.

2d) Employee Matters Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2016, by and between Arconie Ine. and Alcoa
Corporation, incorporated by reference to exhibit 2.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
{Commission file number 1-3610) dated Navember 4, 2016.

2dX L) Amendment No. 1, dated December 13, 2016, to Employee Matters Agreement, dated as of October 31,
2016, by and between Arconic Inc. and Alcoa Corporation, incorporated by reference to exhibit 2{e)} 1) 1o
the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file number 1-3610) for the year ended
December 31, 2016.

2e) Alcoa Corporation 1o Arconic Inc, Patent, Know-How, and Trade Secret License Agreement, dated as of
October 31, 2016, by and between Alcoa USA Corp. and Arconic Inc., incorporated by reference to exhibit
%a'tlto the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-3610) dated November 4,
6.

26y Arconic Inc. o Alcoa Corporation Patent, Know-How, and Trade Secret License Agreement, dated as of
Oclaber 31, 2016, by and between Arconic Inc. and Alcoa USA Corp., incorporated by reference to exhibit
2.6 1o the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K {Commission file number 1-3610) dated November 4,
2016,

2e) Amended and Restated Alcoa Corporation 10 Arcenic Inc. Trademark License Agreement, dated as of June
25,2017, by and berween Alcoa USA Corp. and Arconic Inc., incorporated by reference 1o exhibit 2 to the
gglgpany’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number 1-3610) for the quarter ended June
L2007,

2{h} Master Agreement for the Supply of Primary Aluminum, dated as of October 31, 2016, by and between
Alcoa Corporation and its affiliates and Arconic Inc., incorporated by reference to exhibit 2.9 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form §-K (Commission file number 1-3610) dated November 4, 2016.
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Massena Lease and Operations Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2016, by and between Arconic Inc. and
Alcoa Corporation, incorporated by reference 1o exhibit 2 {0 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
{Commission file aumber 1-3610) dated November 4, 2016.

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated Ociober 12, 2017, by and between Arconic Inc.. a Pennsylvania
corporation, and Arconic Inc., a Delaware corporation, incorporated by reference to exhibit 2.1 to the
Company's Gurrent Report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-3610) dated January 4, 2018.

Certificate of Incorporation of Arconic Inc., a Delaware corporation, incorporated by reference to exhibit 3.1
to the Campany ’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-3610) dated January 4, 2018.

Bylaws of Arconic Inc.,, a Delaware coeporation, incurporated by reference to exhibit 3.2 to the Companys
Current Report on Form 8-K (Cammission file number 1-3610) dated January 4, 2018.

Form of Certificate for Shares of Common Stock ef Arconic Inc., a Delaware corporation, incorporated by
reference to exhibit 4.1 1o the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission ftle number §-3610)
dated January 4, 2018,

Bylaws. See exhibit 3(b} above.

Form of Indenture, dated as of September 30, 1993, between Alcoa Inc. and The Bank of New York Trust
Company. N A . a5 successor to . P Morgan Trust Company, Nationat Association (formerly Chase
Manhattan Trust Company, National Associatien), as successor Trustee 1o PNC Banh. National Association,
as Trustee {(undated form of indenture incorporated by relerence to exhibit 4(a) to Registration Statement
No. 3349997 on Form §-3).

First Supplemental [ndenture, dated as of January 25, 2007, between Alcoa Inc. and The Bank of New York
Trust Company, N A., as successor to 1P, Morgan Trust Company. National Asseciation (formerly Chase
Manhattan Trust Company, National Association), as successor Trustee to PNC Bank, National Association,
as Trustee, incorporated by reference to exhibit 99.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K
{Commission file nitmber 1-3610) dated Janvary 23, 2007

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 15, 2008. between Alcoz Inc, and The Bank of New Yorh
Mellon Trust Company, N.A,, as successor in interest 1o J P Morgan Trust Company. Nationat Association
{formerfy Chase Manhattan Trust Company, National Asso<ciation, as successor to PNC Banh, National
Association), as Trustee, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4(¢) to the Company s Curremt Report on
Form 8- (Commission file number 1-3610) dated July 15, 2008,

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 31, 2017, between Arconic Inc., a Pennsylvania
corpoeration, Arconie [nc., a Delaw are corporation, and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company,
N.A., as trustee, incotporated by reference to exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current Repon on Form 8-K
{Commission file number 1-3610) dated January 4, 2018

Form of 6.73% Bonds Due 2028, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4(d) w the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K {Commission file aumber 1-3610) for the year ended December 31, 2017,

Form of $.90% Notes Duc 2027, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4(e) to the Company s Annual Report
on Form 10-K {Commission file aumber [-3610) for the year ended December 31. 2008,

Form of 5.953% Notes Due 2037, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4(M) 1o the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K {Commission file number [-3610} for the year ended December 31, 2008,

Form of 5.87% Notes Due 2022, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.2 to the Company 's Current Report
on Form 8-K (Commission file number {-3610} dated February 21, 2007
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Form of 6.150% Notes Due 2020, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4 to the Company 's Current Repornt
on Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-3610) dated August 3, 2G10.

Form of 5.40% Notes Due 2021, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K {Commission file number 1-3610} dated Apcil 21, 24011,

Form of 5.123% Notes Due 2024, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.5 1o the Company’s Current Report
on Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-3610) dated September 22, 2014.

Indenture, dated as of December 14, 2010, between RTI International Metals, Inc. and The Bank of New
York Trust Company. N.A.. as Trustee, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4{m) to the Compan) 's Annual
Report on Form 10-K {Commission file number 1-3610) for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 17, 2013, between RT1 Intenational Metals, Inc. and The
Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4(n) to the
Company’s Annual Repert on Form 10-K (Commiission file number 1-3610) for the year ended December
31,2018,

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 23, 20135, between RTI International Metals, Inc. and The
Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.1 on Form 8-K
{Commissian fife number 1-3610) dated July 23, 2015.

Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of November 30, 2017, between RTI Iaternational Metals, Inc and
The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4 1 to the
Company's Curreat Report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-3610) dated December 4, 2017.

Sixtl: Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 31, 2017, between Arcenic Inc., o Pennsy lvania
corperation, Arconic Inc., a Delaware corporation, and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company.
N.A.. as Trustee, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4.2 to the Company 's Current Report on Form 8-K
(Commission file number 1-3610) dated January 4, 2018.

Form of 1.623% Convertible Senior Notes Due 2019, Sce exhibit 4(k} 1) above.

Arconic Bargaining Retirement Savings Plan (formerly known as the Alcoa Retirement Savings Plan for
Bargaining Employees), as Amended nnd Restaied effective January 1, 2015, incorporated by reference to
exhibit 4(p) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K {Commission file number 1-3610) for the year
ended December 31, 201 5.

Arcanic |Hourly Non-Bargaining Retirement Savings Plan (formerly known as the Alcoa Retirement Savings
Plan for Hourly Non-Bargaining Employces). as Amended and Restated effective January 1, 2013,
incarporated by reference to exhibit 4(q) 1o the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K {Commissien fife
number [-3610) for the vear ended December 31, 2013.

Arconic Fastener Systems and Rings Retirement Savings Plan {formerly known as the Aleoa Retirement
Savings Plan for Festener Systems Employ ees), as Amended and Restated effective January 1. 2015,
incorporated by reference to exhibit 4(r) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file
number 1-3610) for the year ended December 31, 2015,

Arconic Salaried Retirement Savings Plan (formerly knownr as the Alcea Retirement Savings Plan for
Salaried Employees), as Amended and Restated effective Januany 1, 20135, incorporated by reference to
exhibit 4(5) to the Company "s Annual Report on Form 10-K {(Commission file number 1-3610) for the year
ended December 31, 2015,

Arconic Retirement Savings Plan for ATEP Bargaining Employ ees. effective January 1, 2017, incorporated
by reference to exhibit 4 to Post-E ffective Amendment, dated December 30, 2016. 1o Registration Statement
No. 333-32316 on Form S-8.
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Earmout Agreement, dated as of June 25, 2014, by and among Alcoa Inc., FR Acquisition Finance Subco
(Luxembourg), S drt and Oak Hitl Capiial Partners I11, L.P. and Oak Hill Capital Management Partners [,
L.P, collectively in their capacity as the Seller Representative, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to
the Conipany’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Comumission file number 1-3610) dated June 27, 2014

Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of July 25, 2014, among Alcoa Inc., the Leaders and
Issuers named iherein, Citibank, N.A., as Administrative Agent for the Lenders and Issuers, and JPMorgan
Chasc Bank, N.A , as Syndication Agent, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-3610) dated July 31, 2014,

Extension Request and Amendment Letter, dated as of June 3, 2015, among Alcva Inc., each lender and
issuer party thereto, and Citibank, N A., as Administrative Agent, cffective July 7, 2013, incorperated by

reference 1o exhibit 10,1 to the Company’s Curreat Report on Form §-K (Commission file number 1-3610)
dated July {3, 2015.

Amendiment No. |, dated September 16, 2016, to the Five-Year Revelving Credit Agreement dated as of
July 25, 2014, among Arconic Inc., the lenders and issucrs named therein. Citibank, N.A., as administrative
agent, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A_ as syndication agent, incorporated by reference to Txhibit 10.1 to
the Company ‘s Current Report on Form 8-K {Commission file number £-3610) dated September 19, 2016.

Assumplion Agreement, dated as of December 31, 2017, by Arconic Inc., a Delaware corporation, in favor
of and for the benefit of the Lenders and Citibank. N.A.. as administrative agent, incorporated by reference
to exhibit 4.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form B-K (Commission {ile number 1-3610) dated
January 4, 2018

Amendment No 2, dated as of June 29, 2018, to the Company’s Five-Year Revolving Credit Agreement
dated as of July 25, 2014, by and among the Company, a syndicate of lenders and issuers named therein,
Citibank, N.A., as administrative agent for the fenders and issuers, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A | as
syndication agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10,1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K
dated July 2, 2618

Plea Agreement dated January 8, 2014, between the United States of America and Alcoa World Alumina
LI C, incarporated by refetence 1o exhibit 16(]) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
{Commission file number {-3610} for the year ended December 31, 20173,

Agreement, dated Februan 1. 2016, by and between Elliott Associates, I.P.. Elliott Intemnational. L.P..
Elliott Intemnational Capital Advisors Inc. and Alcoa Inc.. incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Keport on Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-3610) dated February 1, 2016.

Seitlement Agreement, dated as of May 22, 2017, by and ameng Ellioit Associates, L.P., Elliott
Intemnational, L.P, Elliont Intenational Capital Advisors Inc. and Arconic Inc., incorporated by reference to
exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-k (Commission file number 1-3610) dated May
22, 2017 (reporting an event on May 21, 2017).

Letter Agreement, by and among Arconic Inc. and Elliott Associztes, L.P., Elliott Intermational, L.P. and
Ellion Intemmational Capital Advisors Inc, dated as of December 19, 2017, incorporated by reference to
exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-3610) dated
December 19, 2017,

Registration Rights Agreement, by and among Arconic Inc. and Elliott Associates, L.P., Elliott International,
L.P. and Elliott Intemnational Capital Advisors Inc , dated as of December 19, 2017, incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10.2 to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-3610)
dated December 19, 2017
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Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement, by and among Arconic Inc. and Elfiott Associates, L.P,
Elliott International, L..P. and EHiott [nternational Capital Advisors Inc., dated as of February 2, 2018,
incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission file
nurnber 1-3610) dated February 6, 2018.

Alcos internal Revenue Code Section 162(m) Compliant Annual Cash Incentive Compensation Plan, as
Amended and Restated, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10(b) to the Company 's Current Report on
Form §-K (Commission file number 1-3610) dated May 11, 2016.

2004 Summary Description of the Alcoa Incentive Compensation Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit
10{g} to the Company*s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commissicn file number 1-3610) for the quarter
ended September 30, 2004.

Incentive Compensation Plan of Alcoa Inc., as revised and restated effective November 8, 2007,
incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(k)({1} to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K {Commission
file number 1-3610) for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Amendment to Incentive Compensation Plan of Alcoa Inc., effective December 18, 290?, incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10(n)(2) to the Company’s Annuzl Report on Form 10-K (Commission file number
1-3610) for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Arconic Employees’ Excess Benefits Plan C (formerly referred to as the Alcoa Inc. Employees’ Excess
Benefits Plan, Plan C), as amended and restated effective August 1, 2016, incorporated by reference o
exhibit 10(j) to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file number 1-3610) for the year
ended Decemnber 31, 2016.

First Amendment to Arconic Employees’ Excess Benefiis Plan C (as amended and restated effective
August 1, 2016), effective January 1, 2018, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(1){1}) te the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file number 1-3610) for the y ear ended December 31, 2017,

Second Amendment to Arconic Employees’ Excess Benefits Pian C (as amended and restated effective
August |, 2016), effective January 1, 2018, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(1)(2) to the Company’s
Annua] Report on Form 10-K (Commission file number 1-3610) for the year ended December 31, 2017,

Third Amendment 10 Arconic Employees’ Excess Benefits Plan C (as amended and restated effective August
I, 2016), incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 3-K
{Commission file number 1-3610) dated January 8, 2018.

Deferted Fee Pian for Directors, as amended effective July 9, 1999, incorporated by reference 1o exhibit 10
{gX1) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number 1-3610) for the quarter
ended June 30, 1999,

Amended and Restated Deferred Fee Pian for Directors, effeciive November 1, 2016, incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10(c} to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number
1-3610) for the quarter ended Sepiember 30, 2016.

Non-Employee Direcior Compensation Policy, effective February 6, 2019.

Fee Continuation Plan for Non-Employee Directors, incorporated by reference 1o exhibit 10(k) to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file number 1-3610) for the year ended
December 31, 1989,

Amendment to Fee Continuation Plan for Non-Employee Directors, effective November 10, 1995,
incorporated by reference to exhibit 13{(i)(1) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 19-K (Commission
file number 1.3610) for the year ended December 31, 1995,
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Second Amendment to the Fee Continuation Plan for Non-Employee Directors, effective September 15,
2006, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K
{Commission file number 1-3610) dated September 20, 2006,

Arconic Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restated effective August 1, 2016, incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10{p) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file number
1-3610) for the yeur ended December 31, 2016.

First Amendment 10 the Arconic Deferred Compensation Plan (as amended and restated effective August |,
2016), effective Janvary §, 2018, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10{r){1) to the Company’s Annual
Report on Formn 10-K (Commission file number 1-3610) for the year ended December 31. 2017

Summary of the Executive Split Dollar Life Insurance Plan, dated November 1990, incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10{m) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K [Commission file number
1-3610) for the year ended December 31, 1990.

Amended and Restated Dividend Equivalent Compensation Plan, effective Januany 1, 1997, incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10(h) to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q {Commission file number
1-36190) for the quarter ended September 30, 2004.

Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Company and individual directars or officers, incorporated by
reference to exhibit 104§) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K {Commission file aumber 1-3610)
for the year ended December 31, 1987.)

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Company and individual directors or officers, incorparated
by reference to exhibit 10.1 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K {Commission file number
1-3610) dated Janvary 25, 2018.

Amended and Restated 2009 Alcoa Stock Incentive Plan, dated February 13, 2011. incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10{z){1) to the Company's Annual Report op Form [0-K {Commission file number
1-3610) for the year ended December 31.2010.

Arconic Supplemental Pension Plan for Senior Executives {formerly referred to as the Alcoa Supplemental
Pension Plan for Senior Fxecutives), as amended and restated effective August 1, 2016, incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10{v) to the Company’s Annual Report on Fornt 10-K {(Commission file number
1-3610) for the year ended December 31, 2016.

First Amendment (10 Arconic Supplemental Pension Plan for Senior Executives (as amended and restated
effective August 1, 2016), effective January 1, 2018, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(x)(1) 1o the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commirssion file number 1-3610) for the s car ended December
31,2017,

Second Amendment to Arconic Supplemental Pension Plan for Senior Exccutives (as amended and restated
effective August |, 2016), effective January 1, 2018, incorporaied by reference to exhibit 10{x)(2) w the
Company’s Anaual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file number 1-3610) for the year ended December
3L 2017,

Deferred Fee Estaie Enhancement Plan for Direciors. effective July 10, 1998, incorporated by reference to
exhibit 10(r) to the Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Comimission file number 1- 3610) for the vear
ended December 31, [998.

Arconic In¢. Change in Control Severance Plan, as amended and restated effective February 1. 2018,
incorporated by reference ta Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission file
number 1-3610) dated February 6, 2018

1314




10{x}

10(y)

10+ X1)

1M7)

1{{aa)

10{bb)

10(cc}

L0{dd)

1®{ece)

10(fD)

10(gg}

10{hh}

HO(i1)

LO€)

Letter Agreement. dated Augusi 14. 2007, between Alcoa Inc and Klaus Kleinfeld. incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10(b} to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q {Commission file number
1-3610} for the quarter ended September 30, 2007.

Executive Severance Agreement, as amended and restated effective December 8. 2008, between Alcoa Inc
and Klaus Kleinfeld, incarporated by reference to exhibit 10(gg) to the Company’s Anmeal Report on Form
10-K (Commission file number 1-36010) for the year ended December 31, 2008

Letier Agreement between Arconic Inc. and Klaus Kleinfeld, dated February 27, 2017, incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10{y¥ 1) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file number
1-3610) for the year ended December 31, 2016,

Separation Agreement between Arconic Inc. and Kiaus Kleinfeld, dated July 31, 2017, incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10(c) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number
1-3610} for the quarter ended June 30, 201 7.

Form of Executive Severance Agreement between the Company and new officers entered into after July 22,
2010, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(a) to the Company 's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(Commission file aumber 1-3610) for the quarter ended September 30, 2010.

Arconic Inc Executive Severnnce Plan, as effective February 27. 2017, incorporated by reference to exhibit
10¢aa) 1o the Company s Annual Report on Farm 10-K (Commission file number 1-3610) for the year ended
December 31, 2016

Letter Agreement, by and between Alcoa Inc. and Kathenne H. Ramundo, dated as of July 28, 2016,
incorporated by reference to exhibit 10{i1) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission
file number 1-3610) for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Leter Agreement, from Arconic inc. to Katherine 11 Ramundo. dated as of May 31, 2018, incorporated by
reference to exhibit 10{c) to the Company "s Quanierly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission fille number
1-3610) for the quaner ended Junc 30, 2018.

Letter Agreement between Arconic Inc and David P. Hess. dated May 17, 2017, incorporated by reference
to exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission file number 1-3610) dated May
22,2017 (reporting an event en May 17, 201 7).

Letter Agreement, by and between Arconic Inc. and Charles P. Blankenship, dated as of October 19,2017,
incorporated by reference to exhibit 1.1 to the Company 's Current Report on Form 8-K {Commission file
number 1-3610) dated October 23, 2017

Leter Agreement, by and between Arconic Inc and Mark J. Krakowiah. dated as of January 20. 2013.
incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(i1) to the Company ‘s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commissen file
twnber 1-3610) for the yvear ended December 31, 2017,

Letter Agreement, from Arconic Inc. to Ken Giacobbe, dated as of Februany 14, 2G19.

Arconic Global Pension Plan, zs amended and restated effective Auvgust 1, 2016, incorporated by reference
to exhibit 10(bb) to the Company s Annual Report on Form 18-K (Commission file number 1-3610) for the
year ended December 31, 2016,

Giobal Expatriate Employee Policy (pre-January 1, 2003), incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(uu) to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K (Commission file number 1-3610) for the year ended
December 31, 2003.
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Arconic Inc. Legal Fee Reimbursement Plan, effective as of April 30, 2018, incorporated by reference 10
exhibit 10(b) to the Company’s Quarterlv Report on Form 18-Q (Commission file number 1-3610) for the
guaster ended March 31, 2018,

Summary Description of Equity Choice Program for Performance Equity Award Participants, dated
November 2003, incarporated by reference to exhibit 10.6 to the Company 's Current Report on Form 8-k
{Commission file number 1-3610) dated November 16, 2005

2013 Arconic Stock Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.1 o
the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K {(Commission file number [-3610) dated May 22, 2018,

Terms and Conditions (Australian Addendum) to the 2013 Arconic Stock Incentive Plan, effective May 3,
2013, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10{d) to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-k
(Commission file number 1-3610) dated May 8, 2013.

RTI International Melals, Inc. 2004 Stock Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit 4(b) te the Company s
Current Report on Form 8-K (Commiission file number 1-3610) dated July 23, 2015

RTi International Metals, inc. 2014 Stoch and Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference to exhibit d{a} to
the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K (Commission file number [-3610) dated July 23, 2015,

First Amendment to the RTI International Metals, Inc 2014 Siock and Encentive Plan, as amended and
assumed by Arconic Inc., dated February 1, 2018, incorporated by reference 1o exhibit [0(c0)(1) 10 the
Company’s Annual Repornt on Form 10-K (Commission file number 1-3610) for the year ended December
31, 2017.

Form of Award Agreement for Stock Options. effeciive May 8, 2009, incorporated by reference 1o exhibit
10.2 1o the Company’'s Current Repori on Forn 8-K (Commussion file number 1-3610) dated May 13, 2009,

Form of Award Agreement for Stock Options, efTective Janvary 1, 2010, incorporated by reference to exhibi
10{ddd} to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K {Commisston file aumber $-3610) for the vear
ended December 31, 2009.

Terms and Conditions for Stock Options, effective January 1. 2011, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10
(c) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number [-3610) for the quarter
ended June 3@, 2011.

Terms and Conditions fur Stoch Option Aw ards, effective May 3, 2013. incorporated by reference to exhibit
10¢b} to the Company s Current Report on Form 8-K (Commussion file number 1-3610) dated May 8, 2013.

Terms and Conditions for Stock Option Awards under the 2013 Arconic Stock Incentive Plan. effective
July 22, 2016, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{d) to the Company 's Quarterly Report oa Form 10-Q
(Commission file number 1-3610) for the quarter ended June 30, 20E6

Global Stock Option Award Agreement, effective January 19, 2018. incorporated by reference 1o exhibit 10
{uu) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 18-K (Commussion file number 1-3510) for the year ended
December 31, 2017,

Form of Stock Option Award Agreement, incorporated by reference to exhibit 18(f) to the Company 's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number 1-3610) for the quaster ended June 30, 2018

Terms and Conditions for Restricted Share Unuts, effective May 3. 2013, ncorporated by reference to
exhibit 10(c) to the Company ‘s Current Repart on Form 8-K (Commission file number i- 3610} dated
May 8, 2013
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Terms and Conditions for Restricted Share Units under the 2013 Arconic Stock Incentive Plan, effective
Tuly 22, 2016, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10{c) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
(Commission file number 1-3610) for the quanier eaded June 30, 2616.

Terms and { onditions for Restricted Share 1 nits for Annual Director Awards under the 2013 Arconic Stock
Incentive Plan, effective November 30. 2016, incorporuted by reference to exhibit 10(vv) to the Company 's
Annual Report on Form 10-K {Commission file number 1-3610) for the year ended December 31, 2016.

Terms and Conditions for Restricted Share Units for Annual Director Awards under the 2013 Arconic Stock
Incentive Plan, as Amended and Restated, effective December 5, 2017, incorporated by reference to exhibit
10{a) 1o the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q {Commission file number 1-3610) for the quarter
ended March 31. 2018,

‘Terms and Conditions for Deferred Fee Restricted Share Units for Director Awards under the 2013 Arconic
Stock Incentive Plan, effective November 30, 201§, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10{ww ) te the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K {Commission file number [-3610) for the y ear ended December
31,2016

Terms and Conditions for Restricted Share Units issued on or after January 13, 2017, under the 2013
Arconic Stock Incentive Plan, effective January 13, 2017, incorporated by reference to exhibit 10(xx} to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 18-K (Commission file number 1-3610) for the year ended December
31,2016

Terms and Conditions for Restricted Share Units - Interim CEO {David P Hess) Award, effective
October 23, 2017, incorporated by reference to exhibat 10({ccc) to the Company 's Annua! Report on Form
10-K (Commission file number 1-3610} for the year ended December 31, 2017,

Terms and Conditions for Restricied Share Units - Non-Executive Chairman (fohn C. Plant) Director Award,
cffective October 23, 2017, incorporated by reference 1o exhibit 10{ddd} 1o the Company's Annual Report
on Form 10-K {Commission file number §-3610) for the year ended December 31, 2017,

Terms and Conditions for Restricted Share Units - Non-Executive Chairman (John C, Plant) Director Award,
effective October 23, 2018, incorporated by reference to exhibit 1 0(a) to the Campany s Quarterly Report on
Form [{-Q (Commission file number 1-3610) for the quarer ended September 30, 2018,

Global Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement, effective January [9, 2018, incorporated by reference to
exhibit [0(ece) 10 the Company 's Annual Report on | orm 10-K (Commission file number 1-3610) for the
year ended December 31, 2017

Terms and Conditions for Restricted Share Units issued on or afier Janvary 19, 2018, under the 2013
Arcanic Stock Incentive Plan, ¢ffective January 19, 2018, incorporated by reference o exhibit 10(fif) to the
Company's Annual Report on Form 18-K (Commission file number 1-3618) for the year ended Decenber
31.2017.

Form of Restricted Share Unit Award Agreement, incorporated by reference 10 exhibit 10{g) to the
Company's Quarterly Repert on Form 10-G (Commission file number }-3610) for the quarter ended
June 30, 2018.

Terms and Conditions for Special Retention Awards under the 2013 Arconic Stock Incentive Plan. effective
Januany 1, 2015, incotporated by reference to exhibit 10(a) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q (Commission file number {-3610) far the quarter ended June 30, 2015.

Terms and Conditions for Special Retention Awards under the 2813 Arconic Stock Incentive Plan, effective
July 22, 2016, incorporated by reference 1o exhibit 10(e} to the Company 's Quarterly Report on Form (0-Q
{Commission file number 1-3610) for the quarier ended June 30, 2016
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Global Special Retention Award Agreement, effective Fanuary 19, 2018, incorporated by reference to exhibit
10(kkk) to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K {(Commission {ile number 1-3619) for the year
ended December 31, 2017.

Special Retention Award Agreement - Katherine H Ramundo, effective May 16, 2018, incorrorated by
reference to exhibit 10(d) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number
1-3610) for the quarter ended June 30, 2018.

Special Retention Award Agreement - Paul Myron, effective May 16, 2018, incorporated by reference 10
exhibit 10(c) to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (Commission file number 1-3610) for the
quarter ended June 30, 2018.

Special Retention Award Agreement - Ken Giacobbe, effective February 12, 2019,
Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Power of Attorney for certain directors

Certifications pursuant 1o Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
XBRL Instance Document,

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Exiension Calcuiation Linkbase Document.

NBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentatien Linkbase Documens

* Exhibit Nos. 16¢h) through 10{nnn) are management contracts or compensatory plans required 1o be filed as Exhibits (o this

Form 10-K.

Amendments and modifications to other Exhubits previously filed have been omitted when in the opinion of the registrant such
Exhibits as amended or modified are no longer material or, in centain instances. are no longer required to be filed as Exhibits.

No other instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term debt of the registrant or its subsidiaries have been filed as
Exhibits because no such instruments et the threshold matenality requirements under Regulation S-K. The registrant agrees,
however, to furnish a copy of any such instruments to the Cormmission upon reguest

Item E6. Farm 10-K Summary,

None
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant 1o the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

ARCONIC INC.

February 21, 2019 By QQ ]2 W LA i

(Paul Myren

Vice President and Controller (Also signing as Principal
Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
% Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Februany 21,2019
=="Jehn C. Plant (Principal Execulive Officer and Director})
A__ A;hua\,\,.q February 21,2019
*  Ken Giacobbe Executive Vice President and Chief Financial

Officer (Prinzipal Financial Gfficer)

James F Albaugh. Amy E. Alving, Christopher L. Ayers, Arthur D Collins, Jr, Elmer L Doty. Rajiv L. Gupta. David P. Hess,
Sean O. Mahoney, David J. Miller, E. Stanley O’Neal, and Ulrich R. Schmudt, each as a Director, on February 21, 2019, by
Paul Myron, their Altorney-in-Fact.*

*By (?o.uﬂ., Mupom

" Pau! Myron Q
Altorney-in-Fact




SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT
(As of December 31, 2018)

Exhibit 21

State or

Country of

Name Organization
Atrconic Domestic LLC Delaware
Arcontc Securities LLC Delaware
Howmet International Inc. Delaware
Howmet Holdings Carporation Delaware
Howmet Corporation Delaware
Arconic International Holding Company LLC Delaware

Arconic Luxembourg S.arl. Luxembourg

Arconic Inversiones Espaniz S.L. Spain
Arconic Inversiones Internacionales S.L. Spain

Arconic-Kdfém Kt Hungary

Arconic Global Treasury Services S.a.el. Luxembourg
Alumax LLC Delaware
Alumax Mill Preducts, Inc. Delaware
Cordant Technologies Holding Company Delaware
Arconic Global Fasteners & Rings, Inc. Delaware
Huck Intemational Inc. Delawars
FR Acquisition Corporation (US), Ine. Delaware
JFB Finh Rixson Inc. Delaware

The names of particular subsidiarics have been omitted because. considered in the aggregate as & single subsidiary, they would
not constitute, as of the end of the year covered by this report. a “significant subsidiary " as that lemm is defined in Regulation S-

X under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
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Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Siatement on Form S-8 {Nos. 333-32516, 333-166411,
333.128445, 333-140330, 333-153369, 333-155668, 333-159123, 333-168-428, 333-170801, 333-182899, 333-189882,
333-203275. 333-200772, 333-212246 and 333-229727) of Arconic Inc. of our report dated February 21, 2019 relating 1o the
financial statements and the effectiveness of intemal control over financial reporting. which appears in this Form {0-K.

p,alunﬁ-ﬁo-«&a’vm LLp

Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
February 21, 2019

it?



Exhibit 31
Certifications
I. John C. Plant. cerify that:

l. ¥ have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Arconic Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a materia) fact or omit Lo state a
material fact necessary te make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect 1o the period covered by this report;

3 Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presenied in this report;

4. The registram’s other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-13(e)) and internal coniro!
over financisl reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and |5d-15(1) for the registrant and
have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrany, inchuding its consclidated subsidiaries, is made known to s by others within those
entities, particularly during the perind in which this report is being prepared,

(b} Designed such intemal control over financial reponting, or caused such internal conteol over
financial reponing 1o be designed under our supervision, o provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of fisancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

o) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectivencss of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant's most recent fiseal guarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
regisirant’s internal cantrol aver financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over finanacial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors {or persens performing the equivalent funcitons)y:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation af intemal control
over financial reponting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process. summarize and repon financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invelves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 21, 2019 g

e

Namie: John C Plamt
Titte: Chairman and Chief Exceutive Officer

it8



1. ken Giacobbe, certify that

y

["F]

[

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Arconic Inc..

Based on my hnowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements werc made, nol misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this repert,
fairly present in all materiaf respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presenied in this report:

The registrant’s other cenifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and mainaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 130-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and intenal control
over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(0) and 15d-15(f) for the registrant and
have:

(a} Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating 1o the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

{b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal contral aver
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliabulity of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

{c) Evalualed the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pracedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d} Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal contro! over financial reporting that
occurred during the repistrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an anaual report} that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely 10 materially affect, the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control aver financial reporting, o the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directots (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

{a) All significant defictencies ond material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely lo adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information, and

{b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal contrel over {financial reporting,

Date: February 21, 2019

b nan

Name: Ken Giacobbe

Title: Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32

Certification
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant 1o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections {a) and (b} of Section 1350, Chapier 63 of Title 18.
United States Code). each of the undersigned officers of Arconic Inc., a Delaware corporation {the “Company ™). does hereby
certify that:

The Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2018 (the “Form 10-K") of the Company fully complies
with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securhies Exchange Act of 1934 and inforntation contained in the

Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated:  February 21,2019 %‘.

Neasre—ohn C. Plant

Titfe Chairman and Chiel Executive Officer

Dated  February 21,2019 44_ 4.} R

Name:  Ken Giacobbe

Title. Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

A signed ariginal of this wrilten statement required by Section 966, or other document authenticating, acknowledping. or
otherwise adopting the signature that appears in typed form within the eleciromc version of this wristen statement requited by
Section 906, has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and
Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

The foregoing certification is being fusnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission as an exhibit to the Form 16-K and
shall not be considered filed as part of the Form [0-K
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Calculatien of Financial Measures (unaudited)
{doliars in millions, except per-share amounts)
Reconciliation of Net Income Excluding Special ltems

Net income excluding Special items Diluted EPS excluding Special items

Year ended December 31, 2818 2017 2018 2017
Net income {loss} by 642 § (74) § 1.30 & (0.28)
Special items:
Restructuring and other charges 9 163
Discrete ax items'"! {15} 223
Other special items'™ 59 264
Tax impact™ (19) 40
Net income cxcluding Special items S 676 S 618 S 136§ 1.22

Net income excluding Special items and Diluted EP$ excluding Special items are non-GAAP financial measures. Management
belicves that these measures are meaningful to investors because management reviews the operating results of Arconic excluding the
impucts of Restructuring and other charges, Discrete 1ax items. and Other special {tems {eollectively, “Special itemis™). Theee can be
no assuronces that additional special items will not occur in future periods. To compensate for this limitation. management behicves
that it is appropriale wo consider both Net income determined under GAAP as well as Net income excluding Special itens.

W Discrete lax items for each period included the {ollowing:

. for the 3 car ended December 31, 2018, a benefit related to certain prior 3 car forcign investment losses ne longer
recapturable ($74); a benelit to reverse a foreign iax reserve that is effectively sculed (338}, a benelit to release
valugtion allowances and revalue deferred taxes due to current year tax law and dax rate chanpes in various ULS, states
(S12), a benelit to record prior vear adjustments in various jurisdictions (57}, a benefit 1w recognize the tax impact of
prior y ear foreign losses in continuing eperations that were supporied by foreign incore inother comprehensive
inconie {56, partially oiTsct by o charge to establish a 1ax resenve in Spain (560): 2 net charge resuiting (rom the
Compans ‘s finalized analysis of the U.S. Tax Cuts and Jobs Acts of 2017 {(539); und & net charge tor a number of
smalk items (33 and

. for the y ear ended Decernber 31, 2017, a charge resulting from the enactment of the U8, Tax Cuts and Jobs Acts of
2017 that principally refates to the revaluation of ULS. deferred wax assets and Habilities from 33%0 10 21°a {$272),
charge for a resenve against 2 forelzn auribute resulting from the Company 's Delaw are reincorporation (323),
partially offset by a benefit for the reversal of state valuation allowances (569) and a number of small items ($31).
o Other special items included the follow ing:

. for the year ended December 31, 2018, costs related to seitlements of certain customer claims primsarily refated to
product introductions {838). a beneftt from establishing a tax indemnification receivable (829} reflecting Alcoa
Corporation’s 49%s share of the Spanish tax reserve, costs refated 1o the carly redemption of the Company ‘s
outstanding 5.720%a Senior Notes due 2019 ($19). legal and other adsisony costs related o Grenfell Fower (S18),
steategy and purtiolio review costs (57). a charge for a nuimber of small tax items {55). and an other charge (3U); and

. for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2017, an impairmeni of goodw il related (o the forgings and extrusions business
(5719), 4 gain on the sale of o pertion of Arconic’s investment in Alcoa Corporation common stock (3331). a painan
the exchange of the remaining portion of Arconic’s inyestment in Alcoa Corporation common stock {§167), o
favorable adjustment 1o the Tirth Rixson carn-out {$81). cosis assoctated with the Company’s early redemplion of
£1.250 of outstanding senior notes ($76), proay, advison, and govemance-related costs {S38). a finorable adjustment
to a separation-related guarantee liability ($25). cosis associated with the separation of Alcoa loc. (318). legal and
other adh isory costs related 10 Grenfell Tower (S14). and costs associated with the Compamy s Delaw are
reincorporation {$3).

n The tax impact on special items is based on the applicable statutors rates wherebs the difference between such rates and

Arconic’s consolidated estimated annual effective tax rue is itself a Speeial em.

The averuge number of shares applicable o diluted CPS excluding Special items. includes centain share equivalents as their sffcct was
dilutive. For all periods presented. share equivalents asseciated with outstanding employee stock options end awards and shares
underh ing ouistanding convertible debt {acquired threugh the acquisition of RTH) were dihntive based on Net income excluding
Special items.

For the year ended December 31. 2017, share equivalents associated with mandatory consertible preferred siock were anti-difutive
based on Net income excluding Special items.



Reconciliation of Adjusted Free Cash Flow

Year ended December 31, 2018 2017

Cash provided from {used for) operations $ 217§ (3%
Cash receipts from sold receivables ™' 1016 792
Capital expenditures (768) $394)
Adjusted free cash flow g 465 § 157

Accounting guidance effective in 2018 changed the classification of Cash receipts from sold receivables in the cash flow
stalement, reclassifying it from Operating activities to Investing activities  Under the priot accounting guidance. Cash
receipts from sold receivables were included in the (Increase) in reccivables tine tn the Operating activities section of the
statement of cash Mows

There has been no change in the net cash funding in the sale of accounts receivable program in the fourth quarter of 2018 It
remains at $350.

Adjusted free cash flow is a non-GAAP financial measure Management believes that this measure is meaningful to investors
because managemient reviews cash Aows generated from eperations afier taking into consideration capital expenditures (due to
the fact that these expenditures are considered necessary to maintain and expand Arconic's asset base and are expected to
penerate future cash flows from operations), as well as cash receipts from net sales of beneficial interest in sold receivables in
conjunction with the implementation of the new accounting guidance an changes 1o the classification of cenain cash receipts
and cash payments within the statement of cash flows, specifically as it relates to the requirement 1o reclassify cash receipts
from nct sates of beneficiat interest in sold receivables from operating activities 12 investing activities, the Company has
changed the catculation of its measure of Adjusted free cash flow to include cash receipts frem net sales of beneficial interest
sold recetvables This change 1o our measure of Adjusied free cash flow is being implemented to ensure consislent presentation
of this measure across all historical periods The adoption of this accounting guidance does not reflect a change in our

underh ing business ar activities. [t is important to note that Adjusted free cash {low does not represent the residual cash flow
available for discretionany expenditures since other non-disceetionary expenditures, such as mandutory debt service
requirements, are not deducted from the measure
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DIRECTORS

(As of March 18, 2019)

James E. Albaugh, Former President and Chief Executive Officer far Commercial Airplanes, The Boeing Company
Former President and Chief Executive Officer for Integrated Defense Systems, The Boeing Company

Amy £, Alving, Former Senior Vice President and Chief Technology Officer, Leidos Holdings, fnc.

Christopher L. Ayers, Former President and Chief Executive Officer, WireCo WorldGroup inc.

Arthur D. Collins, Jr., Former Choirman and Chief Executive Officer, Medtronic, Inc,

Elmer L. Doty, President and Chief Operating Officer, Arconic Inc.

Rajiv L. Gupta, Chairman, Aptiv PLC; Chairman, Avantor Inc.

David P. Hess, former Interim Chief Executive QOfficer, Arconic Inc; Former Executive Vice President and Chief
Customer Officer for Aerospace, United Technologies Carporation

Sean O. Mahoney, Private Investor; Former Partner and Head of the Financial Sponsors Group, Goldman, Sachs & Co

David J. Miller, Equity Partner, Senior Portfolic Manager and Head of U.5. Restructuring Elliott Management

Corporation

E. Stanley O'Neal, Former Choirman and Chief Executive Officer, Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc.
John C. Plant, Choirman and Chief Executive Qfficer, Arconic Inc.
Ulrich R. Schmidt, Former Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer. Spirit Aerosystems Holdings, inc

OFFICERS

(As of March 18, 2019)

Michael Chanatry
Vice President
Chief Commercial Cfficer

Elmer L. Doty
President
Chief Operating Officer

Ken Giacobbe
Executive Vice President
Chief Financial Officer

Peter Hong
Vice President and Treasurer

Max W. Laun

Vice President

General Counse!

Chief Ethics and Compliance
QOfficer

Meil E. Marchuk
Executive Vice President
Human Resources

Paul Myron
Vice President and Controtler

Timothy D. Myers

Executive Vice President

Group President, Global Rolled
Praducts and Transportation and
Construction Solutions

Jehn C, Plant
Chairman
Chief Executive Officer

Katherine H. Ramundo
Executive Vice President
Chief Legal Officer and Secretary

Bruce E. Thompson
Vice President
Internal Audit

Scott M. Zahorchak
Vice President
Fax

ASSISTANT OFFICERS

Janet F. Duderstadt

Assistant Secretary

Group Generol Counsel, Glpbal
Rotied Products

Margaret 5. Lam

Assistant Secretary

Chief Securities and Governance
Counsel

Catherine D. Parroco
Assistant Secretary

Mary E. Zik
Assistant Controller

Printed inUSA 4
© 2019 Arconic Vgl
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Shareholder Information
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ARCONIC | 2018 ANNUAL REPCRT

COVER IMAGE: Arcon'c is a leading producer of h'ghly
engineered components for aero engines that power
the world's mast advanced aircraft




